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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 12 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr  Pretor ius,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Morn ing Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Are you ready?  Good morning Dr.  Dintwe.  

DR DINTWE:    Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Dr  Dintwe you wi l l  have to  put  the  

microphone c loser  to  you p lease.    

CHAIRPERSON:   They somet imes compla in – wi tnesses 10 

somet imes compla in about  that  chai r  –  the seat .   But  the  

problem is  that  the other  one is  – seems fu r ther  f rom the  

mic.   But  t ry  and just  make yoursel f  comfor tab le.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I s  i t  necessary for  the oath to  be  

taken? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  is .   P lease just  admin iste r  the oath  

or  a ff i rmat ion aga in.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your  fu l l  names fo r  the record.  

DR DINTWE:   Set lhomamaru Isaac Dintwe.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  tak ing the  20 

prescr ibed oath? 

DR DINTWE:   No object ion.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider  the oath b ind ing on your  

conscience? 

DR DINTWE:   I  do.  
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REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly swear that  the ev idence you 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ru th;  the who le t ru th and noth ing but  

the t ru th;  i f  so p lease ra ise your  r ight  hand and say,  so help 

me God.  

DR DINTWE:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   You may be seated.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Dr  Dintwe your  

s tatement  in  aff idavi t  form is  before the Chai r  in  Bundle  

SSA2(b)  and i t  is  Exhib i t  YY15.   We ended the last  session  

of  your  ev idence at  page 812 the b lack numbers in  the top 10 

le f t  hand corner  o f  the pages.  

DR DINTWE:   I  conf i rm that  I  can see that .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You gave evidence before we 

adjourned in  re la t ion to  an appoin tment  or  the approval  o f  

appointment  you say wi thout  due process by Mr Bongani  

Bongo and you deal  wi th  that  in  paragraphs 119,  120 and 

121 of  that  page.   

 You in fo rmed me just  before commencement  of  your  

ev idence today that  there was an issue that  you wish to  

c la r i fy.    20 

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   P lease so so.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes Honourable  Chai r  I  am not  amending 

what  I  would have wr i t ten there  bu t  I  could have created an 

impression that  the Min is ter  accepted our  f ind ings and 
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recommendat ions readi l y  – at  f i rs t  instance.  

 But  I  have s ince checked my records again there  

was someth ing –  some other  correspondence that  I  would 

have omi t ted and I  th ink that  the commission – The Chai r  

wi l l  appreciate that  I  am s i t t ing wi th  about  200 compl ic i t  and 

g iven t ime so  those mistakes do happen.   But  i t  does not  

rea l ly  change the  whole complexion of  what  I  would have 

wr i t ten in  my aff idavi t .   

 I  however request  your  permiss ion that  I  read 

someth ing here so that  I  c lar i f y  that  once step that  I  say  10 

that  I  would have jumped.  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is  f ine.  

DR DINTWE:   Thank you very much.   And may I  cont inue?  

So we – we have wr i t ten to  the Min is te r  wi th  the  f ind ings 

and recommendat ions but  she then wrote to  us and a l though 

she was not  saying that  the appo intment  was regu lar  she 

ra ised about  three points and we accepted them as inc ludes 

because when you are doing invest igat ions you want  to  a lso  

g ive them an opportuni ty  to  input  in to that  invest iga t ion.   So 

we accepted that  but  the fo l lowing points were ra ised in  her  20 

le t ter  and th is  was on the 27 t h  o f  February 2020 where she 

sa id that :  

“From the repor t  i t  appears as though the 

former Min is te r  o f  State Secur i t y  Mr  B Bongo 

and the former Di rector  Genera l  o f  State  
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Secur i ty  Agency SSA Mr A Fraser  were not  

in terv iewed wi th  the a im of  ensur ing that  the  

other  vers ion is  heard.   I t  is  d i f f icu l t  for  me 

to reach a log ica l  conclus ion  wi thout  

in format ion f rom these two cr i t ica l  ro le  

p layers on th is  mat te r. ”  

And then she fur ther  concluded in  that  le t ter  –  in  her  le t te r  

and I  quote – open quotes 

“ I t  wi l l  be prudent  to  guard against  a  cu l tu re  

that  erodes the in tegr i t y  o f  the organisat ion  10 

and opens up such issues once the pol i t i ca l  

pr inc ip le  has le f t . ”  

So the invest igators then decided to expla in those mat ters 

and the reasons obviously why we d id.   And the fo l lowing 

reasons were sent  to  the Min is te r  and these are no t  d i rect  

quotat ions but  they wi l l  be in  my repor t  –  in  the – i f  you – i f  

you l i ke the repor t  a f ter  the inc lus ion of  –  of  her  inputs.  

We said that  there was no need fo r  us to  have in te rv iewed 

he fo rmer Di rector  Genera l  Mr A Fraser  in  l ight  o f  the fact  o f  

that  Mr Fraser  as the Account ing  Off icer  o f  the SSA then 20 

was excluded in  the submission to  appoint  the aforesaid 

member to  the posi t ion aforesaid.  

 So you wi l l  have a number of  s ignator ies and Mr  

Fraser  was not  in  fact  one of  those ent r ies.  

 The second reason that  we 00:06:13 
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was that  in  – “We are in  possession of  the 

approved submission where in the  member  

concerned was appointed to  the aforesaid  

post  o f  00:06:25 Manager wi th in  NICOC the  

Nat ional  In te l l igence Coord inat ing 

Commit tee.   The approved submiss ion as an  

off ic ia l  document  under the custody of  the  

State Secur i ty  Agency const i tu tes  pr ima 

fac ia proof  o f  the appointment  of  the sa id  

member by the  then Min is ter  Advocate 10 

Bongani  Bongo MP as contemplated in  

Sect ion 8 (2)  o f  the In te l l igence Serv ices Act  

65 of  2002. ”  

 The th i rd  reason:  

“ I t  was c lear  on the face of  the submission  

aforesaid that  the appointment  of  the  

member concerned by the then Min is te r  o f  

State Secur i t y  Advocate Bongani  Bongo was 

done in  to ta l  d isregard of  the appl i cable  

laws and regulat ions. ”  20 

 And then f ina l ly  we said:  

“The aff idavi t  by a member of  the SSA who 

implemented the approved submission 

conf i rmed that  the member concerned was 

appointed as a  resul t  o f  the i r  a fo resaid  
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submission as  approved by  Advocate  

Bongani  Bongo MP in h is  then capaci ty  as  

the Min is te r  o f  State Secur i ty.   I t  was 

ind ic ted to  the  Min is ter  that  wi th  the  

ev idence col lected thus far  by us  i t  was 

c lear  that  the appointment  of  the member  

concerned was i r regular  and unlawfu l .   No 

usefu l  purpose was going to  be served by  

approaching the former Min is te r  and 

in terv iew – in terv iew h im. ”  10 

 And then we sent  that  par t icu lar  le t ter.  Now th is  i s  a  

s ign i f i cant  po int  s ince then the Min is ter  has never  rever ted 

back to  us.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   Just  to  summarise then you 

gave evidence las t  t ime of  an appointment  which was ca l led 

in to quest ion by your  off i ce.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct  Chai r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   As being i r regular.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You conducted an invest igat ion and 20 

made cer ta in  recommendat ions.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   The Min is te r  –  Min is ter  Dlodlo ra ised 

what  appeared to  be procedura l  concerns about  who had 

been heard and who had not  been heard.  
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DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You responded to  those compla ints  

mainta ined your  recommendat ion and the mat te r  was f rom 

your  point  o f  v iew not  resolved.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct  to  date.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I f  we could go over  the page then 

p lease to  page 813.   You deal  in  the paragraphs on that  

page and over  the page wi th  appointments to  the cadet  

program and to o ther  por t ions or  departments wi th in  State 

Secur i ty.   Page – paragraph 122 just  very br ie f ly  what  10 

happened in  re la t ion to  those appointments there or  

recommendat ions.  

DR DINTWE:   I t  is  a  genera l l y  accepted pract ice amongst  

in te l l igence serv ices that  somet imes they wi l l  want  to  

ident i fy  in te l l igence off icers at  an ear ly  s tage.   They could  

v is i t  h igh schools,  they could go  to  the univers i t ies and 

star t  recru i t ing there.   And what  they have done here is  that  

in  cer ta in  instances they wi l l  ident i f y  the so ca l led 

underpr iv i leged or  p reviously d isadvantaged students or  

ind iv iduals they wi l l  g ive them a bursary and then they wi l l  20 

go and study wi th  a l ready a  commitment  at  that  s tage the 

they wi l l  be absorbed in to the agency once they complete 

that .  

 Same pr inc ip le  w i th  the cadet  program as wel l .   So 

they have done a  lo t  on that .   L ike a s ing le cadet  program 
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could have around th i r ty  or  even more students who wi l l  be 

taken to the co l lege.   We would no t  have a problem of  that  

i t  is  a  good pract ice accepted.    

 The only problem is  that  they do not  have a c r i te r ia  

which says what  are the requi rements basic o r  o therwise 

that  these cadets  or  s tudents shou ld you know comply wi th  

and that  i s  creat ing a ser ious problem because there is  

ev idence even in  the h igh leve l  00:10:57 panel  which  

concludes that  the SSA has been turned in to an employment  

agency for  the pol i t ica l ly  connected as wel l  as those who 10 

are connected to  the senior  managers wi th in  the State  

Secur i ty  Agency.   And we cannot  quest ion that  as an 

overs ight  because the th ings that  we should be doing is  to  

say what  is  the  cr i te r ia  and check real ly  whether  that  

cr i ter ia  and the procedures were fo l lowed when recru i t ing  

those people.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight  you have g iven me examples 

in  paragraphs 122 to 124 and the facts are set  out  there but  

in  p r inc ip le  what  is  wrong i f  a  M in is ter  o f  State Secur i ty  

suggests a par t icu la r  candidate for  a  cadet  p rogram wi th the  20 

undertak ing that  that  person wi l l  then employed by SSA?  

Sure ly  a Min is ter  can ident i fy  a  person su i tab le for  such 

appointment  on h is  or  her  own?  What  is  –  what  is  the 

problem wi th th is  Min is te r ia l  overreach as you ca l l  i t?  

DR DINTWE:   The problem is  that  more of ten than not  we 
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have stumbled across or  in  fact  we found that  there would  

fami l ia l  re la t ions  between people who are appointed 

between them and the pol i t ica l  pr inc ip les and in  cer ta in  

instances a lso wi th  senior  managers wi th in  the State 

Secur i ty  Agency.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   What  about  – yes you do 

not  ment ion… 

DR DINTWE:   For  us i t  is  nepot ism and – and we cannot  

rea l ly  deal  wi th  that  issue sat is factor i l y  unt i l  we know which  

cr i ter ia  was used to ident i fy  that .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   So that  –  the danger of  

nepot ism you do ment ion as a genera l  po int  but  the – in  

paragraph 122 you do say there are other  instances of  the 

ch i ldren and fami ly  members o f  senior  po l i t i c ians and 

Min is te rs being appointed to  these cadet  posi t ions.   You do 

ment ion that .   But  the par t i cu la r  examples you g ive here are  

not  examples of  nepot ism.  

DR DINTWE:   They are examples of  nepot ism.   We decided 

to – to  remove about  two names.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Oh I  see.  20 

DR DINTWE:   For  the reasons of  the t ime – the pressures of  

t ime Chai rperson and we are a lso t ry ing to  l im i t  the not ices  

that  would have sent .   But  in  the  – in  the documents that  

wi l l  be declassi f ied and t ransmi t ted to  yoursel f  you wi l l  see 

the names,  the surnames and that  re la t ionship.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   I  am – I  understand what  you are 

saying.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so we would – so we wi l l  get  that  

in format ion.  

DR DINTWE:   I t  i s  in  the documents that  I  have submi t ted to  

the commission a l ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A l r ight .   The second point  is  what  is 

the – what  are the issues around the fu ture loyal ty  of  the  

SSA member a cadet  becomes a SSA operat ive about  the 10 

potent ia l  o f  par t ia l  loyal ty  to  the person in f luent ia l  in  h is  or  

her  appointment ,  is  that  a  problem? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is  a  problem and I  th ink I  wou ld have 

ra ised i t  ear l ier  as wel l  to  say that  they become beholden to  

the appoint ing author i t ies and they are ingrat ia ted in  a 

par t icu lar  manner  because some of  them wi l l  te l l  you that  I  

d id  not  expect  th is  you know.   Jus t  imagine how easy i t  is  

Chai rperson i f  I  get  ident i f ied I  am given a bursary,  I  get  

appointed but  our  ne ighbours ch i ld  who may even be more  

qual i f ied than mysel f  i s  not  get t ing considered for  that  20 

posi t ion.   I t  is  obvious that  I  wi l l  be beholden to the 

appoint ing author i ty.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And then in  addi t ion to  that  you have 

test i f ied to  the Chai r  that  you are not  c lear  whether  the  

requi rements – the appointment  requi rements were actual ly  
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fo l lowed in  each case.  

DR DINTWE:   That  i s  correct .   We would not  be  able to  

establ ish that  because each t ime we request  the assis t  –  

the cr i te r ia  they say we do not  have the cr i ter ia .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  how r i fe  is  th is  p roblem of  

appointments tha t  are done in  th is  way par t i cu la r ly  those 

that  seem to have features of  nepot ism roughly do have 

some idea?  Are we ta lk ing about  two,  three okay in  

instances are we in  a year  are we ta lk ing about  over  the  

past  f ive years f i f ty  people more or  less.   Do you have some 10 

idea or  is  that  d i f f icu l t  to  say? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  is  f requent  pract ice Chai rperson.   In  fact  

when I  was dr iv ing – draf t ing the a ff idavi t  and I  wanted that  

documentary proof  I  was g iven a l i s t  o f  about  fo r ty.  

CHAIRPERSON:   For ty.  

DR DINTWE:   Cadets yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  yes.  

DR DINTWE:   And – and at  tha t  par t i cu la r  po int  I  am 

in formed re l iab ly  that  the then Min is ter  o f  State Secur i ty  

Min is te r  Kasr i l s  I  am not  impl icat ing h im so I  th ink I  can 20 

ment ion the name he actual l y  d isowned those students 

because he sa id that  when he was going through the  l is t  he  

could p in point  exact ly  that  Min is te r,  that  o ther  former  

Min is te r,  that  o ther  Min is te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is  that  so.  
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DR DINTWE:   That  other  DG,  that  Deputy.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   DG.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   So he d isowned about  for ty  g raduates on a  

cadet  or  a  cadet  program.   The other  ones i t  was actual ly  

two students who had gone to univers i t y  but  then the reason 

why I  focused on that  i t  is  because they would have wr i t ten 

to  us now compla in ing in  tu rn.  But  there were not  p laced on 

a level  that  they were promised before they went  to  10 

univers i ty.   I t  is  a  very,  very,  very  f requent  you know issue 

at  the Secur i ty  –  the State Secur i ty  Agency.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you have an idea as to  whether  there 

is  a  number that  they seek – or  a  target  that  they seek to  

achieve per  year  that  they must  have got  X number of  

people that  wi l l  go in to th is  t ra in ing and then la te r  on get  

employed by SSA? 

DR DINTWE:   I  do not  remember I  th ink that  we – we made 

that  enqui ry  but  i t  should have been inc luded in  that  annual  

repor t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   I f  not  they are p lanned.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   For  the so ca l led 00:18:08 ATT.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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DR DINTWE:   But  we could not  ge t  k ind of  in fo rmat ion so I  

do not  know in  any g iven year  how many people are they 

target ing to  recru i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because i t  would be good to have an idea 

whether  one can say over  the past  f ive years or  even more 

i t  looks l i ke on average per  year  so many people get  put  

in to the program even i f  to  the t ra in ing wi th  a v iew to la te r  

be ing employed by SSA – even i f  not  a l l  o f  them are  people  

who have been employed due to  nepot ism but  people go 

in to that  program to see i t s  s ize.  10 

DR DINTWE:   Ja I  wi l l  not  be  – I  wi l l  not  have any 

in te l l igence – in te l l igent  you know response to that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  no that  is  f ine .  

DR DINTWE:   I  –  work that  out .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  can be fu rn ished la ter  in  wr i t ing i f  –  i f  i t  

is  in fo rmat ion tha t  you can get .  

DR DINTWE:   Maybe safe to  ind icate that  i t  is  a lso  

happening loosely  in  that  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  is  not  ( ta lk ing over  one another) .  

DR DINTWE:   In  that  you wi l l  get  and I  wr i te  – I  wr i te  the 20 

names of  the Min is te rs you wi l l  ge t  Min is te r  David Masobo 

who wi l l  v is i t  a  par t i cu lar  h igh school  in  KZN and then he 

ident i f ies maybe three or  four  s tudents.   You wi l l  get  the 

then Deputy Min is te r  I  ment ioned her  name Ms Molekane 

who wi l l  go to  a  h igh school  in  – and I  am exchanging 
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prov inces here to  the North West  and ident i fy  two that  we 

have that  par t icu lar  in format ion.  And then you wi l l  have the 

Di rector  Genera l  then who wi l l  have a program o f  about  

th i r ty  o r  fo r ty  at  any g iven t ime them being sent  on  th is  

cadet  cur rent  program.   So i t  has happened because there  

is  no cr i te r ia .   Other  people are going and where  we are 

s i t t ing  now we may even be ob l iv ious to  some of  those 

cases.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Pretor ius.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Just  in  summary then as a mat ter  o f  10 

pr inc ip le  at  the bot tom of  page – or  at  the end of  paragraph 

123 on page 813 you say:  

“This involvement  of  the Min is t ry  and the  

recru i tment  process const i tu tes s ign i f i cant  

execut ive over reach in to the funct ion ing of  

the SSA. ”  

 And as I  understand i t  you have ra ised at  least  th ree 

problems one is  quest ion mark around proper  qual i f i cat ion.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And adequate su i tab i l i t y  o f  the 20 

candidate for  the post  be ing proper ly  assessed.   The 

second is  that  there would a potent ia l  o f  the re la t ionship  

between the state off ic ia l  or  the Min is te r  and the operat ive  

being explo i ted.   I  suppose both ways is  i t  possib le  that  the  

operat ive would  be loyal  then to  the Min is te r  and the  
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Min is te r  could exerc ise in f luence over  the operat ive.   Is  that  

a  va l id  observat ion that  you make? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  is  an observat ion that  we – we conf i rm and 

– and maybe can I  g ive a f ina l  example of  what  happened in  

terms of  the execut ive over reach?  And th is  i s  the mat ter  

that  we are deal ing wi th  – wi th  now.  

 Now the speci f icat ions star ts  wr i t ing a submission  

and that  submission appoints 26  managers – now i t  is  

senior  managers they use the i r  own levels there but  I  th ink 

that  in  the publ i c  serv ice i t  would  be your  d i rectors and – 10 

because they are a lso genera l  managers who could be  

equiva lent  to  ch ie f  d i rectors and so  for th .  

 Now th is  i s  the chase that  is  conf i rmed but  what  

happens there is  that  they d id not  adver t i se i t .  There is  no 

se lect ion panel .  There are no in terv iews.  Some o f  those 

people do not  meet  the requi rements of  that  par t i cu lar  post .   

The DDG – I  mean the DG the act ing DG that  even refused 

to recommend because he is  wr i t ing h is  concerns about  how 

these people were ident i f ied.   26 Chai rperson managers and 

the only  th ing that  you f ind in  tha t  submission  is  that  they 20 

have a b log where they wr i te  the i r  mot ivat ion.    

 One example of  that  mot ivat ion is  that  th is  person 

used to act  in  the par t icu la r  posi t ion and he is  a loyal  

member for  years  and he has exper ience on that  par t icu la r  

f ie ld  and so for th .   And then they got  appointed.   Some of  
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them and what  the DG wrote under the comments  is  that  

some of  them were even recal led f rom ret i rement  and then 

they were appointed – appointed – appointed again.  

 There is  no regulatory f ramework.   When you go 

through that  par t icu lar  submission they d id not  te l l  you 

about  th is  any leg is la t ion which empowers the 00:22:28 but  

i t  is  the Min is ter  who then appoints th is  g roup of  26 .    

 As I  am ta lk ing to  you they are in  the i r  posi t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So – so are you saying that  there is  no 

leg is la t ion or  regulat ion that  g ives power to  anybody 10 

whether  i t  is  Min is te r  o r  DG to say th is  can be done? 

DR DINTWE:   The way I  see i t  Honourable Cha i rperson 

sorry – ja  the way I  see i t ,  i t  is  that  the Min is ter  was 

in tending to  come up wi th  what  we cal led a deviat ion.   So 

the regulat ions are in  p lace and they could not  code those 

regulat ions because regulat ions says you adver t i se,  you 

come up wi th  a se lect ion cr i ter ia ,  se lect ion panel  and then 

you fo l low those s teps.  

 That  is  what  the i r  own regulat ions are saying.   So –  

so  they d id not  wr i te  any of  those there.   The only reason 20 

that  they provided under the mot ivat ion is  that  there is  a  

huge number of  managers who have e i ther  res igned,  went  

on ret i rement .    

 In  fact  coming up wi th  what  one could see as an  

emergency recru i tment .   So in  my career  I  have only heard  
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about  emergency procurement  when there is  a  burst  p ipe  

somewhere and so for th .   

 But  I  have never  ever  heard of  an emergency 

recru i tment .  

CHAIRPERSON:   The – the leg is la t ive provis ions that  you 

have in  mind about  the adver t is ing  and so on I  th ink those 

would re la te to  the actual  appointment  of  these people.   Is  

i t  not?  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   What  I  was more concerned about  is  10 

how they come in  because based on your  ev idence i t  is  l ike  

they f i rs t  have to  get  in to some t ra in ing or  they get  

bursar ies on the basis that  once you have got  whatever  the  

qual i f icat ion or  t ra in ing is  you wi l l  be employed.   So I  was 

asking about  any leg is la t i ve provis ions re la t ing to  the  

grant ing of  those bursar ies or  whatever  the program is .   Do 

you know anyth ing? 

DR DINTWE:   Ja no in  that  case they do not  have and I  wi l l  

request  the Chai rperson to del ineate the two tha t  I  was 

ta lk ing about .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

DR DINTWE:   The la test  example that  I  was referr ing to  i s  

people who are long in  the serv ice.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

DR DINTWE:   Now that  are appointed in to management  
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posi t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.  

DR DINTWE:   I  had exhausted… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh you had exhausted the ear l ier  one.  

DR DINTWE:   A t  least  ( ta lk ing over  one another )  t ime –  

there is  cadets and the students.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   But  the cadets get  bursar ies to  

get  some t ra in ing  or  whatever  and then they get  employed 

af terwards,  is  tha t  r ight?  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   So – okay that  is  where I  was st i l l  on 

– and you say that  one has got  no leg is la t ive prov is ions –  

f ramework as fa r  as you know? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  does not  have and that  is  what  we have 

been request ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   Even i f  i t  is  a  pol icy which th is  was the 

cr i ter ia .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   To be considered.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   They do not  have? 

DR DINTWE:   They do not  have that  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So i t  is  l ike somebody just  decides i t  

is  a  good th ing to  look around and g ive bursar ies somet imes 

to people who seem to be deserv ing and then i t  is  done.  
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DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay but  the la t ter  category you 

were ta lk ing about  is  people who have been in  the  system 

but  not  in  cer ta in  posi t ions and then they are promoted to  

cer ta in  posi t ions wi thout  fo l lowing any processes.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

DR DINTWE:   And in  that  instance there are regulat ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja there are… 

DR DINTWE:   Which deals wi th  that  but  they get  ignored.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   Complete ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.  And in  regard  to  that  both  

Min is te rs and DG’s are involved as wel l  in  the breach of  

those regulat ions? 

DR DINTWE:   In  the la t ter  example.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   The act ing DG refused to recommend.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   But  the Min is ter  went  ahead and approved.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

 DR DINTWE:   The appointment .  As I  am ta lk ing to  you 

those people are in  those posi t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And that  i s  about  how many people? 

DR DINTWE:   26.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   26.  

DR DINTWE:   Managers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And which Min is ter  are we ta lk ing about  

do you know? 

DR DINTWE:   Min is te r  Ayanda Dlod lo.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes and how recent  i s  that  that  

appointment  are –  or  how recent  are they? 

DR DINTWE:   They are yet  to  get  the i r  00:28:11 sa lary 

Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So i t  is  someth ing that  happened af te r  10 

th is  commission had heard some evidence about  some of  

the chal lenges in  SSA.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is  correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r ight .   Mr Pretor ius.   I  am sor ry – I  

am sor ry Mr Pre tor ius.   Have you got  any understanding  

wi th  regard to  th is  category  – have you got  any 

understanding why Min is te rs  and DG’s would act  in  b reach 

of  the regulat ions in  regard to  these appointments when 20 

they know them.  Do you know why they would be doing 

th is?  

DR DINTWE:   I  do not  want  to  g ive  you conspi racy theor ies.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  Okay.   A l r ight .  

DR DINTWE:   I  d id  not  want  to  g ive  you that .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

DR DINTWE:   Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Because the – i t  cannot  be that  

they do not  know I  would imagine.   They must  be – know the  

regulat ions.   You do not  want  to  say anyth ing.  

DR DINTWE:   A l r ight .   And I  –  I  th ink wi th  one of  those 

appointments there was a media opin ion.   There was an 

opin ion in  the media.   Those people are connected major i t y 

o f  them are connected to  the prev ious management .   The 

management  that  would have worked wi th  Mr Ar thur  Fraser  10 

dur ing that  t ime.   People are able to  appoint  and – and 

there is  a  bel ie f  that  they are coming back and 00:29:54 in  

the State Secur i t y  Agency.   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Pretor ius.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    The per iod  tha t  you are  re fer r ing  

to ,  i s  tha t  the  per iod  covered by the  PAN 1  Repor t ,  

P r inc ipa l  Hedge and Network  1  Repor t ,  tha t  per iod?  

DR DINTWE :    Dur ing  tha t  pe r iod .   That  i s  co r rec t ,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   And the  a l legat ion  -  and i t  

i s  an  a l legat ion  fo r  the  moment ,  we may dea l  w i th  that  20 

la te r,  Cha i r  -  i s  t ha t  peop le  who were  imp l ica ted  in  the  PAN 

1  Repor t  were  reappo in ted  to  the  SSA.   

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I s  tha t  wha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR DINTWE :    Maybe we shou ld  no t  ca l l  i t  the 
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reappo in tment .   We shou ld  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    P romot ion .  

DR DINTWE :    . . . ta lk  about  p romot ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I  see .  

DR DINTWE :    So  dur ing  Pan 1 ,  they wou ld  have been  in  a  

leve l  be low,  the  leve l  tha t  a re  po in ted  to  now.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   So i t  i s  p romot ion  you are  

ta lk ing  about?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Jus t  to  summar i se  then.   The 

Cadet  Prog ramme,  the  Bursary  Programme has i t s  ou tcome 

appo in tment  in to  the  ranks o f  the  SSA.   Cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And you  have g i ven examples  o f  

m in is te r i a l  invo l vement  in  the  se lec t ion  and appo in tment  

in fo rmal ly,  o f  cou rse ,  in to  tha t  p rogramme.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And your  concern  is  tha t  the  proper  

p rocedures are  bypassed in  tha t  p rocess.  20 

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    In  re la t ion  to  the  26 ,  you speak  

about  i r regu lar  p romot ions to  sen ior  pos i t ions  w i th in  the  

SSA.  

DR DINTWE :    I  con f i rm tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Bu t  a l l  these are  done under  the  

d i rec t ion  ra ther  than the  recommendat ion  o f  the  m in is te r,  

as  I  unders tand what  you are  say ing .  

DR DINTWE :    The approva l  o f  the  m in is te r.   So the  

m in is te r  i s  the  las t  s ignatory  and i t  w i l l  be  wr i t ten ,  l i ke ,  on  

the  submiss ion  to  say tha t  recommend,  no t  recommend 

tha t .   So i t  w i l l  be  the  o ther  s ignator ies .   You w i l l  ge t  an  

HR o f f i c ia l  somewhere  bu t  the  las t  par t  there  i t  i s  approved  

or  no t  approved.   And the  m in is te r  -  the  appo in tments  

happened under  the  approva l  o f  the  m in is te r.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What  i s  wrong w i th  tha t?  

DR DINTWE :    Exact ly  what  I  am say ing  tha t  invo lvement  o f  

the  m in is te r  in  the  recru i tment  p rocess const i tu tes  

s ign i f i can t  execut ive  over reach and th is  i s  no t  –  cannot  no t  

be  seen as  my op in ion  on ly  because i t  i s  a lso  conta ined in  

the  HLRP.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So ,  as  I  unders tand i t ,  the  m in is te r  

does not  approve f ina l l y  bu t  i s  invo l ved in  the  process  

lead ing  up to  h i s  o r  he r  approva l ,  i r regu la r ly?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   Yes,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    In  paragraph 124,  page  813 you 

record  an  in te res t ing  observa t ion .   You say:  

“Th is  was a l so  the  case in  the  Free S ta te  

Prov inc ia l  Of f i ce  o f  Cr ime In te l l igence where  

the  Prov inc ia l  Head,  Major  Genera l  Make le  has 
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acknowledge th is  p rac t ise .  

Accord ing  to  her  the  appo in tment ,  the  

appo in tment  o f  ch i ld ren  and fami ly  members  o f  

sen ior  po l i ce  o f f i c ia ls ,  as  we l l  as ,  a  g i r l f r iend 

to  one he r  b r igad iers  ass is ted  in  ensur ing  tha t  

they rec ru i ted  t rus twor thy  peop le .  

These members  were  then p laced in  a  very  

sens i t i ve  env i ronment  w i thout  the  necessary  

exper ience to  the  de t r imen t  o f  Cr ime 

In te l l igence. . . ”  10 

 Leave as ide  the  fo rmer  qua l i f i ca t ion  issue wh ich  

you ra i sed in  the  second sentence  but  a re  you then  aware  

o f  the  s ta tement  ac tua l l y  be ing  made tha t  fami ly  members  

are  appo in ted  because they are  t rus twor thy?  

DR DINTWE :    And I  am s t i l l  shocked,  even  today,  

Cha i rperson.   But  what  happened is  tha t  when my s ta f f  

members  go  and  do what  we can ca l l ,  l i ke ,  ver i f i ca t ion ,  

l i ke ,  when they  v is i t  these o f f i ces ,  I ,  somet imes I  

accompany them and we w i l l  dea l  w i th  o r  we w i l l  have a  

meet ing  on  the  f i r s t  day and then I  w i l l  l eave them because  20 

somet imes they w i l l  work  there  fo r  a  week or  so .  

 So in  th is  spec i f i c  meet ing  I  was  s i t t ing  there  

w i th  the  Prov inc ia l  Head,  Majo r  Genera l  Make le ,  and I  

posed tha t  quest ion .   I t  was f rom myse l f  to  say :   But  we  

are  in fo rmed by  somebody in  tha t  meet ing . . .   In  fac t ,  a  
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component  -  respons ib le  fo r  Counter in te l l igence because 

Counte r in te l l igence in  the  SAPS wi l l  invest iga te  t he  o ther  

o f f i c ia ls  w i th  in te l l igence(?)  agents .   And I  was shocked to 

her  response to  t ha t  and tha t  i s  the  reason tha t  was g i ven 

to  myse l f .  

 Because the  names –  the  names were  ment ioned 

and next  to  each  name i t  w i l l  be  a  s ta t ion  commander  o f  

tha t  s ta t ion ,  po l i ce  s ta t ion  i n  B loemfonte in  –  the  

B loemfonte in  a rea.   I t  w i l l  be  a  major  genera l  somewhere  

in  the  prov inc ia l  o f f i ce .   I t  w i l l  be  a  br igad ier  in  the  same 10 

o f f i ce  whose g i r l f r iend is  appo in ted  in  tha t  space .   And 

then you w i l l  a lso  have a  re la t i ve  o f  Advocate  Mape le(? )  

herse l f .  

 And the  reason what  –  and the  reason tha t  she  

prov ided to  us  was to  say tha t  these ch i ld ren  or  these k ids  

are  we l l -b red .   Wel l -b red  up.   Because they be long  –  they  

are  ch i ld ren  to  sen io r  o f f i c ia ls  o f  SAPS and so  fo r th .   And 

tha t  was the  reason tha t  was p rov ided to  us .   I  am s t i l l  i n  

d isbe l ieve  even today tha t  tha t  was the  reason used.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   You  go on in  tha t  paragraph 20 

to  say:  

“There  has a lso  been a  compla in t  tha t  because 

they. . .  [and I  p resume i t  these appo in tees]  

. . .owed an a l lega t ion  to  the  prov inc ia l  head.  

They on ly  share  the  in te l l igence tha t  they  
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ga ther  w i th  those  members  o f  management  to  

whom they owe a l leg iance. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  a  compla in t  you rece ived.    

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  the  compla in t  tha t  I  rece ived .   May I  

p lease pa in t  a  th is  by  us ing  an  a lphabet ,  i f  you  w i l l  a l low 

me Cha i rpe rson.   Now you w i l l  have A and A is  a  head o f  

Counte r in te l l igence.   And then you w i l l  have B  who is  a  

head o f  Surve i l lance.   Now because th is  g roup fa l l s  under  

th is  o ther  g roup o f  B ,  fo r  ins tance,  they w i l l  then prov ide  

in fo rmat ion  on ly  to  B  so  tha t  B  cou ld  appear  more  10 

successfu l  than A .    

 So they w i l l  be  s i t t ing  there ,  and I  am jus t  be ing  

care fu l  because th is  i s  one o f  the  ne tworks  tha t  they are  

do ing  but  le t  me use a  s im i la r  o r  s imp l is t i c  examp le .   Le t  

us  say they are  respons ib le  fo r  l i s ten ing  to  conversa t ions  

and they come across,  fo r  i ns tance,  peop le  who a re  

b laming to  commi t  cash- in - i n - t rans i t  he is t ,  fo r  ins tance.  

 Ins tead o f  g iv ing  tha t  in fo rmat ion  to  A ,  they w i l l  

no t  do  tha t  bu t  they wou ld  ra ther  g ive  i t  to  B because B  

was on the i r  s ide  and wou ld  have in f luenced the i r  20 

appo in tment .   So tha t  k ind  o f  a  compet i t ion  a lso  ex is ts  and  

wh ich  poses a  se r ious prob lem then because i t  means tha t  

the  o ther  peop le  may not  even come across tha t  

in fo rmat ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  do I  unders tand you cor rec t l y  to  
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be  say ing  tha t  one o f  the  pr inc ip les  o f  employment  in  S ta te 

Secur i t y  pa r t i cu la r ly,  and I  p resume i t  app l ies  th roughout  

the  pub l i c  se rv i ce ,  i s  tha t  the  pe rson appo in ted  must  be  

comple te l y  independent  o f  ex te rna l  in f luence? 

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Par t i cu la r l y  in f luence in  regard  to  

the i r  appo in tment  in  the  f i rs t  p lace? 

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You go  on in  the  next  sec t ion ,  

parag raph 125 and fo l low ing,  to  dea l  w i th  the  cont ro ls  10 

re la t ing  to  the  use and f low o f  money in  the  In te l l igence  

Serv i ces .   Now we have heard  de ta i led  ev idence in  th is  

regard .   You g ive  ev idence o f  a  more  genera l  na ture  

ar is ing  ou t  o f  your  own exper ience and independent  

invest iga t ions.   What  have been your  f ind ings?  You dea l  

w i th  tha t  in  parag raph 125 and fo l low ing.  

DR DINTWE :    Yes.   And Cha i rpe rson,  yes ,  I  th ink  tha t  I  

need to  s tand by  conf i rm ing tha t  indeed we wou ld  have 

removed spec i f i c  t ransact ions because amongst  your  

w i tnesses I  th ink  tha t  Ms K  deta i led  a l l  those.   We do have 20 

a lso  a  de ta i led  l is t  o f  money- f lows.   What  I  can conf i rm is  

tha t  money has been s to len  and  we a re  ta l k ing  l o ts  and 

lo ts  o f  money taken w i th  su i t cases,  o thers  be ing  los t  and  

peop le  were  never  rea l l y  he ld  accountab le  fo r  tha t  money.    

 And what  I  am say ing  there  is  tha t  our  f ind ings 
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a re  tha t  these monies  have been used fo r  o ther  th ings tha t ,  

in  fac t ,  cou ld  a f fec t  our  Nat iona l  Secur i t y  adverse l y.   For  

an  example ,  some o f  those monies  cou ld  be  used to  fue l  

po l i t i ca l  tens ions .   There  is  ev idence in  our  possess ion  

tha t  some o f  those monies  were  used to  f inance a  

par t i cu la r  fac t ion  w i th in  in  the  govern ing  par t y  and in  o the r  

ju r i sd i c t ion  you w i l l  f ind  tha t  these monies  can be used 

a lso  to  f inance te r ro r i sm.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   In  paragraph 126  you go 

in to  a  l i t t le  more  de ta i l .   Wou ld  you dea l  w i th  tha t?   But  10 

be fore  you do.   The documents  tha t  you are  ye t  to  p rov ide  

in  the  var ious bund les  suppor t ing  your  s ta tement ,  do  they 

conta in  more  ev idence o f  th is?  

DR DINTWE :    They do conta in  i temised,  Cha i rperson.   

I temised,  you know. . .   Ja ,  the  i tems wh ich  ind ica te  a t  what  

s tage was th is  amount  taken and  what  reason was g iven,  

and I  even a t tached examples  o f  what  cou ld  be  seen an  

invo i ce .   In  o ther  words,  repor t ing  tha t  the  rec ip ien t  wou ld  

have rece ived the  money.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   So tha t  documenta t ion ,  we  20 

t rus t ,  w i l l  be  fo r thcoming hopefu l l y  as  soon as  poss ib le  

Dr  D in twe.    

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   I  conf i rm tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.   Paragraph 126,  you go in to  a  

l i t t le  more  de ta i l .  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 31 of 317 
 

DR DINTWE :    Yes.   And I  a l so  re fer red  them to  tha t .   I  

th ink . . .   Okay.   I  am aware ,  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  dur ing  the  

ev idence o f  Ms K  you were  shown an example  o f  a  Word  

document .   So I  take  the  money and say tha t  I  am tak ing  

th is  money to  Josef .   Josef  cou ld  be  a  source  or  he  cou ld  

have done cer ta in  work  fo r  us .   And what  I  do  is  tha t  I  on ly  

t ype.   I ,  the  unders igned,  conf i rm tha t  I  have rece ived th i s  

par t i cu la r  money.   And then there  is  jus t  a  s ignatu re .   No  

le t te rhead,  no  no th ing  and so  fo r th  and they are  tak ing  

huge amounts  o f  money.   One o f  the  t ransact ions was  10 

equ iva len t  to  200  000 Euros a t  a  ca l l (? ) .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Who is  qu i ck  to  work  ou t  how much tha t  

i s  in  – i s  i t  mu l t ip l ied  by  e igh t  o r  ten?  To tu rn  i t  in to  –  

conver t  i t  Euros .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    N ine teen,  I  th ink .  

DR DINTWE :    Even e igh teen.   I t  i s  e igh teen.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

DR DINTWE :    I t  is  a round e igh teen.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have not  t rave l led  in  a  long t ime.   20 

[ laughs]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    [ laughs]  

DR DINTWE :    I t  runs in to  m i l l ions .    

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  rough ly?  

DR DINTWE :    I t  runs in to  m i l l ions .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Mi l l i ons .  

DR DINTWE :    A t  tha t  t ime tha t  I  was do ing  tha t  

ca l cu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE :    To  be  –  what  I  f ind  a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  po in t .   I  

know i t  i s  f luc tua t ing  bu t  i t  was R 2 .7  m i l l ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

DR DINTWE :    Yes.   That  was taken by  a  member  and i t  

jus t  go t  los t ,  jus t  l i ke  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   And there  is  no  proof  o f  what  i t  10 

was used fo r?  

DR DINTWE :    No t  a t  a l l ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   You are  say ing ,  f i rs t l y,  tha t  

the  use o f  cash i s  inherent ly  p rob lemat ic ,  a l though i t  m igh t  

be  necessary,  I  th ink ,  tha t  has  been conceded  by  you  

e lsewhere ,  bu t  i t  i s  the  account ing  and the  documenta ry  

records  in  re la t ion  to  the  d isbursements  o f  cash tha t  i s  o f  

concern .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   And a lso  to  add tha t  20 

managers  de l ibera te l y  o r  be ing  unaware  a t tempt  to  

m isconst rue  secrecy and a l low the  commiss ion  to  use  

cash,  to  mean tha t  then i t  i s  no  accountab i l i t y.   There  must  

be  an  autho r i t y  somewhere  where  you go and account .   So 

they see tha t  k ind  o f  a  th ing  to  say tha t  once you say tha t  
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you  can use cash,  then i t  means  tha t  you can –  you may  

not ,  in  fac t ,  account  i t  fo r  and tha t  i s  what  i s  happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  i s  a  tap  tha t  must  be  c losed w i thout  

jeopard i s ing  the  e f fec t i veness o f  in te l l igence,  p roper  

in te l l igence and  the  use o f  cash leg i t ima te ly  fo r  

in te l l igence purpose but  c lose  the  tap  fo r  those who can 

jus t  take  money  and they do  not  have to  account  to  

anybody as  to  whether  tha t  money was used proper ly.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson but  they w i l l  

never  ever  be  ab le .   None –  a l l  in te l l igence se rv ice  w i l l  10 

need to  use cash in  cer ta in  ins tances.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

DR DINTWE :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . the  leg i t imate  par t  o f  us ing  cash,  tha t  

must  cont inue.   The p rob lem i s  to  c lose  the  tap  o f  us ing  i t  

i l l eg i t imate ly.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Because one can unders tand why 

cash may have  to  be  used fo r  leg i t imate  in te l l igence 

purposes but  one  must  c lose  the  tap  i f  one can in  regard  to  20 

peop le  be ing  ab le  to  jus t  take  money and go and use i t  fo r  

whatever  they choose to  use i t  fo r  and say i t  was fo r  

in te l l igence purposes and the i r  word  must  be  accep ted.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   That  i s  our  p ropos i t ion ,  

Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    We wi l l  dea l  an  ex t rac t  f rom one o f  

the  repor ts  you ac tua l l y  made in  th is  regard  ove r  the  page 

but  fo r  the  moment  i f  we cou ld  s tay  on  paragraph 126.   You 

say you ra ised concerns about  the  preva lence o f  la rge  

sums o f  cash be ing  w i thdrawn a t  the  SSA and tha t  i s  in  

re la t ion  to  the  2016/2017 F inanc ia l  Year  o f  SSA 

Opera t ions.    

 And you say:  

“Th is  concern  was ra i sed fo l low ing c la ims tha t  10 

la rge  sums o f  cash were  be ing  car r ied  ou t  o f  

the  SSA by members  sent  by  sen io r  

management  o f  the  SSA to  var ious dest ina t ion  

be tween 2014 to  a round 2017 w i th  l im i ted 

proof  o f  rece ip t  o f  those monies  by persons a t  

the  purpo r ted  des t ina t ions. . . ”  

 A re  those the  c la ims tha t  were  made to  you and 

your  o f f i ce?  

DR DINTWE :    Yes bu t  we wou ld  have invest iga ted  them.   

So what  we inc lude in  our  ce r t i f i ca tes .   Remember  –  tha t  I  20 

re fer red  to  las t  t ime.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

DR DINTWE :    Yes.   I t  w i l l  bas i ca l l y  be  f ind ings no t  

va lue(?) .   So we wou ld  have rece ived a  repor t  and we  

wou ld  ge t  in to  the  sys tem and check whethe r  a l l  tha t  
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money indeed went  ou t  and we w i l l  check whether  the re  

was some k ind  o f  invo ice  or  se t t lement  o f  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  

money.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .  

DR DINTWE :    So  what  I  l i s t  in  the  ce r t i f i ca te  w i l l  be  our  

f ind ings to  say tha t  th is  X  amoun t  o f  money went  ou ts ide  

and we do not  have proof  tha t  i t  was rea l l y  rece ived by  the  

in tended rec ip ien t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   Now these c la ims tha t  were  

made -  compla in t s  tha t  were  ra ised w i th  your  o f f i ce .   You 10 

say you invest iga ted  and you made  f ind ings.    

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And those f ind ings h igh l igh ted  

concerns ove r  the  use o f  cash  and the  improper  o r  

inadequate  account ing  fo r  tha t  cash.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Now you say tha t  you ra i sed these  

issues in  ce r t i f i ca tes .   Who rece ives your  cer t i f i ca tes?  

DR DINTWE :    F i rs t  i t  wou ld  be  the  m in is te r  respons ib le  fo r  

tha t  par t i cu la r  se rv ice .   In  o ther  words,  Min is te r  Bhek i  Ce le  20 

w i l l  ge t  on  beha l f  o f  the  po l i ce  o f  SAP-CI .   Min is te r  

Nos iv iwe Mapisa-Nqaku la  w i l l  ge t  on  beha l f  Defence  

In te l l igence,  and Min is te r  Ayanda D lod lo  w i l l  ge t  on  beha l f  

to  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency.   That  i s  the  f i rs t  au tho r i t y.  

 The second au thor i t y  w i l l  be  the  Head o f  
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Serv i ces .   So i t  w i l l  the  DG and the  D iv is iona l  Head ’s  

Commiss ioner.   In  the  case o f  SAP-CI ,  i t  w i l l  be  Ch ie f  

Defence In te l l igence Off i cer  in  tha t  r igh t (? )  cha in (?) .   The 

th i rd  au thor i t y  w i l l  be  the  Jo in t  S tand ing  Commi t tee  on  

In te l l igence.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Now in  regard  to  the  la t te r.   

Wi thout  the  in te rvent ion  o f  the  m in is te r  o r  the  d i rec tor  

genera l  o r  ac t ing  d i rec tor  genera l ,  as  the  case may  be,  in  

each secur i t y  es tab l i shment ,  there  is  a  d i rec t  repor t ing  

be tween your  own o f f i ce  and the  Jo in t  S tand ing  Commi t tee  10 

o f  In te l l igence.   Do I  unders tand tha t  co r rec t l y?  

DR DINTWE :    You unders tand me cor rec t ly.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    What  d id  the  JSCI  do  on rece ip t  o f  

these cer t i f i ca tes  in  re la t ion  to  the  improper  use o f  cash,  

as  you found?  

DR DINTWE :    The prev ious commi t tee  never  ac ted .   Never  

ac ted  on th is .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Do you know why?  

DR DINTWE :    The one or  the  o ther  reason tha t  was 

prov ided a t  a  pa r t i cu la r  po in t  was  tha t  they want  to  rea l l y  20 

ach ieve(?)  the  separa t ion  o f  powers .   For  them they saw 

these as  the  dec is ions wh ich  happened w i th  them,  the 

execut ive  rea lm.   And I  do  no t  know to  what  ex ten t  they 

were  in tended to  ho ld  those execut ives ,  you know,  to  

account  bu t  as  fa r  as  I  know is  tha t  I  was never  rea l l y  
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p rov ided a  reason,  a  conv inc ing  reason.   Le t  me say tha t .   

I  was never  conv inced as  to  the  reason why they cou ld  no t  

ac t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You conduct  in  your  o f f i ce  an  

overs igh t  ro le  over  the  execut ives ,  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And you do  so  independent ly.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Wi th  your  knowledge o f  what  

overs igh t  en ta i l s ,  a re  you sa t is f ied  tha t  the  JSCI  pe r fo rmed 10 

i t s  funct ions adequate ly?  

DR DINTWE :    No,  no t  –  I  can  say and submi t  to  the  

Cha i rperson tha t  no  they –  tha t  i s  no t  su f f i c ien t  the i r  

overs igh t  ro le .    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  thought  you were  tempted to  say I  can  

say w i thout  fear  o f  cont rad ic t ion  tha t  they are  no t  do ing  

the i r  job .   [ laughs ]    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    [ laughs]  

DR DINTWE :    No,  Cha i rperson I  can say conf ident ly  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE :    . . . tha t  the i r  overs igh t  was never  adequate .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

DR DINTWE :    The reason why I  say  I  am conf ident  about  i t  

i s  tha t  i t  i s  a lso  a  f ind ing  o f  the  HLRT(?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    Bu t  I  th ink  tha t  there  i s  ev idence before  th i s  

Commiss ion ,  as  i t  were  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

DR DINTWE :    . . . to  say  tha t  Par l iamentary  overs igh t  was 

not  adequate .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now wi th  regard  to  th is  par t i cu la r  

commi t tee .   A re  you bas ing  your  v iew on your  exper ience 

dur ing  your  te rm o f  o f f i ce  on ly  o r  a re  you on ly  bas ing  your  

v iew on reco rds or  lack  o f  records  tha t  you found  in  your  10 

o f f i ce  as  to  in te rac t ions be tween  your  p redecessors  and 

th is  par t i cu la r  commi t tee  or  what  i s  the  pos i t ion?  

DR DINTWE :    My pre ference was to  conf ine  th is  to  my 

te rm o f  o f f i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    Because I  th ink  tha t  even o f f i c ia l s (? )  w i l l  

te l l  you  tha t  i t  i s  I  have been the re  fo r  a  su f f i c ien t  t ime to 

then be ab le  to  fo rmula te  an  op in ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    Bu t  a lso  fo rmula te  or  ident i f y  a  par t i cu la r  20 

pa t te rn .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    So ,  I  mean,  I  have  been the re  now fo r  four  

years  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  tha t  i s  a  long t ime.  
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DR DINTWE :    So  I  conf ined myse l f  to  my –  o f f i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   By  the  way,  who was your  

p redecessor?  

DR DINTWE :    My predecessor  was Advocate  Fa i th  

Radebe,  the  la te .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  she is  la te?  

DR DINTWE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  she wou ld  have been there ,  f rom 

what?   A round 2010?  I s  i t  a  f i ve  year  te rm? 

DR DINTWE :    Yes,  I  am wr i t ing  about  –  i t  i s  a  f ive  year  10 

te rm.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Then there  was  the  space o f  two years  

when the re  was nobody.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Be fore  your  t ime.   Before  you were  

appo in ted .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

DR DINTWE :    I  th ink  in  my ear l ie r  paragraph here ,  I  have  

wr i t ten  wh ich  years  exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

DR DINTWE :    Bu t  2010 sounds more  probab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Now i f  –  I  am t ry ing  to  f ind  ou t  
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how one can f ind  ou t  even w i thout  ask ing  the  commi t tee ,  

f ind  ou t  as  to  what  may have been sent  to  the  Por t fo l io  

Commi t tee  by,  fo r  example ,  Ms Radebe and what  

responses,  i f  any,  she may have rece ived in  response to  

her  repor ts .   What  d id  you ca l l  them?  What  do  you ca l l  

your  repor ts?    

DR DINTWE :    Cer t i f i ca tes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cer t i f i ca tes  in  regard  to  her  cer t i f i ca tes .   

So in  your  o f f i ce ,  you wou ld  have cop ies  o f  cer t i f i ca tes  tha t  

she wou ld  have sent  dur ing  her  t ime.   I s  tha t  r igh t?  10 

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  in  te rms o f  the  mechan isms,  you do 

not  have a  way o f  knowing whether  the  commi t tee  ac t ing  

upon each ce r t i f ica te ,  do  you?  

DR DINTWE :    No ,  bu t  I  w i l l  know . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE :    . . .by  imp l ica t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    Because there  is  cont inuance in  the  o f f i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

DR DINTWE :    I t  i s  on ly  the  Inspector  Genera l  o f  

In te l l igence who gets  appo in ted  who comes and go.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    The res t  o f  the  s ta f f  and ve ry  sen io r  peop le  

inc lud ing  invest iga tors  a re  a lways there .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

DR DINTWE :    Now dur ing  my f i rs t  year  in  the  o f f i ce  and 

when I  s ta r ted  dea l ing  w i th  my f i rs t  ce r t i f i ca te  there  was 

re ference made  or  recommendat ions tha t  remained  

un implemented and were  coming f rom the  tenure  o f  

Advocate  Fa i th  Radebe.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

DR DINTWE :    There  a re  many examples .   Examples  o f  

tha t .   In  fac t ,  the  so -ca l led  Rogue Un i t  a t  SARS and so  

fo r th .   I  s t i l l  had to  dea l  w i th  tha t  i ssue a f te r  I  have taken  10 

occupancy o f  tha t  o f f i ce .   So I  w i l l  have a  group o f  

cer t i f i ca tes  wh ich  w i l l  show what  my predecessor  sent  to  

the  commi t tee  bu t  those prob lems wou ld  s t i l l  be  app l i cab le  

under  my te rm o f  o f f i ce .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    L ike ,  fo r  ins tance,  the  one tha t  I  am wr i t ing  

there .    Inadequa te  cont ro l s  re la t ing  to  the  use and f low o f  

money in  the  In te l l igence Serv ices .   You w i l l  f ind  those  

th ings a lso  under  the  ce r t i f i ca tes  tha t  were  dra f ted  or  tha t  

were  s igned befo re  I  assumed the  o f f i ce .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  th is  i s  how we can dea l  w i th  

i t  and maybe you  dea l  w i th  i t  in  your  a f f idav i t .   Maybe we 

have dea l t  w i th  i t  las t  t ime.   Mr  Pre tor ius  w i l l  remember.   

Or  maybe i t  i s  s t i l l  to  come amongst  the  documents  tha t  

you w i l l  send.   I  th ink  i t  wou ld  be  good i f  you were  ab le  to  
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say  I  have looked a t  the  cer t i f i ca tes  tha t  were  sen t  by my 

predecessor  f rom tha t  year  up  to  tha t  yea r.   I  am aware  o f  

what  she recommended o r  whatever.    

 What  i ssues she ra ised before  the  commi t tee  to  

look  a t  o r  dea l  w i th  as  we l l  as  the  m in is te rs ,  the  re levant  

m in is te r  because  you have sa id  t ha t  the  ce r t i f i ca tes  go  to  

the  re levant  m in is te rs ,  the  re levan t  DG and the  commi t tee .   

You –  so  i f  you  cou ld  ident i f y  those fo r  each year  and be 

ab le  to  say the  fo l low ing –  the  prob lem –  th is  p rob lem tha t  

was ra ised du r ing  tha t  year  i s  s t i l l  there  or  when I  a r r i ved 10 

i t  was s t i l l  there .    

 So I  can te l l  tha t  no th ing  has been done to  dea l  

w i th  i t  p roper ly.   So or  whatever  had been done has not  

worked.   You know.   And so  I  th ink  tha t  cou ld  he lp  jus t  to  

g ive  tha t  ind i ca t i on .   In  te rms o f  law,  there  i s  no th ing  tha t  

requ i res  the  commi t tee  or  the  re levant  m in is te rs  and DG’s  

to  rever t  to  your  o f f i ce  to  say you ra ise  these issues.   Th is  

i s  how –  th is  i s  what  I  have done in  response.    

DR DINTWE :    I  th ink  my submiss ion ,  Cha i rperson,  was to  

say tha t  our  recommendat ions are  jus t  be ing  ignored w i l l y -20 

n i l l y.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    And we touched on the  PAN 1  Invest iga t ion .   

I f  I  can  make the  spec i f i c  examp le .   And I  am us ing  th is  

example  to  submi t  to  the  Commiss ion  tha t  i t  i s  doab le .   I t  
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i s  an  exe rc i se  tha t  I  th ink  tha t  i f  I  go  back to  the  o f f i ce  I  

can read i l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You can do tha t ,  ja .  

DR DINTWE :    . . . ident i f y  so  say tha t . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE :    . . . th is  has been a  prob lem for  t ime 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

DR DINTWE :    Or  s ince  the  es tab l i shment  o f  th is  pa r t i cu la r  

o f f i ce .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

DR DINTWE :    Le t  us  take  an example  o f  what  one o f  my 

s ta f f  members  wou ld  be  wr i t ing  an  a f f idav i t  abou t  tha t  I  

d iscussed and I  th ink  i t  i s  in  here .   Now,  the  fo rmer  

Min is te r  Mah lobo says tha t  he  was not  aware  tha t  Mr  Ar thur  

Fraser  was imp l ica ted  in  the  PAN Invest iga t ion .   And I  went  

to  the  o f f i ce  because the  Commiss ion  wanted us  to  conf i rm 

whethe r  there  were  some p resenta t ions made  to  the 

m in is te r  w i th  regard  to  the  PAN Invest iga t ion .    

 So the  same recommendat ions  in  the  PAN 20 

Invest iga t ion  was tha t  peop le  shou ld  be  judged(?) ,  fo r  

ins tance.   So tha t  i s  exact ly  what  –  i t  i s  a  c lass i c  example  

and I  th ink  an  accura te  example  o f  say ing  or  be ing  ab le  to  

fu rn ish(?)  the  Commiss ion  tha t  i t  is  a  doab le  exerc i se  to  go  

there  and say tha t  these were  the  f ind ings be fore  even my 
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occupancy o f  the  o f f i ce  and they were  never  ever  

imp lemented.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    In  law,  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE :    . . . there fore  ask  as  –  in  te rms o f  overs igh t  

body.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Wel l ,  o f  course ,  I  th ink  you  

suggested the  las t  t ime or  you do  in  your  s ta tement  tha t  I  

th ink  you w ish  fo r  a  reg ime in  te rms o f  wh ich  your  10 

recommendat ions  cannot  jus t  be  ignored but  they wou ld  be  

b ind ing .   I  go t  the  impress ion  you had in  m ind the  same 

s i tua t ion  as  the  Pub l ic  Pro tec tor  bu t  I  may be 

misrepresent ing  what  you say bu t  cer ta in l y  the  m in imum,  i t  

wou ld  seem,  i s  tha t  those author i t ies  when your  o f f i ce  has  

ra ised issues and made recommendat ion  they shou ld  a t  

leas t  come back and say we have noted,  we agree and th i s  

i s  what  we w i l l  do  o r  we do no t  agree because  o f  the  

fo l low ing reasons,  so  you can take  i t  f rom there  bu t  to  

have a  s i tua t ion  where  they jus t  comple te l y  igno red you  20 

and you never  -   you are  no t  –  you never  know whether  

they d id  anyth ing  seems untenab le .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You are  no t  m isrepresen t ing  me,  

Cha i rperson,  you have got  a  very  sharp  memory.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 45 of 317 
 

DR DINTWE:    Because tha t  i s  wha t  I  was say ing  and I  was  

say ing  tha t  I  th ink  tha t  we do have  a  good mode l  to  say are  

these remedia l  measures,  we know tha t  they are  no t .   But  I  

was even say ing  to  yourse l f  tha t  I  w ish  tha t  we had the  

resources because I  was go ing  to  take  myse l f  to  cour t  and  

say tha t  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  any leg is la tu re  w i l l  have an  

in ten t ion  to  pu t  so  money in to  th is  o rgan isa t ion  bu t  then  

recommendat ions  are  jus t  be ing  ignored.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ignored,  ja .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  tha t  was what  I  sa id .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Pre to r ius?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  parag raph 127 on page 814 you  

c i te  two examples .   I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  ask  whether  you 

conf i rm those.   You say:  

“ In  one ins tance a  member  c la imed tha t  he  had los t  

an  amount  o f  approx imate ly  R3.6  m i l l ion  wh i le  on  

an  opera t ion .   Th is  i s  c lea r ly  absurd .   A fu r ther  

f ind ing  was tha t  s ince  2016 the re  was an SSA 

member  who had  been submi t t ing  f raudu len t  t rave l  

c la ims amount ing  to  R9 mi l l ion . ”  20 

Do you conf i rm tha t  those were  f ind ings or  invest iga t ions 

conducted by  you? 

DR DINTWE:    These were  f ind ings and I  wr i te  there ,  I  say  

th is  i s  c lear l y  absurd  because what  came to  our  a t ten t ion  

was tha t  -  in  the  3 .6  m i l l ion ,  there  is  a  gent lemen  on an 
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ope ra t ion  to  Jup i te r,  th is  o ther  p lanet  and he comes back  

and says bu t  I  los t  i t ,  they  have taken i t  o r  I  m isp laced i t  o r  

whatever  bu t  then he does no t  even crea te  ser ious  

a t ten t ion  o r,  you  know,  se r ious a t ten t ion  because he then  

te l l s  tha t  I  have los t  i t  and you deduct  i t  f rom my sa lary.    

In  fac t  the  gent leman went  on  an  ea r ly  re t i remen t  

dur ing  the  course  o f  2020 and o thers ,  who w i l l  know,  tha t  

the i r  pens ions w i l l  no t  even get  to  tha t  par t i cu la r  amount  

and in  th is  ins tance he jus t  came back and sa id  tha t  oh ,  I  

have no reasons,  I  have los t  i t  and p lease s tar t  deduct ing  10 

i t  and so  fo r th .   I  am to ld  tha t  tha t  money –  and they wou ld  

have a t tached h is  pens ion  i f  no t  pa r t  thereof .   Now th is  i s  a  

p rob lem and i t  came in  the  ana lys i s  o f  our  ev idence .   I f   

 Now i f  I  go t  3 .6  m i l l i on  and I  went  and bought  a  

p roper ty  I  w i l l  be  sav ing  about  another  100% because i f  I  

am buy ing  a  proper t y  fo r  R3.6  m i l l ion  and i t  i s  bonded,  I  

am go ing  to  end up pay ing  about  R7 mi l l ion  bu t  i f  I  buy  i t  

cash and I  say  tha t  no ,  no ,  you can buy tha t  money f rom 

my pens ion  i t  means tha t  I  wou ld  have rece ived and 

in te res t  f ree  loan to  do  o ther  th ings.    That  i s  the  f i rs t  20 

example .  

 The second example  o f  R9 mi l l ion  in  the  f ind ing ,  

a lso ,  th is  pe rson  is  a  p ro tec to r.   He i s  a  p ro tec tor  who  

accompanies  a  pr inc ipa l  when he t rave ls  bo th  

in te rnat iona l l y  and loca l l y  and our  f ind ings i s  tha t  th is  
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person cou ld  no t  have pu l led  th is  m iss ion  a lone because i t  

i s  very  easy.   I f  I  am not  t rave l l ing  overseas but  you get  my 

pro tec tor  coming  to c la im money tha t  they wou ld  have 

t rave l led .   I t  shou ld  be  we l l -know but  no ,  no ,  no  bu t  he  d id  

no t  app ly,  you know,  to  go  to  th is  and o ther  count ry  and so  

fo r th .   So i t  happened over  a  per iod  o f  t ime unt i l  he  

reached an amount  o f  R9 mi l l ion .    

Inadequate  cont ro ls  and there  is  an  argument  about  

tha t  because o ther  peop le  w i l l  say  absence o f  in te rna l  

cont ro ls .   No,  in  th is  ins tance cont ro ls  a re  there  bu t  they 10 

are  be ing  ignored  as  we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And th is  wou ld  have been in  a  per iod  o f  

about  how many years?   Do you have tha t  in fo rmat ion?  

DR DINTWE:    Three years  on  average,  a  t rave l  o f  th ree  

years .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Accumula ted  to  R9 mi l l ion  w i th in  th ree  

years?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

DR DINTWE:    I t  a lso  ta l l ies  w i th  the  usage o f  cash .   I  w i l l  20 

never  unders tand  why do they g ive  me cash when I  t rave l  

ou ts ide  the  count ry,  I  jus t  do  no t  know,  because i t  i s  even  

r i sky,  I  am ca l led  Inspector  Genera l  In te l l igence,  I  am not  

co l lec t ing  in te l l igence,  I  am not  do ing  anyth ing ,  I  am 

overs igh t  body.   But  be l ieve  you  me,  when I  t rave l  they 
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g ive  me tha t  k ind  o f  cash.   So when I  come back no rmal ly  I  

w i l l  re tu rn  some.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  m i l l i ons .  

DR DINTWE:    I  beg your  pardon?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  m i l l i ons .  

DR DINTWE:    No ,  i t  w i l l  no t  run  in to  m i l l ions ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I s  th is  a  conven ien t  t ime,  Cha i r?   I t  

i s ,  le t  us  take  a  15  minutes  b reak ,  we w i l l  resume a t  ha l f  10 

past  e leven.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The examples  tha t  you have g iven  

to  the  Cha i r,  Dr  D in twe,  bo th  a t  a  genera l  leve l  and a t  a  

par t i cu la r  l eve l .   Were  these inc luded in  the  cer t i f i ca tes  

tha t  were  g iven to  par l iament  and  to the  Min is te r  and the  20 

heads o f  depar tment?  

DR DINTWE:    I  con f i rm tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  paragraph 128 you  ra ise  a  

concern  about  the  poss ib le  use o f  these monies .   What  do  

you say about  tha t?   That  i s  on  page 815.  
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DR DINTWE:    I  am say ing  tha t  they were  used to  fue l  o r  

f inance a  par t i cu la r  –  I  mean,  a  par t i cu la r  fac t ion  

depend ing  on who is  tak ing  tha t  money.   Our  f ind ing  in  tha t  

regard  is  no t  one-s ided a t  a l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  i s  l i ke  d i f fe ren t  peop le  may have 

taken monies  to  f inance d i f fe ren t  fac t ions.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And tha t  in fo rmat ion  too  wou ld  be  

in  the  cer t i f i ca tes .  

DR DINTWE:    I t  w i l l  be  in  the  ce r t i f i ca tes .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Hav ing  been repor ted  to  

par l iament?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Or  a t  leas t  to  the  jo in t  s tand ing  

commi t tee  on  In te l l igence.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You say in  parag raph 129 tha t  you  

made cer ta in  recommendat ions in  a  repor t  and you ta lk  o f  

one o f  your  repor ts ,  wou ld  th is  repor t  have been inc luded 

in  your  ce r t i f i ca tes?  20 

DR DINTWE:    I t  i s  cer t i f i ca te  –  I  th ink  tha t  I  used the  word  

repor t  in te rchangeab ly  there .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Okay,  so  i t  was a  cer t i f i ca te  

repor ted  to  a l l  those ins tances to  whom you have re fer red  

inc lud ing  the  JSCI?  
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DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .  

DR DINTWE:     Wou ld  you not  l i ke  me jus t  in  one or  two  

sentences exp la in  why I  wou ld  have used the  word  repor t  

over  there?  So over  and above the  cer t i f i ca tes ,  I  a lso  do  

what  i s  ca l led  mon i to r ing  repor ts .   Now moni to r ing  repor t ,  I  

may change jus t  one sub jec t  because the  cer t i f i ca tes  w i l l  

run  –  w i l l  dea l  w i th  i ssues,  a  va r ie ty  o f  these so r t  o f  i ssues  

but  in  th is  ins tance I  may dec ide  to  do  a  mon i to r ing  on  

procurement  maybe o f  so f tware ,  fo r  ins tance,  and jus t  wr i te  10 

tha t  par t i cu la r  i ssue and then I  w i l l  send to  a  respons ib le  

m in is te r.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wou ld  those repor ts  go  to  

par l iament?  

DR DINTWE:    They w i l l  then go to  par l iament  because a  

cer t i f i ca te  i s  a  cu lm inat ion  o f  you r  rev iew repor ts  

mon i to r i ng  repor ts ,  ou tcome o f  invest iga t ions.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I  see .  

DR DINTWE:    So  even i f  I  wou ld  have sent  on ly  th is  

sub jec t  r igh t  in  the  m idd le  o f  eve ry  repor t ing  year  i t  w i l l  20 

then be found in  the  cer t i f i ca te  as  we l l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   Perhaps you shou ld  read 

onto  the  record  your  recommendat ion  in  parag raph 129.  

DR DINTWE:    I  w i l l  do  tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you.  
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DR DINTWE:    I  say :  

“Whereas the  movement  o f  la rge  sums o f  cash is  

jus t i f iab le  w i th in  the  contex t  o f  secrecy o f  

opera t ions there  is  a  need to  ensure  s t r i c te r  

cont ro ls  to  ensure  fu l l  accountab i l i t y  fo r  cash g i ven 

to  members  fo r  opera t iona l  purposes.   However,  the  

ve i l  o f  secrecy assoc ia ted  w i th  in te l l igence  

opera t ions does  not  make any pub l i c  servan t  

immune to  accountab i l i t y  and  sound f inanc ia l  

management  hence the  person  who c la ims any 10 

money o r  uses the  resources o f  the  SSA is  requ i red  

to  se t t le  such  in  accordance  w i th  app l i cab le  

prescr ip ts .  Dur ing  over  cer ta in  engagements  I  came 

across a  number  o f  ins tances where  the  mon ies  are  

no t  p roper ly  accounted fo r.   I  am aware  tha t  even 

the  SAA in te rna l  invest iga t ive  un i ts  a re  cur ren t ly  

work ing  on  severa l  cases where  money is  no t  

accounted fo r. ”  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And then you go in  page 815,  

parag raph 130 to  ta lk  o f  recommendat ions tha t  you made in  20 

your  capac i ty  as  Inspectors  Genera l  In te l l igence.   What  

were  those?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  was tha t  a l though the  cont ro l  measures 

are  there ,  they need to  be  t igh tened a  l i t t le  b i t  because 

some o f  them were  too  o ld .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l i t t le  b i t?  

DR DINTWE:    O ld  fo r  my l i k ing ,  in  any event  even the 

secre tary ’s  account  I  th ink  i t  was 1957 or  so .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    No,  you used the  word  a  l i t t le  b i t .   

Was i t  jus t  a  f igure  o f  speech?  

DR DINTWE:    Maybe too  o ld .   Ja ,  bu t  my in ten t ion  was to  

say tha t  they cou ld  be  a  l i t t le  b i t  o ld ,  jus t  too  o ld  fo r  our  

l i k ing  and tha t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  I  th ink  Mr  Pre tor ius  i s  suggest ing  

tha t  in  the  l igh t  o f  what  appears  to  be  la rge  sca le  abuse o f  10 

mon ies  tha t  shou ld  be  used leg i t imate ly  fo r  In te l l igence the  

t igh ten ing  shou ld  no t  be  or  canno t  be  fo r  jus t  a  l i t t le  b i t ,  

much more  is  requ i red .   I  th ink  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

DR DINTWE:    Yes bu t  my quagmi re  i s  tha t  t imes w i l l  d i f fe r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE:    So  they wou ld  have amended one out  o f  

f i f teen.   Maybe  in  2009 they wou ld  have,  you know,  

ad jus ted  th ree  o r  four  in  2014 and  so  fo r th .   That  i s  why I  

cannot  use an umbre l la  we igh t  tha t  too  o ld . .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

DR DINTWE:    Fo r  us ,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We have heard  the  ev idence o f  Mr  

Ja f ta  as  to  what  s teps have been taken more  recent ly  in  

re la t ion  to  f inanc ia l  cont ro ls  bu t  i t  appears  f rom your  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 53 of 317 
 

ev idence tha t  what  you are  say ing  is  a  substant ia l  rev iew 

o f  cont ro l  measures and the i r  imp lementa t ion  is  requ i red  

w i th in  the  SSA and o ther  in te l l igence o rgans.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson,  bu t  I  a l so  sa id  

in  th is  ins tance tha t  they must  be  bo th  preventa t i ve  and 

deter ren t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   And you say tha t  s teps 

shou ld  be  taken to  recover  ou ts tand ing  temporary  

advances f rom members  who have  not  se t t led  those .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now a l l  these issues concern ing  

f inanc ia l  cont ro l s ,  the  absence o f  f inanc ia l  cont ro ls ,  the  

loss  o f  s ta te  secur i t y  mon ies ,  the  inadequate  cont ro ls  over  

the  use o f  cash are  –  and wh ich  you have now h igh l igh ted  

over  the  las t  hour  o r  so ,  your  repor t  o r  your  repor ts  o r  your  

cer t i f i ca tes  aud i t  to  the  JSCI  and the  Min is te rs  wou ld  

conta in  de ta i l  in  th is  regard .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And wou ld  conta in  de ta i l  in  regard  

to  your  recommendat ions.  20 

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    How i s  –  and these quest ions I  

have been asked  to  ra ise  in  re la t ion  to  fu r the r  ev idence to  

be  led  by  Adv Freund,  who I  have  spoken to  in  the  break,  

Cha i r  –  to  whom does th i s  repor t  go  in  par t i cu la r?   I  mean,  
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does i t  go  to  the  sec re tary  o f  the  JSCI?   The Cha i r  o f  the 

JSCI?  

DR DINTWE:    We address them to  a  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  who is  the  Cha i rperson o f  

the  JSCI  or  who  was the  Cha i rperson o f  the  JSCI  a t  the 

t ime you wou ld  have been submi t t ing  these repor ts?  

DR DINTWE:    Prev ious ly  i t  was –  no ,  there  is  a  p rev ious  

commi t tee ,  the  immedia te  prev ious one,  i t  was Mr  Nqaku la ,  

who then was t ransfer red  to  the  Pres idency as  S ta te 

Secur i t y  Adv iser  and dur ing  tha t  par t i cu la r  t ime there  was  10 

an ac t ing  Cha i rperson,  Mr  Ganebe and we then  a lso  – 

okay,  ja ,  Mr  Ganebe ac ted  fo r  a  wh i le .   Wi th  the  cur ren t  

one is  honourab le  Maake  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Now th is  i s  a  mu l t i -par ty  

commi t tee ,  as  I  unders tand i t .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And d id  you ever  have occas ion  to  

speak to  any member  o f  the  JSCI  and say what  is  go ing  

on?  Why are  you  ignor ing  my recommendat ions?  What  a re  

you do ing  about  my repor ts .   Was  there  any in te rac t ion  o f  20 

tha t  na ture  e i ther  in  cor respondence o r  ve rba l l y?  

DR DINTWE:    I  wou ld  no t  address any fo rmal  le t te r  to  any  

o ther  pe rson except  fo r  the  Cha i rperson but  I  cannot  ru le  

ou t  tha t  there  cou ld  have been a  d iscuss ion  be tween  

myse l f  and one o f  the  members  because they a lso  had an  
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open l ine  to  myse l f .   In  fac t  one o f  the  peop le  tha t  I  

remember  ra is ing  these i ssues  w i th  i s  Genera l  Bantu  

Ho lomisa  because he was s i t t ing  in  the  prev ious commi t tee  

bu t  apar t  f rom tha t ,  there  is  a lso  a  Ch ie f  Whip ,  a  Deputy  

Ch ie f  Whip  in  pa r l iament  tha t  I  a lso  have tha t  k ind  o f  an  

open l ine .   So we wou ld  have had  those d i scuss ions about  

these issues.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  you wou ld  have in  d iscuss ions 

ra ised concerns  about  your  ce r t i f i ca tes ,  how they were  

cons idered and what  was be ing  done in  response there to?  10 

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A re  you ab le  to  say –  do  you fee l  

comfor tab le  to  say what  Genera l  Ho lomisa  sa id  to  you? 

DR DINTWE:    Genera l  Ho lomisa  sa id  tha t  he  is  aware  –  

normal ly  he  w i l l  sor t  o f  g ive  me counse l ,  such as you have  

to  be  s t rong,  we  are  aware  tha t  you are  do ing  your  work  

and perhaps he cou ld  have promised me tha t  he  w i l l  see  

how he wou ld  nudge,  you know,  the  Cha i rpersons or  the  

commi t tee  i t se l f  in  i t s  en t i re ty  to  rea l l y  imp lement  these 

th ings because a l l  these peop le  tha t  I  wou ld  have,  you  20 

know,  ta lked to ,  they were  aware  o f  the  ro t  tha t  was  

d ipp ing  espec ia l l y  in  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency but  a lso  in  

Cr ime In te l l igence,  so  they were  no t  ob l i v ious to  those.  

 Can I  say  tha t  there  is  an  in te rv iew tha t  was done  

by  one o f  the  cu r ren t  members ,  Dr  Mbuy isen i  Nd loz i  who 
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sa id  in  tha t  in te rv iew on TV tha t  he  is  aware  tha t  we are  

do ing  what  we are  supposed to  be  do ing  but  the  fa i lu re  i s  

a t  the  po in t  o f  imp lementa t ion  by  the  commi t tee  i t se l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  somehow i t  seems tha t  even  though  

d i f fe ren t  members  o f  tha t  commi t tee  may be  aware  

inc lud ing  members  o f  oppos i t ion  par t ies  se rv ing  on  tha t  

commi t tee ,  may be aware  o f  the  prob lem,  i t  looks  l i ke  they  

cannot  ge t  ac t ion  to  be  taken by  the  commi t tee  because,  

f rom what  you have sa id ,  i t  looks  l i ke  no  ac t ion  seems to  

have been ev ident  o r  seems to  be  taken tha t  i s  e f fec t i ve .   10 

A t  leas t ,  i f  any th ing  has been done,  i t  seems not  to  have 

been e f fec t i ve  bu t  you cannot  te l l  what  i t  i s  tha t  may have  

been done.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  my submiss ion ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   And one does no t  know 

whethe r  i t  m igh t  be  the  same prob lem tha t  has been  

exper ienced by  some por t fo l io  commi t tees in  pa r l iament  in  

regard  to  overs igh t  where  members  o f  oppos i t ion  par t ies  

say we can push as  fa r  as  we can i f  the  ANC and members  

o f  the  pa r ty  who are  in  the  ma jor i t y  do  no t  ag ree,  we 20 

cannot  do  anyth ing  because a  dec i s ion  must  be  by  

major i t y.   So one does not  know whether  tha t  i s  the  

s i tua t ion  w i th  th is  commi t tee  as  we l l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Wel l ,  whether  tha t  i s  a  sa t is fac tory  

exp lanat ion  or  no t  f rom a  member  o f  par l iament  i s  
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someth ing  we w i l l  make submiss ions on  in  due course ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   No,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Thank you,  

le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  in  summary then,  the  prob lems 

tha t  you have ra ised,  the  impropr ie ty,  the  i l l ega l i t ies ,  the  

loss  o f  mon ies ,  the  inadequate  account ing  fo r  mon ies ,  the  

loo t ing  tha t  you have spoken about ,  the  improper  use o f  

mon ies  in  fac t iona l  ba t t les ,  those are  a l l  in  your  repor t s .  

DR DINTWE:    They a re  a l l  in  my repor ts ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    No member  o f  the  JSCI  can c la im 

ignorance o f  what  you have repor ted  to  the  JSCI .  

DR DINTWE:    Not  a t  a l l  because,  to  conf i rm tha t ,  I  wou ld  

submi t ted  the  ce r t i f i ca tes  in  a  redacted ve rs ion  fo r  the  

Cha i rperson.   A l l  what  I  removed  was methods tha t  they 

use,  sources bu t  I  a lso  removed organ isa t iona l  

weaknesses.   But  in  te rms o f  the  t ransact ions I  made i t  a  

po in t  tha t  the  Commiss ion ,  you know,  becomes aware .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  when we get  those cer t i f i ca tes  

the  Cha i r  w i l l  be  ab le  to  see exact ly  what  the  JSCI  knew,  20 

apar t  f rom the  redact ion .    

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  you be ab le  to  say  whethe r  

because o f  the  redact ion ,  the  redact ions tha t  you made,  

there  wou ld  be  noth ing  wrong w i th  those repor ts .   Now I  
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cannot  remember  whether  they are  c lass i f ied  or  no t ,  your  

cer t i f i ca tes ,  be ing  ava i lab le  to  the  Commiss ion  i f  those 

redact ions have been made or  they w i l l  s t i l l  be  a  prob lem 

even i f  there  are  redact ions?  

DR DINTWE:    No,  there  wou ld  no t  be  prob lems because I  

dea l  w i th  admin i s t ra t i ve  i ssues.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    Wi th  regard  to  p rocurement ,  fo r  ins tance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    And I  th ink  I  w i l l  make submiss ion  ea r l ie r  o r  10 

la te r  to  say tha t  there  i s  genera l l y  over  c lass i f i ca t ion  and i t  

done to  h ide  mal feasance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    So  I  have worked on the  cer t i f i ca tes  to  an  

ex ten t  bu t  I  am sat is f ied  tha t  they can be made pub l i c  a lso .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  the  reason why I  wou ld  removed the  

o ther  i ssues.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  we l l  I  wou ld  be  very  in te res ted  

in  see ing  those cer t i f i ca tes ,  those repor t  inso far  as  one  20 

can look a t  them wi thout  any prob lems in  te rms o f  secur i t y  

and so  on .  

DR DINTWE:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cha i r,  our  unders tand ing ,  we have  

looked a t  th is  qu i te  care fu l l y  and have consu l ted  ex terna l l y  
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as  we l l ,  i s  tha t  you wou ld  be  ent i t led ,  as  Cha i r,  to  see the  

unredacted vers ions o f  the  cer t i f i ca tes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    However,  fo r  the  purposes o f  your  

repor t  and whatever  goes pub l i c ,  the  redacted  ve rs ion  

wou ld  be  necessary  to  be  revea led .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    P rov ided,  o f  course ,  the  pe rson in  

cont ro l  and who  has the  lawfu l  power  to  dea l  w i th  i t  

agrees.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And tha t  i s  Dr  D in twe.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  th ink  i t  wou ld  

be  impor tan t  in  o rde r  to  ge t  the  fu l l  p ic tu re .   Whatever  can  

be dea l t  w i th  pub l i c ly  w i thout  be ing  in  b reach o f  any law,  i t  

wou ld  be  good to  look  a t  tha t .   Wha tever  I  can look a t  away 

f rom the  pub l i c ,  tha t  m ight  a l so  be  impor tan t  i f  i t  can  be 

done.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We wi l l  cons ider  the  pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  20 

DR DINTWE:    I  have cons idered tha t  pos i t ion .   I t  is  in  fac t  

my admin i s t ra t i ve  dec i s ion  tha t  I  sa id  to  the  co-

funct ionar ies  tha t  I  consu l ted  w i th  to  say tha t  there  are  two 

leve ls  o f  d isc losure  he re .   The f i rs t  d isc losu re  is  to  

yourse l f ,  Cha i rpe rson,  and maybe  I  a lso  mean the  lega l  
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team.    The second d i sc losure  is  then to  the  pub l i c .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Thank you.   In  paragraph 131,  

page 816,  you dea l  w i th  what  i s  another  ser ious issue in  

your  te rms in  re la t ion  to  Cr ime In te l l igence and you say in  

parag raph 132:  

“Our  invest iga t i ons have revea led  tha t  the  

sys temat ic  and endemic  ins t i tu t iona l i sed loo t ing  o f  

the  Secre t  Serv ices  account  i s  car r ied  ou t  and 

perpetuated by  sen ior  managers  w i th in  Cr ime 10 

In te l l igence and the i r  t rus t  subord ina tes  under  the  

gu ise  o f  leg i t ima te  in te l l igence opera t ions in  o rde r  

to  avo id  cu lpab i l i t y  and accountab i l i t y  in  the  event  

o f  de tec t ion . ”  

Now these issues  or  some o f  them a t  leas t  a re  i n  the  hands 

o f  law enforcement  agenc ies  a t  p resent  bu t  wou ld  you te l l  

the  Cha i r,  p lease in  genera l  te rms what  you  say in  

parag raphs 131 and fo l low ing?  And you g i ve  an  example  

in  paragraph 133.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  I  g ive  an  example  o f  tha t  and I  used 20 

the  word  loo t ing  de l ibe ra te l y  because pu re  loo t ing .   Yes,  o f  

course ,  there  are  invest iga t ions tha t  a re  tak ing  p lace.   We 

were  a l so  p romised tha t  the  Cr ime In te l l igence i t se l f  w i l l  

conduct  i t s  own  in te rna l  invest i ga t ion .   To  da te  we are  

aware  o f  about  two members  who  are  d i smissed.   I  th ink  
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tha t  they have appea led  and so  fo r th  based on those  

f ind ings.  

 Now what  was happen ing  there  and I  am g iv ing  an  

example  la te r,  i s  tha t  we were  even ca l l ing  the  

subord ina tes  the i r  runners .   What  wou ld  happen is  tha t  a  

Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  O f f i cer  based a t  Cr ime In te l l igence w i l l  be  

invo l ved in  opera t ions.   An example  o f  an  opera t ion  here  is  

tha t  he  w i l l  hand le  a  source  and  i t  i s  no t  acceptab le  bu t  

because he cannot  go  and c la im money fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r  

source ,  he  w i l l  use  a  Capta in  or  a  Co lone l  o r  a  Warrant  10 

Of f i cer  somewhere  because he w i l l  be  a  Major  Genera l .   So 

a  poor  Capta in  w i l l  go ,  co l lec t  money,  g ive  i t  to  the  CFO,  

the  CFO wi l l  then c la im tha t  I  wou ld  have pa id  a  source  

and the  se t t lement  w i l l  then be  done on beha l f  o f  the 

Capta in  no t  on  beha l f  o f  the  person c la ims tha t  they are  

ac tua l l y  rea l  hand lers  o f  the  par t i cu la r  person.   So we are  

ca l l ing  them runners ,  tha t  these sen io r  managers  w i l l  then 

have these o ther  peop le .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  a  sen io r  o f f i c ia l  wou ld  requ i re  a  

subord ina te  to  go  and co l lec t  money a l leged ly  fo r  the  20 

payment  o f  a  source .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  money wou ld  be  g i ven to  the  

sen ior  o f f i c ia l  who had no author i t y  to  dea l  w i th  sources a t  

a l l .  
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DR DINTWE:     That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And tha t  sen io r  o f f i c ia l  wou ld  then 

say or  c la im,  perhaps not ,  tha t  tha t  money had been  

handed to  a  source ,  co r rec t?  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  he  wou ld  jus t  re tu rn  and g ive  h im 

someth ing  and say tha t  I  have g i ven to  the  person tha t  I  

have g i ven so  he  can go back and [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  the  person account ing  to  the  

sys tem,  as  i t  were ,  the  account ing  sys tem,  wou ld  be  the 10 

runner ,  the  person deput ised by  the  sen ior  o f f i c ia l ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.   And  dur ing  

the  invest iga t ion  what  was a lso  su rpr is ing  i s  tha t  –  I  th ink  

tha t  we have an a f f idav i t ,  I  s tand to  be  co r rec ted ,  here  by  

the  s ta f f  members  in  my o f f i ce ,  bu t  many ins tances where  a  

subord ina te  w i l l  te l l  us  tha t  I  d id  no t  have any p roof  tha t  

the  money was g i ven to  a  source ,  I  do  no t  even know who  

tha t  sou rce  is .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  a  po in t  I  wanted to  20 

ra ise ,  the  subord ina te  or  the  runner  who is  used to  co l lec t  

the  money a l leged ly  to  hand over  to  a  source  and as  used  

by  the  sen ior  o f f i cer ,  tha t  subord ina te  or  runner  has never  

seen,  in  th is  example ,  the  source .  

DR DINTWE:    No t  a t  a l l .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cannot .   But ,  never the less ,  

accounts  and says tha t  the  money has gone to  the  source .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  the  account  w i l l  say .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me a l so  jus t  make sure  I  unders tand  

i t .   So  you have somebody such as  a  CFO who,  in  te rms o f  

h is  au thor i t y  and job  descr ip t ion ,  i s  no t  supposed to  have a  

source .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And a  source  here  is  an  opera t ive ,  i s  

tha t  r igh t  o r  i t  can  be… 10 

DR DINTWE:    I  do  no t  know I  w i l l  –  I  w i l l  no t  be  d iscuss ing  

the  method he re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  a  source  cou ld  be  somebody a t  a  

d i f fe ren t  rank.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Who g i ves in fo rmat ion .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  i t  i s  somebody tha t  takes a  rank,  ja ,  i t  

i s  no t  a  po l i ce  o f f i c ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hey?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  cou ld  be  somebody tha t  …[ in tervenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

DR DINTWE:    That  I  saw when th is  th ing  was happen ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Yes,  i t  is  somebody who  g ives 

in fo rmat ion  requ i red  by  the  organ isa t ion .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r i gh t .   And there  cou ld  be  

d i f fe ren t  ca tegor ies  bu t  tha t  i s  the  genera l .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i f  I ,  as  CFO,  want  some cash,  maybe 

f rom t ime to  t ime I  cou ld  jus t  have somebody tha t  I  connect  

w i th ,  a  subord ina te  o f  m ine who,  in  te rms o f  the  law,  i s  

en t i t led  to  have a  source .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then I  g ive  the  money to  my 

subord ina te  to  g ive  to  the  source  and then I  ge t  i t  in  some 10 

o ther  way or  no  money gets  g i ven  to  the  source  phys i ca l l y  

bu t  the  reco rds  are  wr i t ten  in  such a  way as  i f  my 

subord ina te  gave  money to  a  source .  

DR DINTWE:    No ,  you I  m isunders tood me the re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    And i t  i s  very  c r i t i ca l  tha t  I  exp la in .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .  

DR DINTWE:    Now the  CFO ins t ruc ts  the  subord ina te  to  go  

to  accounts  depar tment  and co l lec t  money there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  20 

DR DINTWE:    And the  reason tha t  he  is  us ing  there  i s  to  

say tha t  you know tha t  I  have …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A  source .  

DR DINTWE:    A  respons ib i l i t y  to  hand le  a  source .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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DR DINTWE:    So  th is  money tha t  I  am tak ing  f rom you is  

fo r  a  source .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  fo r  a  source ,  okay.  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  i t  never  goes to  the  source  h imse l f ,  he  

g ives  i t  to  the  CFO.  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  the  CFO.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  so  …[ in tervenes]  

DR DINTWE:    And then the  CFO te l l s  h im tha t  no ,  do  no t  

wor ry ,  I  am go ing  to  g ive  to  the  source .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  so  sudden ly  the  CFO must  g ive  to  

the  source .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  c la im by h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  wou ld  the  –  wou ld  bo th  o f  them know 

–  I  guess the  CFO knows the  subord ina te  wou ld  know what  

i s  go ing  on ,  tha t  th is  i s  c r im ina l?  

DR DINTWE:    They know,  the  CFO knows,  the  subord ina te  

knows.  

CHAIRPERSON :    The subord ina te  a lso  knows.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes.   That  i s  why we are  ca l l ing  them 20 

runner  because I  th ink  tha t  there  was a  suggest ion  by  the  

ev idence tha t  they cou ld  have been get t ing  some 

k ickbacks.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  we d id  no t  have tha t  –  because why  
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wou ld  you go there?   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    Because when quest ions are  asked,  they 

w i l l  no t  be  posed to  the  CFO,  they w i l l  posed to  yourse l f  as  

a  rea l  hand ler ,  as  you c la imed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And there  is  an  added e lement  tha t  

you have jus t  sa id  tha t  perhaps the  pub l i c  requ i res  a  more 

de ta i led  exp lanat ion  o r  a  c leare r  summary.   Cha i r ,  I  w i l l  

a t tempt  to  do  tha t .   The CFO says  to  a  subord ina te  you go  10 

and fe tch  money and you te l l  admin is t ra t ion  tha t  i t  is  fo r  a  

source  and you g i ve  i t  to  me.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And then the  CFO says I  am go ing  

to  g ive  i t  to  a  source .   He may or  may not  do  so .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  what  our  p ropos i t ion  is .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .   So he may keep the  money.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    He may g i ve  the  money fo r  another  

i l l eg i t imate  purpose because the  CFO has no mandate  or  20 

power  to  dea l  w i t h  mon ies  in  th is  way.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That  i s  why he must  use a  

subord ina te  who had the  power  to  go  and get  the  money in  

the  f i rs t  p lace .  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 67 of 317 
 

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  impor tan t ly ,  a lso  to  repor t  tha t  

the  money has been g i ven to  the  source ,  when he does not  

know tha t  a t  a l l .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So   -  bu t  the  subord ina te  a lso  knows 

tha t  what  the  CFO is  do ing  i s  c r im ina l  because he knows 

tha t  i t  i s  no t  par t  o f  the  CFO’s  job  to  be  pay ing  sources or  

i s  there  no  such –  or  i s  tha t  no t  the  pos i t ion?  

DR DINTWE:    A l though we wou ld  no t  have concre te  10 

ev idence to  say tha t  they were  ge t t ing  k ickbacks and tha t  

i s  why I  am us ing  th is  word  se lec t i ve l y  o f  a  runner .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    Bu t  he  is  aware  tha t  in  te rms  o f  the 

prescr ip ts  tha t  i s  no t  a l lowed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    And i f  he  was ob l i v ious to  tha t ,  he  wou ld  

ask  the  CFO as to  why do you not  go  s t ra igh t  there?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    So  th is  i s  an  ac t iv i t y  o f  a  person who is  fu l l y  20 

aware  tha t  the  CFO cannot  hand le  a  source .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  guess the  bo t tom l ine  is  the  law 

does not  a l low the  CFO to  be  tak ing  money to  a  source  

because i f  the  law a l lowed tha t ,  the  CFO,  i f  he  was ac t ing  

lawfu l l y ,  wou ld  go  to  the  accounts  depar tment  h imse l f .  
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DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   The reason why he must  use the  

subord ina te  i s  because he is  no t  a l lowed to  go  there  and 

c la im money f rom the  accounts  depar tment  fo r  purposes o f  

g iv ing  to  a  source .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You g ive  anothe r  example  in  

parag raph 134,  page 817,  bu t  you have dea l t  w i th  the 

sys tem tha t  can be used or  abused.   Paragraph 135 you  10 

say:  

“There  are  many  o ther  ins tances wh ich  inc lude the  

m isuse o f  mon ies  f rom the  Secre t  Serv i ce  account .   

Misuse o f  sa fe  houses and the  ren t ing  ou t  o f  

persona l  houses  by  sen ior  managers  as  sa fe  

houses to  Cr ime In te l l igence a t  in f la ted  pr ices .   

Invest iga t ions in to  these abuses cannot  be  

conc luded because there  is  a  re fusa l  to  dec lass i f y  

documents . ”  

Le t  us  dea l  w i th  the  f i rs t  i ssue f i rs t .   We know f rom o ther  20 

sources tha t  these –  th is  t ype o f  m isconduct  o r  i l l ega l  use  

o f  mon ies  and assets  has occur red  but  was th i s  a l so  par t  

o f  you r  invest iga t ions and were  these your  f ind ings?  

DR DINTWE:    These are  f ind ing ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    On invest iga t ions in to  the  de ta i l?  
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DR DINTWE:    The deta i l s .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you have summar ised the  

f ind ings here ,  o r  you have summar ised the  type o f  

ma l feasance tha t  occu r red?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  wou ld  these issues and 

repor ts  and f ind ings a l so  be  inc luded in  your  cer t i f i ca tes?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .   You then say someth ing  in  

add i t ion  in  paragraph 135.   You say:  10 

" Invest iga t ions in to  these abuses cannot  be  

conc luded because there  is  a  re fusa l  to  dec lass i f y  

documents . "  

 Before  you answer  the  quest ion  tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

pu t  to  you,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  pu t  you  a  pre l im inary  quest ion .   

I s  i t  c lear  to  a l l  concerned tha t  c lass i f i ca t ion  cannot  be  

used to  concea l  c r im ina l i t y?   

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  the  genera l  p r inc ip le ,  the  genera l  

ru le .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I s  i t  a lso  c lea r  to  a l l  concerned in  20 

te rms o f  the  leg i s la t ion  tha t  c lass i f i ca t ion  cannot  be  used 

as  a  reason fo r  no t  g iv ing  you documenta t ion?   

DR DINTWE :    That  w i l l  be  my response,  bu t  there  is  a  

r ider  to  tha t .   That  las t  sentence does not  re fe r  to  us .   I t  

does not  re fe r  to  the  invest iga t ions  conducted by  the  o f f i ce  
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o f  the  Inspector -Genera l  o f  In te l l igence.   I  do  no t  know.   I  

may have –  i t  sounds as  i f  tha t  i s  the  submiss ion  bu t  i t  i s  

no t  a  submiss ion .   When I  say  invest iga t ions cannot  be  

conc luded,  now I  am re fer r ing  to  c r im ina l  invest iga t ions 

and we have got  ins tances such as  those.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .  

DR DINTWE:   In  our  cha ins  they do  not  have a  r igh t  to  

w i thho ld  any in fo rmat ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    Whether  c lass i f ied  or  no t .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    That ' s  good.  

DR DINTWE:   We a lways g ive  to  o thers .   So our  

invest iga t ions i n  the  spec i f i c  case w i l l  be  conc luded,  bu t  

the  o ther  invest iga t ions tha t  fo l lows w i l l  be  hampered by  

re fusa l  to  dec lass i f y.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Right .  

DR DINTWE:   So I  am re fer r ing  to  invest iga t ions such as  

those conducted  by  IP ID,  fo r  ins tance,  and those  maybe  

conducted by  the  Hawks.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    We wi l l  come to  those in  de ta i l  in  20 

due course .   The regu la t ions in  te rms o f  secur i t y  a re  

un for tunate l y  and i ron ica l l y  and qu i te  improper ly  kept  in  

our  submiss ion  themse lves secre t .   So the  law or  the  

regu la t ion  wh ich  says you cannot  use c lass i f i ca t ion  to  

concea l  c r im ina l i t y  secre t ,  bu t  tha t  p r inc ip le  i s  w ide l y  
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known,  as  I  unders tand i t .  

DR DINTWE:   I t  i s  w ide ly  known and I  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  

laughab le .   In  fac t ,  the  team have a lways laughed about  i t .   

Maybe I  shou ld  jus t  exp la in  what  happened w i th  th is  

spec i f i c  one.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  p lease.  

DR DINTWE:   Now ,  the  SSA wanted to  deve lop  a  

regu la t ion  wh ich  w i l l  sor t  o f  pu t  in to  e f fec t  the  prov is ion  o f  

the  m issed documents .   Now we  dec ided tha t  we  shou ld  

have our  own document  in  the  regu la t ion  wh ich  takes tha t  10 

pos i t ion  wh ich  s ta tes  i t  cannot  c lass i f y  documents  to  h ide 

mal feasance.   But  guess what  they do ,  Cha i rpe rson?  The  

very  same reason  they c lass i f y  i t  as  secre t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  i t  has  the  consequence,  Cha i r,  

tha t  any person a f fec ted  or  in te res ted  in  un lawfu l  

c lass i f i ca t ion  o f  documents  cannot  source  the  very  

regu la t ion  tha t  dea ls  w i th  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  the  c lass i f i ca t ion  o f  the  l aw,  you 

know,  the  c lass i f i ca t ion  o f  such  a  document  cannot  be  

leg i t imate .   I  mean,  i f  you  do tha t ,  how do you expect  tha t  20 

peop le  w i l l  benef i t  f rom the  pr inc ip le  tha t  you cannot  use  

c lass i f i ca t ion  to  h ide  cr im ina l i t y?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  Cha i r,  the  idea tha t  one  

cou ld  c lass i f y  the  law.   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  mean,  you jus t  have to  say i t  to  rea l i se  
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how absurd  i t  i s .  

DR DINTWE :    There  is  another  d imens ion  to  tha t ,  

Cha i rperson.   Now,  I  am jus t  imag in ing  tha t  i f  i t  was  myse l f  

and I  cont ravened the  same regu la t ion  and tha t  they  

wanted to  ask  me quest ions.   Le t ’s  say  we are  an  opera t ing 

and over -c lass i f ied  and they sa id  oh ,  bu t  you have  

cont ravened tha t .   My response  w i l l  be  tha t  once you 

c lass i f y  and say tha t  you w i l l  app ly  a  pr inc ip le  o f  need- to -

know,  so  wh ich  means tha t  I  may not  have been cons ide red 

as  a  pe rson who shou ld  be  aware  o f  tha t  par t i cu la r  . . .   And 10 

I  can eas i l y  say  tha t  was c lass i f ied .   I  d id  no t  have  access 

to  i t .   So  you are  de feat ing  your  own purpose,  your  own  

ob jec t i ve  by  ensur ing  tha t  peop le  do  not  over  c lass i f y  

because they w i l l  say  bu t  I  am not  aware  o f  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Yes.   And i t  goes a  lo t  fu r ther  than  

cr im ina l i t y.   I t  ta lks  about  admin is t ra t i ve  abuse as  we l l ,  

tha t  c lass i f i ca t ion  cannot  be  used.   We can get  the  

word ing .   I  th ink  you dea l  w i th  i t  somewhere  i n  your  

s ta tement .   You dea l  w i th  the  express ion  and the  m issed 

document ,  bu t  le t  us  dea l  w i th  i t  when we get  there .   In  20 

parag raph 136 –  we l l ,  perhaps we  shou ld  then jus t  c la r i f y  

what  you say in  parag raph 135,  tha t  these abuses,  th is  

c r im ina l i t y,  i s  repor ted  to  a  law enforcement  agency.  

DR DINTWE :    Yes,  bu t  over  and above tha t  the i r  

management  –  d i v is iona l  management  o f  Cr ime In te l l igence  
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a lso  promised us  tha t  they a re  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  these  

issues and they a re  go ing  to  re fer  them to  law enfo rcement  

agenc ies ,  because our  recommendat ion  wou ld  be  tha t  here  

is  a  c lea r  case o f  c r im ina l i t y,  so  p lease re fer  i t .   We do not  

want  to  rep lace the  management  o f  these agenc ies .   We 

can on ly  f lag  and po in t  ou t  to  where  mal feasance,  

espec ia l l y  c r im ina l i t y,  wou ld  have taken p lace.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I t  i s  up  to  them to  take  i t  fur ther  in  

te rms o f  law enfo rcement ,  p rosecu t ion  and the  l i ke .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.   And I  th ink  10 

tha t  they wou ld  have deve loped an access pa th  fo r  me i f  I  

d id  have to  do  tha t ,  I  mean,  in to  the  cour ts .   I  cou ld  be  a t  

the  Mag is t ra te 's  Cour t  and the  o ther  cour ts  every  day o f  

my l i fe  because  o f  the  leve l  o f  ma l feasance in  those 

par t i cu la r  . . .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Now,  bu t  you say tha t  –  in  

parag raph 1 .35  you make the  po in t  tha t  these law  

enforcement  agenc ies ,  the i r  invest iga t ions  and 

prosecut ions are  hampered by  the i r  re fusa l  to  dec lass i f y  

documents .  20 

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And in  pa rag raph 136 what  i s  the  

ev idence tha t  you  g ive  there?  

DR DINTWE :    A l r igh t .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I t  i s  another  fo rm o f  f raud or  
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ma l feasance.  

DR DINTWE :    Yes,  i t  i s  another  -  i t  i s  anothe r  fo rm.   And 

maybe I  can use an example  o f  what  happened the re .   So 

they wou ld  have to ld  us  tha t  they procured and  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  want  –  because i t  w i l l  

be  names o f  compan ies  no rma l ly.   But  on  Advocate  

Pre tor ius 's  lap top  he w i l l  have,  l i ke ,  fo r  an  example  

an t ispyware  in  tha t .   So normal ly  he  w i l l  –  you w i l l  pay  a  

cer ta in  l i cence fee .   So they bought  someth ing  a long those 

l ines  in  the  reg ion  o f  m i l l i ons  and the  in ten t ion  o f  that  10 

par t i cu la r  l i cence  was to  p ro tec t  the  p r inc ip les  w i th in  the  

env i ronment  –  w i th in  the  management  so  tha t  the i r  gadgets  

cou ld  no t  be  eas i l y  i n te rcepted  by  fo re ign ,  you know,  

agents  and so  fo r th .  

But  now what  we found –  because I  went  there  

persona l l y  aga in .   What  we found is  tha t ,  in  fac t ,  the  

l i cence i t se l f  o r  the  so f tware  was never  de l i vered and the  

invest iga to rs  in  my o f f i ce  were  ac tua l l y  t ipped tha t  i t  was 

never  de l i vered and i t  was about  to  exp i re .   So normal ly  

you w i l l  pay  i t  fo r  a  per iod  o f  12  months .   But  when we  20 

went  there  we sa t is f ied  ourse l ves tha t  i t  was supposed to  

be  s t i l l  there  and we requested tha t  we shou ld  be  taken  

there  so  tha t  we can observe  i t .   And there  was a  

conf i rmat ion  tha t  i t  was not  ava i lab le .   I t  was  never  

de l i vered.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So procurement  funds,  funds fo r  

p rocu rement ,  a re  bas ica l l y  s to len .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  co r rec t .   They buy non-ex i s ten t  

th ings.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  means they pocket  the  money.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  the  on ly  in fe rence I  th ink  tha t  one  

cou ld  make.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  on  the  records  –  the  records  w i l l  say  

the  money was used to  buy such-and-such an equ ipment  o r  

someth ing  l i ke  tha t  bu t  the  equ ipment  wou ld  no t  be  there .  10 

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And jus t  to  conf i rm once more ,  

these var ious i nvest iga t ions i n  the i r  de ta i l ,  inc lud ing  your  

f ind ings and recommendat ions,  wou ld  be  in  the  cer t i f i ca tes  

you have spoken about .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   I  con f i rm tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Okay.   Le t ' s  move on then to  

parag raph 137 on page 817.   What  i s  a  g rabber  w i thout  

revea l ing  too  much method?  

DR DINTWE :    Wel l ,  the  genera l  came back tha t  they use 20 

and the re  is  a  second gent leman who is  appear ing  be fore  a  

cour t  in  Centur ion  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  so  i t  i s  in  the  pub l i c  

domain .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Okay.  

DR DINTWE :    Bu t  a  g rabber  i s  an  equ ipment  tha t  can be  
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p laced w i th in  a  par t i cu la r  rad ius  and  i t  w i l l  be  ab le  to  

c rea te  a  tower.   But  there  are  s ide  issues.   But  i t  w i l l  

c rea te  a  tower.   So,  in  o ther  words,  when I  ca l l  the  

Cha i rperson you w i l l  have the  o the r  l ine ,  so  tha t  mach inery  

w i l l  be ,  l i ke ,  be tween myse l f ,  so  ca l l  i t  eavesdropp ing ,  

because tha t  par t i cu la r  person tha t  i s  no t  rea l l y  p revent  my  

communica t ion  to  reach you but  the  on ly  e f fec t i ve  ab i l i t y  o f  

hear ing  the  conversa t ion  be tween myse l f  and the  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I f  the  grabber  i s  p laced in  the 10 

requ i red  rad ius  o f  a  par ty  conference,  and you gave th is  

ev idence now,  i t  wou ld  be  poss ib le  fo r  the  person in  

cont ro l  o f  the  grabber  to  hear  every th ing  tha t  i s  spoken 

over  a  ce l l  phone .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  j a ,  inc lud ing  i t  goes  to  the  

ex ten t  o f  emai ls  as  we l l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Emai ls  as  we l l .  

DR DINTWE :    So  le t  us  say d ig i ta l  communica t ion  in  

genera l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  a l l  e lec t ron ic  commun ica t ions 20 

wou ld  be  ab le  to  be  mon i to red  w i th in  the  spec i f i c  requ i red  

rad ius  o f  the  grabber?   

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  in  paragraph 137 you re fer  to  

med ia  repor ts .   Would  you,  w i thout  naming the  company 
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and the  name o f  the  person who is  the  d i rec to r  o f  the  

company,  p lease  –  and I  w i l l  exp la in  the  c i r cumstances  

there to  in  due course ,  bu t  wou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i r  the  

s to ry  o f  the  grabber?   

DR DINTWE :    A l r igh t .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And i t s  p rocurement .  

DR DINTWE :    Okay.   However,  we use the  names tha t  we 

w i l l  have used.   I  th ink  i t  i s  ve ry  impor tan t  to  re f resh the  

Cha i rperson 's  memory  to  say tha t  there  was th is  gen t leman  

ca l led  –  tha t  we ca l led  Ivan i  here .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I van i?  

DR DINTWE :    Yes.   Who is  a  d i rec tor  o f  a  company ca l led  

IDI .   So th is  person is  the  person who accompanied a  

group o f  o ther  peop le  to  go  invest iga te  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .   He is  

the  same person now,  bu t  he  is  appear ing  under  the  o ther  

c i rcumstances.   Now,  jus t  days be fore  the  NASREC 

conference I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom Mr  Mbindwane,  Mr  

Bongan i  Mb indwane.   He was g i ven not ice .   I  am aware  o f  

tha t ,  Cha i rperson .   And a t  tha t  t ime he was the  adv isor  to  

the  then Min i s te r  o f  Po l i ce ,  Mr  F ik i l e  Mba lu la .   And what  he  20 

in fo rms me is  tha t ,  "There  is  an  u rgent  i ssue tha t  I  want  to  

d iscuss w i th  you. "   And obv ious ly  he  was te l l ing  me tha t  he  

is  sent  by  the  m in is te r,  bu t  I  rea l l y  have to  impress upon  

the  Commiss ion  tha t  the  m in i s te r  never  requested  me to  

a t tend tha t  pa r t i cu la r  meet ing  bu t  I  went  there .   And then 
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when we met  a t  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  p lace  he to ld  me tha t  there  

was a  group o f  backpackers  who  wanted to  in f luence the  

conference,  the  ou tcome o f  the  conference,  the  NASREC 

conference,  and . . .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    That  i s  a  g roup?  

CHAIRPERSON :    I 'm  sor ry.   A group o f  what?  

DR DINTWE :    He  ca l led  them backpackers .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Backpackers?  

DR DINTWE :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    10 

DR DINTWE :    Wel l ,  they  use tha t  concept  in  c r im ino logy  

and so  fo r th ,  bu t  i t  w i l l  be ,  l i ke ,  peop le  who w i l l  c la im to  be  

tour is t s ,  fo r  ins tance,  so  they are  known to  have those  

backpacks,  you know.   I t  may be fu l l  o f  cameras and so  

fo r th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because they . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

DR DINTWE :    Mr  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  i s  how you desc r ibe  

tha t  g roup o f  peop le  who were  sa id  to  be  coming  f rom a  

fo re ign  count ry  and they were ,  you know,  l i t te red  around 

Soweto .   So he to ld  me tha t  the  b iggest  cha l lenge tha t  they 20 

have is  tha t  the  then ac t ing  d i v is iona l  commiss ioner  o f  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  d id  no t  want  to  p rocu re  the  grabbers .   He sa id  

tha t  they were  ac tua l l y  in  need o f  g rabbers  to  the  reg ion  o f  

R210 mi l l ion .   However,  because  the  da te  was too  c lose  

they cou ld  se t t le  fo r  one g rabber  a t  a  tune o f  R45 mi l l ion .   
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He exp la ined,  l ike ,  you know,  the  idea.   Th i s  i s  how i t  

works .   These are  the  capab i l i t ies  so  do  not  be  su rpr ised  

tha t  i t  i s  so  expens ive .   An ord ina ry  grabber  costs  a round 

R7 mi l l ion .    

But  the  reason why he ca l led  me was to  say tha t  the  

d iv is iona l  commiss ioner  was sca red or  d id  no t  want  to  

purchase because I  was conduc t ing  some inves t iga t ion  

w i th  the  prev ious  procurement .   And I  fe l t  so  bad.   I  sa id  

how cou ld  they want  to  use my  name and i f  someth ing  

te r r ib le  rea l l y  happened i t  w i l l  seem as i f ,  you  know,  I  was  10 

invo l ved in  tha t ,  hence I  p romised  h im tha t  I  w i l l  go  to  the 

d iv is iona l  commiss ioner  and change i t .   "No,  no ,  do  no t  

wor ry.   I f  there  i s  a  th rea t  and so  fo r th ,  leave.   Cont inue.   

Manage the  organ isa t ion  and make dec i s ions. "   And tha t  i s  

what  I  d id .   I  le f t  there  immedia te l y  and I  went  to  see the  

d iv is iona l  commiss ioner.   I  know I  am tak ing  long,  bu t  I  

th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  to  do  th is .  

When I  go t  to  where  the  d iv i s iona l  commiss ioner  

was he was not  a t  h is  headquar te rs .   He was there  a t  the 

o ther  p lace .   We met .   So we w i l l  normal ly  meet  in  a  room,  20 

so  he  had . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  room.   We d id  no t  even ge t  to  s i t  

down,  because the  d iv i s iona l  commiss ioner  then asked me,  

"Are  you aware  o f  the  company tha t  they wan t  me to 

procu re  f rom?"   I  sa id ,  "No,  he  d id  no t  te l l  me. "   And he  

ment ions th is  company,  IDI ,  and I  immedia te ly  sa id  tha t ,  
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"No,  no ,  bu t  he  was not  honest  w i th  me,  hence I  am no 

longer  ge t t ing  invo l ved in  th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue. "   "Then I  

unders tand why you do not  want  to  p rocure . "   And  tha t  i s  

where  we ended on tha t  day,  c la im ing,  the  d iv is iona l  

commiss ioner  tha t ,  "No,  no ,  I  was coming to  permi t  you or  

somehow te l l  you  tha t  I  w i l l  no t  s tand in  f ron t  o f  any  

procu rement . "   But  in  th is  ins tance I  am no longer  ge t t ing  

invo l ved.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I  wou ld  say in  summary the re  was  

an a t tempt  to  p rocure  and i t  seems to  me tha t  you suggest ,  10 

a t  leas t  in  you r  s ta tement  o r  your  a f f idav i t ,  a t  an  exo rb i tan t  

p r ice  a  grabber  fo r  use  a t  the  NASREC confe rence o f  

December  2017.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I s  i t  cor rec t  tha t  tha t  in tended 

procurement  was ha l ted  by  IP ID?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And amongst  the  reasons,  as  you 

say in  your  s ta tement ,  was tha t  the  company f rom whom 

the  grabber  was to  be  procured had a l ready been f lagged 20 

in  re la t ion  to  i r regu la r  p rocu rement  p rev ious ly.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.   But  we a l so  

as  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  OIGI  we are  invo lved in  keep ing  the  

IP ID.   In  fac t ,  a  sen io r  manager  f rom my o f f i ce  was work ing  

w i th  a  sen ior  manager  f rom IP ID,  because we had 
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in fo rmat ion  and I  am ca l l ing  i t  i n fo rmat ion ,  no t  ev idence,  

i n fo rmat ion  to  say tha t  the  res t  o f  the  money w i l l  be  used  

to  buy vo tes  a t  NASREC.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  not  on ly  was the  procu rement  

p rocess i r regu la r,  no t  on l y  was the  par ty  f rom whom the  

grabber  wou ld  be  procured a l ready under  invest iga t ion  fo r  

i r regu lar  p rocu rement ,  bu t  you had in fo rmat ion  tha t  you 

used to  wh ich  the  grabber  wou ld  be  – so r ry,  no t  the  

grabber  –  used to  wh ich  the  money wou ld  be  used,  e i ther  

th rough in f la ted  procurement  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  in f la ted 10 

procurement  p r ices  was the  in fo rmat ion  you rece ived was  

to  buy vo tes  a t  NASREC.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  co r rec t .   And i t  sounded probab le .   

That ' s  when we  in te r rup ted  or  in te rvened,  because the  

grabber 's  o r ig ina l  p r ice  or  average p r ice  wou ld  be  R7  

mi l l ion ,  bu t  here  in  th is  case they wanted R45 mi l l ion  to  

buy on ly  one grabber.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   And du r ing  th is  p rocess  

when prob lems arose about  the  procurement ,  in f luence was 

sought  to  be  exe rc ised on you to  fac i l i ta te  the  pro jec t .   I s  20 

tha t  cor rec t?    

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i rpe rson.   Maybe I  

shou ld  a lso  men t ion  tha t  I  s topped somewhat  about  th is  

p rocu rement ,  bu t  there  was a  subsequent  meet ing  aga in  

tha t  took p lace in  f ron t ,  Cha i r.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Wel l ,  le t 's  te l l  the  Cha i r  about  tha t ,  

p lease?   

DR DINTWE :    A l r igh t .   Now,  a f te r  w i thdrawing –  te l l ing  the  

d iv is iona l  commiss ioner  tha t  I  w i l l  no t  ge t  invo l ved in  th is  

because I  d id  no t  make those dec i s ions,  I  then rece ived a  

WhatsApp message tha t  I  am a t tach ing  the  documents  tha t  

w i l l  be  coming f rom Mr Bo Mbindwane,  say ing  tha t ,  "AG,  I  

had thought  tha t  we ag reed on a  par t i cu la r  pos i t ion . "   And 

my unders tand ing  is  tha t  tha t  Wha tsApp message came as 

a  resu l t  o f  the  D ivcom,  the  d i v is iona l  commiss ioner,  te l l ing  10 

Mr  Mbindwane tha t ,  "No,  no ,  tha t  guy d id  no t ,  you know,  

agree or  he  d id  no t  want  to  ge t  invo lved in  th is  par t i cu la r  

p rocess. "   And then I  sa id  tha t ,  " I  w i l l  se t t le  then fo r  a  

t r ipar t i te  meet ing ,  because I  spoke to  you a lone.   I  went  

somewhere  e l se  and I  go t  a  d i f fe ren t  s to ry,  so  le t  us  meet . "   

And yes,  o f  course  subsequent ly  we met  he re  in  Sandton  

and aga in  I  re i te ra ted  tha t  I  do  no t  ge t  invo lved in  

p rocu rement  by  any o f  the  serv ices ,  as  long  as  they 

procu re  in  acco rdance w i th  the  app l i cab le  presc r ip ts ,  

whethe r  app l i cab le  w i th  any o the r  leg is la t ion  tha t  regu la tes  20 

procurement .   And I  ended up in  leav ing  tha t  par t i cu la r  

meet ing  and they g ive  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  beh ind  w i th  Mr  

Mbindwane.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   Now,  so  Mr  Mbindwane  

had been invo lved in  p rocu rement  a t  a l l?   
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DR DINTWE :    He  was invo lved.   That  i s  . . .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Bu t  shou ld  he  have been invo lved?   

DR DINTWE :    No,  he  shou ld  no t  have.   He is  a  m in is te r i a l  

spec ia l  adv i so r.   Even the  m in is te r,  I  mean,  fo r  tha t  mat te r  

never  rea l l y  ge ts  invo l ved in  . . .   That  i s  exact ly  what  they 

te l l  us .   And in  th is  ins tance I  have to  be  very  c lear  tha t  

even Min is te r  Mba lu la  has never,  eve r  d iscussed th is  

mat te r  w i th  myse l f .   I t  was the  adv i sor  who was push ing  fo r  

th is .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   And the  re levant  c r ime 10 

in te l l igence un i t  tha t  wou ld  have been respons ib le  fo r  the  

purchase o f  th is  g rabber,  was i t  ever  consu l ted?  D id  you  

invest iga te  th i s  i ssue?  

DR DINTWE :    I  invest iga ted  i t  though they were  never  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    They d idn ' t  even know?  

DR DINTWE :    They d idn ' t  even  know tha t  there  was a  

process to  a  t r ia l  and a  purchase o f  th is  par t i cu la r  

equ ipment .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   Now,  you say . . .  20 

DR DINTWE :    And –  sor ry,  so r ry.   Th is  cou ld  be  very  much  

impor tan t  to  say  tha t  i f  I 'm  hack ing  su rve i l lance in  c r ime 

in te l l igence journa ls ,  they ca l l  me end use r.   In  o ther  

words,  I  am the  one who in i t ia tes  the  process,  who go to  

the  procurement  peop le  and te l l  them tha t  I  am in  need o f  
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these th ree  bot t les  o f  wate r  and  then they w i l l  conduct  

the i r  own research ,  source  the  pr ices  and then buy.   So I  

am an end user.   I  must  in i t ia te .   I t  cannot  be  in i t ia ted  

anywhere  e l se .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   Now,  you say in  pa rag raph  

143 tha t :   

"Med ia  repor ts  suggest  tha t  the  money was,  in  fac t ,  

in tended to  be  u t i l i sed  fo r  vo te-buy ing  dur ing  the  

ment ioned ANC conference.   I  cannot  comment  on  

the  cor rec tness o f  these repor ts  o ther  than to  no te  10 

tha t  the  procurement  p rocess was s topped when  

IP ID became aware  o f  the  i r regu lar i t ies  and ra i sed  

a  query. "  

 I s  tha t  – a re  those comments  an  accura te  re f lec t ion  

o f  where  you s tand in  re la t ion  to  your  own knowledge?   

DR DINTWE :    I t  i s  cor rec t  and tha t  i s  the  reason why I  

sa id  tha t  in fo rmat ion  shou ld  no t  be  m isconst rued fo r  

ev idence.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   So you were  re ly ing  on  

med ia  repor ts .   You had a  susp ic ion .   Those susp ic ions 20 

were  co r robora ted  but  you have no knowledge o f  tha t  fac t ,  

o f  the  vo te-buy ing .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   But  you say tha t  tha t  mat te r  

i s  under  invest iga t ion  by  IP ID.  
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DR DINTWE :    Yes,  i t  was under  invest iga t ion  and there  

was a lso  l i t iga t ion  w i th  regard  to  tha t  par t i cu la r  mat te r,  in  

fac t ,  yes .   There  was a  f ind ing  per  se  –  I  mean,  a  judgment  

wh ich  s ta tes  tha t  those documents  must  be  dec lass i f ied .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Now,  we l l ,  tha t  i s  the  po in t .   IP ID 

was invest iga t ing  the  ser ies  o f  events ,  r igh t?    

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Were  they ab le  to  access the  

re levant  documenta t ion?   

DR DINTWE :    No t  a t  tha t  s tage.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Not  a t  tha t  s tage.   Before  the  cour t  

case?  

DR DINTWE :    Be fore  the  cour t  case,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And how d id  th is  a f fec t  the i r  ab i l i t y  

to  invest iga te  th is  obv ious –  we l l ,  cer ta in l y  obv ious  

a l legat ions o f  c r im ina l i t y?   

DR DINTWE :    The invest iga t ion  cou ld  no t  even take  o f f  as 

fa r  as  I  know,  because there  was an app l i ca t ion  by  po l i ce  

management ,  inc lud ing  Mr  Mbindwane,  to  say tha t  IP ID 

cannot  have access.   And I  th ink  tha t  in te rd ic t  was,  you 20 

know,  i ssued unt i l  there  was an appea l  o r  a  rev iew as fa r  

as  tha t  dec i s ion  was concerned,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Now,  a l l  these are  ser ious 

a l legat ions.   A re  they cu r ren t ly  s t i l l  under  invest iga t ion?   

DR DINTWE :    We know a  lo t  more  now.   But  even  a t  tha t  
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s tage as  the  o f f ice  we knew more  than what  IP ID knew 

because we were  in  possess ion  o f  these documents .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   And is  your  o f f i ce 

invest iga t ing  the  mat te r?   

DR DINTWE :    Yes,  ou r  o f f i ce  a lso  go t  invo lved in  the  

invest iga t ion  o f  tha t  par t i cu la r  mat te r.   Remember  tha t  I  

a lways say,  Cha i rperson,  tha t  the  o ther  agents  cannot  s top  

the  invest iga t ion  on  our  beha l f  o r  a t  our  i ns tance,  because  

we are  repor t ing  to  d i f fe ren t  au thor i t ies .   So IP ID was 

conduct ing  a  c r im ina l  invest iga t ion .   We were  conduct ing ,  10 

i f  you 'd  l i ke ,  overs igh t  invest iga t ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And wou ld  you have repor ted  your  

invest iga t ions th rough the  var ious ins tances in  your  

cer t i f i ca tes  or  wou ld  you do tha t  in  the  fu tu re?  

DR DINTWE :    I t  w i l l  be  in  the  cer t i f i ca te ,  th is  one,  

because i t  i s  a  2017 mat te r,  so  i t  w i l l  be  in  the  2017/2018.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So a l l  th is  has been repor ted  to  

Par l iament?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And the  response?  20 

DR DINTWE :    No,  there  was not  a  response as  fa r  as  tha t  

i s  concerned.   But  I  th ink  tha t  even the  ANC members  in  

tha t  commi t tee  were  rea l l y  concerned and worr ied  about  

what  I  have repor ted  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Was th is  repor ted  to  you,  th is  
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concern?  

DR DINTWE :    Ja ,  the  concerns.   So i t  w i l l  be  dur ing  the  

de l ibe ra t ions,  dur ing  presenta t ion  when they  s ta r ted  

comments  and so  fo r th  to  say tha t  th is  i s  wor r isome tha t  i t  

i s  ac tua l l y  happen ing .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   So d id  you make a  

presenta t ion  on  the  bas i s  o f  your  cer t i f i ca te  to  the  JSCI  in  

re la t ion  to  th is?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   I  d id  tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And what  . . .?   Wel l ,  I  suppose the  10 

proceed ings are  top  sec re t .   I s  tha t  no t  cor rec t?    

DR DINTWE :    Ja ,  they  are .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  we w i l l  cons ide r  tha t  pos i t ion  

and dea l  w i th  i t  bu t  maybe the  Cha i r  wants  to  ask  a  

quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I ' l l  ask  t he  quest ion .   You know 

what  you wou ld  have sa id  to  the  commi t tee .   You cannot  

te l l  us  what  the  commi t tee  sa id ,  bu t  what  you can te l l  us  i s  

whethe r  subsequent ly  there  was anyth ing  you learn t  there  

wh ich  ind i ca tes  tha t  the  commi t tee  has done someth ing  20 

about  i t .  

DR DINTWE :    I  do  no t  th ink  I  c lea r ly  unders tand your  

quest ion ,  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   I  am t ry ing  to  dea l  w i th  the 

prob lem tha t  you  cannot  te l l  us  what  the  commi t tee  says,  
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bu t  you can te l l  us  i f  ind ica t ions are  tha t  someth ing  has  

been done.  

DR DINTWE :    Okay.   Now . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  te rms o f  what  you have observed  

s ince  then.  

DR DINTWE :    The o ther  pa r t  then happens in  the  pub l i c  

domain .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE :   I t  d isp layed i t se l f ,  so  I  do  no t  have 

reserva t ions i n fo rming the  commi t tee  what  happened then 10 

about  th is .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Ja .  

DR DINTWE :    I  th ink  two issues  tha t  I  want  to  ment ion ,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

DR DINTWE :    Now,  dur ing  the  t ime tha t  i t  was repor ted  in  

the  pub l i c  domain  there  was an express ion  by  sen ior  ANC 

o f f i c ia ls  who are  no t  even in  Par l iament  to  say tha t  th is  i s  

wor r isome and these monies  a re  used to  fue l  the  fac t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Fact ions.  20 

DR DINTWE :    Yes.   In  the  ANC and some o f  them were  

a lso  wor r i ed  to  say tha t  to  what  ex ten t  can In te l l igence be  

invo l ved in  the  in te rna l  fo r  tha t  event ,  because tha t  i s  an 

in te rna l  ANC event ,  i t  i s  no t  a  government  –  government  

event .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.    

DR DINTWE:    There  is  conf i rmat ion  tha t  o f f i c ia l s  o f  Cr ime 

In te l l igence were  even removed f rom NASREC and they 

were  to ld  to  go  a  l i t t le  b i t  fa r  because they were  caus ing  

prob lems fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r  conference,  bu t  now a f te r  the  

Cour t  dec is ion  th is  i ssue came to  the  fo re  aga in ,  and now 

there  are  two incor rec t  nar ra t i ves  tha t  have been created  

about  th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue.  

That  the  dec lass i f i ca t ion  o f  the  documents  revea led  

two th ings tha t  Genera l  S i tho le  never  s igned the  10 

procurement  o f  t h is  g rabber  o f  R45mi l l ion .   The second 

issue tha t  we los t  the  dec lass i f i ca t ion  is  tha t  Genera l  

S i tho le  kept  on  te l l ing  the  –  my o ther  managers ,  the  

management  tha t  you can do th is  as  long as  you comply  

w i th  p rocurement  p rescr ip ts .    

So he kept  say ing  those two th ings bu t  the  prob lem 

is  tha t  the  na r ra t i ve  tha t  was be ing  bu i l t ,  wh i l s t  th is  was 

dec lass i f ied  was tha t  Genera l  S i tho le  s igned the  

submiss ion  and tha t  he  cou ld  have a l lowed a  dev ia t ion ,  bu t  

i t  never  rea l l y  reached a  par t i cu la r  s tage.   20 

The o ther  i ssue wh ich  i s  very  impor tan t  and cr i t i ca l  

to  Nat iona l  Secur i t ies ,  bu t  i t  i s  in  the  pub l i c  domain ,  aga in ,  

where  Min i s te r  Ce le  accused or  sa id  tha t  th is  g rabber  w i th  

the  R45mi l l ion  was a l so  -  cou ld  a lso  have been used to  

in te rcept  the  emai ls  o f  the  then Deputy  Pres ident  o f  the  
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ANC but  tha t  event  took p lace way  before  we were  invo lved 

in  tha t  invest iga t ion ,  way before  th is  a t tempted 

procurement .   

So those are  the  issues,  the  na r ra t i ves  tha t  a re  

inco r rec t ,  and they 've  p layed themse lves ou t  now in  the 

pub l i c  domain .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And the  cor rec t  pos i t ion ,  a t  leas t  

the  pos i t ion  ev idence by  the  documents  now dec lass i f ied  

and pub l i c  was  a t  leas t  tha t  Genera l  S i tho le  d id  no t  

approve.  10 

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  you dea l  in  paragraph 144  

Dr  D in twe w i th  a  new i ssue and tha t  i s  an  i ssue invo lv ing  

the  same company,  I vane ’s  company and you dea l  w i th  a  

d i f fe ren t  fo rm o f  cor rup t ion  o r  ma l feasance in  re la t ion  to  

in fo rmat ion  techno logy,  so lu t i ons  fo r  In te l l igence 

co l lec t ion .  Cou ld  you te l l  the  Cha i r  b r ie f l y  about  what  

happened here ,  you dea l  w i th  in  paragraph 144 and  145 o f  

your  s ta tement?  

DR DINTWE:    Yeah,  so  th is  i s  the  genera l  and  s im i la r  20 

pr inc ip le  tha t  they procure  i r regu la r ly  and somet imes goods  

are  no t  de l i vered ,  the  prob lem tha t  I  have exp ressed.   But  

here  le t ' s  say  tha t  they change  the  tac t ,  they  changed 

modus operand i .  

In  th is  ins tance they ca l l  fo r  quo ta t ions and when  
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we ana lysed these quota t ions,  there  were  cer ta in  fac ts ,  

wh ich  came to  the  fo re .   The f i rs t  one be ing  tha t  the  fon t  

the  manner,  the  s t ruc ture  o f  the  quota t ions was ac tua l l y  

s im i la r.  The o ther  concern  or  what  we es tab l i shed was tha t  

one o f  the  compan ies  tha t  p rov ided one o f  the  quota t ions 

was not  even invo lved on th is ,  they to ld  us  tha t  they are  an  

HR consu l tancy company,  and they say tha t  they have  

never  even so ld  an  equ ipment  o f  tha t  par t i cu la r  na tu re .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t  bu t  jus t  s top  the re ,  I  am 

sor ry  to  do  th i s ,  bu t  I  th ink  maybe you and I  a re  ou t  o f  sync 10 

here .  I  th ink  you are  dea l ing  here  w i th  paragraphs 146 and 

147 the  vo i ce  encryp t ion  sys tem.   

DR DINTWE:    Oh,  ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I f  you  cou ld  go  back p lease to  

parag raph 144 where  there  was a  quota t ion  f rom the  

Counc i l  fo r  Sc ien t i f i c  Indust r ia l  Research ,  CSIR,  fo r  the  

amount  o f  R7mi l l ion  fo r  a  par t i cu la r  so f tware  so lu t ion ,  and  

te l l  the  Cha i r  about  tha t  inc ident  p lease,  and then  we w i l l  

ge t  on  to  the  vo ice  encryp t ion  sys tem.  

DR DINTWE:    A l r igh t  now…[ in tervene]  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  a t  the  top  o f  page 820.  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  I  see tha t  look  CSIR is  a  government  

en t i t y.   I t  i s  someth ing  on  those l ines  and the  researchers  

there  w i l l  deve lop  some o f  the  so lu t ions fo r  even fo r  S ta te  

in fo rmat ion  techno logy agenc ies  or  fo r  o the r  government  
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depar tments .   So in  th is  ins tance,  they had o f fe red  the  

Cr ime In te l l igence tha t  we cou ld  deve lop  th is  k ind  o f  IT 

so lu t ion  fo r  yourse l ves,  and i t  was go ing  to  be  a t  a round  

R7mi l l ion  bu t  now tha t  o f fe r  was then ignored and  SUB-CI  

then ca l led  fo r  the  o ther  po ten t ia l  over  and above what  

CSIR wou ld  have o f fe red  them.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    For  R33mi l l ion .   

DR DINTWE:    Fo r  R33mi l l ion  now th is  t ime around.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  bu t  to  make mat te rs  worse ,  

you then d id  an  invest iga t ion  to  f ind  ou t  whethe r  th is  IT 10 

so lu t ion  had ever  been ac tua l l y  ins ta l led .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson I  d id  tha t  and I  

v is i ted  persona l l y  w i th  members  o f  my o f f i ce ,  v i s i ted .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And what  d id  you d iscover?  

DR DINTWE:    We d iscovered tha t  i t  was never  de l i vered to  

Cr ime In te l l igence.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  quo ta t ions go  out  fo r  an  IT 

so lu t ion  CSIR,  say we are  p rov ided  fo r  R7mi l l ion .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Th is  par t i cu la r  company says we 20 

w i l l  g ive  i t  to  you fo r  R33mi l l ion .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I t  i s  p rocured f rom th is  company,  in  

inve r ted  commas.  

DR DINTWE:    I t  i s  p rocu red in  inver ted  commas,  mon ies  
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a re  pa id .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Mon ies  are  pa id  bu t  no th ing  is  

ins ta l led  on  your  f ind ing .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you re la te  tha t  you r  persona l  

v is i t  and your  persona l  invest iga t ions in  pa ragraph 145 and  

you say you were  in fo rmed tha t  the  or ig ina l  p roduct  no  

longer  ex i s ted  and had s ince  been rep laced but  you  

cou ldn ' t  be  shown the  rep lacement  e i ther,  i s  tha t  co r rec t?  

DR DINTWE:    I  cou ld  no t  be  shown a  rep lacement  as  we l l ,  10 

Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  aga in ,  i t ' s  jus t  the f t .   

DR DINTWE:    Pu re  the f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  your  conc lus ion  was in  

parag raph 145,  tha t  the  amount  o f  R73mi l l ion  was 

f raudu len t ly  pa id  f rom Cr ime In te l l igence to  th is  company  

fo r  a  non-ex is ten t  p roduct  and you then say:  

“ IP ID has s ince  been invest iga t ing  th is  mat te r  tha t  20 

has to  go  i t  aga in ,  no t  succeeded in  secur ing  

per t inent  c lass i f ied  documents  re levant  to  i t s  

invest iga t ion . ”  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  wou ld  be  sec re t  abou t  these 
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p rocu rement  documents?  

DR DINTWE:    I  am argu ing  a lways argue tha t  you cannot  

over  c lass i f y  th is  i ssue,  jus t  a  pure  procurement  i ssue.   

There  is  no th ing  Nat iona l  Secur i t y  about  i t ,  there  i s  no th ing  

In te l l igence abou t  i t ,  i t  i s  l i ke  procur ing  a  ca r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  and  then on paragraphs 146 

and 147 on page 820 and fo l low ing ,  you dea l  w i th  the  vo i ce  

encryp t ion  sys tem,  procurement  p rocess,  what  happened  

there  jus t  b r ie f l y?   You ta lk  about  cover  quot ing .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  bu t  i t  i s  the  same company now,  th is  10 

company gets  invo l ved in  a l l  these k inds o f  p rocurement ,  

wh ich  I  can supp l ies  h im and i r regu la r  ins tances not  even 

get t ing  de l i very  bu t  in  th is  ins tance tha t  sys tem -  oh ,  bu t  

on  the  paragraph I  am ta lk ing  about  f lou t ing  o f  the i r  

p rocu rement  regu la t ions aga in .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Which  was  a lso  ex i s ten t  you  say in  

re la t ion  to  the  prev ious issue tha t  you have d iscussed the  

so f tware  so lu t ion ,  you sa id  tha t  p rescr ip ts  were  no t  

fo l lowed.  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Here  prescr ip ts  were  a lso  no t  

fo l lowed in  re la t ion  to  the  vo ice  encryp t ion  sys tem where  i t  

was procured fo r  about  R23 mi l l ion .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And you say tha t  a l l  manner  o f  
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p rocu rement  requ i rements  were  f lou ted .  

DR DINTWE:    I  submi t  tha t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  you say:  

“The sys tem was not  p rocured fo r  any Cr ime 

In te l l igence sect ion  respons ib le  fo r  any  

counter in te l l igence funct ion . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  bu t…[ in tervene]  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  so  in  the  ins tance where  I  sa id  10 

Cha i rperson,  tha t  an  end user  w i l l  be  somebody  who is  

respons ib le  fo r  tha t  par t i cu la r  th ing .   So i f  you  say tha t  i t  i s  

a  vo ice  encryp t ion ,  i f  you  say i t  is  a  g rabber  and we are  

look ing  a t  some body as  su rve i l lance,  you know,  and a l l  

those an issues ,  bu t  the  end user  w i l l  be  somebody  

somewhere .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    The cost  o f  th is  p rocurement ,  you 

say in  parag raph 146,  was R23mi l l ion .   

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    However  you invest iga ted  the  20 

mat te r  and you saw compet ing  quotes  one fo r  R58mi l l ion ,  

were  those genu ine  compet ing  quo tes?  

DR DINTWE:    They were  no t  genu ine  and as  I  say  the  

parag raph tha t  we p icked up some o f  the  o ther  th ing ,  fo r  

example ,  in  one o f  those,  there  was no VAT number,  V-A-T 
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number  and i t  was a lso  apparent  tha t  the  la t te r  two 

quota t ions were  fo r  purposes  o f  c rea t ing  f i c t i t ious  

compet i t ion ,  a lso  re fer red  to  as  cover  quot ing ,  in  

cont ravent ion  o f  the i r  app l i cab le  Treasury  regu la t ions.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And tha t  -  those were  your  f ind ings  

in  invest iga t ing  the  fac t s .  

DR DINTWE:    Those were  my f ind ings,  because the  name 

o f  the  d i rec tor  o f  Company B  was a lso  the  d i rec to r  o f  

Company C.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Okay,  a l r igh t  so  a  re la ted  company  10 

issues a  quote  fo r  R58mi l l ion  and I  unders tand what  you  

mean by  cover  quot ing  i t  makes the  quote  fo r  R23  mi l l ion  

look reasonab le .   

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I s  tha t  the  po in t ,  you are  mak ing?  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Cha i r,  I  must  p lace  on reco rd  tha t  

we have a  response f rom the  company,  the  d i rec tor  who is  

I vana but  what  they say in  th is  response is :  

“We are  g iv ing  you th is  in fo rmat ion ,  we do not  know 20 

whethe r  i t  i s  c lass i f ied  or  no t  tha t  i s  your  p rob lem. ”  

They say to  us .   So as  a  precaut ion ,  we have  had to  

consu l t  w i th  the  D i rec tor  Genera l  o f  the  SSA,  the  ac t ing  

D i rec to r,  Genera l ,  who f i rs t  see whether  we can dea l  w i th  

the  who le  par t ,  and i f  so ,  how we can dea l  w i th  i t .  
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So  I  am not  in  a pos i t ion  to  pu t  tha t  now,  we mus t  

go  th rough the  p rocess f i rs t  and then we w i l l  pu t  i t  up  fo r  

you.   But  we might  jus t  pu t  i t  up  to  you anyway under  the  

rub r ic  tha t  i t  i s  for  your  eyes,  on ly.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Can we  move on then on page 

8712 to  the  fa i lu re  o f  overs igh t  over  the  In te l l igence 

Serv i ces .   Now we have dea l t  w i th  th is  p iecemeal  in  

severa l  par ts  o f  your  a f f idav i t  to  da te  bu t  i f  you  cou ld  jus t  

summar ise  what  you say,  in  parag raphs,  148 to  150  p lease,  10 

and you can do i t  in  summary fo rm  because we have dea l t  

w i th  these issues .  

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  and I  m ight  need to  on  pa ragraph 148,  

tha t  I  am not  execut ing  tha t  fa i lu re  on l y  to  the  Jo in t  

S tand ing  Commi t tee  on  In te l l igence.   I  am say ing  tha t  we  

have fa i led  a l so  as  the  OIGI  and I  th ink  tha t  I  wou ld  have 

prov ided reasons  what  I  th ink  were  the  reasons beh ind  tha t  

because we were  weakened and a l l  those o the r  th ings bu t  

the  fa i lu re  there  o f  overs igh t  ove r  th is  o rgan isa t ion  is  a lso  

a t t r ibu tab le  to  us  as  the  o f f i ce .   20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  bu t  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  you 

have g iven ev idence to  the  Cha i r  about  you r  independence,  

o r  lack  o f  independence,  the  s t ruc tura l  and o rgan isa t iona l  

cha l lenges you  face  as  the  o f f i ce  o f  the  OGI  i t s  

capac i ta t ion  and fund ing ,  we have  dea l t  w i th  tha t  ev idence  
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i t  i s  a l l  there .  You  ask the  quest ion  in  page 8748,  you say:  

“The Cha i rperson o f  the  Commiss ion  may  

reasonab ly  ask  how weapon isa t ion  and f raud and  

cor rup t ion  in  the  In te l l igence  Serv ices  was  

permi t ted  to  cont inue in  the  face  o f  the  overs igh t  

respons ib i l i t i es  wh ich  shou ld  have  been exerc i sed  

by  the  OIGI ,  tha t  i s  your  o f f i ce ,  and what  the  

reasons fo r  the  fa i lu re  o f  such overs igh t  was in  the  

c i rcumstances. ”  

So you are  dea l ing  here  w i th  a  f inger  tha t  m ight  be  po in ted  10 

a t  you r  o f f i ce .   

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    You have dea l t  w i th  i ssues in  

re la t ion  to  th is  ear l ie r  in  you r  s ta tement  las t  t ime you  

appeared before  the  Cha i r.   But  wou ld  the  same comments  

tha t  you make now app ly  to  the  JSCI  w i th  the  JSCI  i s  no t  

unre la ted  in  th is  ser ies  o f  events?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  i s  re la ted  and I  th ink  tha t  i s  where  

prev ious l y  I  sa id  to  the  Cha i rperson tha t  no  one  and no 

one w i th in  th i s  f ra te rn i t y  shou ld  come to  you and mis lead  20 

you tha t  we were  no t  aware  o f  th is  because on pa ragraph 

149 I  am dea l i ng  w i th  the  ce r t i f i ca tes  and I  am a l so  

re fer r i ng  to  what  I  wou ld  have sent ,  and I  th ink  tha t  I  am 

a lso  a t tach ing  the  le t te rs  tha t  w i l l  accompany those  

cer t i f i ca tes  to  the  Jo in t  Commi t tee  on  In te l l igence.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   You say in  paragraph 149 i f  I  may 

jus t  read i t  fo r  the  sake o f  t ime:  

“The cer t i f i ca tes  tha t  have been produced and  

presented to  the  heads o f  the  In te l l igence Serv ices ,  

the  Min i s te rs  o f  the  th ree  depar tments ,  and the  

JSCI  ove r  a  per iod  o f  t ime,  re f lec t  the  many  

f ind ings o f  wrongdo ing  by  the  In te l l igence Serv i ces  

made by  my o f f i ce .   Mon ies  have been s to len  f rom 

the  In te l l igence Serv i ces  and in  cer ta in  ins tances ,  

these monies  were  used to  fund pa ra l le l  In te l l igence 10 

capac i t ies  and to  ach ieve po l i t i ca l  ends and or  to  

f igh t  fac t iona l  ba t t les .  These cer t i f i ca tes  o f  d i f fe ren t  

In te l l igence Serv ices  tha t  were  issued dur ing  my  

tenure  ind ica te  how the  resources o f  the  

In te l l igence Serv ices  were  m isused,  s to len  and  

squandered.   These cer t i f i ca tes  are  annexed. ”  

Wel l ,  they  are  in  the  documenta t ion  tha t  you w i l l  p rov ide  to  

the  Cha i r  in  due course  hopefu l l y  sooner  ra ther  than la te r.  

You l i s t  in  parag raph 149.1 ,  149.2  and 149.3  you l i s t  and 

ident i f y  the  cer t i f i ca tes  fo r  the  years  2016,2017,2018 ,  2019 20 

fo r  the  th ree  In te l l igence s t ruc tures .  That  i s  Defence  

In te l l igence,  Cr ime In te l l igence and the  S ta te  Secur i t y  

Agency.  

DR DINTWE:    I  con f i rmed tha t  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .   
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CHAIRPERSON:    I s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  -  I  am jus t  qu ick ly  

hav ing  a  look a t  those parag raphs ,  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  in  

regard  to  each serv i ce  tha t  fa l l s  under  your  j u r i sd ic t ion ,  

you have p rov ided cer t i f i ca tes  fo r  the  same per iod ,  in  

te rms o f  years ,  f inanc ia l  yea rs?  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  parag raph one. . . [ in te rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  maybe –  I  may be tak ing  you back  

Dr  D in twe but  you ment ioned under  the  fa i lu re  o f  overs igh t  10 

over  the  In te l l igence Serv i ces ,  tha t  you inc lude your  own 

o f f i ce ,  tha t  i t  a lso  fa i led  and then  you sa id  you cou ld  g ive  

reasons you were  weakened and so  on .   I t  may be tha t  you  

dea l t  w i th  i t  ear l ie r  on  bu t  I  have  fo rgo t ten ,  can you jus t  

te l l  me,  th is  i s  why the  reasons  why you say your  o f f i ce  

fa i led?  

DR DINTWE:    I t  i s  because Cha i rperson I  mean,  i f  you  get  

an  o f f i ce  and you get  appo in ted ,  there  i s  an  expecta t ion  

tha t  you shou ld  come up w i th  a  tu rnaround genera l  

s t ra tegy and w i thout  dev ia t ing  look ing  a t  any reasons to  20 

jus t i f y  tha t  I  am g lad  to  say tha t  maybe we cou ld  even have 

pushed more  than th is .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   And I  know the  a t t i tude o f  the  Cha i rperson I  

have heard  you  say ing ,  te l l ing  o ther  peop le  we w i l l  
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normal ly  say  tha t ,  bu t  what  d id  you do w i th  the  l i t t le  tha t  

you had?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

DR DINTWE:    So  I  shou ld  no t  come here  and say tha t  we 

mel t  down,  we have rea l l y  go t  b roken down,  to  me I  see  

tha t  as  a  fa i lu re  o f  the  OIGI .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no ,  no ,  I  am g lad  you say tha t  

because,  you know,  w i th  these prob lems tha t  the  

Commiss ion  is  look ing  a t  to  face  the  count ry,  we w i l l  no t  

so l ve  them unt i l  -  un less  peop le  who are  leaders  are  10 

prepared  to  look  a t  themse lves,  look  a t  the i r  own ro les  and  

say,  I  know,  I  accept  tha t  f rom my s ide  I  d id  no t  do  enough 

here  and go ing  fo rward ,  th is  i s  what  I  am commi t ted  to  

do ing  to  make sure  tha t  yes terday or  tomorrow is  no t  the  

same as yesterday,  you know.   

I f  we are  no t  p repared to  do  tha t ,  and i f  leaders  are  

no t  p repared to  do  tha t  peop le  who are  in  pos i t ions  are  no t  

p repared to  do  tha t  there  is  no t  go ing  to  be  a  change.  So I  

am a lways g lad  when a  leader,  somebody in  charge does  

not  jus t  look  a t  what  o thers  have done wrong,  bu t  a lso  20 

says,  have I  done enough on my  s ide  and what  can I  do  

d i f fe ren t ly  go ing  fo rward?  So I  am happy tha t  you have 

sa id  tha t .  

DR DINTWE:    And then the re  is  an  example ,  wh ich  fu r ther  

e luc ida te  tha t  Cha i rperson  
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DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rpe rson but  fo r  ins tance,  

over  th is  four  years  I  have s t rugg led  to  ge t  in fo rmat ion ,  

when in  fac t ,  the  overs igh t  ac t  c r im ina l i ses  a  re fusa l  by  

any person in  decent  phys ica l  serv ices  and I  a lways,  you 

know,  wanted to  regard  tha t  as  a  las t  resor t .   So tha t  i s  –  

th is  i s  an  example  o f  a  lapse on our  s ide  and because i t  

does not  need money,  i t  needs me to  c ross  the  roads,  the 

nearest  po l i ce  s ta t ion ,  open a  case and not  wa i t ,  no t  wr i te  

four  le t te rs  be fore  I  can get  one s igna l  as  an  in fo rmat ion .   

So we shou ld  no t  be  myop ic ,  about  the  cha l lenges 10 

fac ing  the  o f f i ce  we cou ld  have done more .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  thank you.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  fac t ,  have you sought  to  secure  

your  powers  th rough Cour t  in te rvent ion?  

DR DINTWE:    I  have done w i th  the  l i t iga t ion  tha t  I  wou ld  

have re fer red  to  ear l ie r.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    In  paragraph 151,  on  page 822,  Dr  

D in twe,  you dea l  w i th  the  fa i lu re  to  imp lement  the  

recommendat ions  o f  the  OIGI ,  you have dea l t  w i th  th is  

i ssue in  quest ions,  in  answers  to  quest ions to  the  Cha i r.   20 

You say a t  the  bo t tom o f  parag raph  151:  

“Recommendat ions made and repor t s  p roduced by  

the  OIGI  a re  la rge ly  ignored by  the  Min is t r y  and the  

D i rec tor  Genera ls  o f  the  In te l l igence Serv ices . ”  

Would  tha t  comment ,  app ly  equa l ly  to  the  JSCI?  
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DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson,  the re  is  th is  

lega l  i ssue tha t  I  th ink  tha t  maybe dur ing  the  arguments ,  

the  c los ing  a rguments  maybe the  lega l  team wi l l  dea l  w i th  

i t  because i f  a  recommendat ion  i s  deve loped and  sent  to  

the i r  account ing  o f f i cer  fo r  imp lementa t ion ,  can we rea l l y  

bemoan the  fa i lu re  o f  the  imp lementa t ion  and p lace i t  a t  

the  door  o f  the  leg is la tu re?  I  th ink  tha t  tha t  d is t inc t ion  

shou ld  be  made,  I  th ink  tha t  the  Jo in t  S tand ing  Commi t tee  

on  In te l l igence shou ld  on l y  ho ld  the  DG’s  accountab le ,  as  

to  the  ex ten t  tha t  they fa i l  to  imp lement ,  because these 10 

o ther  i ssues are  admin i s t ra t i ve  dec is ions and so  fo r th ,  

wh ich  are  a  so le  prev iew or  p rov ince o f  the  d i rec to r,  

D i rec tor  Genera l ' s .   I  do  no t  know i f  the  i f  tha t  a rgument  i s  

ra ised whether  i t  w i l l  be  acceptab le ,  bu t  I  d id  no t  want  to  

venture  in to  tha t  myse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no ,  tha t  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  mean,  the  

-  one has got  to  look  a t  what  each body or  f unct ionary  i s  

requ i red  to  do  by  law and d id  they do  what  they are  

requ i red  to  do  by  law or  what  they were  empowered to  do  

bu t  d id  no t  do .    20 

So you look a t  the  commi t tee  and say what  i s  there  

ro le ,  what  were  they employed to  do ,  what  were  they app ly  

to  do ,  what  i s  i t  tha t  they d id ,  and what  i s  i t  tha t  they cou ld  

have done and you look a t  there  the  DG’s  as  we l l ,  i f  they  

shou ld  have pursued cer ta in  i ssues w i th  DG’s  and they d id  
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no t  then they have va l id  reasons  fo r  no t  pursu ing  those  

issues,  those are  the  types o f  i ssues,  quest ions tha t  one 

looks a t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And so  perhaps my quest ion  was  

put  in  to  genera l  a  te rm,  as  I  unders tand,  what  you a re  

say ing  is  tha t  the  Cha i r  has now po in ted  out  i s  tha t  many 

o f  your  recommendat ions and repor t s  wou ld  be  d i rec ted  

spec i f i ca l l y  a t  funct iona l  o f f i cers ,  fo r  example ,  the  Min is t r y  

and the  D i rec tor  Genera ls  o f  In te l l igence Serv ices ,  i t  wou ld  

be  the i r  du ty  to  cons ider  your  repor ts  and  10 

recommendat ions  and where  appropr ia te  to  imp lement .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  

what  –  no t  I  th ink  ra ther  than to  say tha t  the  major i t y  o f  the 

recommendat ions  w i l l  go  to  the  account ing  o f f i cers  fo r  

imp lementa t ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  bu t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  they are  

no t  imp lemented an ove rs igh t  body,  such as  yourse l f  and 

the  JSCI ,  wou ld  then come in to  p lay  and be accountab le  

fo r  the  fa i lu re  to  exerc i se  overs igh t  ove r  the  non-

imp lementa t ion  o f  you r  recommendat ions.  20 

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  co r rec t  and I  th ink  tha t  a lso  in  the  

sp i r i t  o f  leg is la t ion ,  you  remember  there  is  

super in tendence a  ro le  o f  the  Min i s te rs  as  we l l .   So  in  any 

event ,  i f  a  dec is ion  is  done,  I  have recommended to  the  DG 

the  Min i s te r  i s  aware  o f  tha t  recommendat ion .   I  th ink  tha t  
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her  ro le  eventua l l y  in  tha t  o f f i ce  super in tendence so  she  

has more  powers  to  us  the  DG,  why a re  you not  

imp lement ing  th is?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And then in  paragraph 153,  you  

say:   

“ I t  i s  my submiss ion ,  tha t  i t  i s  necessary  to  p rov ide  

appropr ia te  en fo rcement  mechan isms to  the  OIGI  to  

ensure  tha t  i t s  recommendat ions are  imp lemented,  

and tha t  the  fa i lu re  to  do  so  shou ld  be  v is i ted  w i th  

ser ious pena l t ies . ”  10 

DR DINTWE:    Yes,  tha t  i s  tha t  i s  my submiss ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    As  fo r  your  recommendat ion ,  the  

Cha i r  w i l l  have to  th ink  about  tha t  fu r ther.   Cha i r  i t  i s  1  

o ’c lock .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  i t  i s  1  o 'c lock .   Do you have an 

idea how much more  t ime you need because i f  fo r  example ,  

you were  to  be  done in  30  m inutes ,  maybe we cou ld  de lay  

tak ing  l unch and then take  lunch a f te r  you are  f in ished but  

i f  i t  i s  go ing  to  be  longer  then we maybe cou ld  take  lunch?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    I  wou ld  be  a t  leas t  another  hour  20 

and I  w i l l  t ry  my best  to  f in ish  w i th in  tha t  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine  le t  us  take  the  

lunch ad journment  then we w i l l  resume a t  two.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Okay I  have communica ted  th is  to  

the  next…[ in tervene]  
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CHAIRPERSON:    No tha t  i s  f ine ,  so  then 3  o ’c lock  wou ld  

be  -  they cou ld  be  here .   Okay,  we take the  lunch 

ad journment ,  we ad journ .   

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:     Okay let  us cont inue.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Chai r.   Dr  Dintwe much of  

what fo l lows to the conclusion of  your aff idavi t  we have deal t  

wi th albei t  p iecemeal and out  of  order al ready so given the 

constraints that  we have in regard to t ime I  am going to 10 

summarise and ext ract  what I  th ink are important  passages 

f rom your aff idavi t  of  course i f  I  leave anything out  you wi l l  

take me to task on that  issue and intervene.  

 You deal  in paragraph 154 on page 822.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes I  – may I  p lease address the Chai rperson 

on one point? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Of  course.  

DR DINTWE:   In less than a minute.   I  d id not  – I  know I  am 

surpr is ing the evidence leader I  just  del iberately did not  want  

to d iscuss this issue wi th him.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   I  want  to provide the commission wi th the date 

on which the submission was signed with regard to  the 26 

managers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  
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DR DINTWE:   I t  just  that  – i t  is just  that  part .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  that  – okay no that  is f ine.  

DR DINTWE:   I t  was signed on 6 March 2021.  Minister  

approved appointments on the 6 March 2021.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So… 

DR DINTWE:   For  the 26 appointments.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   What document was that? 

CHAIRPERSON:   So that  is a submission you say.   Is that  

the submission to the Minister? 10 

DR DINTWE:   No,  no i t  is an approval .  

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is the actual  – the approval  of  the 

appointment.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes that  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.   Okay.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  the 26 managers.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes on 6 March but  on the 26t h of  March 

something happened there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  20 

DR DINTWE:   The – we have what we cal l  a budget  

control ler.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   The budget cont rol ler wrote to the Minister 

and the DG – the act ing DG then saying that  most  of  the 
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posts are not  funded or were not  funded so he was 

recommending that  they should be put  on hold unt i l  due 

di l igence was completed.   But  that  was just  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   A recommendat ion f rom the budget control ler.  

What we are si t t ing wi th i t  is an approval  which is s igned on 

the 6 t h of  March.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   On the 6 t h of  March.  

DR DINTWE:   6 t h  of  March 2021.  

CHAIRPERSON:   The actual  appointment is made by what – 10 

by – by who – by the DG but  the – he must  get  the approval  

of  the Minister  or is i t  the Minister who makes the 

appointment? 

DR DINTWE:   In terms of  the signator ies the act ing DG signs 

as a recommender.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

DR DINTWE:   So – so you wi l l  have a compi ler Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ja 

DR DINTWE:   And then you wi l l  have maybe assessed level  

of  recommendat ion.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Recommended.  

DR DINTWE:   Maybe f rom the HR person and then you wi l l  

have the act ing DG then who was supposed to recommend – 

he did not  do i t  he raised some concerns and then you have 

got  an approval  by the Minister dated 6 March.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So you say in regard to these 26 

managers the act ing DG did not  recommend – did not  s ign – 

he had some issues? 

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  So what he did is that  he scratch both 

sides.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   And then he wrote – ja he wrote amended.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   So which means that  in other words why do we 

not  say that  he chose to – to abstain.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Abstain – to absta in.   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja i t  is l ike spoi l ing your – your bal lot .   

DR DINTWE:   Yes.   Yes.   He spoi l t  i t .    He spoi led his  bal lot .  

CHAIRPERSON:   He spoi l t  h is ba l lot .   Okay but  the – the 

Minister then approved but  i t  means i f  I  understand you 

correct ly in approving the Minister is appoint ing.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes the people are occupying as we know.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   The posi t ions.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Pretor ius.   So you do not  know what the 

response was to the budget cont ro l ler ’s consent.  

DR DINTWE:   No we did not  know that .   What we know is  
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that  the Minister upon signing that  she also made comments 

– handwri t ten comments and one of  the comments there was 

that  the concerns raised by the act ing DG wi l l  be discussed 

between hersel f  and the DG.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is al l  what  we know now.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.   But  I  would have thought that  

the appoint ing author i ty before he or she appoints would 

need to sat isfy themselves whether  there is budget for these 

posts.  10 

DR DINTWE:   That  is an ideal .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

DR DINTWE:   And I  th ink that  the conclusion that  I  am able 

to draw now is  that  she appointed and in fact  the 

recommendat ion of  the budget control ler was ignored.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh a lr ight .   Mr Pretor ius.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Thank you Chai r.   On page 822 at  the 

bot tom of  the page you deal  wi th the issue of  l imi ted access 

to informat ion and you have throughout your evidence have 

ra ised the issue of  the – in regard to the fact  that  you and 20 

law enforcement  agencies do not  have f ree access to 

informat ion enabl ing you to do your job adequately.    

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Let  alone ideal ly.  In paragraph 154 

you say:  
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“Members of  my off ice and I  have been 

al lowed only rest r icted or managed access to 

informat ion f rom the Director Generals and 

other heads of  serv ices evidenced by the 

prot racted delays and or thei r  lack of  

response to our numerous requests for  

informat ion. ”  

Is that  a fa i r  summary of  the posi t ion? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  is the summary of  the – of  our submission 

Chairperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you say in paragraph 155:  

“ In  l ight  of  the consistent  const ruct ive refusal  

and I  wi l l  ask you what you mean by that  in a 

moment to provide informat ion on the part  of  

the heads of  services I  have come to the 

conclusion that  there has been a conscious 

move on thei r  part  to progressively and 

incremental ly rest r ict  or manage my access 

to informat ion in order to f rust rate the OIGI ’s 

Inte l l igence Services oversight  mandate. ”  20 

 Do you persist  wi th that  content ion? 

DR DINTWE:   Yes I  st i l l  stand by that  content ion.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   When you talk about  const ruct ive 

refusal  what do you mean.  

DR DINTWE:   And I  can only expla in i t  but  we borrowed that  
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word f rom a const ruct ive dismissal  in terms of  the labour 

re lat ions you know legislat ion to say that  on face value you 

cannot say i t  is a dismissal  but  i t  is  you know done in  such a 

manner that  i t  could confuse other people.  

 So what I  mean is that  in most  cases we wi l l  st i l l  be 

given informat ion but  where there is refusal  you wi l l  not  get  

a let ter which says that  we wi l l  not  give you that  informat ion.   

Let  me make an example.  

 I  wi l l  have a let ter that  – that  wi l l  reach the  

commission at  a later stage where I  was request ing 10 

informat ion wi th regard to the deployment of  operat ives at  

party pol i t ical  events for instance.  And the let ter that  I  got  in  

response was to say that  may you please explain how this  

request  fa l l  –  fa l ls under your mandate.   So I  had to  explain 

back to them to say that  apart  f rom monitor ing and a l l  those 

other issues I  a lso have a funct ion cal led invest igat ion which 

includes maladminist rat ion which includes corrupt ion but  

which also includes abuse of  power.   Because at  that  stage I  

had received complain f rom one of  the pol i t ical  part ies who 

were saying that  we do not  even want th is number of  20 

intel l igence operat ives at tending our events.   So – so 

construct ive because they wi l l  not  say that  – we are not  

giv ing i t  to you but  they wi l l  say explain to us how does i t  f i t  

into your mandate.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   So whi lst  there may not  always be a 
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d i rect  refusal  of  informat ion the conduct  of  the party f rom 

whom informat ion is sought might  make i t  c lear that  you are 

not  going to get  the informat ion whatever you do.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  you told me last  t ime that  you are not  

a lawyer but  construct ive refusal  seems also consistent  wi th 

a judgment of  the Supreme Court  o f  Appeal  that  Mr Pretor ius 

wi l l  probably remember where the Supreme Court  of  Appeal  

says wel l  i f  a judge has given a judgment and the party who 

lost  appl ies for leave to appeal  and that  appl icat ion for  leave 10 

to appeal  is not  adjudicated for a long t ime i t  is const ruct ive 

refusal  of  leave to appeal .  So – so i t  has not  been decided 

the Judge has not  decided that  he is refusing leave but  

because i t  is lef t  hanging for too long i t  is  const ruct ive 

refusal  of  leave to  appeal .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   That  is some interest ing example.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes Chai rperson.   Can I  ment ion Chai rperson 

that  th is is my thi rd year of  complet ing an undergraduate 

degree in law and a LLB 

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh that  is good.  20 

DR DINTWE:   Yes.   So I  just  decided to study that  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh no that  is good – so good.  

DR DINTWE:   So I  am not  a lawyer but  I  do 00:10:56 of  law.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja wel l  I  have every reason to bel ieve you 

are going to pass and pass wel l .  
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DR DINTWE:   Thank you Chai rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   We may be the opposi te on the other  

hand.    

CHAIRPERSON:   One day.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Lawyers could not  con students of  

law.  Paragraph 156 you ment ion that :  

“ In  cr ime intel l igence there appears to be a 

re luctance on the part  of  the divis ional  

commissioner ’s off ice to pursue d iscipl inary 

processes against  senior member impl icated 10 

in inf ract ions.”  

 Is that  consistent  wi th your f indings? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  is consistent  wi th my f indings Chai rperson 

and I  th ink that  wi l l  a lso have submissions so aff idavi t  in our 

possession where junior members says that  I  would have 

stolen this part icular amount but  i t  wi l l  just  be a f ract ion of  

the amount stolen by somebody senior.   And they just  get  

you know they just  dismiss them in a short  sort  of  t ime so 

there is a pat tern there and i t  is our  observat ion and f inding.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  also does i t  mean there seems to be a 20 

cul ture that  ah this is  smal l  why – why are you bother ing 

about i t  somebody else has taken much more.   Is that  part  of 

the – of  what you are saying that  there is that  cul ture wi th  

the junior members or not? 

DR DINTWE:   Some of  them may not  take that  angle.  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 115 of 317 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

DR DINTWE:   In arguing they wi l l  a lmost  admit  – le t  us say 

they wi l l  confess.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   And say that  okay I  am dismissed – I  am here 

– I  have stolen but  there is  somebody somewhere who i t  is 

known that  they would have stolen more than mysel f  but  i t  is 

not  – he is not  saying that  he should not  have been 

dismissed.   They only say that  our dismissal  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So quickly.  10 

DR DINTWE:   So quickly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   I f  compared to senior  managers.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In paragraphs 158 and 159 on page 

824 you deal  wi th  your conclusion that  there has been some 

resistance by the intel l igence services and you talk ing there 

cr ime intel l igence I  understand to cr iminal  invest igat ion by 

law enforcement agencies.   And you say in paragraph 159:  

“The law enforcement agencies in  part icular  20 

IPID and the DPCI that  is the Hawks have 

been st ruggl ing to invest igate and prosecute 

cr iminal  cases of  malfeasance and corrupt ion 

commit ted by cr ime intel l igence off ic ia ls or  

commit ted by members of  the publ ic wi th the 
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assistance of  the off ic ia ls  of  cr ime 

intel l igence. ”  

 And you talk about  invest igat ions being stal led or  

delayed by amongst  other th ings refusal  to declassi fy  

documents.   Is that  consistent  wi th you experience and 

f indings? 

DR DINTWE:   I t  is consistent  wi th our  f indings Chai rperson 

wi thout  ment ioning names I  th ink that  the Chairperson wi l l  be 

aware that  there is a former head of  cr ime intel l igence who 

is now convicted.   And there is a matter which is enrol led 10 

which happened more than ten years ago.   So you ask 

yoursel f  why could you not  just  enrol  th is part icu lar matter at  

that  part icu lar stage.  But  there is something again where we 

get  – we get  approached by some of  there is th is other 

captain who comes to us and he complains – he wri tes we 

have the f i le and he says I  may have commit ted this  

part icular cr ime and whatever however our preference – my 

preference is that  i t  is you who should invest igate us.  So 

they know that  we can only make recommendat ions and he 

even went to an extent  because you ask them what  kind of  20 

recourse or recommendat ion that  you are wishing for  and he 

says that  i f  you have those powers could you p lease tel l  IPID 

that  they did not  have powers to invest igate mysel f  because 

I  am incr iminat ing 00:15:23.   So they get  to choose between 

these two inst i tut ions.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   On page 824 paragraph 158 you deal  

wi th the concerted effort  as you put  i t  by management of  

cr ime intel l igence to ensure that  pending cases do not  o ff  

the ground and avoid detect ion by overs ight  bodies.   And you 

go so far as to say i t  had become clear that  the impl icated 

persons and ent i t ies enjoy the cont inued protect ion of  the 

divis ional  management.   You have just  referred to one 

except ion and General  Lazarus and the proceedings against  

him would be another except ion.  

DR DINTWE:   That  wi l l  be another except ion Chai rperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Matters were pursued against  him. 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And of  course there may be others 

but  you deal  wi th your f indings I  presume of  your 

invest igat ions and summarise those in paragraph 159,  am I  

correct? 

DR DINTWE:   You are correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Right .   And you then go on in 

paragraph 160 on page 824 and fol lowing to  deal  wi th in 

general  terms the refusal  of  intel l igence serv ices to  20 

declassi fy informat ion that  relates to suspicious t ransact ions 

or cr iminal i ty and you have given examples and you have 

stated that  on a few occasions in  your evidence.   But  for  

example in paragraph 161 you deal  wi th the content ion that  

i t  would be palpably wrong for inte l l igence services to hide 
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behind classi f icat ion of  documents in instances of  suspicion 

of  cr iminal i ty.   Procurement issues for example need not  be 

regarded as secret  and i f  there are secret  elements they 

could be redacted,  am I  correct? 

DR DINTWE:   You are – you are correct .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Issues relat ing to safe houses and I  

am told by you that  many of  those issues are contained in 

documents which are refused declassi f icat ion.   How could 

that  be deal t  wi th? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  there is another case that  we 10 

were involved in and I  th ink i t  is one of  the enrol led matters 

now where one of  the senior  managers t raded in  his own 

personal  vehicle there was a short fa l l  so he used the monies 

f rom a service f rom a part icular  service to pay for that  

part icular short fa l l  and this case could not  be concluded.   

The invest igat ion was concluded long t ime ago but  they 

could not  prosecute merely because that  administ rat ive part  

was classi f ied also and i t  has always been hidden under 

informat ion that  on face value one may think that  i t  is  

intel l igence and i t  is not  intel l igence at  al l  – i t  is a pure 20 

cr iminal i ty and thef t  of  state funds.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And in relat ion to safe houses I  th ink 

you suggested in  consul tat ion that  one could just  redact  the 

address of  that .  

DR DINTWE:   You could do that .   In  the documents that  I  wi l l  
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be submit ted or that  are in my bundle Chairperson which is  

not  in f ront  of  us now is that  I  make an example of  them 

purchasing grocer ies f rom one of  the supermarkets that  we 

al l  go to  and they classi fy that  part icular submission.   

Instead of  just  removing the house number and the address 

where these things wi l l  be taken to because i t  is  a safe 

house yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   A safe house.   Then in  paragraph 163 

you deal  wi th the mis-document  and that  document as I  

understand i t  adopted by cabinet  on 4 December 1996 is 10 

avai lab le on the internet .  

DR DINTWE:   I t  is avai lable and i t  – they only wri te or  wrote 

rest r icted.   Now rest r icted documents are not  necessari ly  

c lassi f ied documents.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In any event  you say in paragraph 

163  

“The mis-document deals wi th  classi f icat ion 

and declassi f icat ion of  informat ion.   Of  

part icular relevance to the issue at  hand as 

paragraph 3 of  the mis-document which sets 20 

out  guidel ines on the procedure for  

c lassi f icat ion and the declassi f icat ion of  

c lassi f ied documents.”  

 And insofar as i t  is necessary we can deal  wi th that 

in submissions to you Chai r.  
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“The mis-document provides an explanat ion 

on classi f icat ion documents and in  part icular 

paragraph 3.4 gives an in junct ion that  

securi ty measures are not  intended and 

should not  be appl ied to cover up 

maladminist rat ion,  corrupt ion,  cr iminal  act ion 

etcetera or to protect  individuals/off ic ia ls  

involved in such cases.”  

 The point  about  that  is that  the mis-document  

precludes c lassi f icat ion in categor ies far wider than just  10 

corrupt ion and cr iminal  act ion.   I t  includes mis-

maladminist rat ion and I  th ink regulat ion 3 of  the Securi ty 

Services document goes so far as to say that  c lass i f icat ion 

cannot be used to preclude or  prevent  embarrassment to  

off ic ia ls.   Words to that  effect  I  may not  have the precise 

words but  the point  I  – as I  have – understand f rom mis is  

that  c lassi f icat ion is precluded or prevented or prohibi ted in  

broader range of  cases than simple corrupt ion and cr iminal .  

DR DINTWE:   I  conf i rm that  that  is our proposi t ion 

Chairperson.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you say in paragraph 165  

“The mis-document enjoins the head of  an 

inst i tut ion to test  on a regular basis 

classi f icat ion of  documents generated in the 

inst i tut ion and further provides that  over  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 121 of 317 
 

c lassi f icat ion of  documents must  be guarded 

against . ”  

 I t  seems that  the point  that  is made there is the duty 

to manage classi f icat ion as an on-going duty.   I t  is not  as i f  a 

document once c lassi f ied i t  remains classi f ied forever.   Is  

that  correct? 

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chairperson and maybe one 

should hasten to  add that  what is a secret  today may no 

longer – may not  be a secret  two weeks or two months to 

come you know.   So that  is why i t  enjoins the head of  10 

serv ices to keep on test ing or retest ing and ident i fy ing those 

that  – those issues that  should remain classi f ied and those 

that  need to be declassi f ied.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And in  paragraph 167 you refer  to  the 

judgment of  the const i tut ional  court  in the Independent 

newspaper versus Minister for intel l igence case where the 

Deputy Chief  Just ice Moseneke la id down several  factors to 

be considered when the disclosure of  c lassi f ied documents is  

being deal t  wi th and he l ists there a number of  factors that  

must  be considered when a document which is former ly 20 

classi f ied is sought to be declassi f ied.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is st i l l  our submission Chai rperson. 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   And you say in any event  in  

paragraph 170 i t  has been said that  members of  IP ID as is  

the case wi th members of  the OIGI have securi ty c learance 
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to the level  of  top secret .    

 So there would be no reason for refusing classi f ied 

documents to  you.   The law prohibi ts that  anyway but  to  

IPID.  They have securi ty c learance anyway as I  understand.  

DR DINTWE:   They do have that  Chairperson.   There are 

of ten some internal  arrangements such as i f  one of  the 

invest igators is s t i l l  wai t ing for the re-vet t ing and so forth  

that  they remove them f rom cases of  that  – of  that  nature.   

But  they are always al ive to the requi rement that  only  people 

wi th top secret  should access these documents in cr ime 10 

intel l igence environment.   I  th ink that  is now happening also 

wi th the invest igat ive di rectorate.   I t  is also happening wi th  

the Hawks as wel l  to say that  i f  you are wai t ing please step 

aside for a whi le unt i l  you are re-vet ted.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   R ight .   And then in paragraph 171 

you put  before the Chair  several  examples of  the mis-use or 

overuse of  c lassi f icat ion.  For example a case involv ing the 

procurement of  b l inds and curtains by cr ime inte l l igence 

off ic ia ls.   Any reason why those documents should be 

classi f ied? 20 

DR DINTWE:   They should not  have been classi f ied at  al l .   

The matter is yet  to be prosecuted because we have got  the 

Centur ion case number and the prosecutors could not  

proceed with that  – wi th that  issue.   Ten or so yes that  is 

actual ly 2013 mat ter.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Ja and that  is because of  over-

classi f icat ion of  documents.  

DR DINTWE:   That  is correct  Chairperson i t  is over-

classi f icat ion because i t  is purchasing of  bl inds;  of  curtains.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   In any event  you have given 

examples and you have spoken already of  examples in 

re lat ion to procurement of  IT Solut ions and the l ike.   They 

are there for the record.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So knowledge of  curtains that  were bought 

is a threat  to Nat ional  Securi ty.  10 

DR DINTWE:   I t  cannot – my argument is that  i t  is the 

del ivery thereof  which becomes a Nat ional  Securi ty issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To a part icular house.  

DR DINTWE:   P lace – house yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  not  the actual  purchase of  curta ins.  

DR DINTWE:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

DR DINTWE:   Chai rperson I  do not  know i f  I  am deal ing wi th  

i t  but  I  save to say a cr i t ical  issue.   We have been deal ing 

wi th a case where the management of  cr ime inte l l igence 20 

decided to buy PPE for Covid – now I  am ta lking masks,  

sani t izers and al l  of  those sort  of  th ings and they decided to 

use what we cal l  Secret  Service account.   Now they have got  

two accounts the other one they cal l  i t  open account the 

other one they cal l  secret  serv ice account and you ask 
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yoursel f  because secret  service account is used for cover  

operat ions.  So where do you buy those because f rom where 

we are si t t ing as and when you go and buy them i t  is – i t  

could be issued to anybody.  What you have to worry about  is 

that  af ter the purchase who do you issue to and that  is the 

level  at  which you should start  protect ing the ident i ty of  the 

rec ipients.  But  you should not  be using the secret  account to 

purchase – to purchase those things.   I t  is happening 

00:28:07.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Understood.   At  paragraph 172 you 10 

deal  and that  is on page 829 you deal  wi th a – qui te an 

i ronic  si tuat ion and that  is where the law enforcement 

agencies are saying in re lat ion to cr iminal i ty,  misconduct  and 

the l ike only you as the off icer of  IGI  have jur isdict ion.   That  

seems rather st range in the context  of  the evidence you have 

given.   Could you explain the problems at tached to that  

approach? 

DR DINTWE:   Let  me explain that  and – yes and i t  is a  

f inding of  the Mokgoro Commission where we have let ters 

that  were wri t ten by seasoned and very senior prosecutors to  20 

our  off ice to  say that  th is and that  other issue i t  is –  i t  fa l ls 

under your exclus ive jur isdict ion.   The pol ice can never ever  

you know invest igate a part icular matter and I  th ink that  the 

Just ice Mokgoro would have made a f inding on i t  and i t  led 

to the removal  of  two of  the senior  – very senior prosecutors.   
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So that  is  an example of  that  absurdi ty  where people say 

that  i t  is only you because I  th ink that  they – they have 

reconci led themselves wi th the fact  that  th is off ice is so 

weakened that  nothing wi l l  happen.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Yes and you have rest r icted powers 

anyway.   You have no powers to prosecute.  

DR DINTWE:   I  cannot prosecute.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:   Or be discipl ined.   You have 

recommendat ion powers only.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Obv ious l y  invest iga t ive  powers  bu t  

u l t imate ly  powers  o f  recommendat ion .   So do I  unders tand  

i t  cor rec t l y,  as  you put  i t  in  paragraph 173,  tha t :  

“ In  encounte r ing  the  invest iga t ion  e f fo r ts  by  

IP ID and the  Hawks an argument  i s  rou t ine ly  

p ro f i t  tha t  these law enforcement  agenc ies  do  

not  have a  lega l  mandate  to  invest iga te  any 

conduct  o f  c r im ina l i t y,  f raud or  ma l feasance o f  

persons w i th in  Cr ime In te l l igence.  

Th is  a rgument  i s  p ro f i t  on  the  bas is  tha t  the  20 

OITI  has exc lus ive  ju r isd ic t ion  ove r  the  

In te l l igence Serv ice .   In  bo ls te r ing  th is  

a rgument  tha t  has cons is ten t ly  been 

main ta ined tha t  the  OITI  i s  the  body tha t  i s  

lega l l y  mandated  to  have access to  c lass i f ied  
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in fo rmat ion  o f  c r ime in te l l igence. . . ”  

 So do I  unders tand i t  cor rec t l y  tha t  when i t  

comes to  prosecu t ion  o f  c r im ina l  ac ts ,  f raud and co r rup t ion  

w i th in  the  S ta te  Secur i t y  Agency,  the  response o f  some law 

enforcement  o f f i c ia ls  i s :   We have no ju r isd ic t ion .   Go to  

the  IGI .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   And Cha i rperson,  th is  has  

led  a t  a  par t i cu la r  po in t  where  I  convened what  we ca l led  –  

we used the  word  t rapper (?)  t ide(?) ,  supper (?)  t ide  

workshop.   [Speaker  no t  c lear ]   We sa t  a round the  tab le  10 

because . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  kept  on  us ing  a  te rm – they were 

re fer r i ng  to  us  as  a  c lear ing  house .   So whenever  I  p icked 

an invest iga tor  approaches them and say tha t  I  am 

invest iga t ing  th is  par t i cu la r  mat te r,  they  w i l l  say  tha t  bu t  

the  OIGI  i s  our  c lear ing  house.    

 In  o ther  words,  they were  g i v ing  me powers  to  

dec ide  wh ich  in fo rmat ion  to  be  g iven.   They sa id :   No,  no ,  

no .   We can p rov ide  the  in fo rmat ion  bu t  on ly  sub jec t  to  you  

go ing  to  an  OIGI  ins tead o f  you ge t t ing  i t  d i rec t l y  f rom us.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And what  was your  response to 20 

tha t?  

DR DINTWE :    I  sa id  tha t  we cannot  be  regarded(?)  w i th  

tha t  and there  were  a  lo t  o f  de l ibera t ions.   We then made  

reso lu t ion  about  tha t  i ssue.   They w i thdrew(?)  in  tha t  

meet ing ,  the  usage o f  the  concept  and we s igned those  
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m inu tes .   They  are  pa r t  and parce l  o f  the  documents  tha t  I  

wou ld  have submi t ted  to  the  Commiss ion .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    R igh t .   You were  to ld  by  IP ID,  and  

you re la te  th is  in  paragraph 174,  tha t  th is  v iew tha t  on ly  

the  IP I  can dea l  w i th  the  issue o f  c r im ina l i t y,  f raud or  

mal feasance w i th in  Cr ime In te l l igence,  tha t  th is  v iew was  

re l ied  upon in  the  invest iga t ion  o f  the  c r im ina l  charges 

aga ins t  the  fo rmer  D iv is iona l  Commiss ioner,  Genera l  Mdu l i  

dur ing  or  about  2011.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?   Can you conf i rm  

tha t?  10 

DR DINTWE :    I  con f i rm tha t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And you say i t  has  been ra ised 

f requent ly  dur ing  your  tenure .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And in  response to  what  you have 

jus t  to ld  the  Cha i r  about  the  use o f  you r  o f f i ces  as  a  

c lea r ing  house  fo r  dec lass i f i ca t ion  wh ich  you have  

res i s ted .   C lea r ly,  the  du t ies  w i l l  l i e  e lsewhere .   Documents  

must  be  dec lass i f ied  a t  the  Lord  Chester  and i f  they  no  

longer  deserve  c lass i f i ca t ion .    20 

 In  paragraph 177,  you say tha t :  

“ In  2018 IP ID approached the  Min i s te r  o f  

Po l i ce  Min is te r  Ce le  fo r  h is  in te rvent ion  who 

re fer red  the  mat te r  to  the  OIGI  fo r  our  

comments  regard ing  the  poss ib le  impact  o f  the  
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dec lass i f i ca t ion  o f  documents  in  quest ion  to  

na t iona l  secur i t y. . . ”  

 In  my le t te r  da ted  5  Apr i l  2018,  i s  tha t  le t te r  you 

re fer  to?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  co r rec t .   That  i s  the  le t te r  tha t  I  

re fe r red  to ,  yes.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Addressed  to  the  m in is te r.   I t  w i l l  

be  in  your  documents .    

“ I  ind ica ted  tha t  in  ins tances o f  susp ic ion  o f  

c r im ina l i t y  invo lv ing  c lass i f ied  documents ,  10 

the  D iv is iona l  Commiss ioner  and/or  the  

Nat iona l  Commiss ioner  were  du ty  bound to 

recons ider  ea r l ie r  c lass i f i ca t ion  o f  

documents .  

Moreover,  Cr ime  In te l l igence shou ld ,  as  a  

genera l  ru le ,  be  inc l ined in  favourab le  

c lass i f i ca t ion  o f  documents  in  o rder  to  re ly  

fo r  p roper  and unh indered  cr im ina l  

invest iga t ion  and poss ib le  c r im ina l  

p rosecut ion . . . ”  20 

 So as  I  unders tand your  pos i t ion  tha t  the  du ty  to  

mon i to r  c lass i f i ca t ion  and to  dec lass i f y  documents  were  

appropr ia te ,  cannot  be  ro is te red  upon your  o f f i ce .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  my submiss ion .   That  i s  cor rec t ,  

Cha i rperson.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    In  paragraph 182,  i t  seems tha t  the  

JSCI  became qu i te  ac t i ve  in  summoning you to  appear  

be fore  i t .   What  was the  issue  you were  requ i red  to  

exp la in?  

DR DINTWE :    Which  paragraph is  tha t?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    182.   Concern ing  the  leakage o f  

in fo rmat ion .   Jus t  read the  parag raph and te l l  the  Cha i r,  

p lease,  what  po in t  you are  mak ing  there .  

DR DINTWE :    A l r igh t .   Now there  was a  s tage tha t  Genera l  

Jacobs wro te  to  Par l iament  and  he t i t led(?)  about  a  10 

compla in t  aga ins t  the  OIGI .   There  were  severa l  

compla in t s .   The  f i rs t  one,  he  was compla in ing  tha t  I  was  

th rea ten ing  h im.   There  was a  le t te r  tha t  I  –  tha t  he  thought  

i t  was a  th rea t .   And second ly,  tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  I  our  

possess ion  wou ld  f ind  i t se l f ,  you know,  somewhere  e lse .    

 And in  th is  ins tance,  i f  I  have to  be  speci f i c ,  i s  

tha t  they were  par t  o f  my cer t i f i ca te  tha t  were  sent  to  the  

Nat iona l  Ant i -Cor rup t ion  Hot l ine  o f  the  Pub l ic  Serv ice  

Commiss ion  and  I  was ca l led  to  come and account  and  

exp la in  whether  i t  was not  my  o f f i ce  tha t  wou ld  have 20 

leaked tha t  in fo rmat ion .   I  have no bus iness leak ing  

in fo rmat ion  to  tha t  because I  have c lear  repor t ing  l ines .   

So I  do  no t  need to  do  tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Okay.   But  anyway,  there  the  JSCI  

was ac t ive  in  ca l l ing  you to  accoun t .  
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DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t .   And my exp lanat ion  was 

accepted.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .  

DR DINTWE :    And the  a l legat ions were  see ing  as  be ing  

unsubstant ia ted .    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   Then in  paragraph 183,  on  

page 833 you dea l  w i th  qu i te  an  impor tan t  top ic ,  rea l l y.   

And tha t  i s  the  ro le  o f  the  Aud i to r  Genera l  in  re la t ion  to  the  

aud i t  repor ts  o f  In te l l igence Serv ices .   And you  say in  

parag raph 184:  10 

“ In  the  aud i t  repor ts  o f  the  In te l l igence  

Serv i ces ,  the  A t to rney Genera l  o f  South  A f r i ca  

has a lways had  to  p rov ide  qua l i f ied  aud i ts  

owing to  i t s  inab i l i t y  to  access ce r ta in  a reas o f  

the  In te l l igence Serv i ces  tha t  were  deemed to  

be  sens i t i ve  fo r  access by  the  AGSA. . . ”  

 And you end the  parag raph by  say ing :  

“A f te r  p ro t rac ted  meet ings  w i th  a l l  

s takeho lders  inc lud ing  the  JSCI ,  i t  was agreed 

tha t  the  Off i cer  o f  the  Inspector  Genera l  o f  20 

In te l l igence shou ld  ass is t  the  Aud i to r  Genera l  

o f  South  A f r i ca  in  the  aud i t ing  process o f  the  

In te l l igence Serv ices  and in  th is  manner  

p rov ide  some k ind  o f  combined aud i t  

assu rance. . . ”  
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 I f  you  cou ld  te l l  the  Cha i r,  p lease,  what  i s  the  

prob lem here  about  aud i t ing  the  In te l l igence Serv ices and  

whethe r  the  Off i cer  o f  the  Inspecto r  Genera l  o f  In te l l igence 

can usefu l l y  p lay  a  ro le ,  what  has  been t r ied ,  what  works ,  

what  does not  work .    

 I f  you  cou ld  jus t  te l l  the  Cha i r  tha t ,  p lease.   You 

had come to  some conc lus ions in  paragraph 187 as  to  

rea l l y  a  method tha t  was t r ied  to  dea l  w i th  the  prob lem o f  

secur i t y  o f  in fo rmat ion  on  the  one hand and the  need to  

aud i t  on  the  o the r.  10 

DR DINTWE :    F i rs t l y  Cha i rpe rson,  th is  amount  to  a 

leg is la t i ve  d i f f i cu l t y  because the  Aud i to r  Genera l  i s  

mandated in  te rms o f  the  found ing  leg is la t ion .   We are  

mandated w i th  tha t .   In  our  leg is la t ion  the  Overs igh t  Act ,  

we are  no t  g iven  aud i t ing  mandate  o f  funct ion  and  i f  you  

l i ke ,  whether  you  d i f fe ren t ia te  i t  be tween f inanc ia l  aud i t ing  

per fo rmance,  aud i t  and a l l  those o ther  th ings.   We do not  

have any bus iness to  do  tha t  k ind  o f  work .    

 But  maybe le t  us  ask  ou rse lves.   I f  I  had to  do  

tha t  par t i cu la r  work ,  to  wh ich  repor t  was go ing  to  20 

be long(?)?   Because the  Aud i to r  Genera l  w i l l  wr i te  the i r  

own repor t  and we ac tua l l y  wr i te  what  we ca l l  ce r t i f i ca te .   

We repor t  to  d i f fe ren t  au tho r i t ies  in  Par l iament  o r  

commi t tees,  i f  you  l i ke ,  bu t  the  most  impor tan t  th ing  is  tha t  

we do not  even have aud i t ing  capac i ty.    
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 I  am not  an  aud i to r  myse l f .   I  do  no t  have an  

aud i to r  in  my o f f i ce  and I  do  no t  see even Treasury  

a l low ing us  to  rec ru i t  aud i to rs  because by  leg i s la t ion  we do  

not  have tha t  pa r t i cu la r,  you know,  mandate .  

 But  the  prob lem about  i t ,  about  th is  p rac t ise  

ca l led  Combined Aud i t  Assurance is  tha t  there  was  a  sor t  

o f  an  agreement  be fore  my ar r i va l  where  the  Aud i to r  

Genera l ’s  Off i ce  w i l l  then g ive  the  so-ca l led  work ing  

documents  to  our  s ta f f  members  bu t  i t  i s  obv ious tha t  they 

w i l l  rea l l y,  rea l l y  conduct  what  i s  ca l led  a  box t i ck ing  10 

exerc ise  because they d id  no t  even unders tand,  they 

cannot  even get  deeper  in to  th is  par t i cu la r  i ssue.  

 So i t  was rea l l y  g iv ing  or  c rea t ing  lo ts  and lo ts  

o f  p rob lems.   One o f  those be ing  tha t  the  In te l l igence 

Serv i ces  had even reached an agreement ,  I  do  no t  know 

how,  w i th  Aud i to r  Genera l  bu t  be fore  you even s tar t  

aud i t ing  us  you can qua l i f y  us  a l ready or  d isc la imer  or,  you 

know,  in  te rms o f  what  they ca l led  s lush  funds in  the  SSA 

or  what  they ca l l  secre t  serv ice  account  and they are 

tak ing  about  10% of  the  budget  a l loca ted  to  those agents .    20 

 So i t  i s  the  bu lk  o f  the  money and they c rea ted  

de l ibe ra te l y  so  a  b l ind  spot  fo r  the  Aud i to r  Genera l .   So i t  

was on ly  ourse l ves who cou ld  go  there  and I  have to  admi t  

today tha t  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  we rea l l y  had capac i ty  to  

aud i t  tha t  par t i cu la r  po r t ion  o f  the  budget .  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    So  tha t  ve ry  ca tegory  o f  funds tha t  

you have invest iga ted  and shown to  be  the  source  o f  much  

cor rup t ion  and b la tan t  loo t ing  and  the f t ,  as  you pu t  i t ,  i s  

concea led  f rom the  Aud i to r  Genera l .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And o f  cou rse ,  i t  s tands to  reason,  

as  I  th ink  you sa id  e lsewhere ,  tha t  mon ies  wou ld  be  

a l loca ted  to  those sectors  o f  the  SSA opera t ions p rec i se l y  

to  concea l ,  to  keep them away f rom aud i t ing  p rocesses.  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    You say then in  paragraph 187,  

no tw i ths tand ing  tha t  and notw i ths tand ing  the  lack  o f  sk i l l s  

and  exper ience and  exper t i se  i n  the  aud i t  p rocess,  your  

o f f i ce  has observed tha t  the re  was la rge  sca le  f lou t ing  o f  

ru les  and lega l  p rescr ip ts  by  the  In te l l igence  Serv i ces.   I t  

was observed tha t  chaos and maladmin is t ra t ion  th r ived and  

you say tha t  in  paragraph 187.  

DR DINTWE :    I  con f i rm tha t ,  Cha i rperson.   So when I  see 

tha t  we d id  no t  have an aud i t ing  funct ion ,  I  d id  no t  mean  

tha t  we d id  no t  book in to  the i r  books.   We looked in to  the i r  20 

books but  we ca l l  i t  someth ing  e lse .   I t  i s  overs igh t  bu t  we  

do look a t  the i r  books.   So you w i l l  see  tha t  th is  a rea  a lbe i t  

you know a  b l ind  spot  to  the  answer(? )  bu t  there  i s  a  lo t  

happen ing  as  fa r  as  those por t i ons  o f  the  budget  were  

concerned.  
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ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And you say in  paragraph 187 tha t  

the  IGI  cer t i f i ca tes ,  those are  your  repor t s  to  var ious  

ins tances,  have  inc luded in  them a  l i s t  o f  susp ic ious  

f inanc ia l  t ransact ions and these have been repor ted  to  the 

m in is te rs ,  the  JSCI  and the  re levant  heads  o f  the  

In te l l igence Serv i ces .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    And you g ive  one ins tance here  

where  cer ta in  o f  these f inanc ia l  i r regu lar i t ies  in  your  v iew 

were  a lso  repor ted  to  the  cur ren t  Pres ident  wh i le  he  was 10 

s t i l l  the  Deputy  Pres ident .  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    We wi l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  mat te r  in  due  

course  but  hav ing  sa id  tha t .   There  must  obv ious l y  be  

some ba lance be tween secrecy on  the  one hand and the  

need fo r  p roper  f inanc ia l  aud i t ing  on  the  o the r.   Qu i te  how 

tha t  p rob lem i s  to  be  so l ved is  a  mat te r  tha t  the  Cha i r  may  

cons ide r.   But  do  you have any comment  in  the  so lu t ion  to  

tha t  i ssue?  

DR DINTWE :    I  do  have a  comment  and maybe le t  me use 20 

an ana logy o f  a  ta le  wh ich  works  a  dock(?) .   The o ther  way 

around and te l l  you  about  th is  meet ing  tha t  was convened  

by  the  JSCI  Cha i rperson there .   And the  Aud i to r  Genera l  

tha t  i s  the  la te  Thembek i le  K im i  Makwetu  was there .   I  was 

there ,  represent ing  th is  o f f i ce  and then there  were  peop le  
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f rom the  CFO’s ,  most  impor tan t ly,  tha t  were  s i t t ing  there .    

 And the  SSA had  gone to  do  a  benchmark  w i th  

the  o ther  count r i es .   The i r  in te res t  was to  es tab l i sh  how do 

these o ther  count r ies  dea l  w i th  the  aud i t ing  o f  the  

In te l l igence Serv ices  and they made recommendat ions.   

That  i s  the  reason why the  meet ing  was ca l led ,  to  say tha t  

we have to  a lso  make inputs .    

 Cha i rperson,  I  never  go  to  Cape Town and I  d id  

no t  u t te r  a  word .   Th is  i s  the  on ly  meet ing  tha t  I  went  and I  

never  u t te red  a  word  in  tha t  meet ing .   I  on ly  in t roduced 10 

myse l f  and I  never  u t te red  anyth ing  because I  was very  

much su rpr i sed tha t  an  in te l l igence serv ice  w i l l  go  do  a  

benchmark ,  approach a  Commi t tee  o f  Par l iament  and the  

overs igh t  bod ies  and te l l  them tha t  th is  i s  how we wou ld  

l i ke  to  be  aud i ted  and they w i l l  be  us ing  a  par t i cu la r  

ju r i sd i c t ion .    

 I t  i s  a  count ry  tha t  I  w i l l  no t  ment ion  w i th  a  

name,  you know,  by  a  name but  l i te ra ture  and your  OECD 

repor ts  and o ther  t ransparency,  in te rna t iona l  and a l l  those  

o ther  th ings,  they  wou ld  have ra ted  tha t  count ry  as  number  20 

one most  cor rup t  count ry  in  A f r i ca .   Now there  they –  and 

sa id  tha t :   Oh,  you have got  a  n ice  mode l .   F rom th is  

par t i cu la r  count ry.   You know in  th is  count ry,  Aud i to r  

Genera l  do  no t  ge t  invo l ved in  the  aud i t ing  o f  th is  

par t i cu la r,  you know,  In te l l igence Serv i ces .  
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 And the  reasons why I  d id  no t  u t te r  a  word ,  i t  i s  

because I  wou ld  have caucused between myse l f  and 

Makwetu  to  say tha t  I  fee l  so  much defeated and I  do  no t  

want  to  be  seen as  somebody who is  res i s t ing  th i s  k ind  o f  

a r rangement .   And i t  was h imse l f  who then recommended 

tha t :    

 You w i l l  know I  –  I  hope tha t  you know tha t  we 

cannot  move an inch  before  there  i s  a  leg is la t i ve  

amendment .   So he exp la ined e loquent ly  to  them.   So there  

was no reason fo r  me to  do  tha t .   That  i s  why I  am say ing  i t  10 

is  an  ana logy o f  a  ta le  wh ich  work  the  dock,  no t  the  o ther  

way around.    

 And I  th ink  th i s  led  to  a  l o t  o f  you know 

mal feasance aga ins t  increased(? )  i t  because the  serv i ces  

had an audac i ty  to  te l l  us  as  overs igh t  body  and a  

par l iamentary  commi t tee  how they shou ld  be  aud i ted ,  how 

they shou ld  be  he ld  accountab le .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .   I s  th is  document ,  th is  

benchmark ing  repor t ,  ava i lab le?  

DR DINTWE :    I  beg your  pardon?  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    The benchmark ing  repor t  tha t  you  

spoke o f .  

DR DINTWE :    Wel l ,  i t  was not  my document .   I t  was not  

g iven to  me.   I  never  even bothered to  request  tha t  

document .   So I  do  no t  have i t .   I t  i s  no t  there  in  the  
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bund le  tha t  I  have prov ided.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I  cou ld  be  wrong.   You ment ioned 

tha t  there  m ight  be  in te rnat iona l  l i te ra tu re  ava i lab le  on  how 

in te rnat iona l l y  and acceptab le  in te l l igence serv i ces  are  

aud i ted .  

DR DINTWE :    No ,  no  I  was re fer r i ng  to  someth ing  e lse .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    A l r igh t .  

DR DINTWE :    I  was say ing  tha t  the  count ry  tha t  was be ing  

fed  o f  the  mode l  tha t  was pre fe r red ,  tha t  count ry  has been 

ranked as  you know number  one  by  l i te ra ture  and some 10 

research  conducted by,  fo r  example ,  t ransparency 

in te rnat iona l .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    I t  was ano ther  comment  you made  

tha t  we can pursue tha t  in  due course .  

DR DINTWE :    Yes,  yes .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    In  paragraph 188,  you  draw a  

conc lus ion  ar i s ing  ou t  o f  the  la t te r  pa r t  o f  your  a f f idav i t .   

You say:  

“The cover t  na ture  o f  the  in te l l igence 

env i ronment  makes ove rs igh t  o f  the 20 

In te l l igence Serv i ces  cruc ia l .    

In  o rder  fo r  there  to  be  e f fec t i ve  overs igh t  ove r  

the  In te l l igence Serv i ces ,  i t  i s  necessary  tha t  

OIGI  be  en t i re ly  d is t inc t  f rom the  SSA and be  

funded separa te l y  f rom i t ,  had fu l l  access to  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 138 of 317 
 

a l l  in fo rmat ion  and documenta t i on  and be 

granted powers  o f  en forcements .  

I t  i s  a lso  essent ia l  tha t  such serv ices  be  fu l l y  

aud i ted  by  the  Aud i to r  Genera l  and tha t  the re  

be  proper  consequent  management . . . ”  

 P resuming you mean consequence  management .  

“Th is  inc ludes no t  on ly  tha t  d isc ip l inary  s teps 

be  taken by  those imp l ica ted  but  tha t  law 

enforcement  agenc ies  are  suppor ted  by  

dec lass i f y ing  documents  requ i red  fo r  10 

prosecut ion . . . ”  

 I s  tha t  your  conc lus ion  in  respect  o f  most ,  i f  no t  

a l l ,  o f  your  ev idence?  

DR DINTWE :    That  i s  my conc lus ion ,  Cha i rperson.   And my  

w ish  is  tha t  i t  i s  unders tood aga in  in  the  contex t  tha t  I  

wou ld  have ra i sed ear l ie r  to  say tha t  we have hope.   We 

d id  no t  on l y  come here  to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion .   We a l so  

have hope tha t  maybe th i s  Commiss ion  wou ld  be  d i f fe ren t  

f rom a l l  o ther  commiss ions.    

 I t  i s  the  f i rs t  commiss ion  tha t  has a  ru le  wh ich  20 

says tha t  the  in fo rmat ion  ga thered he re  may be used fo r  

p rosecut ion .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  a  nove l ty  as  fa r  as  th is  

Commiss ion  is  concerned.   So in  my conc lus ion ,  I  am 

say ing  tha t  th is  ro t  shou ld  no t  be  a l lowed to  happen aga in  

in  fu tu re  and we hope tha t ,  as  I  ment ioned the re ,  tha t  there  
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w i l l  be  p roper  consequent  management  now mov ing  

fo rward .    

 I  persona l l y  w i l l  no t  be  a  benef ic ia ry  o f  th is .   I  

w i l l  be  ou t  o f  th is  o f f i ce  on  the  15 t h  o f  March 2022 but  I  w i l l  

be  the  happ ies t  man i f  my successor  w i l l  reap the  rewards  

i f  there  a re  any  in  te rms o f  s t rengthen ing  th is  overs igh t  

mechan ism which  is  very  much cruc ia l  in  the  In te l l igence  

space.    

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    Cha i r,  i t  is  necessary  to  dea l  jus t  

very  br i e f l y,  hope fu l l y,  w i th  a  few mat te rs  tha t  have  ar isen 10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    . . . s ince  Dr  D in twe  las t  gave  

ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m? 

ADV PRETORIUS SC :    The f i rs t  I  have dea l t  w i th  and tha t  

i s  the  company and the  d i rec tor  o f  the  company,  I van i ,  that  

was invo l ved in  p rocu rement .   They have p resented a  

vers ion .   That  can on ly  be  g iven  to  you or  g iven  to  the  

Cha i r  fo r  pub l i ca t ion ,  a t  leas t ,  once cer ta in  p rocedures 20 

have been gone  th rough and pe rhaps we can do  tha t  in  

wr i t ing  and due course .  

 The second is  tha t  there  have  been ce r ta in  

med ia  s ta tements  by  Mr  Bongo.   I  am not  go ing  to  dea l  w i th  

the  ev idence g iven th rough the  med ia .   I t  mat te rs  what  be  
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ra ised before  the  Commiss ion ,  they  must  be  ra i sed d i rec t l y.    

 Then Mr  Ar thur  Fraser  has g iven  a  response to  

your  ev idence.   That  document  i s  no t  be fore  the  Cha i r  ye t  

bu t  aga in ,  i t  may be necessary  to  ob ta in  wr i t ten  responses.   

They are  no t  be ing  ignored.  

 Then I  have an a f f idav i t  f rom “Danny”  and he 

was invo lved in  the  ve t t ing  secur i t y  c lea rance o f  

Mr  Nxasana and he g ives  a  ve rs ion  tha t  d i f fe rs  f rom your  

vers ion  in  some respects  and I  want  to  pu t  tha t  vers ion  to  

you in  summary fo rm.   I t  i s  a  long a f f idav i t  and i t  w i l l  be  10 

put  be fore  the  Cha i r.    

 He says tha t  a round October  2013,  he  was 

ins t ruc ted  by  the  then d i rec tor  Genera l  to  commence a  

ve t t ing  process o f  Mr  Nxasana who had been appo in ted  as  

the  Nat iona l  D i rec tor  o f  Pub l ic  Prosecut ions.   And he says  

there  was a  ve t t ing  f ie ld  invest iga tor  appo in ted ,  a  un i t  

head in i t ia ted  a  po lygraph examinat ion ,  and the  po lygraph 

examiner  found tha t  the  sub jec t  tha t  Mr  Nxasana was be ing  

t ru th fu l .   

 She was o f  the  op in ion  tha t  the  sub jec t  qua l i f ied  20 

fo r  top  secre t  c learance.   And in  th is  phase,  the  ve t t ing  

eva lua to r  made  a  recommendat ion  tha t  a  secur i t y  

c lea rance be issued.   So tha t  p rocess,  tha t  in i t ia l  p rocess  

in  October  2013 and the  months  tha t  fo l lowed,  

recommended tha t  each s tep  tha t  the  c lea rance be 
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g ran ted.  

 He then says the  f i le  was handed over  the  

Vet t ing  Eva lua t ion  D iv is iona l  Head and upon cons idera t ion  

o f  a l l  the  re levant  in fo rmat ion  conta ined in  the  f i le ,  the  

recommendat ion  tha t  a  secur i t y  c learance be issued was 

conf i rmed.   A l r igh t .  

 The f i le  than gets  to  “Danny” .   “Danny”  says:  

“On cons idera t ion  o f  the  in fo rmat ion  p rov ided,  

there  were  no  compel l ing  reasons  wh ich  cou ld  

in f luence h im not  to  make the  recommendat ion  10 

tha t  the  secur i t y  c lea rance be issued. . . ”  

 And he,  in  fac t ,  made a  recommendat ion  tha t  

secur i t y  c learance o f  top  secre t  ca tegory  be  g ranted.   So 

each s tep  in  the  ve t t ing  process resu l ted  in  a 

recommendat ion  and the re  are  severa l  s teps tha t  secur i t y  

c lea rance be g ranted.   But  wha t  happened then  is  tha t  

“Danny”  took the  f i le  to  Mr  Ntombe la ,  the  then D i rec tor  fo r  

the  domest ic  b ranch and “Danny”  adv ised  o f  the  

recommendat ions  tha t  Mr  Nxasana be issued w i th  a  top  

secur i t y  c learance fo r  f i ve  years .  20 

 What  Mr  Ntombela  then d id  was he cha l lenged 

the  recommendat ion  and f ind ings  and ind ica ted  tha t  he ,  

tha t  i s  Mr  Ntombela ,  had in fo rmat ion ,  and th is  he  to ld  to  

“Danny” ,  tha t  Mr  Nxasana was invo lved in  a  murder  case 

wh ich  was s t i l l  pend ing .   R igh t?   “Danny”  then re tor ted .   He 
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sa id :  

“Hav ing  regard  to  the  in fo rmat ion  co l lec ted  

and the  necessary  invest iga t ions  done,  there  

was no ev idence o f  in fo rmat ion  wh ich  

imp l ica ted  Mr  Nxasana in  the  a l legat ions 

made. . . ”  

 And the  person who was  a l leged by  

Mr  Ntombela ,  and th is  was to ld  t o  “Danny” ,  to  have made 

these a l legat ions  was Mr  Thu lan i  D lomo.   So i t  appears  

f rom what  “Danny”  says,  a t  leas t ,  tha t  Mr  Thu lan i  D lomo 10 

repor ted  someth ing  to  Mr  Ntombe la  and Mr  Ntombela ,  on  

the  s t rength  o f  tha t ,  sa id  no  secur i t y  c learance desp i te  the  

process tha t  had preceded i t .  

 I t  was a t  tha t  s tage tha t  Mr  Ntombela  sa id :   Wel l ,  

go  and contac t  Mr  D lomo.   He is  based in  Kwazu lu-Nata l .   

He i s  the  re levant  in fo rmat ion  who has  in fo rmat ion  

regard ing  th is  murder  case or  a l leged murder  case.   

“Danny”  then sa id  he  appo in ted  a  new f ie ld  invest i ga tor  to  

conduct  i t  on  the  bas i s  tha t  the  o r ig ina l  –  tha t  f ie ld  

invest iga to r  had  a l ready submi t ted  a  repor t  and was 20 

there fo re . . .   [Speaker ’s  vo ice  drops –  unc lear ]  

 He then says a  meet ing  was he ld  w i th  Mr  D lomo 

in  o rder  to  conf i rm the  in fo rmat ion  rece ived f rom 

Mr  Ntombela .   And he says Con t rary  to  the  in fo rmat ion  

prov ided by  Mr  Ntombela  –  and  I  am paraphras ing  the  
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a f f idav i t  –  D lomo d id  no t  p rov ide  any in fo rmat ion  re la t ing  

to  the  a l leged murder  case.   D lomo adv ised tha t  they  

approach the  po l i ce  where  the  case was hand led .  

 So i t  seems tha t  somewhere  a long the  l ine  

inco r rec t  in fo rmat ion  had in f luenced the  dec i s ion  o f  

Mr  Ntombela  no t  to  g rant  the  secur i t y  c learance.   You have  

a  d i f fe ren t  vers ion  and I  w i l l  come to  the  d i f fe rence  in  due  

course .   So the  fu r the r  invest iga t ions were  conduc ted and 

the  f ie ld  invest i ga tor  ind ica ted  tha t  no  i n fo rmat ion  was 

found wh ich  imp l ica ted  Mr  Nxasana as  per  the  a l legat ions 10 

o f  Mr  Ntombela .  

 So the  process was renewed or  cont inued or  

res tar ted ,  whatever  –  however  you  w ish  to  descr ibe  i t ,  bu t  

there  was no bas is  found fo r  any re fusa l  o f  a  secur i t y  

c lea rance fo r  Mr  Nxasana.   So “Danny”  then makes a  

second recommendat ion  on  h is  vers ion  to  Mr  Ntombela ,  

tha t  a  top  secur i t y  c learance be issued as  – and aga in  I  am 

paraphras ing :   There  was no in fo rmat ion  o r  ev idence wh ich  

ind ica ted  tha t  Mr  Nxasana shou ld  no t  be  granted th is  

cer t i f i ca te  s ince  these new a l legat ions cou ld  no t  be  20 

ver i f ied .    

 Never the less ,  says “Danny”  i n  h is  a f f idav i t ,  

Mr  Ntombela  dec ided not  to  g rant  the  secur i t y  c lea rance to 

Mr  Nxasana.   “Danny ’s ”  comment  i s  tha t  the  dec is ion  no t  to  

g rant  the  secur i t y  c lea rance to  Mr  Nxasana was in fo rmed  
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by  the  fac ts  a t  the i r  d isposa l .  

And he goes on to  say tha t  he  den ies ,  however,  tha t  

he  was invo lved  in  the  dec is ion  to  deny Mr  Nxasana 

secur i t y  c learance.   In  fac t  he  says he  was dumbfounded  

when he learned th rough the  news  on TV  tha t  Mr  Nxasana  

had been den ied  proper  secur i t y  c lea rance and we know 

tha t  Mr  Nxasana  la te r  appea led  the  dec i s ion  and he was 

granted secur i t y  c lea rance.  

 Now the  d i f fe rence between h is  vers ion  and your  

vers ion  is  f i r s t l y  tha t  Danny says he  was not  invo lved in  10 

re fus ing  a  secur i t y  c learance,  he  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  i t ,  

he  mere ly  invest iga ted ,  fu r ther  conducted the  fu r ther  

p rocess and he came to  tha t  conc lus ion .   That  i s  the  f i rs t  

th ing  tha t  he  says.  

 The second th ing  tha t  he  says is  the  record  is  

indeed ava i lab le ,  he  says tha t  tha t  record  is  w i th  SSA wi th  

a l l  the  reco rds  and i t  seems to  be  cor robora ted  by  the  fac t  

tha t  he  goes in to  a  lo t  o f  de ta i l .  

 And th i rd ly,  and impor tan t ly,  he  says tha t  there  was  

no f i rs t  cer t i f i ca te  tha t  was somehow wi thdrawn,  tha t  there  20 

was no ce r t i f i ca te  a t  a l l ,  there  was on ly  the  re fusa l  by  Mr  

Ntombela  a f te r  a l l  the  recommenda t ions were  made and the  

reversa l  o f  tha t  re fusa l  on  appea l .    

 Now I  have summar i sed the  d i f fe ren t  vers ions .   

From the  po in t  o f  v iew o f  the  Commiss ion ,  these 
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a l legat ions are  as  se r ious as  the  a l legat ions you made but  

what  do  you say in  regard  to  those d i f fe rences tha t  I  have 

h igh l igh ted  to  you.   Was Danny invo lved?  I s  the  record  

ava i lab le  and th i rd ly,  was there  a  f i rs t  cer t i f i ca te  i ssued  

and then d i s regarded in  favour  o f  se t t lement  p rocess? 

DR DINTWE:    Cha i rperson,  I  had  an oppor tun i ty  t o  go  and 

re f resh my mind  aga in  because I  rece ived –  I  was made  

aware  o f  th is  par t i cu la r  a f f idav i t .    

F i r s t  po in t ,  in  my ev idence I  have never  sa id  tha t  

Danny re fused the  secur i t y  c lea rance,  I  sa id  tha t  the 10 

process was comple ted  but  then  he reca l led  the  f i le  and 

a l loca ted  i t  to  somebody e lse .   So in  fac t  you are  say ing  

the  same th ing ,  i t  i s  on ly  tha t  I  th ink  tha t  we a re  on ly  

d i f fe r ing  w i th  regard  to  a t  what  s tage d id  he  in te rvene.   But  

he  d id  in te rvene and he is  conf i rm ing i t .   I  am conf i rm ing i t  

as  we l l .    

So  I  have never  sa id  tha t  he  wou ld  have re fused .   

Anyway,  he  does not  have powers  to  re fuse because i t  ge t  

s igned by  the  DG espec ia l l y  fo r  such sen ior  peop le .   So Mr  

Nxasana is  so  sen ior  tha t  an  expecta t ion  w i l l  be  tha t  i t  w i l l  20 

be  sent  by  DG and not  anybody.   By  tha t  t ime Danny  was a  

genera l  manager  fo r  tha t ,  bu t  tha t  is  one po in t .  

The second po in t  w i th  regard  to  the  t imef rames,  I  

have got  d i f f i cu l t y  there  because  he does not  te l l  us  on  

what  da te  was secur i t y  c learance g iven.   My ve rs ion  is  tha t  
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i t  was issued on the  6  March and …[ in tervenes]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    What  year?   2014?  

DR DINTWE:    2014,  yes .   Now i f  you take  tha t  da te  and  

you go th rough the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  we have jus t  rece ived,  

a lbe i t  no t  comple te ,  you w i l l  rea l i se  tha t  the re  w i l l  be  

en t r ies  beyond the  6  March and tha t  can on ly  suggest  one  

th ing  and one th ing  on ly  tha t  the  invest iga t ion  w i th  regard  

to  Mr  Nxasana cont inued beyond h im get t ing  the  secur i t y  

c lea rance.    

We cannot  say  tha t  the  process was whether  10 

s topped or  whatever  o r  whatever  bu t  the  leg is la t ion  wh ich  

dea ls  w i th  the  appo in tment  o f  the  NDPP says tha t  he  

cannot  resume h is  du t ies  un t i l  tha t  p rocess is  f ina l i sed.   So 

i f  he  had p rov ided the  da te  exact ly  when th is  t h ing  was 

res tar ted  and when i t  was consequent ly,  you know,  

f ina l i sed,  we w i l l  then be ab le  to  see tha t  Mr  Nxasana  

wou ld  no t  have been a l lowed to  s ta r t  w i th  tha t  par t i cu la r  

p rocess.  

 A t  leas t ,  the  th i rd  po in t ,  the  name o f  Thu lan i  D lomo 

is  ment ioned.   I  d id  no t  say  tha t  Mr  Thu lan i  D lomo was 20 

invo l ved in  re fus ing ,  I  sa id  tha t  the  invest iga tor  was sent  to  

h im to  ge t  the  names o f  the  peop le  in  Kwazu lu-Nata l  tha t  

cou ld  ass is t  w i th  tha t  par t i cu la r  p rocess.   That  i s  what  I  

sa id .  

 The las t  po in t ,  i t  i s  very  s t range tha t  a  DG wi l l  
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re fuse to  s ign .   That  i s  ac tua l l y  –  i t  i s  a  pure  admin i s t ra t i ve  

mat te r.   Th is  f i le  wou ld  have passed th rough a  commi t tee ,  

an  ad jud i ca t ion  commi t tee .   The reason why they sent  i t  to  

there ,  i t  i s  because they want  to  remove tha t  human 

e lement  so  tha t  i f  I  am hated by  the  D i rec tor  Genera l ,  he  is  

no t  g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  be  a  so le  dec is ion-maker.   So  

my take is  tha t  once i t  has  passed th is  commi t tee ,  i t  i s  as 

good as  be ing  accepted and issued.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    R igh t ,  I  unders tand.  

DR DINTWE:    I  do  no t  see where  I  am d i f fe r ing  w i th  Danny  10 

i f  there  are  any d i f fe rences i t  cou ld  be  about  the  da tes  and  

a t  what  s tage d id  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And i t  may be the  issue o f  whethe r  

a  ce r t i f i ca te  was  ac tua l l y  s igned by  the  D i rec to r  Genera l  

ra the r  than a l l  the  processes be ing  conc luded to  the  po in t  

where  fo r  a l l  in ten ts  and purposes  the  cer t i f i ca te  ought  to  

have been granted.  

DR DINTWE:    I  beg your  pardon aga in ,  sor ry?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So i t  may be –  what  Danny says is  

tha t  no  ce r t i f i ca te  was granted in  the  sense tha t  i t  was  20 

s igned by  the  D i rec to r  Genera l  and ac tua l l y  i ssued  to  h im 

and then taken away o r  the  dec is ion  reversed?  You seem 

to  be  say ing  tha t  tha t  cou ld  be  co r rec t  bu t  no t  in  the  sense 

tha t  a l l  the  admin is t ra t i ve  p rocedures had been conc luded 

in  favour  o f  the  g rant ing  o f  a  cer t i f i ca te .  
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DR DINTWE:    That  cou ld  be  cor rec t  because even i f  i t  i s  

cor rec t  I  do  no t  see a  conf l i c t  be tween what  I  am say ing  

and what  he  is  say ing  so  tha t  here  we cou ld  be  ta lk ing 

about  two d i f fe ren t  da tes  bu t  the  ac t iv i t y  i t se l f  took  p lace  

and we a re  bo th  conf i rm ing tha t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So Danny may say the  rubber  

s tamp a t  the  end o f  the  process  was not  there ,  you are  

say ing  every th ing  lead ing  up to  tha t  requ i red  the  issue o f  a  

cer t i f i ca te .    

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  what  I  am say ing ,  Cha i rpe rson .  10 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Bu t  i t  seems tha t  bo th  Danny and  

yourse l f  a re  very  c lea r  tha t  the  process and i t s  cu lm inat ion  

resu l ted  in  an  ou tcome tha t  was no t  jus t i f ied .    

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  a t  leas t  now tha t  I  had an 

oppor tun i ty  to  look  a t  tha t  pa r t i cu la r  a f f idav i t ,  we are  bo th  

say ing  the  same th ing  aga in  in  tha t  regard .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    And tha t  the  Cha i r  w i l l  look  a t  in  

re la t ion  to  o ther  ev idence invo lv ing  Mr  Nxasana and we do  

not  need to  go  in to  tha t  here .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson,  bu t  maybe I  20 

shou ld  a l so  men t ion  to  say tha t  h is  vers ion  about  the  

ava i lab i l i t y  o f  the  documents  …[ in tervenes]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  las t  i ssue.  

DR DINTWE:    Ja ,  a t  the  t ime tha t  I  was conduct ing  th is  

mon i to r i ng  o r  invest iga t ion ,  i f  you  l i ke ,  Danny was  out  o f  
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the  sys tem.   So there  was an ac t ing  pe rson.   He has s ince  

re turned,  tha t  i s  the  reason why  we are  us ing  a  pseudo 

name,  he  has s ince  re turned but  he  has re turned  a f te r  I  

had conducted tha t  and there  is  a  wr i t ten  repor t  f rom an 

ac t ing  personne l  o r  the  pe rsonne l  manager  who says tha t  

we cou ld  no t  loca te  a t  leas t  a  phys i ca l  f i l e  o f  Mr  Nxasana.   

I  w i l l  be  very  happy –  i f  he  had to  c ross -examine  me on 

tha t  I  th ink  I  have  got  to  concede to  say tha t  you found i t ,  I  

d id  no t  f ind  i t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    So  you a re  say ing  tha t  the  10 

unava i lab i l i t y  o r  loss  o f  the  records  was fo r  a  pa r t i cu la r  

per iod  when Danny was not  in  o f f i ce?  

DR DINTWE:     That  i s  co r rec t .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  he  h imse l f  re fe rs  to  a  per iod  

when he was out  o f  o f f i ce  in  h is  a f f idav i t .  

DR DINTWE:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t ,  jus t  one las t  quest ion ,  i f  I  

may,  and tha t  is  in  re la t ion  to  PAN1,  Pr inc ipa l  Agent  

Network .   That  repor t ,  the  summary o f  tha t  repor t ,  do  you 

have i t?  20 

DR DINTWE:    I  do  have the  summary o f  tha t  repor t ,  

Cha i rperson.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Do you fee l  tha t  you can 

leg i t imate ly  g i ve  i t  to  the  Commiss ion?  

DR DINTWE:    I  suspect  tha t  i t  w i l l  be  in  the  documents  
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tha t  I  can g ive .  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .  

DR DINTWE:    And look,  i t  i s  my document ,  i t  i s  our  

document ,  I  was to ld  dec lass i f y,  we have got  the  power  to  

pu t  any res t r i c t ions  i f  we want  to  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  

s imul taneous ly ]  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    These a re  events  over  a  decade 

ago,  the re  is  cont roversy  over  whether  they have been  

proper ly  dea l t  w i th ,  there  are  a l legat ions o f  c r im ina l i t y  o r  

ma ladmin is t ra t ion ,  a t  leas t ,  there  does not  seem f rom our  10 

po in t  o f  v iew a t  leas t  any reason fo r  the  cont inued 

c lass i f i ca t ion  o f  tha t  document .  

DR DINTWE:    As  I  sa id  ear l ie r  tha t  cer ta in  i ssues g raduate  

ou t  o f  na t iona l  secur i t y,  I  mean,  bu t  i f  you  say tha t  you 

have to  i nvest iga te  fu r ther  c r im ina l l y  and charge pe rson A ,  

what  i s  secre t  about  tha t?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes.   And then f ina l l y,  i f  I  may jus t  

ask  you,  were  you present  a t  any s tage where  the  PAN1 

repor t  was presented to  any m in is te r ia l  o r  o the r  o f f i c ia l?  

DR DINTWE:    I  was not  p resent ,  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    A l r igh t .   Thank you,  Cha i r,  those 

are  the  quest ions .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Thank you very  much,  Dr  D in twe,  fo r  

ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion ,  we apprec ia te  i t  

very  much.   Thank you ve ry  much,  you w i l l  ensure  tha t  you  
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g ive  us  what  you  may g ive  us  lawfu l l y.   Okay,  thank you  

very  much,  you a re  now excused.   We are  go ing  to  ad journ  

fo r  about  ten  m inutes  to  enab le  the  next  work  s t ream to  se t  

up  bu t  we w i l l  con t inue on Fr iday w i th  w i tnesses connected 

w i th  SSA.  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  thank you,  we ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good a f te rnoon Mr  Myburgh,  good  10 

a f te rnoon everybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Good a f te rnoon Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  we ready?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes we are .     

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Gama the  oa th  you took  

yesterday w i l l  con t inue to  app ly  today.  

MR GAMA:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank  you Cha i rpe rson,  good  

a f te rnoon Mr  Gama.  20 

MR GAMA:      Good a f te rnoon Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  was a t  the  po in t  yes terday o f  

tak ing  you th rough Mr  S ingh ’s  vers ion  in  re la t ion  to  the  100 

locomot ives .    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  jus t  f in ish  o f f  on  tha t  i f  I  may 

I  th ink  I  have taken you to  one paragraph in  one  o f  h is  
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a f f idav i t s ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you  to  a few o thers .   Cou ld  I  

ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  Exh ib i t  BB23,  Bund le  5C,  and 

cou ld  I  ask  you p lease,  Mr  Gama,  to  tu rn  to  page  1464,  

one,  fou r,  s ix ,  fou r.  

Perhaps,  I  cou ld  jus t  ask  you  to  d i rec t  your  

a t ten t ion  to  parag raph 151.   Mr  S ingh says:  

“Moreover,  M&S go on a  f ro l i c  o f  i t s  own when i t  

s ta tes  tha t  the  20E locomot ive  proposed by  CSR 

requ i red  s ign i f i can t  mod i f i ca t ion  and cou ld  thus no t  

have met  the  requ i rement  o f  u rgency.   In  th is  10 

regard ,  the  fo l low ing shou ld  be  noted,  Sub 1 ,  the  

memorandum at  a l l  mater ia l  t imes contempla ted  

tha t  CSR wou ld  be  supp ly ing  a  21E locomot ive  and 

not  the  20E.   Sub 2 ,  Mi tsu i  had exper ienced  

s ign i f i can t  p rob lems wi th  the  19E and 15E 

locomot ives ,  p rocured by  Transnet  on  a  prev ious  

occas ion  v ia  a  conf inement  p rocess. ”  

Can I  jus t  ask  you to  comment  on  tha t  p lease,  those two  

po in t?  

MR GAMA:    I  th ink  he  is  co r rec t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  152:  

“ Impor tan t ly,  a t  the  t ime,  Sub 1,  my conf idence  

leve ls  in  Mi tsu i ,  be ing  ab le  to  meet  i t s  p roposed 

very  aggress ive  de l i very  schedu le  was low due to  

the  fo l low ing. ”  
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F i r s t  po in t :  

“The h is to ry  o f  the  110,  19E locomot ives  descr ibed 

above was a  p rob lem for  me. ”  

Next  po in t :  

“Th is  de l i very  schedu le  a lso  conta ined many  

cond i t ions  tha t  needed to  be  met  to  ach ieve i t ,  such  

as  subcont rac t  acceptance. ”  

Next  po in t :  

“The proposa l  requ i red  the  use o f  ex is t ing  pa r ts  o f  

19E locomot ives  to  enab le  the  aggress ive  de l i very  10 

schedu le  to  be  met . ”  

And next  po in t :  

“Th is  meant  tha t  add i t iona l  r i sks  w i l l  be  in t roduced  

in to  the  coa l  locomot ive  f lee t  tha t  was a l ready  

under  resourced. ”  

You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yeah,  I  cou ld  comment  on  1524 and indeed,  

Mi tsu i  had proposed tha t  they wou ld  use ex i s t ing  par t s  o f  

the  19E so  i f  those par t s  ran  ou t  means a lso  there  was a  

r i sk  in  te rms o f  the  pr ic ing ,  and tha t  they have g iven us  20 

tha t  i t  wou ld  ac tua l l y  change and inc rease.   So tha t  

par t i cu la r  one,  I  th ink  i t  i s  in  my knowledge,  the  o ther  two 

are  in  Mr  S ingh 's  knowledge.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You have a  comment  on  the  o thers?   

MR GAMA:    I  have no comment .   
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then 153 says:  

“That  due to  the  above fac tors ,  I  d id  no t  be l ieve  

tha t  the  Mi tsu i  op t ion  wou ld  ac tua l l y  resu l t  in  

locomot ives  be ing  de l i vered as  p lanned and the i r  

p roposa l  and m i t iga ted  the  r i sks  to  the  MDS  

vo lumes. ”  

Do you are  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    We l l ,  I  th ink  the  conf inement  had s tar ted  as  

ear l y  as  February  o f  2013 and I  th ink  as  t ime wen t  by,  we  

a l l  know tha t  the  peop le  who have got  a  be t te r  ab i l i t y  to  10 

acce lera te  locomot ive  de l i very  i s  ac tua l l y  the  Ch inese  

locomot ive  manufac tu rers ,  they have proven t ime and t ime,  

aga in  tha t  they can do tha t  qu i cke r.   So i t  i s  p robab ly  t rue  

tha t  they wou ld  no t  have been de l i vered on t imeous ly,  even 

the  t imef rame tha t  ac tua l l y  exp i red  s ince  the  con f inement  

had in i t ia l l y  been  motored.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now as  I  unders tood f rom your  

ev idence yesterday,  a t  leas t  a t  the  t ime,  when you  

presented the  bus iness case you had conf idence in  Mi tsu i .   

I  th ink  you sa id  w i th  the  benef i t  o f  h inds igh t  th ings m ight  20 

have changed.  

MR GAMA:    I  had conf idence in  the  locomot ive .  I  had 

conf idence in  the i r  locomot ive  and  i t  i s  i t  had a l ready been 

de l i vered and i t  was in  opera t ion  bu t  f rom tha t  t ime,  there  

were  a  lo t  o f  post  commiss ion ing  tee th ing  prob lems tha t  
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a rose a f te rwards  w i th  the  Mi tsu i  l ocomot ive .   So here  153 

ta lks  spec i f i ca l l y  to  de l i ve ry  schedu les .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  i f  I  cou ld  then take  you 

p lease,  to  some aspects  o f  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  on  the  100 

locomot ives .   Cou ld  you tu rn  Exh ib i t  BB27.   I  jus t  wanted  

to  ask  your  comment ,  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  

page 127.  

MR GAMA:    127? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    127,  and i f  I  cou ld  d i rec t  your  

a t ten t ion  Mr  Gama,  can I  jus t  ask  you to  c la r i f y  one  or  two  10 

th ings.   A t  page 127 go to  pa ragraph 5 .6 .8 .16  I  th ink  i t  i s ,  

the  th i rd  las t  paragraph.   I t  i s  apparent  f rom the  tex t  tha t  

Fundudz i  asked cer ta in  quest ions o f  you and you p rov ided  

a  wr i t ten  response.    Wi th  regard  to  tha t  pa ragraph i t  says  

in  h is  wr i t ten  response:  

“Gama ind i ca ted  tha t  the  techn ica l  and opera t iona l  

spec i f i ca t ions and requ i rements  o f  the  100  

locomot ives  were  care fu l l y  and cogent ly  de l ibera ted  

and agreed upon w i th  the  end use r. ”  

What  d id  what  d id  you mean by  tha t?  20 

MR GAMA:    A re  they ta lk ing  abou t  the  100 locomot ives?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  th is  re la tes  to  the  100.  

MR GAMA:    Yeah,  I  ind ica ted  to  you yesterday tha t  a f te r  

the  approva l  by  the  BADC we then put  togethe r  techn ica l  

teams tha t  worked w i th  CSR to  agree on the  techn ica l  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 156 of 317 
 

requ i rements  and to  c rea te  a  p ro to type,  tha t  i s  what  i t  

means.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  in  o the r  words,  what  you 

are  ta lk ing  about  there  is  post  approva l?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  then ask  you p lease to  go  to  

the  top  o f  page 128.    

“ In  h is  response ,  Gama fur ther  ind ica ted  tha t  the  

dec is ion  to  conf ine  the  procurement  o f  100 

locomot ives  to  CSR,  was ex tens i ve l y  debated and 10 

cons idered upon  and was ar r i ved a t  a f te r  ra t iona l  

cons idera t ion  o f  a l l  the  f inanc ia l ,  techn ica l ,  

opera t iona l ,  lega l ,  and compl iance re la ted  fac ts . ”  

MR GAMA:    Yeah,  I  have had occas ion  to  request  th rough  

you the  repor t  o r  the  responses tha t  Fundudz i  ta lks  about  

o r  what  I  do  want  to  say to  you  a t  the  ou tse t  i s  tha t  a  

who le  lo t  o f  these quota t ions when taken out  o f  contex t ,  

and when they are  no t  read w i th  the  to ta l i t y  and the  ac tua l  

memo tha t  I  had sent  to  them they  w i l l  send you on  a  f ro l i c  

o f  sor ts  because they can be taken  out  o f  contex t .   20 

So I  want  you to  be  aware  o f  tha t  and to  no te  i t ,  

because i t  was when I  read the  document ,  tha t  I  cou ld  see  

tha t  they were  qu i te  conserva t ive  i n  te rms o f  the  quota t ion  

they quoted those e lements ,  wh ich  i f  you  l ooked  a t  the  

ent i re  tex t  tha t  they had been look ing  a t ,  i t  wou ld  g ive  you  
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a  ve ry  d i f fe ren t  p ic tu re .   

So i t  i s  no t  someth ing  tha t  you shou ld  re ly  on  

w i thout  look ing  a t  the  tex t  o f  the  document .   So then 

coming back to  t h is  one i t  i s  t rue  tha t  the  conf inement  o f  

the  locomot ives  was extens i ve l y  debated,  as  you know,  i t  

was in i t ia l l y  to  Mi tsu i .  

We spent  even more  t ime on Mi tsu i ,  the  CSR mat te r  

was an a f te r  the  dec i s ion  issue  when the  dec i s ion  had  

been taken,  and  we then had to  say a  dec i s ion  is  taken 

how do we make sure  tha t  we  w i l l  opera t iona l i se  the  10 

d iv is ion?  And tha t  i s  rea l l y  what  th is  means.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  we l l  I  ra ised i t  on ly  w i th  you,  

because i t  appeared to  me to  be  d i f fe ren t  to  the  ev idence 

tha t  you gave yesterday.   But  aga in ,  i f  as  I  unders tand i t ,  

you  say ing  i t  re la tes  more  to  what  you d id  a f te r  the  

dec is ion  was taken.  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  i s  the  same answer  tha t  you  

gave in  re la t ion  to  Sub 16?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hang on one second Mr  Myburgh.   Do  

you s t i l l  have tha t  memo or  the  response tha t  you gave to  

Fundudz i  because…[ in tervene]  

MR GAMA:    I  d id  request  a  memo,  i t  i s  a lso  in te res t ing  
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when they say Gama th is ,  Gama tha t .    

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

MR GAMA:    In  the  memo,  and I  qua l i f ied  in  the  name,  I  

sa id ,  I  am not  go ing  to  ta lk  about  the  ac t ions o f  

ind iv idua ls ,  in  te rms o f  what  d i f fe ren t  ind i v idua ls  d id ,  you 

must  go  and ask  ind iv idua ls  abou t  the i r  i ssues.   But  I  am 

say ing  f rom a  Transnet  perspect ive ,  what  were  the  issues,  

I  d id  ob ta in  tha t  memo,  and I  th ink  I  ob ta ined i t  f rom 

through the  Commiss ion .   

 So I  th ink  we wou ld  be  ab le  to ,  yeah.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  okay,  bu t  no ,  I  ra ised i t  because on  

the  face  o f  i t  to  I  a lso  l i ke  Mr  Myburgh th ink  when  I  read 

th is  i t  does not  -  i t  seems to  be  d i f fe ren t  f rom what  you  

sa id  yesterday about  the  CSR the  dec i s ion  to  conf ine  to  

CSR.   But  can I  f ind  ou t  th is?    

Do you agree tha t  th is  on  i t s  own wi thout  read ing  

the  en t i re  memo,  namely,  what  i s  quoted in  the  f i rs t  

parag raph a t  page 128 suggests  tha t  what  you sa id  was 

tha t  you -  was tha t  the  dec is ion  to  conf ine  to  CSR,  as  

opposed to  conf ined in  genera l ,  i r respect ive  o f  to  whoever 20 

tha t  i s  the  dec is ion  tha t  th is  says was ex tens ive ly  

d iss ipa ted .    Do you accept  tha t  tha t  i s  the  impress ion  i t  

leaves?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  the  impress ion  i t  leaves g ives  and I  

th ink  I  have sa id  th is  yes terday to  Cha i r.   The Fundudz i  
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Repor t  i s  c ra f ted  and in  a  manner  and way in  wh ich  i t  

wants  to  ge t  you  to  par t i cu la r  ou tcomes,  and i t  i s  ab le  to  

exc lude ve ry  re levant  in fo rmat ion  tha t  wou ld  make the  

reader  ac tua l l y  reach a  ve ry  d i f fe ren t  v is ion  i f  the  

in fo rmat ion  g iven  was taken in  i t s  to ta l i t y.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yeah,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine  I  jus t  wanted to  

make su re  tha t  we have the  same unders tand ing .  So,  bu t  

what  you do say is  what  you say tha t  when one reads the  

who le  document  tha t  i s  no t  the  impress ion  one w i l l  ge t .  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  i s  no t  what  you in tended i t  to  

say.  

MR GAMA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Myburgh.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you but  Cha i rpe rson th is  

i s  –  I  wou ld  jus t  conf i rmed the  memorandum o r  Mr  Gama's  

responses w i l l  be  someth ing  tha t  he  asked us  to  d iscover  

wh ich  we d id .   I t  has  no t  found i t s  way in to  the  bund le ,  

because we thought  he  m ight  pu t  i t  ou t  i f  you  wanted to  

re ly  upon i t .   Bu t  perhaps fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness,  we  20 

can add tha t  document  in to  the  end o f  the  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  assume we can we may even be 

ab le  to  do  tha t  today.   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  i t  can  be done,  i f  i t  i s  ava i lab le  i t  
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can  be done,  tha t  can be done any t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then Mr  Gama jus t  two subsequent  

parag raphs:  

“Cont ra ry  to  Gama’s  response,  and you 've  a l ready  

quant i f ied  tha t ,  the  award  o f  the  20  locomot ives  to  

CSR was la te r  rev ised,  and CSR was requested to  

supp ly  21E locomot ives .   As  d iscussed be low,  the  

change f rom 20E  to  21E resu l ted  in  increase in  the  

pr ice  o f  the  locomot ives  and amendments  to  the  

techn ica l  spec i f i ca t ions.  There  is  no  ev idence tha t  10 

the  techn ica l  and f inanc ia l  imp l ica t ions resu l t ing  

f rom the  change  in  locomot ives  were  d i scussed in  

the  meet ing  o f  24  January  2014. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  a lso ,  th is  i s  when somebody enters  an  

arena tha t  they do  not  unders tand,  20E locomot ives  is  a  

GFP locomot ive  and we wou ld  no t  t ry  to  pu t  EFP 

locomot ives  in  a  heavy hau l  l ine ,  wh ich  is  the  coa l  l ine .   So 

tha t  was never  the  in ten t .   The who le  i ssue o f  the  21E was  

a lways the  in ten t .   20 

 So obv ious ly,  i f  somebody then went  and took the  

GFP locomot ive ,  wh ich  has a  max imum of  22  tons per  ax le  

versus the  26  tons per  ax le ,  the  pr ice  w i l l  change,  i t  w i l l  be  

d i f fe ren t ,  bu t  they wr i te  here  as  fac t ,  tha t  wh ich  they do  not  

unders tand and then i t  pe rmeates  across the  Fundudz i  
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Repor t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and then cou ld  I  ask  you  

p lease to  –  we l l  there  i s  a  sentence tha t  says:  

“There  i s  no  ev idence tha t  the  techn ica l  and  

f inanc ia l  imp l ica t ions resu l t ing  f rom the  change 

were  d i scussed in  a  meet ing  o f  24  January. ”  

A re  you ab le  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    The  meet ing  o f  24 t h  January  Cha i rpe rson was 

desc r ibed by  me in  my a f f idav i t  as  hav ing  had a  lo t  o f  what  

one may ca l l  i l l og ica l ,  i f  no t  nonsens ica l ,  th ings tha t  were  10 

there ,  i t  i s  no t  c lear  tha t  even the  peop le  who were  in  the  

meet ing  unders tood what  they were  d iscuss ing .   So there  

is  no t  rea l l y  much tha t  one can say any fu r ther  about  log ic .  

There  was no log ic  tha t  took p lace,  when th is  pa r t i cu la r  

mat te r  was d i scussed,  as  I  looked a t  the  m inutes ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  we spoke  yesterday,  b r ie f l y  o r  I  

asked you a  quest ion  about  whether  even when a  mat te r  

tha t  was to  be  de l ibera ted  upon by  the  commi t tee  re la ted  

to  your  d iv i s ion ,  you wou ld  on l y  be  ab le  to  a t tend i f  you 

inv i ted…[ in tervene]  20 

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    And you sa id  yes.   So I  guess tha t  when  

you look a t  the  de l ibera t ions,  and  you fo rmed a  v iew tha t  

you fo rmed wh ich  you have jus t  a r t i cu la ted  f rom your  po in t  

o f  v iew,  i t  jus t  shows maybe tha t  how impor tan t  i t  i s  that  
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maybe the  head o f  the  d iv is ion  shou ld  be  there  when the  

mat te r  i s  dea l t  w i th  tha t  re la tes  to  them because he  or  she  

wou ld  unders tand  issues much bet te r  than anybody e lse .   

MR GAMA:    Yes,  you are  qu i te  cor rec t  I  mean there  were  

a  lo t  o f  i ssues tha t  a re  jus t  conf la ted .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you.   Mr  Gama cou ld  you then  

p lease go to  page 13 and i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  have a  look 

a t  paragraph 5 .6 .9 .9  i t  says :  

“Accord ing  to  Gama the  memorandum dated 21 

January  2014,  conf ined to  CSR was changed a t  10 

Transnet  Group and not  a t  TFR. ”  

We dea l t  w i th  tha t  yes terday.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The next  pa rag raph says:  

“We determined  tha t  as  pe r  the  procurement  

p rocedures manua l  vers ion  two October  2013 and  

2013 ppm requ i rement ,  the  end user  in  th is  case  

TFR,  shou ld  be  the  one mot iva t ing  the  procurement  

p rocess to  be  fo l lowed i .e .  conf inement  o r  tender  

be fore  the  memorandum may be taken to  Transnet  20 

Group fo r  recommendat ion  to  be  BADC.  We 

determined tha t  Gama and Giann i  as  the  end users  

d id  no t  mot iva te  fo r  the  conf inement  o f  100 

locomot ives  to  CSR. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  
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MR GAMA:    I t  i s  t rue .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i t  says ,  I  th ink  then  they go  

o f f  to  quote  the  re levant  pa ragraph:  

“We dete rmined tha t  parag raph 15 .1 .5  o f  the  2013  

ppm s ta tes  tha t  quote ,  the  submiss ion  fo r  

conf inement  mus t  be  fu l l y  mot iva ted  in  wr i t ing  by  

the  end use r  and the  d iv is ion  ch ie f  p rocurement  

o f f i ce r,  TFR,  to  the  opera t ion  d iv is ion  main  

acqu is i t ion  counc i l  and the  opera t ion  d i v is ions ch ie f  

execut ive  o f f i ce r,  TFR fo r  p r io r  wr i t ten  suppor t  o f  10 

the  recommenda t ion  to  conf ined ,  the  submiss ion  

shou ld  be  submi t ted  on  the  re levant  templa te  under  

cover  on  the  memo to  the  GCE. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yeah,  so  in  te rms o f  the  100 locomot ives ,  a l l  

o f  those th ings had been fo l lowed but  tha t  was  on ly  in  

respect  o f  the  Mi t su i  conf inements .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.   

MR GAMA:    So when i t  came to  the  CSR memo tha t  was  

submi t ted  those were  then i t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Does the  v iew you have taken  tha t  i t  

looks  l i ke  nobody was invo lved in  tha t ,  in  those 

de l ibe ra t ions knew what  they were  ta lk ing  about ,  a t  leas t  in  

regard  to  some o f  the  issues re la t i ng  to  th is  mat te r  suggest  

tha t  maybe even  the  commi t tee  d id  no t  have peop le  who  
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have the  k ind  o f  exper t i se  and knowledge tha t  wou ld  have 

enab led  them to  p ick  these th ings up  to  say,  th is  th ing  

does not  make sense,  th is  does no t  make sense and  so  on .   

MR GAMA:    I t  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t  to  specu la te  Cha i r  

because i t  i s  one o f  two th ings,  e i ther  the  m inu tes  are  

wr i t ten  bad ly  and maybe they do  not  re f lec t  what  was  

d iscussed,  o r  the  m inutes  are  wr i t ten  cor rec t l y  and they 

re f lec t  what  was ac tua l l y  d iscussed,  because -  so  i t  i s  one 

o f  those,  bu t  then i t  wou ld  seem to  me tha t  the  happ iness 

tha t  was the re  was tha t  the  conf inement  was no l onger  to  10 

Mi tsu i ,  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You see,  I  asked the  quest ion ,  because 

one o f  the  issues  tha t  the  Commiss ion  is  go ing  to  look  a t  i s  

what  c r i te r ia  were  fo l lowed in  the  past ,  in  se lec t ing  peop le  

to  be  appo in ted  to  Boards o f  SOE’s  and what  qua l i f i ca t ions  

shou ld  be  -  what  qua l i f i ca t ions were  requ i red ,  and 

exper ienced,  and  so  on ,  and so  on .   And as  we l l  as  what  

sk i l l s  and exper t i se  and qua l i f i ca t i ons were  requ i red  be fore  

somebody cou ld  be  put  in to  a  par t i cu la r  commi t tee ,  you  

know because i f  you took me and put  me in  an  IT 20 

Commi t tee  I  wou ld  no t  know what  to  do .  

But  i f  you  are  go ing  to  pu t  peop le  in  a  Board  or  

commi t tee  where  cer ta in  techn ica l  knowledge and exper t i se  

i s  requ i red ,  and they do  not  have tha t ,  then managers  can  

do a l l  k inds o f  th ings because they  do  not  unders tand,  you  
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know every th ing  i s  above them.    

So That  i s  why I  was ask ing  the  quest ion  whether  

you th ink  i t  m ight  re f lec t  tha t  th is  was to  techn ica l  and  

maybe the  Board  Commi t tee  members  or  some o f  them 

maybe d id  no t  have the  k ind  o f  exper t i se  tha t  wou ld  have 

enab led  them to  p ick  up  tha t  th is  th ing  does no t  make 

sense and so  on .   

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  no  Cha i r  I  th ink  the  mat te r  you ra ised is  

qu i te  per t inent  and i t  i s  an  impor tan t  one because the  

qua l i f i ca t ions o f  the  Board  members  tha t  go  on to  th is  SOE,  10 

espec ia l l y  i f  you  get  Eskom and Transnet  you need  heavy  

techn ica l  eng ineer ing ,  economics  and f inance sk i l l s  tha t  

a re  requ i red  in  those k inds o f  en t i t ies .   

And in  o rder  fo r  i t ,  you  know,  to  succeed,  so  i f  you  

have a  Board  member  who exce l  in  B ib le  s tud ies ,  fo r  

ins tance,  you might  f ind  tha t  they w i l l  be  good fo r  the  

E th ics  Commi t tee ,  bu t  they m ight  no t  be  ab le  to  make input  

in  the  o ther  aspects  o f  the  bus iness.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  thank you,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you I  jus t  wanted  to  make 20 

sure  tha t  I  unders tood your  ev idence in  th i s  regard  Mr  

Gama.  I t  i s  cor rec t  tha t  you d id  a t tend the  meet ing  o f  the  

24 t h  o f  January?  

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  cor rec t ,  there  was pressure  on  

a t tendance.  In  my reco l lec t ion ,  I  do  no t  reca l l  tha t  I  was 
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there  when th is  par t i cu la r  100  locomot ive  issue was  

d iscussed because you w i l l  see  tha t  on  the  agenda tha t  

day was a lso  the  10 :64 and my s tance is  tha t  I  wou ld  have  

been the re  or  ca l led  in  when the  10 :64 de l ibera t ion  takes  

p lace.   

So,  in  most  o f  these meet ings,  and there  you w i l l  

come in ,  they w i l l  te l l  you  tha t  the re  is  a  meet ing  be tween 

10 and 12,  e i ther  a t  ten ,  o r  you go you s i t  ou ts ide  fo r  an 

hour,  you en joy  a  tea ,  and then a t  some po in t ,  and when 

they are  ready w i th  a  par t i cu la r  i tem,  then they w i l l  ca l l  you  10 

in  bu t  I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f  be ing  present  when the  100 

locomot ives  was d iscussed.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can I  jus t  ask  –  bu t  i f  you  cou ld  tu rn  

up  Exh ib i t  BB4A,  I  want  to  go  the  m inutes  aga in .  

MR GAMA:    BB?  

CHAIRPERSON:    BB4A,  somebody w i l l  he lp  you ,  wh i le  

they a re  look ing  fo r  a  f i le  fo r  you,  I  want  to  ask  the  

quest ion .   I f  bo th  types o f  locomot ives  were  to  be  

d iscussed wou ld  i t  have made sense fo r  you to  leave  

before  the  o the r  one was d iscussed?  I  th ink  you sa id  you 20 

wou ld  have been there  o r  you were  there  fo r  the  1064.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you do no t  remember  be ing  there  

when the  o ther  one was d iscussed .   So I  am jus t  wonder ing  

whethe r  i t  wou ld  have made sense fo r  you to  leave when  
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you  knew tha t  they were  go ing  to  d iscuss and the  o ther  

one as  we l l .   

MR GAMA:    I t  may have been d i scussed before  we  went  in  

fo r  the  1064.   I  cannot  remember  the  sequence  o f  the  

meet ing  m inutes  when I  looked a t  i t  in  te rms o f  what  was 

d iscussed f i rs t .   But  I  have been more  invo l ved  on the 

1064 in  te rms o f  what  was be ing  d iscussed on tha t  

par t i cu la r  day.   

 Remember  tha t ,  I  had even sent  a  memo the  day 

be fore  and I  was  not  rea l l y  sure  when I  sa id  no ,  th is  th ing  10 

does not  make sense.  I  was not  sure  tha t  I  d id  no t  know 

tha t  i t  was even on the  agenda.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  I  jus t  wanted you to  p lease tu rn  

in  Exh ib i t  BB4A to  page 228,  i t  i s  annexed to  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  

a f f idav i t ,  the  m inutes  we looked a t  them yeste rday  br ie f l y.   

You w i l l  see  tha t  these are  the  m inutes  o f  the  meet ing  on  

24 January,  we ident i f ied  tha t  Mr  Mole fe  and S ingh were  

present  and tha t  you were  par t ia l l y  in  a t tendance,  you and 

Mr  G iann i .  Th i s  meet ing  i f  one has regard  to  the  head ing  20 

commenced a t  11 :50 .  I f  you  go to  t he  foo t  o f  the  page,  you 

see in  i ta l i cs ,  Mr  Gama and Giann i  jo ined the  meet ing  a t  

11 :55  minutes ,  f i ve  m inutes  a f te rwards.  

 Go through the document you wi l l  see at  page 230 at  

paragraph 5.9 that  the acquisi t ion of  the 599 electr ic motor – 
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locomot ives were discussed.   I f  you then turn forward to 

page 232 you wi l l  see at  paragraph 5.2 the acquisi t ion of  an 

addi t ional  100 Class 19E electr ic and 60 Class 43 diesel  

locomot ives was discussed.   And then perhaps I  could ask 

you to turn al l  the way forward to  page 237.   You wi l l  see 

just  above paragraph 5.6 again in i ta l ics i t  ref lects that  

Messrs Gama and Jiyane were excused f rom the meet ing at  

15:03.    

MR GAMA:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You want to comment on that? 10 

MR GAMA:   So I  th ink my comments of  yesterday might  

remain a posi t ive – also took place a long t ime where I  was 

said these are the kinds of  meet ings where you spoke when 

you were spoken to as wel l  but  I  just  do not  recal l  th is  actual  

discussion about the 100.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  I  could then take you back to the 

Fundudzi  Report  and this is the last  th ing I  am going to put  

to you in relat ion to the 100 locomot ives and th is report .   

Can you turn please to page 160.   There i f  I  can di rect  your 

at tent ion to the middle of  the page.  I t  says at  paragraph 20 

5.8.29.4.  

“Transnet would have saved R1.2 b i l l ion i f  i t  

procured 100 locomot ives f rom Mitsui . ”  

 Do you have any comment on that? 

MR GAMA:   Ja I  th ink i t  is a wrong conclusion.   There were 
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certain assumpt ions I  th ink Mr Singh’s aff idavi t  was 

indicat ing that  Mi tsui  had pr iced based on assumpt ions that  

they could use certain exist ing parts that  were in Transnet ’s 

possession.    

I  do not  know how much exact ly those were.   I t  would 

need to be costed in  order  for –  for  a  statement  to  be made.  

The potent ia l  saving – let  us assume i t  was t rue but  I  am – I  

am just  saying that  the parts need to be taken into account  

because there is a cost  to that  I  do not  know maybe they are 

worth 600,  800 mi l l ion or 1 bi l l ion I  do not  know.   10 

But  when you look at  these things you must  also look 

at  the total  cost  of  ownership.   The f requent taking out  of  

locomot ives for maintenance and repairs  of  Mitsui ’s actual ly 

counter products and that  cost .    

So you might  say I  am going to save some money up 

f ront  i f  you thought you were saving i t  is l ike somebody who 

buys a bicycle versus somebody who buys a smal l  VW 

Beet le.   You save some money by buying the bicycle in the 

f ront  but  i f  you had bought the Beet le you might  have been 

safer and you might  reach certain  places a l i t t le bi t  faster.   20 

So i f  the total  cost  of  ownership were to be taken into 

account i t  is un l ikely that  the conclusion that  Fundudzi  

reached could be reached.   

Because as I  have said there were a lot  of  problems.  

In fact  I  th ink even now they are st i l l  exper iencing some 
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problems with these Mitsui  locomot ives.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  would then l ike to address br ief ly the 

issue of  the increase in the ETC of  the 100 locomot ives f rom 

3.8 bi l l ion to 4.8 bi l l ion.   Now we saw yesterday that  the 

agreement was concluded on the 17 t h of  March 2014.  

MR GAMA:   Okay where are we now – which bundle must  we 

go to? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No st ick – st ick wi th that .  

MR GAMA:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We wi l l  come to the relevant  part  in  a 10 

moment.   So we saw yesterday the LSA’s concluded on 17 

March 2014.  The evidence has been that  Mr Singh then 

requested Mr Laher to prepare a memorandum explaining 

why the pr ices had increased f rom the business case 

submission and u l t imately that  memorandum was produced 

and there is reference to i t .   I f  I  could ask you to go to page 

141 of  the Fundudzi  Report .   I t  says there at  paragraph 

5.6.18.8.  

“We determined that  Molefe,  Singh and Gama 

issued a memorandum to the board on 23 20 

May recommending approval  to increase the 

ETC from 3.8 bi l l ion to 4.8.”  

 Now i t  refers to Annexure B35 that  you were 

furnished with.   You wi l l  f ind that  document in another f i le  

perhaps I  could ask you to leave that  document open and 
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then i f  someone can help you f ind Bundle BB4(f ) .    This is 

Transnet Bundle 4 here.   Transnet Bundle 4.    

MR GAMA:   BB4.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Mr Myburgh I  am told there is 4(a)  and 4(b)  

which one is i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   4(b).   Could you turn to page 550 that  

is where you wi l l  f ind the memo.   

MR GAMA:   550.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.   Now let  me just  take you direct ly 

to the last  page 563.  10 

MR GAMA:   Sorry I  am – page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Did you say 553? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   563 Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   563.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  is the signature page.  Now you 

wi l l  see that  there i t  records:  

“ I t  is recommended that  and l i t t le b.  the BOD 

approves the increase in the est imated tota l  

cost  ETC for the acquisi t ion 100 equivalent  

19E dual  vol tage electr ic  locomot ives for  the 20 

export  coal  l ine f rom 3.871 bi l l ion to 4.840 

bi l l ion.   Recommended by Mr Singh,  yoursel f  

and Mr Molefe.”  

 You see that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now this memorandum the evidence 

has been that  for  about  two months f rom the 17t h  of  March 

up unt i l  the thi rd  week or  so in  May – for two months Mr 

Laher assisted Mr S ingh in  put t ing together th is  

memorandum.  Mr Laher gave evidence that  Mr S ingh would 

in fact  send him updates,  changes that  had to be made and 

Mr Laher would then type them and effect  them.   Would you 

conf i rm that  th is is the work of  Mr Singh when he was the 

f i rst  recommender,  do you conf i rm that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes i t  is a f inance and a pr ic ing related matter.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.   Now Mr Cal lard gave some 

evidence that  he considered the pr ice increase not  to be 

just i f iable.   Evidence to that  effect  was a lso given by an 

expert  Mr Chawbe.  Now th is is an issue that  is being played 

out  in our examinat ion you wi l l  recal l  Mr Chai rperson of  Mr 

Singh because he is the author of  th is document.   An expert  

report  has been put  up.   He has f i led a comprehensive 

aff idavi t  etcetera.   I  do not  want  to – and you were not  

issued with a 3.3 in respect  of  Mr Chawbe’s evidence.   I  do 

not  want to be unfai r  to  you and take you through al l  of  that  I  20 

wi l l  just  s imply ask you to – to comment.  There is  – there 

has been evidence led that  th is increase is considered not  to  

be just i f iable.   Mr Chawbe said that  anything above 800 

mi l l ion would not  be just i f iable.   Do you have any comment 

that?  I  mean I  would accept  ent i re ly  that  i t  is  a st r ict  
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f inancial  issue.  

MR GAMA:   Now who is Mr Chawbe? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   He was the expert  who gave evidence.  

MR GAMA:   No I  do not  know.  What does Mr Laher say? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your pardon.  

MR GAMA:   What does Mr Laher say because he was 

working on the document?  What was Mr Laher ’s view? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  Mr Laher ’s v iew as I  recal l  was 

that  he did what Mr Singh told him to do.  

MR GAMA:   Oh.   Not  very useful .   Okay no I  am not  able to  10 

comment on what  Mr Chawbe said.  I  do not  know him I  do 

not  know what he is an expert  on.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   I  want  then to – to turn to the 

procurement of  the 1064 locomot ives.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Are we going back to Bundle 6? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am going back to Bundle 6 yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And I  want to take you to that  port ion 

of  the Fundudzi  Report  i t  makes i t  easy to ident i fy the core 

facts deal ing wi th  the 1064.  Can I  take you please f i rst  to  20 

page 177.   In fact  I  wi l l  start  at  178.   Are you there?   

MR GAMA:   No not  yet .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Can I  d i rect  your at tent ion please to  

paragraph 5.9.10 towards the foot  of  the page under the 

heading Business Case/Budget.   Paragraph – f i rst  sub-
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paragraph reads:  

“We were provided wi th a copy of  a  business 

case dated 25 Apri l  2013 t i t led Procurement 

1064 Locomot ives for the general  f re ight  

business f inal  vers ion which out l ined the 

need for 1064 (465 diesel  and 599 electr ic  

locomot ives) Annexure C25.  The said 

business case recommended the purchase of  

1064 locomot ives at  a total  cost  of  38.6 

bi l l ion excluding potent ia l  effects f rom forex 10 

hedging,  forex escalat ion and other pr ice 

escalat ions as per  corporate plan.”  

 Now that  business case you f ind at  Exhib i t  BB4(b) .   

Page 401 the annexures to Cal lard’s aff idavi t .    

MR GAMA:    BB4(b).    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You have a lot  of  – a lot  of  f lags and 

dividers.   I  th ink i t  is  probably the f i rst  document or  c lose to 

the beginning.   I t  is page FQC401 Mr Gama.  

MR GAMA:   I  got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Annexure FC54.  You have i t?  20 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So on the f i rst  page i f  you go to 402 

you wi l l  see there procurement of  the 1064 locomot ives for  

general  f re ight  business.   Date of  submission 25 Apri l  

addressed to Transnet board of  d i rectors.   And th is is a  
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document that  runs to 115 pages.   Perhaps you could go to  

the end and that  is at  page 516.   I  th ink I  have asked you 

al ready whether you recal l  ever signing this  business case 

and perhaps in fa i rness I  must  ment ion to you that  we for  

some reason have not  been able to f ind the signed vers ion.  

Can you recal l  ever signing i t?  

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .    

MR GAMA:   I  have no recol lect ion.   This was the f inal  one 

that  went to the board.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  is correct .   So i f  we can go back 

to the beginning of  the business case.   Now I  want  to take 

you to page 405 because as you know i t  is th is phrase 

excluding that  has become content ious.   I f  you look at  405 

the last  paragraph second sentence.  

“Accordingly i t  is recommended that  the 1064 

locomot ive business case be approved with  

est imated total  costs of  the acquisi t ion of  

38.6 bi l lon as per the corporate plan 

(excluding the potent ia l  effects f rom forex 20 

hedging,  forex escalat ion and other pr ice 

escalat ions. )”  

 You see that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then i f  I  can ask you please to go back 
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to the Fundudzi  Report  th is is at  Bundle 6 you should st i l l   

have i t  open page 177.   177 three paragraphs f rom the 

bot tom.  

“According to Cal lard the business case 

submit ted to the board incorrect ly stated that  

the ETC of  38.6 b i l l ion excluded forex 

escalat ion and other pr ice escalat ions.”  

 And the next  paragraph.  

“We determined that  the f inal  business case 

dated 25 Apri l  2013 submit ted to the board 10 

was amended to state that  the ETC of  48.6 

bi l l ion excluded the potent ia l  effects f rom 

forex hedging,  forex escalat ion and other  

pr ice escalat ions. ”  

 You want to comment on those two paragraphs? 

MR GAMA:   The – the 38.6 bi l l ion did include some – what  

you cal l  i t  forex assumpt ion as I  understood i t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   I t  d id include some – i t  should have said i t  

excluded borrowing costs because we always excluded 20 

borrowing costs and that  was always determined later.  But  

certain assumpt ions around foreign exchange were always 

made and the 38.6 was a histor ical  number that  had been 

developed I  th ink even at  the TFR business case was about 

38 bi l l ion.   I t  has some assumpt ions around foreign 
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exchange.  But  i t  d id not  have everything.   I t  d id not  have 

borrowing costs and other th ings but  i t  d id include some 

assumpt ions around foreign exchange.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So you deal  wi th th is in some detai l  in  

one of  your aff idavi ts.  

MR GAMA:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Let  me take you there.   Exhibi t  BB28 

Bundle 7.    

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is Bundle 7.  

MR GAMA:   I t  is raining f i les today Chai r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  is I  am af raid.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Hopeful ly you do not  th ink i t  is al l  meant to  

confuse you.    

MR GAMA:   No we shal l  not  be confused.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Have you got  the page Mr Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Page 250.170.    

CHAIRPERSON:   I  just  ment ion this whi le I  remember.   I  

hope that  Mr Gama and his team did remember the issue of  

that  emai l  that  we discussed yesterday.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes we have i t  and we have got  i t  in  20 

the bundle al ready.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We wi l l  come to that  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Gama you deal  wi th th is in 
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paragraph 78.6 and what you deal ing wi th there is the 

creat ion and the development of  the business case.   I f  you 

go over the page to 171 you wi l l  see 123456 l ines down on 

the r ight  hand side i t  says:  

“On 25 Apri l  2013 one year af ter we handed 

over the process to Group the board 

approved the business case for the 

acquisi t ion of  the 1064 locomot ives at  an 

est imated cost  of  R38.6 bi l l ion which 

excluded the potent ia l  effects f rom forex 10 

hedging,  forex escalat ion and other pr ice 

escalat ions.   The aforesaid approval  was 

premised on a memorandum dated 18 Apri l  a  

copy of  which is annexed.  You say however 

the recommendat ion to the Transnet  board of  

di rectors contained in paragraph 23 of  the 

memorandum has become the source of  

much speculat ion as to i ts meaning.   The 

capt ion which reads and i t  is  what  found i ts  

way into the board approval  ETC for the 20 

acquisi t ion is est imated R38.6 bi l l ion as per 

the corporate plan (excluding potent ia l  

effects f rom forex hedging,  forex escalat ion 

and other pr ice escalat ions) is ambiguous.   I  

have deal t  wi th the ul t imate increase in the 
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contract  va lue here in above and have made 

my posi t ion very clear  which is that  the cost  

components were in fact  included albei t  at  an 

est imated and assumed values which proved 

inaccurate and wi th us understat ing. ”  

 Is that  – you stand by that? 

MR GAMA:   Absolutely.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now i f  I  could take you to the minutes 

of  the board meet ing held on the 25t h of  Apri l  2013 which we 

have a lready references in the Fundudzi  Report .   These 10 

minutes you wi l l  be assisted you f ind in Bundle BB4(a).   Oh 

sorry BB4(g) I  beg your pardon.   Pierre i t  is that  f i le.   Could I  

ask you please to turn to page 59.   You wi l l  see at  page 59 

that  th is is a minute of  the special  board of  di rectors of  

Transnet meet ing held on 25 Apri l  2013.   You wi l l  see that  

present  were inter al ia Mr Molefe,  Mr Sharma and Mr Singh 

and there was part ia l  at tendance by yoursel f  and Mr Peter.   

You see that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now this meet ing said in terms of  the 20 

heading to have started at  14:20.   I f  you go to page 60 the 

next  page you wi l l  see just  above paragraph 4.4.3 i t  records 

that  Mr Gama jo ined the meet ing at  14:50.   You see that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  you go to the fol lowing 
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page 61 you wi l l  see r ight  at  the end that  the meet ing closed 

at  14:45.  

MR GAMA:   15:45.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your pardon 15:45.   So on the 

face of  i t  you were at  that  meet ing for just  short  of  an hour,  

is that  correct :  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The resolut ion that  was adopted 

appears just  above the heading close at  page 61 and i t  

contains this sentence that  we have been discussing.  10 

“The business case for the acquisi t ion of  the 

1064 locomot ives for TFR’s general  f re ight  

business at  an est imated cost  38.6 bi l l ion as 

per corporate plan.”  

 And then the content ious piece.  

“Excluding potent ia l  effects for  forex 

hedging,  forex escalat ion and other pr ice 

escalat ions.   The submission of  PFMA 

appl icat ion to the shareholder Minister for 

approval . ”  20 

 You see that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  says… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sorry Mr Myburgh I  do not  see that .  

Are you st i l l  at  page 50? 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am at  page 61 – the page numbers 

are di ff icul t  to read.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You know this is 61 and they have 51.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  yes i t  is 51 and 61.   I  th ink the 

off ic ia l  page number Chai rperson is YM61.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you wi l l  see i t  has got  a l ine through 

i t  and then there is… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Handwri t ten 51.   I  th ink i t  should 10 

actual ly be 61.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   So where about on the page were 

you reading? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you go to just  above the heading 

close at  the foot  o f  the page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You go up about f ive l ines or so you 

wi l l  see there is a  heading resolved that  the board approved 

the fol lowing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay yes.   Okay.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So what the board approved there was 

the business case an est imated cost  of  38.6 bi l l ion and then 

you have the content ious phrase excluding.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which was cont rary to the business case 

document.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   So Mr Gama I  just  want to ask 

you then were you present  when th is resolut ion was 

adopted? 

MR GAMA:   I  th ink the resolut ion came with the – what you 

cal l  i t  – the business case that  was submit ted yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So why did you not  correct  that  

statement? 

MR GAMA:   The statement is not  incorrect .   That  is  why I  

say i t  is ambiguous because a lot  of  people nowadays they 

are t ry ing to interpret  what i t  means.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  – you wi l l  have to just  speak to  i t  a 

l i t t le bi t  more because my understanding was exact ly that  

you were saying ear l ier on the business case has formulated 

I  th ink at  TFR made certain assumpt ions.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You make that  point .   But  I  thought you 

said that  . . . [ indis t inct  – word cut  off ]  even i f  i t  is no t  a l l ,  

these th ings tha t  th is  phrase in  the  m inutes  says:   I  

exc luded.   I  thought  you were  say ing  tha t  they were  

inc luded a t  tha t  s tage.   So I  may have misunders tood you.   20 

So we might  have  to  jus t  ta lk  to  i t  more .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .   No,  the  s ta tement  i s  no t  incor rec t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    The  s ta tement  i s  cor rec t  tha t  i t  exp la in ing (?)  

po ten t ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  and  
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o ther  p r ices  esca la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR GAMA :    And tha t  i s  why I  sa id  i t  i s  ambiguous  because 

then to  some peop le  they th ink  tha t  i t  wou ld  have inc luded  

a l l  o f  the  fo rex  assumpt ions.   There  were  –  the re  was an 

inc lus ion  o f  cer ta in  fo rex  assumpt ions bu t  no t  eve ry th ing .   

So the  s ta tement  in  i t se l f ,  as  adopted by  the  board  on  tha t  

day,  was not  inco r rec t .   That  i s  why I  sa id  i t  i s  amb iguous 

because –  and i t  has  led  to  a  lo t  o f  [ laughs]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  oh  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR GAMA :    . . . consternat ion  because peop le  have t r ied  –  

are  t ry ing  to  say i t  was 38.6  b i l l i on .   Every th ing  tha t  has to  

do  w i th  fo rex  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in to  account .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .   I  am say ing  there  was fo rex  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Tak ing  in  accoun t .  

MR GAMA :    . . . tak ing  in to  account .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  there  was some fo rex  no t  tak ing  in to  

account .  20 

MR GAMA :    Yes because the  wor ld  changed.   So le t  us  pu t  

i t  a  da te  on  th is  because I  th ink  i t  is  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR GAMA :    So  the  da te  o f  th is  i s  the  25 t h  o f  Apr i l  2013.   

So there  is  tha t  d iscuss ion .   On the  Bus iness Case,  you  
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w i l l  see  tha t  there  are  cer ta in  assumpt ions.   The 

assumpt ions are  what  i s  the  Rand/Do l la r  spot  ra te ,  and  

then in  there  i t  a lso  g i ves  you an assumpt ion  o f  wha t  i s  the 

fu tu re .   What  i s  the  l i ke ly?   Because th is  i s  the  wor ld  o f  

specu la t ion .   What  i s  the  l i ke ly  fo re ign  exchange?  I  th ink  

i t  says  –  I  do  no t  have the  numbers  in  f ron t  o f  me but  i f  we 

go back to  tha t  f i l e ,  Mr  Myburgh,  where  you ta lked  about  –  

I  jus t  want  to  take  you ve ry  b r ie f l y  to  tha t .   I t  i s  on  my  

s ta tement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . the  Bus iness Case?  [Speaker  10 

unc lea r  –  m icrophone not  sw i tched on]  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  To  the  Bus iness Case.   I  th ink  tha t  i s  

what  w i l l  e luc ida te  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You f ind  tha t  passage . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    . . .no t  the  issues. . .  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  tha t  i s  Exh ib i t  BB-4(b) .    

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Uhm . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . f i rs t  document .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  bund le  i s  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    BB-4(b) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And have we got  the  page or  i s  
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tha t  the  beg inn ing?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The Bus iness Case. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  the  beg inn ing .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .  s ta r ts  a t  page 402.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.    

MR GAMA :    Okay.   I t  w i l l  be  page  435.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  be fore  go ing  there ,  I  jus t  wanted to  

go  to  page 405 because I  know Mr  Myburgh draw a t ten t ion  

to  tha t .   I  see  there  a t  the  las t  page tha t  says exc lud ing  

the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  f rom forex  hedg ing ,  fo rex  esca la t ion  10 

and o ther  p r ice  esca la t ions.   But  you say we must  go  to  

435?  

MR GAMA :    Yes .   So Cha i r  tha t  phrase o f  38 .6  exc lud ing ,  

i t  i s  go ing  to  resonate  r igh t  un t i l  the  end.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    So  i t  i s  there  and I  am say ing  there  is  a  

source  o f  ambigu i ty  in  i t  because there  are  peop le  who 

have come here  and sa id  to  you the  fo re ign  exchange was 

inc luded and then they have g i ven you the  impress ion  tha t  

whatever  ca lcu la t ion  tha t  wou ld  have been made  on the  20 

25 t h  o f  Apr i l  o r  the  18 t h  o f  Apr i l ,  to  be  spec i f i c ,  because 

tha t  i s  the  da te  on  wh ich  the  Bus iness Case had been 

prepared,  tha t  the  ac tua l  exchange ra te  wou ld  remain  f i xed  

dur ing  tha t  pe r iod .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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MR GAMA :    I  do  no t  –  jus t  want  to  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion  

in  te rms o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  be fore  you proceed.   I  do  no t  

th ink  anybody th inks  tha t  they were  say ing  the  exchange 

ra te  wou ld  remain  f i xed .   My unders tand ing  is  tha t  when  

you ta lk  about  what  cer ta in  i tems hav ing  been exc luded or  

inc luded,  my unders tand ing  i s  tha t  peop le  are  ta l k ing  about  

what  was tak ing  in to  account  and what  was not  tak ing  in to  

account  w i th  an  unders tand ing  tha t  i t s  es t imates .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And there  are  assumpt ions bu t  i f  you  d id  

no t  inc lude in  your  ca l cu la t ions  and assumpt ions  cer ta in  

i tems,  then they say you have exc luded them.  

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  I  jus t  wanted to  ment ion  tha t .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  my unders tand ing .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .   No,  no  tha t  i s  why Cha i r  I  say  i t  i s  

ambiguous.   I  th ink  –  tha t  i s  why I  say  i t  i s  ambiguous.   

Can I  take  the  Cha i r  to  page 442?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    442?  

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    A t  the  top ,  i t  says  Forex R isk  Mi t iga t i on .   Do 

you see tha t?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

MR GAMA :    I f  we –  and they  t r ied  to  exp la in  what  i t  

means.   I f  you  go down to  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  there  is  

somewhere  where  i t  says  Exh ib i t  29 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MR GAMA :    And then i t  says  the  Rand/Do l la r  exchange  

ra te ,  one Do l la r  i s  R 9 ,13 .   And then i t  says :   A year  f rom 

now i t  w i l l  be  R 9 .59 .   And then i t  goes on and i t  says :   In  

year  seven –  year  seven wou ld  be  2002,  las t  yea r.   In  yea r  

seven i t  wou ld  be  R 12.55.   So those were  the  assumpt ions 10 

what  they ca l l  a  fo rward  curve  tha t  were  used  in  the 

Bus iness Case.    

 The assumpt ion  be ing  in  2014 the  Rand w i l l  be  

R 9 .59 ,  in  2015 the  Rand w i l l  be  R 10,00 to  the  Do l l a r.   The 

Do l la r  w i l l  be  R 10.52 in  2016 and  tha t  in  2017 i t  wou ld  be  

R 11,00 and tha t  in  2017 i t  wou ld  be  R 11.48.   in  2018 i t  

w i l l  be  R 11.98.    

 So those were  the  assumpt ions tha t  were  used in  

th is  Bus iness Case.   What  then happened –  so  in  here  is  

inc luded those assumpt ions.   So i t  i s  t rue .   In  the  Bus iness 20 

Case –  the  Bus iness Case says 38  b i l l i on  bu t  i t  inc ludes  

those th ings tha t  were  assumed on tha t  day.   I t  exc ludes  

any fo rex  esca la t ions tha t  a re  beyond the i r  assumpt ions.    

 So i t  means on the  day tha t  they ac tua l l y  had to  

en ter  i n to  an  cont rac t  based on  commi tments ,  they are  
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go ing  to  use new curves,  new exchange ra te  curves.   You  

w i l l  know Cha i r  tha t  the  Rand,  even now as we speak,  i t  i s  

s i t t ing  a t  about  R  18,80.   I  am not  sure  what  i t  i s  bu t  i t  is  

coming f rom around R 18,00 or  R 17,00 and i t  has  been  

there  fo r  qu i te  a  long t ime.    

 So there  were  a  lo t  o f  th ings tha t  happened a f te r  

the  Bus iness Case to  the  t ime tha t  the  cont rac t  were  then  

entered in to .   So,  yes ,  we a l l  agree.   I  am not  amongst  

those who are  say ing  there  was no fo re ign  exchange  

assumpt ion .   I  am say ing  there  was fo re ign  exchange  10 

assumpt ion  in  the  Bus iness Case.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  ja .  

MR GAMA :    A l l  I  am say ing  is  tha t  i t  was unders ta ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  because I  was about  to  say  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    And the  fac t  –  and perhaps inaccura te  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    . . . in  a  sense.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  was about  to  say.   As  fa r  as  the  20 

Rand/Do l la r  exchange is  concerned,  what  you have been  

say ing  does not  seem to  me to  go ing  to  inc lus ion  or  

exc lus ion .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  s imp ly  goes to  whethe r  your  es t imates  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 189 of 317 
 

p roved to  be  cor rec t  o r  no t .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And o f  course  w i th  these th ings  i t  i s  no t  

–  you never  have  cer ta in ty.  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You know,  i t  i s  a  cer ta in  es t imate .  

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And obv ious ly,  you have to  ad jus t  when  

you come to  the  day.  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    To  say what  i s  the  –  what  i s  today ’s  ra te .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  seems to  me tha t ,  based on what  

you are  say ing ,  one wou ld  no t  say  –  one wou ld  say  i t  was 

inc luded but  maybe the  es t imat ion  m ight  have been lower  

than what  i t  shou ld  have been.  

MR GAMA :    Ye ,  i t  was unders ta ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    And hence,  there  was the  e f fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

MR GAMA :    The e f fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    Exc lud ing  the  e f fec t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    . . .o f  fo re ign  exchange hedg ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    The word  e f fec t  i s  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    So  a l l  I  am say ing  is  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    . . . the  s ta tement  in  i t se l f  i s  no t  incor rec t ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GAMA :    I t  says  the  e f fec t s ,  because what  these  

peop le  knew was  tha t  the  numbers  are  l i ke ly  to  change but  10 

I  do  no t  th ink  anybody wou ld  have assumed to  wou ld  have 

known by how much.   So you go  on the  assumpt ion .   So 

tha t  i s  rea l l y  wha t  I  want  to  say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Mr  Myburgh.  

MR GAMA :    . . .based on tha t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  what  I  th ink  tha t  what  Mr  Gama 

has put  to  you,  you have shown us w i th  re fe rence  to  442 

tha t  fo re ign  esca la t ion  was cons ide red in  the  Bus iness 

Case . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . . in  a r r i v ing  a t  the  f igure  o f  38 .6 .   

The po in t  i s  tha t  442 does not  te l l  you  what  405 wh ich  says 

tha t  i t  exc luded the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  o f  fo re ign  esca la t ion .   

And the  ev idence  is  tha t  tha t  purpose,  tha t  p reamb le ,  tha t  

was a  –  i t  shou ld  no t  change and there  is  ev idence  to the 
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e f fec t  tha t ,  jus t  as  I  have put  to  you now,  i t  i s  a t  odds w i th  

the  Bus iness Case.   So Mr  Gama,  perhaps I  can ask  you to  

comment  on  tha t  be fore  I  pu t  someth ing  e lse  to  you.  

MR GAMA :    Sor ry,  what  a re  you say ing?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you wan t  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    I t  may have been cha l lenged but  as  I  have  

sa id  to  you Cha i r,  a t  best  we are  dea l ing  w i th  ambigu i ty  

here .   I  know tha t  fo re ign  exchange assumpt ions were  

made in  the  Bus iness Case.   But  then there  are  peop le  who 

wou ld  then want  to  say to  you tha t  because they were  10 

made then i t  means the  numbers  must  be  f i xed  a t  38 .6  

b i l l i on .    

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .anybody says tha t  Mr  Gama.    

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Nobody says tha t .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Nobody is  say ing  tha t .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .   So they were  made but  a t  the  t ime o f  the 

ac tua l  cont rac t  –  so  I  have sa id  to  the  Commiss ion  in  the  

past  few days tha t  there  is  the  investment  dec is ion .   So 20 

there  is  an  inves tment  dec is ion .   I t  i s  made a t  38 .6  b i l l i on  

exc lud ing  the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts .   I  wou ld  have probab ly  

worded i t  d i f fe ren t ly.    

 I  wou ld  have sa id  i t  exc ludes hedge purg ing  

costs  and exc ludes -  cos ts  and leave i t  a t  tha t  because  
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par t  o f  the  fo rex  is  rea l l y  the  e f f ec ts  o f  the  fo rex .   When 

you enter  in to  what  we then w i l l  ca l l  the  procurement  

dec is ion ,  on  tha t  day there  is  a  new fo rward  curve  o f  fo rex  

tha t  i s  then used and then i t  means the  e f fec ts  -  the  e f fec ts  

i s  the  de l ta  be tween the  fo rex  curve  on  the  da te  o f  the  

procu rement  dec i s ion  ve rsus the  da te  o f  the  investment  

dec is ion .    

 So tha t  the  inves tment  dec is ion  i s  23  Apr i l  2013 

or  whatever  the  da te  was,  c lose  to  tha t .   And then the  

procu rement  dec is ion  is  the  one  tha t  i s  taken on the  10 

17 t h  o f  March o f  2014,  wh ich  is  a  year  la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes bu t  we  are  no t  dea l ing  w i th  tha t  

now.   We are  dea l ing  w i th  the  Bus iness Case  tha t  i s  

p resented to  t he  board  on  the  25 t h  o f  Apr i l  2013 and the  

assumpt ion  is  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  tha t .    

MR GAMA :    Ja .   So I  w i l l  repeat  myse l f .   I  th ink  we shou ld  

no t  be  dogmat ic  about  th is .   The e f fec ts  –  to  say exc lud ing  

the  e f fec ts .   I  do  no t  th ink  there  is  anyth ing  inco r rec t  in  

tha t .   The fo re ign  exchange assumpt ions had been made.   20 

They were  encapsu la ted  in  the  ac tua l  Bus iness Case.   That  

was the  investment  dec is ion  tha t  was made on a  par t i cu la r  

day based on the  fo re ign  exchange cu rve  tha t  we have 

d iscussed a t  422.    

 Because I  w i l l  then take  you to  the  document  
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tha t  I  sa id  was p resented by  Laher  and Smi t ,  where  they 

then come up w i th  a  new investment  cu rve  –  I  mean,  a  

fo re ign  exchange  curve .    

CHAIRPERSON :    When you sa id  there  was some fo re ign  

exchange tha t  was taken in to  account ,  o ther  fo re ign  

exchange. . .   [Speaker ’s  vo ice  drops –  unc lea r ]   What  were  

you ta lk ing  about?  

MR GAMA :    So  the  assumpt ions  were  o f  the  Rand tha t  

wou ld  remain  re la t i ve ly  s t rong i f  you look a t  422 Cha i r.   I f  

you  look a t  the  numbers .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR GAMA :    Except  tha t  by  2020,  the  Rand/Do l la r  wou ld  

be  R 12.55.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  unders tand . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . tha t  i s  par t  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes.   So and tha t  was  taken in to  account .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  on  the  . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR GAMA :    In  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .account .  20 

[Speakers  in te rven ing  each o ther  –  unc lear ]  

MR GAMA :    Ja .   What  was not  taken in to  accoun t  i s  th is  

de l ta  tha t  we then are  ta lk ing  about .   In  fac t ,  in  rea l i t y,  the 

Rand the  deprec ia ted  much,  much fas te r  in  rea l  l i f e  and 

tha t  then the  assumpt ions tha t  were  made here .   And tha t  
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i s  why i t  i s  impor tan t  when you look a t  th is ,  you must  a lso  

then re f lec t  on  the  o ther  document  tha t  I  re fe r red  to  wh ich  

the  Treasury  Team then produced on the  day when the  

cont rac t  was ac tua l l y  en te red in to .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  aga in ,  I  jus t  want  to  pu t  

to  you aga in .   What  we a re  look ing  a t  now is  the  pos i t ion  

as  o f  25  Apr i l  2015.   Bu Mr  Gama,  do  you not  pu t  i t  s imp ly  

and most  e loquen t ly  in  your  a f f idav i t ,  where  you say:    

“ I  have made my pos i t ion  very  c lea r,  wh ich  is  10 

tha t  the  costs  components . . .  [And we are  

ta lk ing  about  these ones. ]  . . .were  in  fac t  

inc luded a lbe i t  a t  es t imated and assumed 

va lues wh ich  proved inaccura te  and were  thus 

unders ta ted . . . ”  

 I s  i t  no t  as  s imp le  as  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  why I  have sa id  about  s ix  t imes,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .    

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  they were  inc luded?  20 

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    They say he re  tha t  they were  

exc luded.   I t  i s  as  s imp le  as  tha t .  

MR GAMA :    I  am say ing  to  you Mr  Myburgh.   To  say  

exc lud ing  the  po tent ia l  e f fec ts  i s  no t  incor rec t .   Tha t  i s  a l l  I  
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am say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you say ing  tha t  what  you say in  the  

parag raph tha t  Mr  Myburgh has read f rom your  a f f idav i t  i s  

the  same as what  they say in  the  m inutes?  

MR GAMA :    Yes . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Say ing  you are  say ing  the  same th ing?  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  i t  i s  no t  incor rec t  Cha i r.   I t  jus t  says as  o f  

th is  day th ings look l i ke  th is  bu t  we do not  know the  

po tent ia l  e f fec ts  go ing  fo rward .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   I  wou ld  jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR GAMA :    Bu t  I  know tha t  th is  th ing  cou ld  have been  

worded much more  e loquent ly.   I t  was not  worded  

e loquent ly  a t  a l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  le t  me jus t  take  you to  some o f  

the  ev idence tha t  has been led .   Mr  Laher  and Mr  Mole  and 

Mr  Ca l la rd  were  requested in  2018 to  under take an 

invest iga t ion  to  de termine i f  the  Bus iness Case  o f  38 .6  

ETC inc luded fo rex  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  and they found  

tha t  i t  d id .   Do you agree o r  d isagree w i th  tha t  ev idence? 

MR GAMA :    No,  we are  in  agreement  w i th  tha t .   There  is  20 

no  need . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   You are  read ing  f rom where  

now Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am paraphras ing  the  ev idence tha t  

has been g i ven.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You w i l l  remember  tha t  ev idence has 

been g iven,  Cha i rpe rson,  tha t  in  2018 Mr  Laher,  Mr  Mole  

and Mr  Ca l la rd  were  reques ted to  under take an  

invest iga t ion  to  de termine i f  the  Bus iness Case,  ETC o f  

38 .6  inc luded fo rex  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  and they  

conc luded tha t  i t  d id .   Mr  Gama does not  d isagree w i th  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  has  a lso  been ev idence by  

Dr  F ine  o f  McK insey,  who tes t i f ied  tha t  the  Bus iness Case  

ETC o f  38 .6  a lso  inc luded,  he  sa id ,  hedg ing  and  

esca la t ion .   You wou ld  no t  d isagree w i th  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    No,  we do not  d isag ree w i th  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And the  exper t ,  Mr  Chawde,  

a lso  came to  tha t  conc lus ion .    

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  take  i t  you  wou ld  no t  d i sag ree w i th  

tha t?  20 

ADV OLDWAGE :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  do  no t  know.  

ADV OLDWAGE :    I  have been ra ther  pa t ien t  l i s ten ing  to  

Mr  Myburgh put  i t  to  Mr  Gama tha t  var ious o the r  persons 

have sa id  cer ta in  th ings.   I t  s ta r ted  in i t ia l l y  w i th  Mr  
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Chawde –  i f  my pronunc ia t ion  is  cor rec t  –  sa id  X ,  Y,  Z .   

There  is  no  reason ing  to  p rov ide  the  bas i s  upon wh ich  tha t  

tes t imony was pro f fe red  in  the  f i rs t  p lace .    

 What  we c lear l y  see now is  tha t  there  is  a  

d i f fe ren t  apprec ia t ion ,  approach and perhaps in te rpre ta t ion  

to  the  concept ,  what  was and wha t  was not  inc luded.   But  

to  s imp ly  pu t  to  a  w i tness:   Wel l ,  somebody e lse  sa id  th is .   

Wi thout  p rov id ing  the  contex t  in  wh ich  he  sa id  why he sa id  

tha t ,  i s  un fa i r.    

 Par t i cu la r ly,  in  the  contex t  o f  what  we are  10 

dea l ing  w i th  he re  and tha t  i s  the  deprec ia t ion  o f  the  Rand.   

Perhaps to  be  fa i r  to  Mr  Gama.   I t  shou ld  be  put  to  h im on  

what  bas i s ,  i f  i t  is  contended fo r  wh ich  I  be l ieve  i t  i s ,  tha t  

h is  tes t imony in  th is  regard  is  no t  acceptab le .   On what  

bas is  measured aga ins t  the  o ther  ev idence,  wh ich  is  now 

be ing  put  to  h im,  no t  in  a  proper  contex t .   I t  i s  no t  

acceptab le .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV OLDWAGE :    Be  fa i r  to  Mr  Gama.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  th ink  tha t  g iven tha t  Mr  Gama has  20 

deposed to  an  a f f idav i t  dea l ing  w i th  these issues and has 

expressed h is  v iews,  o rd inar i l y  there  shou ld  be  noth ing  

wrong w i th  pu t t ing  somebody e lse ’s  v iew or  conc lus ion  and 

say:   What  do  you say to  tha t?   But  i f  Mr  Gama says I  

agree because he –  maybe i t  accords w i th  h is  own  v iew in  
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h is  a f f idav i t ,  there  m ight  be  no  need to  go  to  the  contex t .    

 Bu t  i f  he  says:   Wel l ,  I  have d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  tha t  o r  

I  wou ld  l i ke  to  know the  contex t .   Then i t  becomes  

impor tan t  to  look  a t  the  contex t .   But  i t  may be tha t  in i t ia l l y  

i f  one puts  i t  and he says I  have  no p rob lem because he 

has app l ied  h is  m ind to  i t  when he was depos ing  to  h is  

a f f idav i t ,  there  m ight  be  no  prob lem.    

 But  i f  he  says:   No,  I  wou ld  l i ke  contex t  o r  I  do  

no t  agree.   Then  contex t  m ight  become impor tan t  bu t  –  so  

tha t  i s  how I  wou ld  look a t  i t .   Le t  me hear  what  Mr  10 

Myburgh says.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  Cha i rperson th is  i s  no t  rea l l y  

content ious because I  pu t  th is  to  Mr  Gama and he agreed.   

He does not  d isagree w i th  the  fac t  tha t  the  ETC o f  38 .6  in  

fac t  inc luded fo re ign  hedg ing  and esca la t ion  cos ts .   He 

does not  d isagree w i th  tha t .   H is  own a f f idav i t  says  tha t .   

H is  case i s :   Wel l ,  i t  i s  ambiguous  and i t  cou ld  have been  

put  be t te r.   But  th is  i s  no t  conten t ious.   He accepted tha t  

ev idence.    

ADV OLDWAGE :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  where  we have a  prob lem(?) ,  he  

can put  i t  o r  where  someth ing  tha t  cons ider  content ious,  

le t  us  –  we w i l l  look  a t  tha t .  

ADV OLDWAGE :    I  am s tar t led  by  th is  submiss ion  tha t  th is  

i s  no t  content ious when the  w i tness sa id  bu t  i t  i s  
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ambiguous.   I t  i s  capab le  o f  more  than one in te rpre ta t ion .   

Do not  ins i s t  on  one in te rpre ta t ion  a lone.   I  am te l l ing  you.   

There  is  a  reason  I  say  tha t  i t  i s  ambiguous.   How can tha t  

no t  be  content ious w i th  respect?   I t  does . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  remember  jus t  ea r l ie r  on  

Mr  Myburgh read  mis ter  –  a  passage f rom Mr  Gama’s  own 

a f f idav i t  and he conf i rmed i t ,  he  s tood by  i t  and i t  was in  

acco rdance,  as  I  unders tood i t ,  a t  leas t  w i th  those who 

sa id  th is  fea tures  were  inc luded.    

ADV OLDWAGE :    Mr  Cha i r,  w i th  respect .   I  have no  10 

d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  tha t .   I  se t t led  th is  a f f idav i t .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV OLDWAGE :    The pos i t ion  is .   I  –  my compla in t  

re la tes  to  what  i s  be ing  pu t  to  Mr  Gama wi th  re ference to  

the  tes t imony o f  o ther  persons and he w i l l ,  no  doubt ,  

unders tand tha t  he  has go t  to  cons ider  h is  pos i t i on  ve ry  

care fu l l y  to  s imp ly  acknowledge tha t  i t  i s  r igh t  o r  wrong  

w i thout  knowing the  contex t  w i th in  wh ich  tha t  ev idence was 

g iven.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  le t  us  do  i t  th is  way.   Mr  Gama,  i f  20 

you are  no t  ab le  to  say you agree or  you do no t  agree  

w i thout  the  contex t ,  say  so  and then the  contex t  can be put  

to  you but  i f  you  know tha t  you do  not  have a  prob lem wi th  

what  i s  pu t  to  you,  you can then  g ive  your  v iew.   Okay?   

But  i f  you  want  contex t ,  say  so .  
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ADV OLDWAGE :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  

MR GAMA :    Yes bu t  perhaps I  can  be o f  ass is tance,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    When Mr  Myburgh  s tar ted ,  he  re fer red  to  

somebody,  Chobe  or  whatever  i t  i s .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    And we agreed tha t  I  have not  had s igh t  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  h is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    . . .over  whatever  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Test imony . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    . . . tes t imony,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

MR GAMA :    So  what  we are  say ing  here  is .   I t  must  no t  

then be brought  in  because we – i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  have  

not  seen.   And I  am not  l i ke ly  to  have any v iew.   I  may  

have a  v iew.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    Bu t  I  have not  seen i t .   And Mr  Myburgh  

h imse l f  sa id  when he s ta r ted  tha t  he  is  no t  go ing  to  pu t  20 

tha t  to  me because he knows tha t  I  have not  seen i t ,  

whatever  i t  i s  tha t  th is  Chobe o r. . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  cer ta in ly.   I  am go ing  to  pu t  to  

you a l so  what  Mr  Mole fe  had to  say about  th is  because he 
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was quest ioned about  th is  –  the  ve ry  same phrase but  le t  –  

one o f  our  researches w i l l  f ind  the  fu l l  passage.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So tha t  I  can read i t  to  you.   I  do  no t  

want  to  jus t  paraphrase.   Le t  me come back to  tha t .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  tha t  i s  the  Bus iness Case ETC.   I  

now want  to  dea l  w i th  the  increase in  tha t  ETC.   Cou ld  I  

ask  you,  p lease,  to  go  to  the  Fundudz i  Repor t  a t  183?  

That  i s  –  I  beg your  pa rdon.   Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  Bund le  6 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I  saw i t ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So i t  i s  BB-27.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And i f  you have a  l ook a t  183,  there  

is  a  head ing  a t  paragraph 5 .9 .12 :   Increase and Es t imated 

Tota l  Costs .   I t  says  tha t :  

“Based on documenta t ion  rev iewed,  we have 

determined tha t  on  23  May 2014,  Mole fe  

addressed the  memorandum to BADEC,  

request ing  the  commi t tee  to  the  board  and 20 

increase in  the  ETC for  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the 

1064 Locomot ives  fo r  the  GFB f rom 38.6  

b i l l i on  to  54 .5  b i l l i on .  

The memorandum was s igned by  Gama,  S ingh  

and Mole fe . . . ”  
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 And then i t  quotes  f rom tha t .   Perhaps,  le t  us  go  to  

tha t  memorandum.   You w i l l  f ind  i t  aga in  as  par t  o f  

Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  annexures a t  BB-4(b) .   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you,  

p lease,  to  tu rn  up  page 714?  You w i l l  see  a t  page 731 tha t  

recommended by  S ingh and then  s igned by  you and Mr  

Mole fe  and the  recommendat ion  is ,  i t  w i l l  be :  

“The BADC recommends an increase in  the  ETC for  

the  acqu is i t ion  fo r  the  1064  locomot ives  on 

Transnet  Fre igh t  Ra i l ’s  genera l  f re igh t  bus iness 

f rom 38.6  b i l l i on  to  54 .5  b i l l ion  to  the  board  o f  10 

d i rec tors  fo r  approva l . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now what  I  have seen amongst  the 

documents  i s  w i l l  you  accept  tha t  a  s im i la r  memorandum,  

in  I  th ink  a lmost  ident ica l  te rms,  was then p repared and  

recommended by  the  th ree  o f  you fo r  the  board .   I  can  take  

you there .   Perhaps you can leave tha t  open fo r  a  moment .  

MR GAMA:    I s  i t  –  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  to  the  BADC.   What  you  20 

f ind  is  i f  you  cou ld  go  to  EXHIB IT BB8,  you w i l l  f ind  a 

cor respond ing  memorandum to  the  board .   BB8(b)1 .   Cou ld  

you p lease –  can you he lp  Mr  Gama turn  to  page 165?  Red 

numbers ,  165.   You w i l l  see  tha t  th is  i s  addressed whereas  

the  memorandum in  Ca l la rd ’s  bund le  i s  addressed to  
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BADC,  th is  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    One second,  Mr  Myburgh?  I t  looks  l i ke  

there  are  two f i les  and she is  no t  sure  wh ich  one you are  

re fer r i ng  to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  i s  BB8(b )1  and the  2 .   I f  you  w i l l  

tu rn  to  page 165  p lease,  red  numbers .   I t  i s  in  the  f i rs t  

d iv ider ,  165.   Mr  Gama,  are  you there?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  you w i l l  see  is  tha t  th is  i s  

the  co r respond ing  memo.   Ca l la rd ’s  annexure  re la tes  to  the  10 

BADC,  th is  annexure  i s  to  the  board .   I f  you  go to  page 182  

you w i l l  see  tha t  i t  i s  the  same recommendat ion  and i t  i s  

s igned by  the  th ree  o f  you.   Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And wou ld  you conf i rm tha t . . .  

MR GAMA:    Abso lu te ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  i t  i s  the  same memorandum? 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We wi l l  come back to  the  contents  o f  

these memos in  a  moment .   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  go  20 

back to  the  Fundudz i  repor t  and I  have taken  you to 

parag raph 5 .9 .12 .1  tha t  dea ls  w i th  the  BADC memo,  we  

have now ident i f ied  the  cor respond ing  one to  the  board .  

MR GAMA:    Wha t  page is  Fundudz i?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    183.  
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MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then there  is  a  head ing  BADC 

Meet ing  o f  26  May,  paragraph 5 .9 .12 .3 :  

“We determined tha t  on  26  May Mole fe  and S ingh 

a t tended a  BADC meet ing  where  the  above request  

to  increase  the  ETC was tab led .   We determine tha t  

Gama d id  no t  a t tend tha t  meet ing . ”  

Would  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Okay,  I  th ink  i t  i s  p robab ly  based  on the 

m inutes .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then  i f  you go to  the  board  

meet ing  where  your  recommendat ion  presumably  served.   

Board  meet ing  o f  28  May,  paragraph 5 .9 .12 .7 :  

“On 28 May 2014 the  board  no ted the  reasons fo r  

the  increase in  the  ETC and approved an inc rease  

in  ETC for  acqu is i t ion  o f  1064 locomot ive  w i th  a  

GFB f rom 38.6  to  54 .5 . ”  

Now we dete rmined tha t  as  w i th  the  BADC of  26  May 2014 

Gama d id  no t  a t tend th i s  board  meet ing  and then they se t  

ou t  who was p resent .   Do you see tha t?  20 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    P resent  in  the  schedu le ,  amongst  

o thers ,  Mr  Mole fe  and Mr  S ingh and then over  the  page,  Mr  

Sharma.   Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now perhaps we cou ld  –  we  can use  

e i ther  o f  these memos,  le t  us  use  the  one g iven tha t  they 

are  the  same,  conta ined in  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  annexures ,  page 

714.   A t  paragraph 14 –  and sor ry,  le t  me …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  i s  tha t  714?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    714 o f  Ca l la rd ’s  annexures.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  BB4(b ) ,  Cha i rperson.   Mr  Gama,  

perhaps I  shou ld  pre face th is  w i th  the  fo l low ing.   Mr  Laher  

a lso  gave ev idence tha t  th is  memorandum was prepared in  10 

a  s im i la r  way to  the  one in  re la t ion  to  the  i ncrease  in  the  

ETC o f  100 locomot ives .   They were  p repared rough ly  a t  

the  same t ime and h is  ev idence was the  same as  I  have 

desc r ibed to  you and tha t  i s  tha t  a f te r  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  

LSAs and fo r  a  per iod  o f  a  month  or  two,  he  l ia ised  w i th  Mr  

S ingh and Mr  S ingh,  I  th ink  he  even used the  word ,  

pedant ic ,  he  wou ld  prov ide  h im wi th  the  tex t ,  he  wou ld  

prov ide  h im wi th  amendments  and he wou ld  then type i t  up .   

Would  you accep t  tha t  th is ,  as  re f lec ted ,  as  h im be ing  the  

f i rs t  recommender  i s  aga in  l i ke  in  re la t ion  to  the  100  20 

locomot ives  the  work  o f  Mr  S ingh? 

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  i t  i s  work  o f  f inanc ia l  peop le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .   Now i f  you go to  parag raph 14  

a t  page 5715,  i t  records :  

“The acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064 locomot ives  was  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 206 of 317 
 

app roved by  the  board  o f  d i rec tors  in  Apr i l  2013 a t  

a  cost  o f  38 .6 .   Th is  exc luded the  fo l low ing costs . ”  

And amongst  them are  the  costs  o f  hedg ing  and  fo re ign  

exchange.   Do you see tha t?   We have debated tha t  i ssue.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you go to  pa rag raph 23  

a t  page 717 …[ in tervenes]  

MR GAMA:    Bu t  I  th ink  a lso  impor tan t ly,  one o f  the  th ings  

tha t  I  had sa id  i s  tha t  i t  a lso  exc luded the  cost  o f  changes  

in  economic  cond i t ion .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    Between the  approva l  o f  the  bus iness case  

and the  award  o f  the  cont rac ts  wh ich  was h igh l igh ted  

there ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  abso lu te ly.    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  may have missed th is ,  Mr  Myburgh and 

Mr  Gama,  when you were  e labora t ing  or  dea l ing  w i th  your  

unders tand ing  o f  the  phrase exc lud ing  b lah ,  b lah ,  b lah ,  

tha t  we found a t  page 002 or  was i t  05?   

MR GAMA:    002,  yes .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    002,  ja ,  you were  say ing  tha t  i t  was 

inc luded,  you sa id  the  fea tures  –  you made the  example  o f  

the  Forex,  you sa id  some was inc luded o r  some fea tures  

were  inc luded,  o thers  were  no t  inc luded under  Forex bu t  I  

do  no t  th ink  you got  to  ta lk  about  o ther  i tems tha t  they sa id  
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were  exc luded to  ind ica te  whether  your  v iew as the  same 

in  regard  to  the  o ther  i tems o ther  than Forex.  

MR GAMA:    Ja .   No,  those th ings ,  as  I  sa id ,  they were  a l l  

inc luded a lbe i t  the  es t imat ion  and the  assumpt ions o f  the 

va lues tha t  were  pu t  in  the  or ig ina l  bus iness case .   They 

were  somewhat  unders ta ted .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA:    Because tha t  i s  f rom the  per iod  be tween the  

t ime when the  ac tua l  bus iness case was made and the  

award  o f  the  cont rac t s .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  what  you sa id  in  respect  o f  Forex  

app l ies  to  the  o ther  i tems as  we l l .  

MR GAMA:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  i f  I  cou ld  –  so  what  th is  

mot iva tes  fo r  i s  an  increase.   Perhaps i f  you  go  to  the  

recommendat ion  i t  s ta tes  i t  most  c lear l y  a t  page 731.   

Says:  20 

“The BADC take note  tha t  the  main  reasons fo r  the  

increase in  the  ETC is  due to  the  exc lus ion  o f  the  

fo l low ing costs . ”  

And f i rs t  the  cos t  o f  hedg ing  and  then the  cost  o f  fu tu re  

esca la t ions.  
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MR GAMA:    The cost  o f  hedg ing  fo r  fo re ign  exchange  

movement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    The word  movement  i s  ve ry  impor tan t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  was the  exc lus ion  o f  tha t  and  

the  exc lus ion  o f  the  cost  o f  fu tu re  in f la t ionary  increases –  

esca la t ions,  I  beg your  pardon.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  i s  on  tha t  bas i s  tha t  i t  a lso  

BADC recommends an increase,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MR GAMA:    Yes and a lso  the  cost  o f  the  Transnet  

eng ineer ing  tha t  had been exc luded in  te rms o f  the i r  

scope,  ja ,  and then the  economic  cond i t ions ,  the  changes 

in  economic  cond i t ions .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  you were  no t  p resent  a t  the  

BADC meet ing  or  the  board  meet ing  bu t  cer ta in l y  there  has  

been ev idence and i t  has  been put  o r  w i l l  be  pu t  to  S ingh 

and Mole fe  tha t  they m isrep resented the  pos i t ion  to  BADC 20 

and the  board  inso fa r  as  they con tended tha t  the  bus iness  

case,  reason fo r  the  increase was  tha t  the  bus iness case 

exc luded Forex hedg ing  and esca la t ion .   Do you  want  to  

comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    No ,  I  am unab le  to  comment  on  what  they  
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have sa id .   I  th ink  I  have sa id  my unders tand ing  o f  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  you s igned both  th is  memo and 

the  one to  the  board .  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now,  Mr  Gama,  jus t  dea l ing  w i th  the  

jus t i f iab i l i t y  o f  the  en t r ies  on  38.6  to  54 .5 ,  the  s i tua t ion  is  

the  same and perhaps more  acute  as  i t  i s  in  re la t ion  to  the  

100 locomot ives .   So perhaps I  can exp la in  i t  th is  way.   

Aga in  Mr  Chawde,  gave ev idence  about  th is  increase,  an  

exper t ,  g iven tha t  these two memos were  the  work  o f  Mr  10 

S ingh and i t  i s  rea l l y  a  f inanc ia l  i ssue.   That  ev idence was 

presented to  Mr  S ingh.   Mr  S ingh  has –  Cha i rpe rson,  I  do  

no t  know i f  you have ye t  to  see th is ,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  has  

been in t roduced in to  ev idence but  Mr  S ingh has p roduced 

h imse l f  an  exper t  who has g i ven a  cont rary  exper t  repor t  

and those th ings  are  s t i l l  go ing  to  be  dea l t  w i th  w i th  Mr  

S ingh when he re turns  to  tes t i f y  the  week a f te r  next .    

 So  I  do  no t  want  tax  you about  th ings and you are  

cor rec t ,  you were  no t  g iven Chawde’s  repor t ,  I  do  no t  want  

to  tax  you about  tha t ,  bu t  i s  th is  l i ke  w i th  the  100 20 

locomot ives  an  issue tha t  you are  happy to  leave to  be 

fought  ou t  there  or  i s  there  any comment  tha t  you have in  

re la t ion  to  the  jus t i f iab i l i t y  o f  th is  increase?  

MR GAMA:    The  on ly  th ing  tha t  I  want  to  say,  I  th ink  i t  i s  

okay fo r  the  f inanc ia l  peop le  to  d iscuss th i s .   The on ly  
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th ing  tha t  I  want  to  say f rom where  I  see i t ,  Cha i r,  and  

wh ich  is  conta ined in  my a f f idav i t  i s  the  fo l low ing.   I f  you  

go to  my a f f idav i t ,  page 250.174.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  remind me what  bund le  i t  i s  o r  have  

you got  i t?  

MR GAMA:    BB28.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay,  she has go t  i t .   Ja ,  what  

page shou ld  we go to?  

MR GAMA:    250.174.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  10 

MR GAMA:    I  have,  Cha i r,  en te red,  I  th ink ,  in to  ev idence,  

i f  you  go to  174,  78 .11  and I  have sa id  tha t  request  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    174 be ing  the  page and 78.11 be ing  the  

parag raph?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  the  paragraph 78.11 on page 174.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA:    That  a  quest ion  tha t  has a r isen is  how the  

es t imated cost  i n  the  investmen t  case,  es t imated 38,  

esca la ted  to  49 .54  b i l l i on  because I  th ink  those  are  the  20 

t rue  numbers  tha t  must  be  compared.   I t  moved f rom 38.6  

b i l l i on  to  49 .54  b i l l i on  and then I  have sa id  tha t  there  was 

a  repor t  tha t  was g i ven to  me pr io r  to  s ignature  o f  those  

memos tha t  Mr  Myburgh ta lks  about .   That  repor t  was f rom 

the  f inance nego t ia t ing  team and  i t  i s  en tered he re  was 
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SG5 and i t  appears ,  Cha i r,  on  page 250.200.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  have got  i t .  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  up  to  page 250.220.   You w i l l  see ,  Cha i r,  

a t  220 tha t  a l though th i s  one is  no t  s igned because i t  i s  – 

i t  was an e lec t ron ic  –  i t  i s  s igned  by  Mr  Dan ie  Smi t  who is  

the  Deputy  Treasure r  and Mr  Yusuf  Laher,  TFR Finance.    

 In  th is  document ,  Cha i r,  i s  what  was exp la ined to  

me pr io r  to  s ignature  o f  tha t  document  tha t  wen t  to  the 

board .   So I  jus t  want  to  say be fore  we res t  the  mat te r  to  

then ind i ca te  to  the  Cha i r  tha t  tha t  i s  the  document  wh ich  10 

then conta ined a  breakdown o f  the  f ina l  base costs  wh ich  

had moved –  the  base costs  tha t  moved to  about  40  b i l l i on  

and then they then a l lowed a l l  o f  the  o ther  esca la t i ons and 

i t  went  to  49 .54  b i l l i on .  

 So tha t  was the  cont rac t  va lue ,  49 .54  b i l l i on  was  

the  cont rac t  va lue  wh ich  was entered in to  w i th  a l l  o f  the  

OEMs on tha t  da te  o f  the  17  March  2014,  49 .54  b i l l i on .   So 

i t  had moved jus t  over  10  b i l l i on  f rom 38 to  49 .54  b i l l i on  

and then what  was then added to  tha t  was what  i s  ca l led 

the  10% cont ingency wh ich  came to  about  4 .954 someth ing  20 

someth ing  and then tha t  then moved i t  to  the  54  b i l l i on .   So 

I  am qu i te  happy,  Mr  Myburgh,  tha t  you then dea l  w i th  i t  

w i th  the  f inance peop le ,  bu t  I  jus t  wanted to  make sure  tha t  

I  en tered th is  and ind ica te  to  you ,  Cha i r,  in  te rms  o f  the 

inputs  tha t  were  g iven to  me in  te rms o f  my s ign ing  tha t  
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par t i cu la r  memo to  the  BADC and the  board .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  then jus t  on  th is  –  las t l y  on  

the  memo,  can I  j us t  ask  you p lease to  go  to  page 727,  i t  i s  

FQC727.   There  a re  a  number  o f  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry,  i s  tha t  a  d i f fe ren t  bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  bund le  BB4(b) .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Have you got  the  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    727,  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Gama,  cou ld  I  ask  you to  have a  10 

look a t  727 and paragraph 80?  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Th is  has become a  con tent ious 

issue,  a  hu rd le  ra te .   Paragraph 80  says:  

“The updated NPV resu l ts  in  a  pos i t i ve  NPV o f  

11 .68  b i l l i on  a t  the  new hurd le  ra te  o f  15 .2% and 

22.71 b i l l i on  a t  the  TFR WACC of  12 .6%.   The NPV 

wou ld  become negat ive ,  R1.76 b i l l i on  a t  the  or ig ina l  

hurd le  ra te  o f  18 .56 . ”  

So you see tha t  the  sums are  done here  on  an so-ca l led  20 

updated NPV and  hurd le  ra te  o f  15 .2  versus the  so-ca l led  

or ig ina l  18 .56 .   Do you see tha t?   Now th is  aga in  i s  

someth ing  tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  dea l t  w i th  w i th  Mr  S ingh.   Do 

you have any comment?   The issue in  content ion  is  when  

the  hurd le  ra te  became e f fec t i ve  and whether  o r  no t  i t  i s  
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underp inned by  a  po l i cy  document .   Do you have any 

comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    The hu rd le  ra tes ,  they are  i ssued  by  the  

f inance depar tment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR GAMA:    On an annua l  bas is ,  so  Mr  S ingh  is  the 

cor rec t  person to  speak to .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then there  a re  two o ther  i ssues  

wh ich  a lso  fea tured w i th  Mr  Mole fe  and w i l l  w i th  Mr  S ingh 

and  tha t  i s  the  issue o f  the  conc lus ion  o f  the  LSAs  before  10 

obta in ing  board  approva l .   But  I  th ink  you ment ioned  

yesterday tha t  you yourse l f  d id  no t  s ign  the  LSAs,  they 

were  s igned by  Mr  S ingh and Mr  Mole fe ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  you sa id  tha t  you observed  

tha t  my s ignature  was not  on  them,  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  can  take  you to  one  o f  the  

agreements  i f  you . . .  

MR GAMA:    No,  i t  i s  f ine ,  I  be l ieve  you,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  i t  ge ts  you o f f  the  hook.   We 

can save some t ime.  20 

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then the  o ther  –  another  

content ious issue  re la tes  to  the  fa i lu re  to  ob ta in  m in is te r ia l  

approva l  bu t  aga in  I  th ink  Mr  Mole fe ,  he  accepted tha t  the  

ob l iga t ion  to  do  tha t  res ted  on h im,  i t  d id  no t  res t  on  you.   
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Wou ld  you accept  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  accept  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So tha t  b r ings me to  jus t  one th ing  

tha t  I  want  to  ask  you about  and tha t  i s  the  issue o f  ba tch  

pr ic ing .   You have ment ioned – and we know tha t  i t  was a  

s ign i f i can t  cont r ibu tor  to  the  increase in  the  ETC.   Now th is  

i s  someth ing  tha t  i s  dea l t  w i th  in  the  MNS repor t .   Perhaps  

I  cou ld  j us t  ask  you to  go  the re .   Th is  i s  bund le  6 ,  EXHIBIT  

BB27,  the  one tha t  conta ins  the  repor t s .   And i f  I  cou ld  ask  

you to  tu rn  to  page 312,  p lease?  And you see there ,  i f  I  10 

can take  you to  the  foo t  o f  the  page,  paragraph 2 .4 .6 :  

“One o f  the  s ign i f i can t  d r i ve rs  o f  the  p r ice  increase  

was payment  fo r  ba tch  pr i ce  ad jus tment  a lso  

re fer red  to  as  ba tch  pr ic ing  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  

sp l i t t ing  o f  the  awards amongst  the  four  b idders .   

Transnet ’s  pos i t ion  on  the  payment  o f  ex t ra  costs  

fo r  reduct ion  in  ba tch  quant i t ies  was c lear ly  

a r t i cu la ted  in  the  RFP and negot ia t ions  base l ine  

worksheet . ”  

Next  subparagraph:  20 

“The RFP prov ided as  fo l lows.  ‘Transnet  requ i res  

f lex ib i l i t y  in  exerc is ing  op t ions fo r  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  

the  locomot ives .   These opt ions may inc lude 

suspend ing  o r  postpon ing  the  de l i very  o f  the  

locomot ive  un t i l  a  la te r  da te  or  chang ing  quant i t ies . ’  
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The emphas ised  por t ion  is  th is .   ‘Transnet ,  

however ,  does not  expect  to  pay  a  pr ice  premium 

shou ld  i t  exerc i se  any o f  these opt ions. ”  

The next  subparagraph:  

“ I t  has  been subsequent ly  a rgued  by  Messrs  Gama 

and Laher  tha t  ba tch  pr i c ing  was jus t i f iab le  on  the  

bas is  tha t  the  board  had  approved the  

recommendat ion  to  sp l i t  the  award  amongst  fou r  

OEMs.   There fore  the  argument  they advance is  

tha t  the  reduc t ion  in  the  quant i t ies  o f  the  10 

locomot ives  awarded to  each  o f  the  OEM’s  

necess i ta ted  the  OEMs to  increase  the i r  p r ices . ”  

Next  subparagraph:  

“Th is  j us t i f i ca t ion  is  un tenab le  on  the  grounds tha t  

Transnet  adopted  the  pos i t ion  o f  no t  pay ing  a  pr ice  

premium wi th  fu l l  knowledge o f  the  r igh t  i t  reserved  

i t se l f  in  the  RFP to  sp l i t  the  award  to  more  than one  

supp l ie r  the  e f fec t  o f  wh ich  wou ld  resu l t  in  lesse r  

quant i t ies  o f  locomot ives  be ing  awarded to  the  

OEMs.   The board ’s  approva l  o f  the  sp l i t t ing  o f  the  20 

award  shou ld  no t  be  m isconst rued  as  au thor i sa t ion  

to  commi t  Transnet  to  ba tch  p r ic ing  more  so  g iven  

the  fac t  tha t  the  au thors  o f  the  memorandum to  the  

board  d id  no t  b r ing  i t  to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  board  

tha t  the  RFP proh ib i ted  Transne t  f rom pay ing  a  
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p remium for  chang ing  the  locomot ive  quant i t ies . ”  

Next  subparagraph:  

“Commi t t ing  Transnet  to  ba tch  pr ic ing  cont rary  to  

the  prov i s ions o f  the  RFP on i t s  own a lso  

compromised the  fa i rness o f  the  procu rement  

p rocess and cons t i tu ted  an  i r regu lar i t y  because the  

request  fo r  p roposa ls  read together  w i th  the  

const i tu t iona l  and leg is la t i ve  procu rement  

p rov is ions thus const i tu ted  the  lega l l y  b ind ing  and  

enforceab le  f ramework  w i th in  wh ich  tenders  had to  10 

be  submi t ted ,  eva lua ted and awarded.   In  

ampl i f i ca t ion  o f  the  Transnet  pos i t ion  adopted in  the  

RFP for  the  non-payment  o f  ba tch  pr ic ing ,  the  

negot ia t ions  base l ine  worksheet ,  p r ice  was p rov ided  

. . . [ in te rvenes –  word  cu t -o f f ]  f i rs t  o f  the  PTN Team 

to  prov ide  gu idance spec i f i ca l l y  on  ba tch  pr i c ing ,  

the  tab le  be low i s  a  re levance ex t rac t  o f  the  te rms 

o f  re fe rence fo r  negot ia t ing  ba tch  pr ic ing . ”  

Then we have the  tab le  and the  commentary  under  t ha t  i s :  

“Th is  tab le  ind ica tes  tha t  one o f  the  ob jec t i ves  se t  20 

ou t  fo r  the  negot ia t ing  team on batch  p r ic ing  was to  

ensure  tha t  ba tch  pr ic ing  must  be  removed and the  

pr ice  must  remain  f i xed  as  i f  the  order  i s  p laced fo r  

the  fu l l  465 d iese l  and 599 e lec t r i c  locomot ives .   

Th is  pos i t ion  is  in  l ine  w i th  the  responses MNS 
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A t to rneys rece ived dur ing  the  in te rv iews w i th  some 

o f  the  techn ica l  personne l  a t  TRF main ly  Messrs  

Ca l la rd ,  P i l lay,  Har r is  tha t  the  cost  o f  p rocur ing  a  

smal le r  ba tch  o f  locomot ives  shou ld  no t  have a  

mater ia l  e f fec t  on  the  ove ra l l  t ransact ion  as  long as  

the  smal le r  ba tch  was w i th in  the  100 locomot ive  

th resho ld . ”  

Do you want  to  jus t  comment  on  tha t ,  I  know you dea l  w i th  

i t  in  your  a f f idav i t ?  

MR GAMA:    Sor ry  Mr  Myburgh . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you wan t  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Okay you a lso  sa id  someth ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  sa id  I  th ink  you dea l  w i th  i t  a lso  in  

your  a f f idav i t .  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  I  th ink  dea l t  w i th  i t  in  my a f f idav i t ,  I   

have noth ing  to  add,  o ther  than what  I  have sa id  in  my 

a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  then le t ’s  go  the re .   Sor ry,  I  

have got  myse l f  swamped wi th  f i les ,  jus t  g ive  me a  

moment .   What  page are  you a t?   So you are  presumably  20 

Mr  Gama in  Bund le  7 ,  Exh ib i t  BB28?   Your  f i le .  

MR GAMA:    BB28.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Have you found i t  Mr  Gama?   

MR GAMA:    Maybe i t  was a t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  f i le .   I  
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th ink  i t  cou ld  be  in  another  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.    I s  i t  someth ing  your  jun io r  Mr  

Myburgh cou ld  look fo r  wh i le  you cont inue w i th  o the r  

quest ions,  o r  no t?   Or  you wou ld  p re fer  to  t r y  and dea l  w i th  

i t  now? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am not  ab le  to  f ind  i t  o f fhand,  I  

th ink  I  m ight  have had in  m ind where  Mr  Gama dea ls  a t  

some length  w i th  the  acce lera ted  de l i very  schedu le ,  I  am 

not  sure  o f fhand,  perhaps h is  counse l  can he lp  us  as  to  

where  Mr  Gama –  bear ing  in  m ind he f i led  more  than one 10 

a f f idav i t ,  I  assume i t  must  be ,  i f  i t  i s  here  i t  must  be  in  the 

a f f idav i t  respond ing  to  Mohamedi  and Ca l la rd .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  in tended tha t  we wou ld  take  a  break a t  

s ix ,  a  ten  m inutes  break,  maybe we shou ld  take  i t  now tha t  

m ight  he lp  w i th  look ing  fo r  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  sha l l  we say ten  m inutes  or  sha l l  we  

say f i f teen up to  s ix?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Fi f teen Cha i rperson i f  poss ib le  yes,  

f i f teen I  th ink  wou ld  be  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    To  g ive  you more  t ime to  look ,  ja .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV OLD WAGE:   Chai r  i f  I  m igh t  be  o f  ass is tance,  i t  was 

dea l t  w i th  in  –  w i th  re ference to  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Ca l la rd   
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and in  par t i cu la r  h is  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV OLDWAGE:   And tha t  i s  to  be  found,  i t  commences a t  

page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    You unders tand . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV OLDWAGE:   250.148.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  to  s ta r t  w i th  the  bund le ,  

what  bund le  i t  i s?  

ADV OLDWAGE:    I t  i s  BB28.  

CHAIRPERSON:    BB28.  10 

ADV OLDWAGE:    Indeed,  page 250.148,  tha t ’s  where  we 

commence dea l ing  w i th  Mr  Ca l la rd ’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    2508?  

ADV OLDWAGE:    250.148  

CHAIRPERSON:    250.158.  

ADV OLDWAGE:    250.148.  

CHAIRPERSON:    148.   Yes tha t  i s  where  i t  s ta r ts .  

ADV OLDWAGE:   Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  do  you  have the  spec i f i c  par t  

where  he  dea ls  w i th  i t  o r  sha l l  we take  the  break and then  20 

i t  w i l l  be  eas ie r  to  f ind  i t?  

ADV OLD WAGE:    I  w i l l  f ind  i t  fo r  you shor t l y,  bu t  I  don ’ t  

want  to  waste  your  t ime Mr  Cha i r,  i f   a  shor t  ad jou rnment  i s  

appropr ia te  we wou ld  apprec ia te  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we l l  okay le t ’s  take  the  normal  
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b reak we were  go ing  to  take  then,  f i f teen minutes  and then  

we come back.    

 We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay l e t ’s  con t inue.   Sor ry  the  a i rcon 

no ise ,  they w i l l  a t tend to  i t ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Gama do you want  to  comment  on  

the  issue o f  ba tch  pr ic ing?  

MR GAMA:    Thank you Mr  Myburgh.   Before  the  break 10 

Cha i r  we . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    We were  look ing  fo r  tha t  pa r t  in  the  

a f f idav i t  tha t  g ives  the  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:   Yes,  so  i f  we s tar t  a t  page 250.166 and we go 

to  paragraph 72.1 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR GAMA:   Let ’s  go  to  l ine  1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4 ,  le t ’s  s ta r t  w i th  the  

5 t h  l ine  where  i t  reads tha t :  

“an  anomaly  conta ined in  Ca l la rd ’s  emai l  o f  26  

March 2018 is  the  a l legat ion  tha t  Transnet  ove rpa id  20 

in  the  reg ion  o f  R10b i l l i on  fo r  the  1064 acqu is i t ion .   

As  th is  vers ion  is  somewhat  cont rad i c ted  by  the  

la te r  a l legat ion  in  the  same emai l  o f  Ca l la rd ’s  where  

he  reco rds tha t  the  49b i l l i on  pr ice  tag  was ar r i ved  

a t  because fou r  OEM’s  had been cont rac ted  fo r  the  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 221 of 317 
 

supp ly  o f  the  locomot ives  ins tead  o f  two.    Ne i the r  

an  overpayment  i s  no t  es tab l i shed  to  have occur red  

a t  leas t  on  Ca l la rd ’s  vers ion . ”  

The issue Cha i r  o f  sp l i t t ing  the  award  I  th ink  MNS agrees 

tha t  sp l i t t ing  the  award ,  postpon ing  i t ,  a l l  o f  tha t  i t  was 

prov ided fo r  in  the  RFP,  and tha t  the  Board  be ing  the  en t i t y  

tha t  approved the  RFP cou ld  a lso  vary  the  RFP.   I  know 

tha t  when the  negot ia t ing  teams went  to  negot ia te  and i f  an 

ord inary  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  came,  i f  I  wanted to  buy 12  000 tons  

o f  someth ing  they w i l l  say  12  000  tons you can pay 350,  I  10 

am jus t  mak ing  an example ,  per  ton ,  bu t  i f  somebody 

comes and says no  I  want  to  buy 100 ton  they w i l l  te l l  you  

i t ’s  500 pe r  ton ,  i t  i s  jus t  an  ord ina ry  ru le  o f  d iscount  

p r ic ing ,  when peop le  buy in  bu lk  and peop le  don ’ t  buy in  

bu lk  and they know tha t  the  – when  tha t  dec is ion  was made 

to  sp l i t  to  two each so  peop le  w i l l  say  look you ’ re  go ing  to  

pay 600 o f  these  th ings,  now you  are  te l l ing  me tha t  you 

are  on ly  go ing  to  buy 300 and they re fused to  s t i ck  to  the 

or ig ina l  p r i ce ,  o r  the  pr i ce  d id  go  up  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  bu t  

i t  was a  s t ra teg ic  dec is ion  tha t  was taken and then  in  the  20 

document  tha t  I  re fe r red  you to  Cha i r,  tha t  Laher  and Smi th  

d id  the  reconc i l ia t ion .    

 I t  con ta ined a l l  o f  th is  f inanc ia l  t ransact ions and i t  

showed the  pro ’s  and cons o f  each in  some deta i l ,  wh ich  

then came to  the  pr ic ing  tha t  i t  came to ,  so  there  were  
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cer ta in  sav ings on  ce r ta in  th ings because fo r  ins tance  

there  was acce lera t ion  e tce tera  and there  were  cer ta in  

h igher  costs  bu t  a t  the  end in  te rms o f  the i r  de ta i led  

breakdown tha t  they ind ica ted  yes you do pay more  i f  you  

pay lesse r  quant i t ies ,  bu t  I  don ’ t  th ink  we shou ld  fau l t  the  

teams,  the  negot ia t ing  teams in  te rms o f  tha t ,  because I  

know tha t  they t r ied  bu t  they cou ldn ’ t  ho ld  the  same pr ice  

w i th  lower  quant i t ies .     

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  Mr  Gama I  perhaps jus t  want  to  

pu t  th is  to  you fo r  you r  comment ,  the  prob lem tha t  a l low ing 10 

the  OEM’s  to  increase the i r  p r ices  a t  the  negot ia t ion  s tage 

cou ld  resu l t  in  the i r  b id  p r ices  inc reas ing  beyond those o f  

the  unsuccessfu l  b idders ,  tha t ’s  rea l l y  the  prob lem and tha t  

i s  cer ta in ly  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Laher.  

 So in  o ther  words you sp l i t  the  ba tches,  the  pr ices  

then went  up ,  th is  happens du r ing  the  negot ia t ions  s tage.  

MR GAMA:    Yes ,  so  everybody wou ld  have increased the 

pr ices ,  these ones were  now shor t - l i s ted  because the i r  

p r ices  were  lower  a l ready than the  o ther  ones so  even i f  

they  then went  up ,  even w i th  the  o ther  ones,  those h igher  20 

pr ices  wou ld  have gone up even h igher,  so  the re  is  no  

pre jud ice  tha t  you su f fe r  when you ’ re  negot ia t ing  w i th  a  

lower  p r i ce  supp l ie r  versus a  h igher  p r i ce  supp l ie r,  and I  

don ’ t  th ink  tha t  the  numbers  were  you know were  b ig  

s ign i f i can t  so r t  o f  numbers  bu t  I  do  know tha t  the  supp l ie r  
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d id  re fuse to  s t i ck  to  the  o r ig ina l  p r ice  when the  quant i t ies  

were  reduced.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t  do  you have anyth ing  fu r ther  

to  add to  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Le t  me see.   The f ina l  th ing  Cha i r  tha t  one 

needs to  –  because you get  MNS and Fundudz i  they  

become exper ts  a f te r  the  fac t  and somet imes wha t  i s  no t  

taken in to  accoun t  i s  what  happened in  the  negot ia t i on  and 

I  th ink  i f  we jus t  tu rn  to  page 250.172 a t  pa ragraph 78.9  

and so r ry,  we tu rn  over  the  page to  page 173,  in  the  m idd le  10 

o f  the  page a f te r  dea l ing  w i th  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  I  ind ica te  

Cha i r  tha t  in  add i t ion  there  was an independent  rev iew o f  

the  processes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  f i rs t  

parag raph a t  page 173.  

MR GAMA:   A t  173 yes i n  the  m idd le  o f  the  f i rs t  paragraph.   

I t  says :  

“ In  add i t ion  there  was an i ndependent  rev iew o f  the  

processes by  a  h igh  va lue  tender  aud i t  team. ”  

And they have annexed a  copy o f  a  repor t ,  wh ich  says an  20 

example  o f  the  cont rac t  award  repor t  o f  tha t  team,  o f  the  

h igh  va lue  team,  wh ich  demonst ra tes  the i r  sa t i s fac tory  

assessment  o f  the  process and in  par t i cu la r  they prov ide  

an  aud i t  t ra i l  to  suppor t  any changes f rom the  in i t ia l  

bus iness case,  and to  ob ta in  tha t  sa t is fac tory  assessment  
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the  resu l ts  o f  rea l  t ime assurance a t  each s tage  o f  the  

Gateway rev iew must  ind i ca te  su f f i c ien t  o r  fu l l  compl iance  

to  the  ac tua l  team methodo logy  and/or  the  p rocurement  

p rocedures manua l  to  m i t iga te  and manage potent i a l  r i sks  

to  wh ich  the  process is  exposed.  

 There  ought  no t  to  be  any  non-compl iance 

w i tnesses,  there  must  be  compl iance w i th  s ta tu tes  and 

regu la t ions and the  team must  have been fu l l y  engaged in  

o rder  fo r  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  team to  express an  op in ion ,  so  

as  execut ives  we  wou ld  re ly  on  such repor ts  wh ich  conf i rm 10 

tha t  a l l  due processes had been fo l lowed and tha t  in  

par t i cu la r  any changes f rom the  i n i t ia l  bus iness case were  

invest iga ted  and suppor ted  by  means o f  an  aud i t  t ra i l ,  so  I  

th ink  tha t  i s  a lso  an  impor tan t  sa feguard  tha t  i s  there  

where  you have  independent  teams so  when somebody  

says there  was batch  pr ic ing  and i t  changed you  can go  

back to  t he  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  team,  they are  independent  and 

you can ask  them as we l l ,  and I  don ’ t  know whethe r  any o f  

those have ac tua l l y  been asked to  come here  jus t  to  re la te  

how tha t  p rocess  works  because peop le  jus t  say  there  was  20 

a  dev ia t ion  o f  th i s  and th i s  and tha t ,  bu t  i t  i s  as  i f  th is  was  

jus t  happen ing  in  a  vacuum tha t  there  was no sa feguards  

tha t  had been put  in  p lace  in  o rder  to  look  a t  th is ,  so  I  

th ink  i t  i s  jus t  a lso  an  impor tan t  aspect  Cha i r  to  dea l  w i th  

bu t  I  take  the  po in t  tha t  the  –  i f  there  i s  re l iance  on the 
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f inanc ia ls  as  the  numbers  changed when peop le  then te l l  

you  tha t  no  the  esca la t ion  is  –  and the  rand deprec ia t ion  

and the re  is  s t i l l  p r i ce  change to  so  much those were  dea l t  

w i th  by  the  Treasury  and F inance teams.  

 Thank you Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t  Mr  Gama I  wou ld  l i ke  now to  

tu rn  to  the  las t  locomot ive  top i c  thankfu l l y,  and tha t  re la tes  

to  the  re loca t ion  in  par t i cu la r  o f  CNR South  A f r i ca  f rom 

Pre tor ia  to  Durban.   Now th is  i s  dea l t  w i th  as  you know by 

Mr  Gonsa lves,  can I  ask  you perhaps jus t  to  p ick  ou t  h is  10 

f i le ,  tha t  i s  Exh ib i t  BB5,  you do dea l  w i th  i t  in  your  a f f idav i t  

and I  w i l l  come back to  tha t .   R igh t ,  you have BB5? 

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  the  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  perhaps you can jus t  go  to  the  

f i rs t  page.   What  I  am go ing  to  t r y  and do Mr  Gama,  I  have 

got  these top ics  tha t  I  s t i l l  have to  dea l  w i th ,  I  am go ing  to  

t ry  and summar i se  or  the  background a t  leas t ,  and then get  

to  what  I  want  to  dea l  w i th .   Wha t  Mr  Gonsa lves a f f idav i t  

re f lec t s  f rom a  broad overv iew is  tha t  on  the  11 t h  o f  March  

2014 CNR submi ts  an  in i t ia l  cos t ing  o f  9 .7mi l l ion  fo r  the  20 

re loca t ion ,  we then see on the  25 t h  o f  Apr i l  2014 CNR 

conc ludes a  bus iness deve lopment  serv ice  agreement  w i th  

Becks,  w i th  the  pro jec t  benchmark  be ing  580mi l l ion .   In  

Ju l y  2015 a  cost ing  o f  R647mi l l ion  was submi t ted  to  

Transnet  and u l t imate ly  you agreed in  s ign ing  the  var ia t ion  
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o rder  on  the  23 r d  o f  Ju ly  2015 and the  ne t  e f fec t  o f  th is  

then was tha t  Becks was a  commiss ion  o f  R67mi l l ion .   We 

have been th rough th i s  a f f idav i t ,  wou ld  you accept  tha t  

b road out l ine?  

 I  suppose the  impor tan t  th ing  i s  your  s ignature  o f  

the  var ia t ion  order,  le t  me take you to  tha t  document ,  that  

you f ind  a t  page  261,  tha t  i s  where  you become d i rec t l y  

invo l ved.   You see a t  261 you wr i te  to  CNR Rol l ing  S tock  

South  A f r i ca  and i t  i s  headed va r ia t ion  order  to  f ina l i se  the  

re loca t ion ,  the  const ruc t ion  o f  the  233 C lass  45-E  10 

locomot ives  by  CNR Rol l ing  S tock  South  A f r i ca ,  who 

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  fac i l i t y  in  Durban and then you say  in  the 

m idd le  o f  the  page:  

“Accepted var ia t ion  o rder  i s  as  fo l lows,  EFR Class  

45D locomot ives  supp l ied  in  Durban var ia t ion  orde r  

fo r  an  amount  o f  R647 181 494. ”  

And then a f te r  tha t  i t  se ts  ou t  the  payment  te rms,  do  you  

see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you s ign  th is  on  the  23 r d  o f  Ju ly  20 

205.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now we do have a  shor t  se t  o f  

documents  tha t  a re  conta ined in  your  bund le ,  perhaps I  

cou ld  take  you to  them and those documents  you f ind  
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towards the  end o f  you r  exh ib i t  28 ,  a t  page 250.401,  and 

the  documents  s ta r t  w i th  a  memorandum and what  we have  

is  there  seems to  be  two s ignature  pages,  a t  404 there  i s  a  

s ignature  on  the  9 t h  o f  June 2015 and then a t  405 there  

appears  to  be  another  undated s ignature  where  there  is  a  

handwr i t ten  annota t ion ,  i s  tha t  your  handwr i t ing  a t  

250.405?  

MR GAMA:   That  i s  cor rec t  yes .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  wh ich  o f  these two pages then 

wou ld  be  the  o f f i c ia l  page,  fo r  want  o f  a  be t te r  descr ip t ion ,  10 

wou ld  i t  be  405?  

MR GAMA:    When you say the  o f f i c ia l  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  in  the  sense tha t  there ’s  two  

pages,  the  one is  s igned and dated by  you,  the  o ther  i s  

s igned and not  da ted  and then the re  is  an  annota t ion ,  I  am 

not  t ry ing  to  make an issue o f  i t  I  jus t  want  to  know wou ld  

one read them together  o r  i s  405 w i th  the  annota t i on .  

MR GAMA:    No,  no  le t  me he lp  you there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sure .  

MR GAMA:    The –  as  I  unders tand i t  I  th ink  the  issues 20 

may be exact ly  the  same.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  no  cer ta in ly.  

MR GAMA:    The one o f  405 I  made some comments .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Oh I  see,  so  405 re la tes  to  BT? 

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  an  ear l ie r  vers ion .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.  

MR GAMA:    Where  I  say  to  the  team how does th is  re la te  

to  the  de legat ion  by  the  Board  fo r  me to  dea l  w i th  th is ,  as 

there  is  no  re ference to  i t  in  th is  memo,  and the  I  a lso  say 

to  them does th is  app ly  to  bo th  BT and CNR.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.  

MR GAMA:    So  i f  an  ear l ie r  vers ion ,  i t  i s  in  May o f  2015.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.  

MR GAMA:    And  tha t  i s  when the  team is  coming to  me to  

say look p lease approve the  f ina l  team to  negot ia te  the  10 

re loca t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   

MR GAMA:    And they te l l  me who the  peop le  are ,  and they 

are  say ing  when  we negot ia te  up  to  a  max imum of  th is  

number  can we go and negot ia te .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay so  I  unders tand what  you are  

say ing ,  so  405 is  an  ear l ie r  vers ion .  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And 404 was then the  one tha t  you 

s igned la te r.  20 

MR GAMA:   I  f ind  tha t  in  June but  there  is  anothe r  one tha t  

I  s igned as  the  fo rmal  approva l .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    A f te r  they come back and they say we have  

now negot ia ted .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Can I  jus t  ask  you jus t  to  read in to  

the  record  i f  you  don ’ t  m ind your  handwr i t ten  annota t ion  a t  

405.   

MR GAMA:    I t  says  I  need c la r i t y  on  one,  does th is  app ly  

to  bo th  CNR and  BT,  number  two,  the  amount  re fe r red  to  

635 is  s t i l l  under  negot ia t ion  w i th  a  quest ion  mark .  

CHAIRPERSON:    635mi l l ion?  

MR GAMA:   635mi l l ion  ja ,  and then th ree ,  how does th is  

re la te  to  the  de legat ion  by  the  ADC/Board  fo r  me  to  dea l  

w i th  th is  mat te r  as  there  is  no  re ference to  i t  in  th is  10 

manner,  o r  approved on the  bas i s  tha t  the  l im i t  in  th ree  is  

no t  exceeded and I  am in fo rmed  o f  the  f ina l  negot ia t ion  

ou tcome,  so  th is  was to  approve tha t  the  negot ia t i ng  team 

goes in  and have fu r ther  d i scuss ions w i th  them.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi th  the  –  wou ld  i t  be  co r rec t  tha t  

p robab ly  you f i rs t  s ign  and then i t  occu r red  to  you tha t  you  

needed c la r i f i ca t ion  o f  ce r ta in  mat te rs  and tha t  i s  why you  

make those notes  because o therwise  you wou ldn ’ t  s ign  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:   No you a lways s ign ,  you a lways s ign ,  you can 20 

say e i ther  approved or  no t  approved.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  so  I  thought  maybe i f  you are  no t  

approv ing  or  th is  one i t  says  approved,  o r  no t  approved,  i t  

i s  no t  c lear  what  you were  say ing .  

MR GAMA:   Ja so  I  say  to  them i t  i s  approved on the  bas is  
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tha t  the  amount  in  th ree  is  no t  exceeded and I  am in fo rmed 

o f  the  f ina l  negot ia t ion  ou tcomes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  i t  was imp l ied  tha t  they wou ld  need 

to  come back to  you?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  they cou ldn ’ t  take  your  s ignature  

and go somewhere  and say th is  has been approved.  

MR GAMA:   No,  no ,  no .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  so  f rom tha t  po in t  o f  v iew i t  i s  no t  

f ina l l y  approved.  10 

MR GAMA:    I t  i s  no t  f ina l l y  approved,  bu t  i t  i s  an  

approva l  o f  the  negot ia t ing  team tha t  they can go and  

negot ia te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you can go back  to  404,  

so  subsequent ly  on  the  9 t h  o f  June 2015 you approved o f  a  

recommendat ion  tha t  reads:  

“Request  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut i ve  to  approve the  

fo l low ing;   

[a ]  The team to  negot ia te  the  re loca t ion  to  20 

Durban w i th  CNR;  

[b ]  Var ia t ion  orde r  in  o rde r  to  f ina l i se  the  

re loca t ion  o f  the  programme for  the 

const ruc t ion  o f  233 C lass  45-E  locomot ives  

to  Durban to  a  max imum va lue  o f  
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R696 784 286,  separa te  submiss ion  has to  

be  prepared or  has been p repared fo r  BT;  

and  

[ c ]  Le t te r  to  be  issued to  CNR to  commence 

negot ia t ion  fo r  the  re loca t ion  o f  the 

programme.  

Is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So tha t  i s  in  9  June.   I  want  to  then 

take  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR GAMA:    So  th is  one unfor tuna te ly  I  don ’ t  see a  da te ,  I  

am not  sure  wh ich  one came befo re  the  o the r,  bu t  I  th ink  

la te r  on  we w i l l  make a  compar ison  o f  them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t ,  what  you see then a t  page 

406,  350.406,  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mr  P i ta  on  the  20 t h  o f  June.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On what  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    250.406.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  P i ta  was the  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  

Off i cer  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  20 

MR GAMA:    Not  on  tha t  da te .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay.   Wha t  was h i s  pos i t ion  then?  

MR GAMA:    On tha t  da te  he  was  the  Group Ch ie f  Supp ly  

Cha in  Off i ce r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you have seen th is  emai l ,  I  
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mean what  he  se ts  ou t ,  rece ived a  proposa l  and he ra ises  

a  number  o f  quer ies ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  fo r  example  in  the  4 t h  paragraph  

he says ge t  a  l i s t  o f  supp l ie rs  they are  us ing  in  Gauteng 

and to ta l  mater ia l  they  expect  f rom them,  as  they say  

they ’ re  mov ing  1 .3mi l l ion  mater ia l  bu t  i t  doesn ’ t  make 

sense because they don ’ t  have many supp l ie rs  se t  up  as  

ye t ,  per  my in fo .   And he ra i ses  a  number  o f  i ssues a long 

those l ines ,  cor rec t?  10 

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And he in  th is  emai l  i f  you  go fo r  

example  over  the  page a t  407,  he  says a t  the  top  Yusuf  to  

check the  assumpt ions,  the  las t  paragraph Yusuf  to  check 

f inanc ia l  –  f inance cost ing ,  do  you  see tha t?   

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  I  assume was Yusuf  Laher?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then what  we see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Try  no t  lower  your  vo i ce  Mr  Gama,  t ry  20 

no t  lower  your  vo ice ,  so  tha t  whatever  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    Am I  too  fa r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  your  vo ice  went  lower.  

MR GAMA:   Oh sor ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr  Myburgh? 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and  then a t  408 the  next  day  

Mr  Laher  responds,  the  second ha l f  o f  the  page,  f rom Yusuf  

Laher  on  21  June  2015,  he  says:  

“Dear  a l l ,  

My comments  as  fo l lows. ”  

And he l i s ts  18  issues,  do  you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he  quest ions rea l l y  in  18  

respects  the  pr ice  tha t  has been submi t ted .   He ra ises  a  

number  o f  quer ies .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Let ’s  take  one fo r  example ,  

increas ing  the  team s ize  does not  make sense cons ide r ing  

the  learn ing  curve  w i l l  m i t iga te  th is  requ i rement  in  a  shor t  

t ime.   Two,  negot ia t ing  w i th  supp l ie rs  w i l l  e l im ina te  the 

in f la t ionary  costs  re la ted  to  the  four  d i f fe ren t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  

e tce te ra ,  do  you agree w i th  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  no te  i t ,  I  see  i t  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   And then i f  you go to  page  

410 you w i l l  see  towards the  bo t tom o f  the  page tha t  20 

there ’s  an  emai l  to  i n te r  a l ia  Mr  Laher  and i t  says :  

“P lease f ind  a t tached rev i sed CNR proposa l . ”  

And then in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page on the  25 t h  o f  June Mr  

Laher  responds and says:  

“H i  L ind iwe,  
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The i r  p roposa l  has no t  changed f rom the  prev ious  

submiss ion  except  fo r  the i r  new o f fe r  on  payment  

te rms.   As  such  the  comments  per  my emai l  ove r  

the  weekend s t i l l  app ly. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  on  the  25 t h  o f  June,  i f  I  cou ld  

then ask you to  t u rn  to  page 250.412,  i t  i s  25  June,  then  

Gary  P i ta  on  the  10 t h  o f  Ju l y  sends an emai l  to  L ind iwe and  

the  second paragraph says,  r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  10 

page:  

“Can I  ask  tha t  you update  a l l  the  documenta t ion ,  ie  

memo,  fo r  us  to  send to  the  Act ing  GCE for  

approva l  o f  the  CNR DT proposa l  and le t te r  f rom 

GCE to  CNR and DT accept ing  proposa ls  in  o rder  to  

save t ime.   Shou ld  the  team . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  be  happy  

w i th  the  p roposa l  we can then  e f fec t  s ign  o f f  

qu ick ly.   P lease a lso  ensure  tha t  the  TIS  s ign-o f f  

f rom Emma is  inc luded in  the  memo. ”  

Do you see tha t?  20 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now jus t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    I  th ink  a l so  what  y9ou shou ld  say to  t he  Cha i r  

i s  tha t  a l l  o f  th is  communica t ion  tha t  you are  ask ing  me to  

see and note  i s  be tween the  negot ia t ing  team members .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   A l r igh t ,  we l l  in  fac t  I  was go ing  

to  ge t  to  tha t  because I  see tha t  some o f  these emai ls  a re  

cop ied  to  Mr  S ingh,  you see in  fac t  a t  th is  very  page,  

250.412,  tha t  emai l  i s  cc ’d  to  h im.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Was he a  member  o f  the  negot ia t ing  

team? 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And we see at  250.4.1.10 also the 

bot tom emai l  was also sent  to Mr Singh.   Correct? 10 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then what we have in chronologica l  

order is the next  memorandum to you that  you f ind at  page 

250.415 and th is you signed on the 23r d  of  July  2015,  that  

you f ind at  250.418,  is that  correct? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And that  – that  memorandum relates to  

– to Bombardier Transport .  

MR GAMA:   That  is correct  yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You get  a simi lar  memorandum i f  you 20 

page a l i t t le bi t  further at  250.419 you get  a  simi lar  

memorandum in relat ion to CNR.  There you see the 

signature 23 July 2015 you see that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Request ing the recommendat ion – the 
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act ing Group Chief  Execut ive to note the f ina l  outcome of  the 

negot iat ion for the relocat ion to Durban with CNR approved 

var iat ion order and the amount there is  647 mi l l ion.   You see 

that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now i t  does appear that  CNR 

concludes a business development service agreement wi th 

BECS and the money f lows have or  wi l l  provide evidence 

that  BECS is a Gupta l inked company.   Did you know 

anything about  th is business development  supply 10 

agreement? 

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And do you accept  that  ul t imately  

BECS was paid an amount of  some 67 mi l l ion? 

MR GAMA:   Ja I  have never seen the actual  report  Mr 

Goncalves or I  do not  know how to say his name I  th ink i t  is  

Goncalves or Goncalves he did come to say to me that  there 

was this  anomaly that  there were people that  had been paid 

to negot iate this relocat ion and that  is when I  then – we had 

Werksmans doing invest igat ions wi thin Transnet  at  that  t ime 20 

so I  a lso asked them to look into this part icular matter as 

wel l  but  unfortunately I  have never received the f inal  report  

on that  but  I  d id ask that  i t  be invest igated.   So i f  you say 

there was an amount that  you have seen somewhere I  am 

not  in a posi t ion to deny or conf i rm i t .   But  Mr Goncalves 
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ra ised i t  wi th me very sharp ly in a meet ing.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A lr ight  wel l  the evidence that  the 

money f lows team wi l l  lead is that  BECS was paid I  assume 

this is including VAT some 76 mi l l ion and of  th is  62 mi l l ion 

was paid to a number of  so cal led f i rst  level  laundering 

ent i t ies.   Do you have any comment on that? 

MR GAMA:   No.   I  do not  know anything about i t  ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Do you know of  any involvement by 

BECS – do you know of  anything that  they may have done to 

secure this var iat ion order and this amount? 10 

MR GAMA:   No I  do not  know them – I  do not  who they are.  

I  was told by Mr Goncalves that  they were these people.   I  

do not  know whether they even met  wi th my negot iat ing team 

of  they were work ing for CNR I  am – I  do not  know who they 

are.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   How is that  the negot iat ions were 

conducted in such a way that  i t  would al low for a commission 

of  th is size 67 mi l l ion? 

MR GAMA:   You asking me?  I  do not  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Or are you surpr ised by the fact  that  20 

there was that  amount? 

MR GAMA:   I  was – I  was very surpr ised I  mean I  was very,  

very surpr ised.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So Mr Gama do I  understand f rom what 

you say in your aff idavi t  that  you rel ied on the people who 
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put  – reports to  you and recommendat ions made to you 

yoursel f  d id you know of  Mr Laher ’s  concerns? 

MR GAMA:   Mr? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Laher ’s concerns.  

MR GAMA:   No I  d id not  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Did you know of  Mr Peter ’s concerns? 

MR GAMA:   No I  d id not  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Have you got  any idea how those 

concerns were resolved? 

MR GAMA:   No.   I  do not  know how they were resolved.   I  10 

am – I  see that  Mr Laher was not  a signatory to the 

documents – the negot iat ion documents but  Mr Peter was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   So but  al l  of  these memos that  you have read to 

me I  have only known about  them because of  the 

commission.   So you have sent  me these documents.   I  was 

not  aware of  their  existence pr ior to that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  then can I  take you – you deal  

wi th th is in your aff idavi t  perhaps you can address that  i f  you 

would l ike to.   Go to your Exhibi t  28 and turn up page 146.  20 

MR GAMA:   Perhaps before we do that .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   Just  as a matter of  –  of  record so that  there is  

c lar i ty on i t .   The – the memos that  I  s ign on the 23r d of  July 

that  you referred to one is for CNR and the other one is for 
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BT which is Bombardier.   So what is real ly in f ront  of  me on 

that  day is the amount of  618 mi l l ion which is for BT and an 

amount of  647 mi l l ion wel l  that  is the maximum values of  647 

mi l l ion for CNR.  So for the approval  you are doing a 

comparison of  the two in terms of  relocat ion and thinking 

they look very close to one another.   That  is real ly what is in 

my mind at  the t ime when one is sign ing that  part icular 

document.   But  also you have a team of  f ive negot iators that  

have been busy wi th th is for more than a year by the Chai r  

because you come to July 2015 they say they started the 10 

negot iat ions in 2014.  So that  is what is at  my mind so I  just  

want to record that  at  th is point  before we cont inue.   Yes Mr 

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Perhaps I  could ask you just  to go to  

the POI Bundle the one wi th the reports in.   Bundle 6 Exhibi t  

27.  MNS deal  wi th  th is  in a so cal led relocat ion repor t .  Could 

I  just  take you please to page 427.    

CHAIRPERSON:   That  is Bundle 6? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Bundle 6 Chai rperson yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   42? 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   427.   At  paragraph 2.8 I  just  want to – 

to get  your comment on i t .   There i t  says:  

“The Transnet personnel  had const i tuted the 

re locat ion negot iat ing team were – and i t  

l ists six people including Singh and Peter. ”  
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 Does that  accord wi th your recol lect ion? 

MR GAMA:   Yes those are the people who s igned the memo.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then I  had said I  would take you to 

your  aff idavi t .   You deal  wi th th is at  page 146.   That  is at  the 

beginning of  Exhibi t  28.   Not  250.146 but  146.   And this is  in 

response to Mr Molefe and deal  wi th th is at  some – some 

length running f rom page  

MR GAMA:   I t  starts at  age 146.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja in fact  I  – on the r ight  hand s ide 

yes.  10 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Running through to I  th ink i t  is 154.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you end off  actual ly by referr ing to 

Mr Laher ’s concerns which you say you had no knowledge 

of .   Is there anyth ing in part icular that  you would l ike to deal  

wi th in these pages? 

MR GAMA:   Maybe just  a high level .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   I  am not  going to go into detai l  onto i t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sure.  

MR GAMA:   So the – the relocat ion is in i t iated by Mr  Val l ihu 

who was the Chief  Execut ive of  Transnet  Engineer ing when 

he wri tes to Mr Molefe request ing to relocate the assemble 

l ine for  Bombardier  and China North Rai l .   Because at  the 
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c lose of  the locomot ive tender i t  had been assumed that  

everybody was going to manufacture in Pretor ia – 

Kuduspoort .   However CSR and TE al ready had assemble 

l ines in Pretor ia and they only needed to be r ig id just  a l i t t le 

bi t  and then they were able to cont inue wi th the ir  

manufactur ing.   With the other two CNR and BT they did not  

have any assembly fac i l i t ies so they had to move to Durban.   

So – but  he puts al l  of  that  in his  memo to say there are 

compet i t ions concerns.   You do not  want one diesel  

manufacturer looking over the shoulder of  another i t  is bet ter 10 

to relocate to th is other places.   So that  is how i t  starts.  

 The – i t  ends up wi th the – the let ters that  you 

showed me where af ter the 23r d o f  July then wrote back to 

BR and CNR indicat ing to  them that  these are the maximum 

amounts that  were approved for them and that  they would be 

paid per iod ical ly.  

 The – so the rat ionale of  al l  of  that  I  th ink was wel l  

documented and wel l -mot ivated by Mr Val l ihu in th is  – in his  

let ters that  when they asked for the – for the relocat ion.  

 So at  a t ime then enter Mr Goncalves where he came 20 

through with one or two of  his other partner and then he 

informed us that  there had been this involvement of  BEX – 

B-E-X or BEX Business Expansion Structure someth ing.  And 

then at  that  t ime that  is when I  then asked that  Werksmans 

invest igate I  have at tached SSG9 the – a let ter –  a f i rst  
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report  f rom Werksmans where they said that  they have 

commenced with the invest igat ion and that  they were going 

to engage with Mr Goncalves so that  they can get  more 

informat ion and start  wi th that  process.  

 And at  some point  in the commission you were also 

informed Chai r  that  there was no relocat ion.   But  I  th ink we 

can agree that  there was a relocat ion to Wentworth and that  

is where these two ent i t ies were in terms of  the relocat ion 

program.  

 The obl igat ions for  payments where they fel l  wi th in 10 

the divis ions to  then say as and when certain  th ings 

happened and they should be paid.   But  at  some point  I  then 

decided that  s ince we are doing th is invest igat ion and there 

were these al legat ions that  came about as a resul t  o f  BEX I  

then asked the CE of  TFR Mr Ravi  Nai r  to stop al l  payments 

to these two ent i t ies both BT and CNR so that  we can have 

some kind of  understanding of  what the re locat ing program 

amounts were and whether or not  we had – they had not  

been inf lated to us.  

 So that  was done and they stopped those payments 20 

and they wrote to – they suspended those payments and 

they only – they said to them we would only pay you just  for 

the del ivery of  locomot ives and none of  the relocat ion unt i l  a 

t ime when we are clearer.  

 As I  have sa id to you Chai r  I  am unable to give you a 
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fu l l  report  because I  never saw the – the ful l  report  f rom – 

what is his name – Werksmans in terms of  the f inal isat ion.  

 And also in the – I  have also ind icated that  i t  has 

subsequent ly emerged fol lowing the submission of  a detai led 

mot ivat ion that  dur ing the – and dur ing the commission’s 

hearings that  Yusuf  Laher one of  the f inancial  execut ives 

had raised certa in object ions and highl ighted certa in issues 

of  concern which were brought to the at tent ion of  the team 

that  was working on the recommendat ion and does not  

appear to me that  his concerns were ever addressed.  10 

 But  at  that  t ime of  s igning I  had no knowledge of  his  

concerns and I  had no reason to doubt the bona f ide’s of  the 

high level  team that  was involved in the negot iat ion of  the 

re locat ion costs and I  had no cause to be concerned at  that  

t ime up unt i l  the t ime that  Mr Goncalves vis i ted me and then 

that  is when I  learnt  that  there was a commission agent that  

was used.   And so I  had just  looked at  the two amounts that  

they were almost  s imi lar to one another.   But  i t  seems now 

from what t ranspi red that  we probably could have paid less 

for the – for the CNR port ion at  least .  20 

 But  each one of  them and I  have at tached for the 

commission the actual  proposal  for  BT and CNR they are al l  

– they are marked and they are in  th is part icular – I  do not  

know – I  do not  wish for us to go through them but  you wi l l  

see that  they are almost  very s imi lar and they are almost  on 
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par wi th each other.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And Mr Gama you also deal  wi th th is  

further at  page 165 in deal ing di rect ly wi th Mr Goncalves’ 

statement.   Perhaps i f  you want to – i f  there is anyth ing you 

want to deal  wi th at  paragraphs 47 and 48 i t  seems that  

these are things you have –  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We have al ready t raversed by and 

large.  

MR GAMA:   Yes I  a l ready t raversed them and you d id 10 

indicate that  amongst  them there were two issues real ly 

there.  

 The f i rst  issue was that  there had not  been any 

consensus between CNR and i ts partners – the local  

partners Goncalves included about the appointment  of  th is 

BEX.  

 And then the main thing that  was signi f icant  to me 

and to Transnet was that  in th is 2015 proposal  I  th ink I  was 

now talk ing to him in 2017 and he was then saying that  look 

that  var iat ion agreement there was the presence of  BEX who 20 

end the commission and therefore maybe i f  they had not  

been there the costs would have been lower.  

 I f  you go my paragraph 48.2 then they say they 

requested the Chief  of  Legal  at  Transnet be ful ly br iefed to 

ensure that  invest igat ion is carr ied out  into CNR and BEX 
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involvement in the CNR consort ium.  

 As I  have indicated I  however never received a 

prel iminary nor f inal  report  f rom Werksmans who had been 

instructed in th is  regards.   Werksmans had advised at  the 

t ime that  there was a delay due to wai t ing for informat ion 

f rom the high value tender teams.  But  by then we had also 

taken the decision to stop any further payments to both CNR 

as wel l  as BT that  related to the re locat ion process pending 

the outcome of  the Werksmans Report .  

 I  th ink that  is a fa i r  summary.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   Can I  just  before I  conclude 

on this can I  ask I  have seen reference and some documents 

to the effect  that  in addi t ion to concluding these LSA’s wi th 

the OEM’s you also concluded maintenance cont racts,  is that  

r ight? 

MR GAMA:   Yes wi th OEM’s yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So those were separate cont racts? 

MR GAMA:   Ja those – those are for  af ter sales service they 

kick in two or three years af ter the locomot ives have started 

working because they relate to the maintenance.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What I  must  just  ment ion to you i f  you 

want to comment  you can is that  money f lows evidence 

shows that  Mr Essa also concluded BDSA’s in relat ion to the 

maintenance cont ract .  

MR GAMA:   BD 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Business Development Services 

Agreements.  

MR GAMA:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In other words these… 

MR GAMA:   Okay as i t  is commission agreements.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   These commission k ickback 

agreements ja.  

MR GAMA:   No I  am not  – I  was not  aware of  that  ei ther.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So you were talk ing about the 67 or so 

mi l l ion that  BEX was paid and you said wel l  perhaps i t  could 10 

have been lower i f  i t  had not  been for  that .   I  just  want to – 

to put  th is to you.   Money f lows intends to  lead evidence 

which wi l l  demonst rate that  the total  – the grand total  of  a l l  

k ickbacks paid to  the Gupta enterpr ise relat ing to the 95 

locomot ives,  the 100 locomot ives,  the 359 and 232 

locomot ives that  being part  of  the 1064, the at tendant 

maintenance cont ract  that  you have spoken about and the 

CNR relocat ion costs that  we have spoken about the grand 

tota l  is just  short  of  R3.5 bi l l ion.  

MR GAMA:   E ish.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  mean that  must  come as a real  shock.  

MR GAMA:   Ja.   So these – these money f lows are monies 

that  have f lown to these di fferent  let ter box companies that  

you are ta lk ing about.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.    



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 247 of 317 
 

MR GAMA:   Ja.  I t  is shocking.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  want  now to turn to the issue of  T-

Systems.  T-Systems is deal t  wi th as you know by Ms 

Macede.  Can I  ask you please to turn up f i le BB – sorry 

Exhibi t  BB11.  Ja.   So could I  ask you to go to page 1.   Now 

Mr Gama I  am going to t ry  and paraphrase the evidence of  

Ms Macede I  mean a lot  of  th is is not  in dispute and there is 

a lot  of  common ground between two of  you.  

 Perhaps you could go to page 5 and you wi l l  see that  

she says that  Transnet issued and approved a RFP with the 10 

provision of  IP Data Serv ices to Transnet  in November 2015.   

I  just  ask you to  conf i rm that  we know that  the ent i ty that  

held the contract  before them was T-Systems.  They had had 

a f ive year cont ract  which had been extended I  th ink by two 

years would you conf i rm that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And she says at  13 a tender related to  

the outsourcing of  Data Services for  the whole of  Transnet .  

 I f  you go to page 6 paragraph 14.1 the est imated cost  

of  th is tender was 1.85 bi l l ion over f ive years.   She goes on 20 

to explain at  paragraph 16 that  there were seven bidders 

including T-Systems and Gajema.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   She then goes on to explain that  two 

bidders were short l isted.   That  being T-Systems and 
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Ubunthu.   And over  the page – page 8 Ubunthu wi thdrew and 

was then replaced by the thi rd  highest  ranking bidder 

Gajema.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So now i t  was Gajema and T-Systems.  

MR GAMA:   Correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   She says at  paragraph 20 that  on the 

22n d of  September 2016 she was presented wi th a complete 

f i le of  the evaluat ion process by Mr Thomas request ing my 

signature on the recommendat ion to award the tender to  T-10 

Systems.  You conf i rm that .  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then she says at  page 9 at  the top that  

th is recommendat ion was not  in l ine wi th the evaluat ion 

outcome of  the process and she explains at  paragraph 22.1 

that  Gajema provided the lowest  pr ice bid in the 00:29:17 

stage scor ing a f inal  score of  99%.  T-Systems scored a f inal  

score of  85.07%.  You see that .  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   She then says at  paragraph 25 on 20 

page 10 just  below the quoted par t  she has explained that  

she had her misgivings but  she says I  then appended my 

signature to the recommendat ion let ter th is is in  respect  of  

T-Systems but  made the fol lowing comments at  the bot tom of 

the let ter.   Do you see that? 
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MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    She says a t  26  tha t :  

“The d iscomfo r t  I  had about  the  fac t  tha t  I  

s igned the  recommendat ions to  T-Systems 

even though I  had made my po in t  c lea r,  led  me 

to  wr i t ing  a  de ta i led  response to  each and  

every  r i sk  ra ised,  exp la in ing  why the  r i sks 

h igh l igh ted  were  no t  r i sks  in  my v iew. . . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then a t  pa rag raph 28,  a t  page 11,  

she says tha t  roundabout  th is  t ime,  she he ld  a  meet ing  

w i th  you a t  the  Tin tswa lo  Hote l  in  Wate r fa l l  Es ta te .   She 

says:  

“Dur ing  th is  meet ing ,  Mr  Gama tes ted  a  few 

th ings w i th  me ,  l i ke ,  the  dangerous o f  

p rocu rement ,  my leve l  o f  conv ic t ion ,  g iven my  

v iew about  the  r i sks ,  and where  the  tender  

p rocess was.  

I  gave h im my assurance based on the  20 

Transnet  p rocurement  p rocesses fo l lowed,  the  

re levance o f  some o f  the  r i sks  ra ised,  the  

dec is ion  to  award  the  tender  G i j ima was the  

r igh t  way. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  
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MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Then she says a t  parag raph 30:  

“The next  t ime I  in te rac ted  w i th  th is  p rocess 

dur ing  o r  about  la te  December  2016 was in  

Mr  Gama’s  o f f i ce  where  he  ca l led  bo th  the  GC-

SEO,  Mr  Thomas and me to  the  o f f i ce .  

Mr  Gama recommended tha t  in  my  capac i ty  as  

the  GCIO and the  bus iness owner  o f  the  

tender,  I  shou ld  be  a l lowed to  go  and tes t  the  

ident i f ied  r i sks  w i th  G i j ima. . . ”  10 

 Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  31  she says tha t :  

“On the  23 r d  o f  January,  GC-SEO ca l led  a  

meet ing  w i th  G i j ima in  Transnet  Eng ineer ing  

o f f i ces  and they worked th rough the  r i sks  tha t  

had been ident i f ied  in  re la t ion  to  G i j ima. . . ”  

 And then a t  32  she says:  

“A t  th is  po in t ,  G i j ima was excused and a  

fo rmal  reso lu t ion  was then taken a t  the  end o f  20 

the  meet ing  by  the  Transnet  Team tha t  a l l  r i sks  

had been mi t iga ted  and tha t  the  tender  can be 

awarded to  G i j ima. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    She says a t  33 :  

“On o r  a round February  2017,  jus t  be fore  the  

s i t t ing  o f  the  Group Leadersh ip  Team,  there  

were  two separa te  memoranda drawn up w i th  

d i f fe ren t  recommendat ions fo r  Mr  Gama’s  

s ignature .  

The one recommendat ion  was f rom Mr  Peter  

in to  whom the  p rocurement  funct ion  repor ted  

and the  o ther  memorandum f rom me.  

The one memorandum addressed to  Mr  Gama 10 

f rom Peter,  Thomas and myse l f  recommended 

tha t  the  tender  be  awarded to  T-Systems. . . ”  

 And then she says in  the  next  sub-paragraph:  

“The o the r  memorandum tha t  I  p repared 

recommended tha t  the  tender  be  awarded to 

G i j ima. . . ”  

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sub- th ree.   I  suppose qu i te  smar t l y.   

You,  accord ing  to  he r,  made an emphat ic  po in t  tha t  you  

wanted to  s ign  on ly  one memorandum to  the  ADC and not  20 

two memoranda.   Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  34 :  

“Mr  Peter  and  I  f ina l l y  s igned dated  

8  February  2017,  recommending  tha t  the 
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tender  be  awarded to  G i j ima. . . ”  

 Then over  the  page under  the  head ing ,  Dec is ion  

by  the  ADC to  award  the  tender  to  the  second  p laced  

b idder.   That  i s  T-Systems.   She says tha t :  

“On 13 February  2017,  the  tender  was 

presented to  the  ADC.  

I  a t tended th is  meet ing  w i th  ADC members . . . ”  

 And she se ts  ou t  the  persons tha t  were  present  

a t  tha t  meet ing ,  and we see tha t  a t  35 .1 ,  Mr  S tan ley  Shane  

by  tha t  t ime,  i f  I  unders tand  cor rec t l y,  he  was the  10 

Cha i rperson o f  the  BADC.   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You were  present  a t  th is  mee t ing?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  35 .4 ,  Mr  Zanoo l (? )  

Nugby(?) .   Was he a  member,  a  Transnet  Board  member  

and a  member  a l so  o f  the  BADC? 

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    R igh t .   She then says a t  paragraph  

38 over  the  page:  20 

“The tender  was d iscussed in  de ta i l  dur ing  th is  

meet ing .  

Both  Mr  Thomas and I  were  granted the  

oppor tun i ty  to  make verba l  submiss ions to  the  

ABDC(s ic )  and to  answer  quest ions. . . :  
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 She says tha t :  

“Dur ing  th is  meet ing ,  Mr  Gama sent  me a  

message or  Whatsapp to  te l l  me to  “s top  

f igh t ing  because  i t  was c lear  what  the  board  

wanted ” . . . ”  

 She says she on ly  saw th is  a f te rwards.   A t  39 :  

“The t ranscr ip t  o f  the  record ing  is  a t tached.  

Desp i te  my earnest  a t tempts  to  convey to  the  

ABC tha t  due p rocesses was fo l lowed and tha t  

the  r i sks  ident i f ied  a f te r  the  eva lua t ion  10 

process had been addressed and tha t  the  

tender  shou ld  be  awarded to  G i j ima as  the  

w inner.  

The ABC dec ided  o therwise .  

A copy o f  the  ABC recommendat ion  to  the  

board  is  da ted  and a t tached,  e t  ce tera . . . ”  

 She says a t  40 :  

“When the  ABC recommended to  the  board  to  

g rant  f ina l  award  to  T-Systems,  a l though I  

a t tended,  I  ab le (?)  to  say because i t  was now 20 

the  ADC recommending to  the  board  and not  

management .  

I  have s ince  noted tha t  the  ADC’s  

recommendat ion  to  the  board  was s igned by  

Mr  Gama and Mr  Pete r,  bo th  o f  whom were  
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Execut ive  Board  members . . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then she says a t  paragraph 44:  

“Ob jec t ions by  G i j ima and  unsuccessfu l  

negot ia t ions  w i th  T-Systems:  

I  was not  persona l ly  invo lved in  the 

subsequent  events  descr ibed be low.  

I  was,  however,  made aware  o f  the  events  by  

Mr  Se l inga o f  Transnet  Lega l  and Mr  Gama,  10 

who were  the  rec ip ien ts  o f  updates  in  respect  

thereof . . . ”  

 She ment ions G i j ima ’s  ob jec t ion  to  no t  be ing  

awarded the  tender.   The mat te r  was esca la ted  to  the  

Transnet  Ombudsman and to  Nat iona l  Treasury.   Over  t he  

page:  

“Nat iona l  Treasury  in fo rmed Transnet  i t  w i l l  no t  

be  a l lowed to  ex tend the  ag reement  w i th  T-

Systems fu r ther  than May 2018 and Nat iona l  

Treasury  in fo rmed the  Transne t  Board  o f  20 

D i rec tors  tha t  i t s  dec is ion  to  award  the  tender  

to  T-Systems was wrong and d i rec ted  to  

Transnet  to  resc ind  the  dec is ion  and award  the  

tender  to  G i j ima. . . ”  

 She says a t  45 :  
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“The board  then took a  dec i s ion  on  

27 September  2017 to  resc ind  the  award  to  T-

Systems and award  the  tender  to  G i j ima. . . ”  

 Then she ta lks  about  se t t lement  negot ia t ions  

tha t  were  unsuccessfu l  and then i f  you go to  page  19 she 

ta lks  about  the  fac t  tha t  a  new board  was appo in ted  in  

2018 and then i t  wou ld  appear  tha t  a  dec is ion  was taken to  

seek to  rev iew and se t  as ide  the  award  to  T-Systems and  

ins tead to  appo in t  G i j ima and she ment ions a t  pa rag raph  

60,  and I  w i l l  come to  the  judgment  in  a  moment :  10 

“ I  have s ince  learn t  about  the  h igh  cour t  

judgment  de l i vered on 12 December  wh ich  

rev iewed and se t  as ide  the  dec is ion  to  award  

the  tender  to  T-Systems. . . ”  

 Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now you have prov ided a  response 

to  th is  in  two p laces.   Cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  Exh ib i t  

28?  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you dea l  w i th  the  issue f i rs t  a t  

page 154 and th is  i s  in  response to  Mr  Mole fe .   I t  i s  qu i te  a  

c r isp  response.   You say a t  34 .1 :  

“As management ,  we submi t ted  a  proposa l  to  

the  Board  Acqu is i t ions  and  D isposa l  
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Commi t tee  ind ica t ing  tha t  the  ad jud ica t ion  

process had submi t ted  G i j ima as  en t i t y  to  

appo in tment  as  the  pre fer red  b idder  fo r  the  

Data  Serv i ces  Tender. . . ”  

 You say:  

“ I t  i s  up  to  Mr  S tan ley  Shane,  the  Cha i rperson  

o f  the  Board  Acqu is i t ions  and D isposa l  

Commi t tee .  

A pr iva te  meet ing  be tween myse l f  and L inda 

Mbasa,  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  board ,  adv i sed 10 

tha t  the  Non-Execut ive  Members  o f  the  board  

wou ld  no t  fo l low management ’s  

recommendat ion  fo r  the  appo in tment  o f  G i j ima 

and wou ld  ra ther  appo in t  T-Systems. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You say a t  34 .3 :  

“The reason ing  o f  the  board ’s  dec is ion  no t  to  

imp lement  management ’s  recommendat ion  was  

var ied  and is  dea l t  w i th  more  fu l l y  here in 20 

be low in  regard  to  Mos id i ’s  tes t imony. . . ”  

 And then you say  tha t :  

“Management  addressed a  le t te r  to  Nat iona l  

Treasury,  the  la t te r  hav ing  agreed w i th  the  

recommendat ion  tha t  G i j ima be appo in ted . . . ”  
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 And you go onto  say:  

“ In  fac t ,  l i t i ga t ion  was subsequent ly  pursued in  

the  South  Gauteng H igh Cour t  wh ich  u l t imate ly  

resu l ted  in  a  dec la ra t ion(?)  o rde r  appo in t ing  

G i j ima on the  bas i s  o f  management ’s  in i t ia l  

recommendat ion . . . ”  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You conf i rm  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  I  conf i rm tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then the  o ther  p lace  tha t  you 10 

dea l  w i th  th is ,  i s  when you respond to  Ms Mos id i .   Cou ld  I  

ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  page 159? 

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you dea l  w i th  th is  f rom 159  

th rough to  156.   Perhaps I  cou ld  inv i te  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   D id  you say f rom 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    One,  f i ve  –  page 159.   I  beg your  

pardon.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    To  page 165.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Paragraphs  38,  Cha i rpe rson,  to  46 .    

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now perhaps I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  
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th rough th i s .   I t  seems tha t  the  f i rs t  pa ragraph 38  is  very  

much background  tha t  we might  a l ready have t rave rsed.   I f  

su i tab le  to  you,  cou ld  you s ta r t  by  tak ing  us  th rough f rom 

paragraph 39 a t  page 160,  where  you dea l  w i th  the  meet ing  

tha t  you had a t  the  Tin tswa lo  Hote l?  

MR GAMA :    No,  thank you.   When I  wro te  th is  a f f idav i t ,  I  

had not  been prov ided w i th  the  v iva  voce  tes t imony o f  

Mos id i  bu t  I  have,  subsequent  to  tha t ,  I  th ink  in  the  past  

two days o r  so ,  have been prov ided w i th  aspects  o f  i t  as  i t  

re la tes  to  tha t  aspect  about  the  Tin tswa lo  Hote l  meet ing .   I  10 

th ink  we shou ld  ca l l  i t  tha t .    

 The contex t  o f  tha t  meet ing ,  s imp ly  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  

Ms Mos id i  was new a t  Transnet  and she had s igned a  

document  tha t  she d id  no t  be l ieve  in  bu t  had never the less  

s igned i t  and i t  was in  f ron t  o f  me and tha t ,  one,  tha t  why  

she had s igned a  document  tha t  she d id  no t  be l ieve  in  

because she s igned i t  and then wro te  o ther  th ings next  to  

i t .   So. . .  

 And I  have gone th rough the  document  bu t  I  

myse l f  was go ing  th rough the  document  and had many 20 

quest ions around  i t .   And I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  document  she  

re fers  to  as  a  document  o f  September  o r  August  2016.  

 I  go t  a  sense  tha t  she may have been 

in t im ida ted to  s ign  the  document .   [ laughs]   Or was not  too  

sure  bu t  because  she was new and so  I  go t  the  sense tha t  
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maybe I  needed to  engage w i th  her  and pe rhaps I  cou ld  

learn(? )  f rom her  what  the  issues were .   I  d id  no t  want  to  

in f luence her  in  any way in  t e rms o f  whatever  dec is ion  tha t  

she needed to  take  and I  th ink  tha t  she has sa id  to  you,  

Cha i r,  th is  Commiss ion  tha t  she be l ieved so  as  we l l .  

 So  she had s igned th is  document  desp i te  her  

d iscomfo r t .   So I  thought  tha t  maybe she had been 

in t im ida ted one way or  the  o ther  bu t  a lso  I  wanted her  to  

have comfo r t  tha t  she can d isagree w i th  th ings  and I  

needed to  ge t  a  sense o f  whether  she had tha t  courage to  10 

be  ab le  to  d i sagree w i th  th ings and to  pu t  fac ts  on  her  own 

in  o rder  fo r  he r  to  be  ab le  to  make those dec is ions.  

 Now I  have seen Cha i r,  you have made he r,  

espec ia l l y  when  she spoke to  you,  she changed her  

s ta tements  many t imes.   [ laughs]   Whenever  you wou ld  ask  

her  quest ions then she wou ld  go  w i th  what  you thought  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GAMA :    . . .was co r rec t  bu t  I  th ink  i n  te rms o f  what  you 

may have wanted but  a t  the  end ,  I  th ink  she looked l i ke  20 

she was prone to  some o f  your  in f luence,  Cha i r.   [ laughs]    

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    In  te rms  o f  some o f  the  v i va  voce  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . there  a re  many w i tnesses who have 
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appeared befo re  me.  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f  what  you are  

ta lk ing  about  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .persona l ly (?)  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  ask  w i tnesses quest ions and  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . they  may or  may not  th ink  what  i s  

beh ind  the  quest ions.  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   But  obv ious ly,  there  i s  no  des i re  to  

make them change what  they in tend to  say,  i f  i t  i s  the  t ru th .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GAMA :    So .   But  in  any event ,  I  th ink ,  as  I  say,  she 

d id  change her  s ta tements  many t imes.   But  the  key th ing ,  

because I  saw there  is  someth ing  –  there  is  a  re ference 20 

wh ich  is  no t  in  the  a f f idav i t  o f  hers  bu t  there  i s  a  re ference 

in  the  v iva  voce  to  a  f i ve  m i l l ion  or  someth ing  about  danger  

and a l l  o f  tha t  and I  do  no t  know what  she herse l f  p robab ly  

thought  bu t  a t  best ,  I  may have sa id  to  her :   Do you know 

tha t  peop le  –  when you a re  ad jud ica t ing  a  b ig  tender  l i ke  
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th is ,  peop le  are  no t  scared to  spend f i ve  m i l l ion  jus t  to  

survey –  pu t  surve i l lance on you?  [ laughs]   A t  best .    

 Bu t  she –  there  were  issues about  dangers  and 

a l l  o f  tha t  bu t  I  th ink  they a re  ne i ther  he re  nor  the re .   My  

in ten t ion  was to  assure  her  tha t  she needed to  – and I  

th ink  tha t  i s  a lso  the  sense tha t  she got ,  f ina l l y,  when she 

wrapped up her  tes t imony and w i th  you he re .    

 So I  wa lked away f rom tha t  Tin t swa lo  meet ing ,  

th ink ing  tha t  she wou ld  have tha t  courage,  a t  l eas t ,  to  

in te r rogate  the  p rocurement  p rocesses and to  make sure  10 

tha t  she does not  compromise  any governance and tha t  

was my sense,  i f  we dea l  w i th  tha t  aspect .   I f  we then  

move to  the  next  aspect  o f  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    [Speaker ’s  m icrophone not  sw i tched  

on –  unc lear ]  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  perhaps we shou ld  jus t  

perhaps dea l  w i th  the  v iva  voce  ev idence and you can then  

comment  on  i t .   I  mean,  I  th ink  you have dea l t  w i th  i t  

b road ly.  20 

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  I  have dea l t  w i th  i t  b road ly  because I  do  

no t  know how much t ime you have.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  le t  us  go  to  page 250 .428.   I t  

i s  a lmost  r igh t  a t  the  end o f  your  bund le .   That  i s  a  

t ranscr ip t  o f  her  ev idence.  
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MR GAMA :    250 po in t . . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    428.  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  a t  l ine  20  a t  page 428,  she is  

now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  am not  there  ye t ,  so r ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You are  no t . . .  

MR GAMA :    Okay,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  a t  about  l ine  20  and fo r  t he  sake  

o f  t ry ing  to  save  some t ime,  we get  to  the  key passage.   10 

She ta lks  –  now she has gone to  the  ho te l  and  she is  

look ing  fo r  you,  she f inds  you and she says a t  l ine  20 :  

“Good even ing ,  s i r.  

And you then sa id :  

“Look,  Makano.   I  jus t  want  to  unders tand tha t ,  

one,  you are  conv inced tha t  your  dec i s ion  

about  T-Systems is  the  r igh t  one?  

Two,  remember  p rocurement  i s  dangerous.   I t  

i s  a  ve ry  dangerous p rocess.  

I f ,  fo r  example ,  you scut t le  a  pa r ty,  wh ich  by  20 

now peop le  wou ld  have shared  maybe f i ve  

m i l l ion ,  f i ve  m i l l ion ,  f i ve  m i l l ion  and you come 

and you scut t le  tha t  par ty,  you  wou ld  have  

endangered your  l i fe .  

So are  you su re?   
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A re  you cer ta in  tha t  you have done your  due  

d i l igence in  te rms o f  in te r rogat ing  th is  

p rocess?  

Are  you comfor tab le  in  te rms o f  where  you are  

go ing  to  land?  

Because I  wou ld  l i ke  to  make you sens i t i ve  as  

a  new person to  the  dangers  o f  p rocu rement  

as  we l l ,  e t  ce tera . . . ”  

 You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  I  th ink  –  I  mean,  s t ra igh t  up ,  as  I  10 

ind ica ted  to  you ,  there  was not  any d i scuss ion  about  

dec is ions re la t ing  to  the  en t i t ies ,  as  she w i l l  p rove herse l f  

in  the  same v i va  voce  tes t imony.   I f  you  –  so  I  deny any  

d iscuss ions.   In  fac t ,  as  I  say  to  you,  there  is  no th ing  

about  sha r ing  o f  money.   A t  best ,  I  th ink ,  what  I  cou ld  have  

sa id  i s .   Peop le  are  w i l l i ng  to  pay lo ts  o f  money to  do  

surve i l lance on peop le  who are  mak ing  dec is ions  about  

p rocu rement .  

 But  rea l l y,  the  contex t  o f  th is  i s  a  s imp le  th ing  

wh ich  dea ls  w i th  whethe r  she was in t imated because I  was 20 

very  wor r ies  tha t  she had f ind  a  document  tha t  she d id  no t  

be l ieve  in .   So i f  you  –  fo r  ins tance,  i f  we jus t  –  i f  we go to  

page 160.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  250.160?  

MR GAMA :    250.430.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    250. . .   H ’m? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  I  am wi th  you.   So  you are 

ta lk ing  about  the  t ranscr ip t  number?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.   Sor ry,  I  used the  t ransc r ip t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   The number  a t  the  bo t tom.   

Okay.    

MR GAMA :    Cha i rperson,  I  was in  –  a t  the  bo t tom there  

where  you had  to  by  re ferences to  p rocu rement  i s  

dangerous and i f  you scu t t le ,  tha t  te rm,  tha t  cer ta in  peop le  10 

may have a l ready d i v ided the  proceeds.   I  deny tha t  there  

was such a  d iscuss ion .   Then she says no  the  who le  

d iscuss ion  ra t t led  her.   But  i f  you  then move fu r ther  to  

page –  to  the  next  page.   The Cha i rperson says in  the  

m idd le :  

“Oh,  ea r l ie r  on ,  you sa id  by  the  who le  ta lk?  

You say you were  ra t t led  by  the  who le  ta lk?   

And I  was wonder ing  i f  you  mean the  who le  

d iscuss ion  bu t  you mean th is  par t i cu la r  

s ta tement ,  tha t  i s  what  ra t t led  you?. . . ”  20 

 And she says:  

“No,  those par t i cu la r  s ta tements ,  Cha i r. . . ”  

 I f  you  then go fu r ther  down,  the  Cha i r  says:  

“That  even ing ,  d id  you go in to  the  par t i cu la r  

de ta i l  o f  the  r i sks?”  
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 And then she says:  

“We d id  no t  even go in to  some.   

He was jus t  say ing :   A re  you su re?    

Can I  look  you in  the  eye?  

Are  you cer ta in  tha t  you are  r igh t?  

That  i s  what  I  th ink  you a re  say ing .    

A re  you aware  o f  the  danger  o f  go ing  aga ins t  

the  t ide?. . . ”  

 So fo r  me,  Cha i r,  i t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  o the r  way 

around.   As  I  have sa id  to  you,  she had s igned the  10 

document  bu t  she d id  no t  agree w i th  and tha t  i s  what  had 

worr ied  me and I  had  wanted to  ta lk  to  her  to  say:   Look,  

you do not  need to  f ind  th ings tha t  you do not  ag ree w i th .   

I t  i s  be t te r  no t  to  s ign  them.   But  she was new and I  

wanted to  engage w i th  her  and g ive  her  some comfor t  in  

te rms o f  the  –  bu t  i f  you  go fu r ther,  she asks –  you ask  he r,  

Cha i r :  

“D id  you u l t imate ly  s ign  the  document?”  

 She says:  

“No. ”  20 

 That  i s  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  nex t  page a t  432.   

So i t  i s  very  c lea r  tha t  a t  the  end she unders tood tha t  our  

d iscuss ions were  rea l l y  jus t  a round her  and the  k ind  o f  

assu rance tha t  I  requ i red  in  o rder  fo r  he r  to  do  her  work  

proper ly.   So the  o ther  i ssue is  about  s ta r t l ing  and peop le  
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shar ing .   I  rea l l y  do  no t  know where  she got  tha t  f rom.   I  

deny tha t  bu t  I  th ink ,  as  I  say,  when I  look  a t  166 Cha i r,  

wh ich  is  a t  page 436.   She eventua l l y  says –  you ask  her :  

“On your  ana lyses,  what  was the  purpose o f  

tha t  meet ing?”  

 And then she says:  

“ I  wou ld  g i ve  you two v iews.  

One,  e i ther  tha t  he  was ac tua l l y  tes t ing  as  a  

new Execut ive  to  Transnet  whethe r  I  wou ld  do  

due process and whether  I  can  s tand even 10 

when i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  to  and s tand  up to  any 

quest ion ing  o r  in te r rogat ion . . . ”  

 She na i led  i t  the re  tha t  tha t  i s  what  i t  was a l l  

about .   And I  th ink  we need to  go  no  fu r ther  than tha t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  then le t  us  ge t  to  the 

par t  o f  your  a f f idav i t  where  you dea l  w i th  Mr  Shane.   I f  you  

can go,  p lease,  to  page 161,  paragraph 42? 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t . . .   The one w i th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    . . .we are  go ing  back to  the  same bund le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  161.   I t  i s  r igh t  in  the  f ron t ,  20 

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  be fore  you –  and I  am go ing  to  

come back to  th is  bu t  have you come to  lea rn  tha t  

Mr  Shane is  ac tua l l y  a  we l l - known Gupta  assoc ia te?   Have 
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you  come to  learn  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    No,  I  have not  come to  learn  tha t .   [ laughs]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  you have heard  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  have read th ings tha t  a re  suspected,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  jus t  so  tha t  we unders tand th is .   

D id  Mr  Shane,  d id  he  rep lace –  who d id  he  rep lace as  the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  BADC? 

MR GAMA :    No,  he  d id  no t  rep lace anyone.   There  was a  

new board .   I  th ink  there  has been th is  tendency  where  

there  i s  a  new board  and you get  comple te l y  new peop le .   10 

But  the  one tha t  –  in  the  board  p rev ious ly,  tha t  i s  the  same 

ro le  tha t  Mr  Sharma had p layed.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay so  when I  ta lk  about  

rep lacement ,  I  do  no t  mean i t  l i te ra l l y.   So we  know he  

succeeded . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes,  tha t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .Mr  Sharma? 

MR GAMA :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So can we dea l  w i th  

parag raph 42,  p lease?  

MR GAMA :    So  a t  paragraph 42,  I  jus t  ind ica te  tha t  be fore  

the  commencement  o f  the  –  o f  t ha t  ADC meet ing ,  wh ich  

was on the  13 t h  o f  February,  I  was requested by  Mr  Shane  
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when I  a r r i ved tha t  the  meet ing  be  ad journed so  tha t  he  

wou ld  have a  br ie f  sess ion  w i th  me.   So I  had a  d iscuss ion  

w i th  Shane in  the  presence o f  the  board ’s  Cha i rperson,  

Mabaso.   Mr  Shane ind i ca ted  tha t  the  non-execut ive  

d i rec tors  wou ld  vo te  to  over tu rn  the  dec is ion  and  

recommendat ion  tha t  had been made by  management  to  

award  the  cont rac t  to  the  F i rs tRand b idder  wh ich  was 

Gi j ima,  th is  was  now a f te r  the  December  d i scuss ion  tha t  

we had had w i th  Mos id i  and a f te r  she had determined tha t  

the  r i sks  were  ac tua l l y  manageab le .   10 

 Mr  Shane ind ica ted  tha t  as  non-execut ives  they had  

a  r igh t  to  over tu rn  the  recommendat ions o f  the  

management  and  so  to  over ru le ,  the  two o f  us ,  who were  

the  two execut ives  tha t  were  members  o f  the  board  and 

tha t  the  majo r i t y  o f  the  non-execu t ives  cou ld  be  over ru led  

by  them in  c i r cumstances where  they,  as  non-execs,  

be l ieved tha t  management  had not  p roper ly  assessed the  

r i sks .  

 And then he then  ind ica ted  a t  the  board  meet ing  he  

wou ld  a l so  recommend tha t  the  dec i s ion  tha t  had been 20 

made by  management  a l so  be  ove r tu rned because as  non-

execs they had the  r igh t  to  do  tha t ,  so  tha t  was the  who le  

g is t  o f  i t  because he be l ieved tha t  we d id  no t  assess the  

r i sk  p roper l y .    

 So  dur ing  tha t  meet ing  I  then out l ined to  Mr  Shane 
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a l l  o f  the  processes tha t  had taken  lead ing  to  the  dec i s ion  

to  award  the  IT  da ta  serv ices  tender  to  G i j ima  and I  

ind ica ted  tha t  there  was ad jud ica t ion ,  there  was a  lo t  o f  

d iscuss ions tha t  took p lace amongst  the  peop le  and tha t  

the  dec i s ion  had  not  been taken  l igh t ly ,  we had taken i t  

a f te r  fo l low ing proper  and due processes.  

 He ind i ca ted  tha t  no ,  look ,  h is  read ing  o f  tha t  who le  

process was tha t  T-Systems wou ld  have won th i s  tender  

had i t  no t  been fo r  the  fac t  tha t  Ubuntu  Techno log ies  had 

w i thdrawn a t  some po in t .  10 

 And then he then  had cer ta in  concerns about  G i j ima 

tha t  he  came up  w i th  and in  par t i cu la r  he  sa id  look,  you  

cou ld  wake up tomorrow morn ing  and Transnet  cannot  even 

send an emai l  because you have got  a  new cont rac tor .   

That  wou ld  be  a  d isas ter  to  the  reputa t ion  o f  Transnet  jus t  

as  an  example .  

 The meet ing  became and tense and he sa id  to  us  –  

to  me,  look ,  i t  does not  rea l l y  mat te r  what  we as  

management  thought  about  G i j ima and tha t  he  th inks  tha t  

T-Systems shou ld  cont inue w i th  t h is  because in  any event  20 

the  u l t imate  dec i s ion  l ay  w i th  the  board  and not  w i th  us  

and he d id  no t  want  to  expose Transnet  to  any fo rm o f  r i sk .  

 So I  ind ica ted  to  h im tha t  look ,  i t  wou ld  be  d i f f i cu l t  

to  change tha t  dec i s ion  and there  wou ld  be  consequences  

because tha t  dec is ion  conf l i c ted  w i th  the  ou tcome o f  a  due  
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p rocess.    

 So we then resumed wi th  the  meet ing  a t  the  ADC 

and then Mos id i  and Thomas then came in .   We granted 

them the  oppor tun i ty  to  make the i r  verba l  submiss ions.   I  

d id  no t  te l l  them tha t  I  had had th is  meet ing  wh ich  wanted  

to  over tu rn  the  dec i s ion .   So they  came in  in  suppor t  o f  a  

dec is ion  to  award  to  G i j ima and they cont inued to  suppor t  

tha t  recommenda t ion  because tha t  was the  ou tcome and I  

was hop ing  tha t  maybe Shane wou ld  have cons ide red or  

recons idered h is  s tance in  te rms o f  ove r tu rn ing  tha t  10 

par t i cu la r  dec is ion .  

 I t  was a  long d rawn out  meet ing ,  there  was a  lo t  o f  

ta lk  and d iscuss ions.   A t  the  end when Mos id i  was  

pers is t ing ,  you know,  a  lo t  w i th  t he  a rgument ,  I  then sent  

to  her  tha t  SMS to  say look,  we may have to  look  a t  o ther  

ways to  dea l  w i th  th is ,  i t  i s  no t  go ing  to  he lp  i f  you  

cont inue to  a rgue in  th is  case because i t  was c lear  to  me 

tha t  there  was not  anyth ing  tha t  was go ing  to  change the  

Cha i rperson ’s  m ind around th is  par t i cu la r  th ing ,  he  was 

conv inced tha t  i t  needed to  change .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Was i t  more  the  Cha i rperson who was 

hav ing  th is  maybe heated debate  w i th  them or  the  who le  

commi t tee?  

MR GAMA:    I t  was more  led  by  Mr  Shane as  the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  commi t tee .   Ja .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  cont inue?  

MR GAMA:    So  I  then say a t  paragraph 43 tha t :  

“The pro tes ta t ions tha t  Mos id i  had a t  the  ADC 

meet ing  were  no  d i f fe ren t  to  what  I  had ra i sed in  my  

pr iva te  meet ing  w i th  Shane. ”  

So we agree w i th  tha t ,  sa id  tha t  no  contes ta t ion .    

 Then we then submi t ted  a  new memo to  the  board  

wh ich  was submi t ted  by  myse l f  and Peter  and we ind ica ted  

in  tha t  submiss ion ,  i f  you  go to  page 164,  Cha i r ,  a t  the  top  

a t  44 .2  and 44.3 .   We ind ica ted  in  tha t  memo –  and  tha t  i s  10 

captured a t  parag raph 38 and 39 o f  the  memo tha t :  

“Management  had recommended  tha t  G i j ima be  

awarded the  con t rac t  as  they were  the  pre fer red  

b idder  and wh ich  was in  l ine  w i th  the  procurement  

p rocedures manua l .   We then a lso  in fo rmed the  

board  tha t  the  ADC d id  no t  suppor t  management ’ s  

recommendat ion  fo r  the  award  o f  the  cont rac t  to  the  

F i rs tRand b idder  and we adv ised them on the  bas i s  

upon wh ich  the  ADC d id  no t  ag ree .   A t  the  end the  

board  car r i ed  the  recommendat ion  o f  the  ADC and  20 

they appo in ted  T-Systems ins tead  o f  G i j ima.   Less  

than 10 days a f te r  tha t  G i j ima pro tes ted ,  they wro te  

to  the  Transnet  ombudsman. ”  

I  adv ised them tha t  s ince  th i s  dec is ion  had been made by  

the  board ,  wh ich  is  the  accoun t ing  au thor i t y ,  tha t  they 
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needed to  re fer  tha t  mat te r  to  the  Nat iona l  T reasury  

because we cou ld  no t  make any dec i s ion  tha t  was counter  

to  a  dec i s ion  tha t  the  board  had a l ready made.  

“And u l t imate ly  and a f te r  numerous d iscuss ions the  

board  ag reed tha t  management  had been cor rec t  in  

recommending the  award  to  G i j ima and a f te r  the  

Nat iona l  Treasury  had in te rvened.   And then a t  t ime  

T-Systems communica ted  i t s  v iew tha t  they wou ld  

cha l lenge the  over tu rn ing  o f  the i r  appo in tment  by  

the  board  because they be l ieved tha t  they had won  10 

th is  th ing  on  mer i t .  

U l t imate ly  a t  the  end o f  i t  a l l  I  app l ied  to  the  South  

Gauteng Cour t  fo r  a  dec la ra tory  o rder  to  se t  as ide  the  

dec is ion  o f  the  board  to  award  the  cont rac t  to  T-Systems 

and I  th ink  the  board  concur red  w i th  tha t  because there  

were  cer ta in  i ssues tha t  they cou ld  no t  –  they were  scared 

tha t  they wou ld  be  sued by  T-Systems because there  was 

now a  change in  the  award .   I  then lea rn t  tha t  a t  some 

po in t  I  th ink  in  2018 or  the  beg inn ing  o f  2019 the 

dec la ra tory  o rder  was ac tua l l y  i ssues as  per  the  praye rs  20 

tha t  were  made to  the  cour t .  

 So I  th ink  tha t  i s  an  overv iew o f  tha t  mat te r ,  Cha i r .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  ask  you –  le t  us  go  to  the  

judgment ,  tha t  you f ind  a t  page  214 o f  EXHIBIT BB11,  

annexure  to  Ms Mos id i ’ s  a f f idav i t .  
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MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  have got  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i f  you  tu rn  fo rward  in  th is  

judgment  to  page 225 you w i l l  see  a t  parag raph 29,  225,  

tha t  Transnet  submi ts  tha t  i t  ac ted  un lawfu l l y  in  dec id ing  to  

award  the  tender  to  T-Systems wh ich  was not  the  h ighest  

scor ing  b idder .   Now tha t  was the  content ion .   And then 

over  the  page a t  parag raph 30,  the  cour t  found tha t :  

“The crux  o f  the  rev iew is  tha t  T-Systems was no t  

the  h ighest  scor ing  b idder ,  Transnet  ac ted  on i t s  

own unders tand ing  o f  i t s  au thor i t y . . . ”  10 

E tce tera  and then the  cour t  quotes  a  sect ion ,  wh ich  

permi ts  a  dev ia t ion  f rom the  bas ic  p r inc ip le  tha t  the  award  

must  be  made to  the  h ighest  scor ing  b idder ,  tha t  sec t ion  

prov ides tha t  once the  b ids  had been sco red a t  the  award  

s tage o f  the  process the  cont rac t :  

“Must  be  awarded to  the  b idder  who sco red the  

h ighest  po in t s  un less  ob jec t i ve  c r i te r ia  in  add i t ion  

to  those contempla ted  in  paragraphs (d)  and (d )  

jus t i f y  the  award  to  another  b idder . ”  

And u l t imate l y  what  the  cour t  conc luded i s  tha t  there  was  20 

no such jus t i f i ca t i on ,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  I  th ink  the  issue o f  the  r i sks  tha t  had  

been ident i f ied ,  the  cour t  wou ld  have fe l t  and we agreed  

w i th  i t  tha t  the  r i sks  d id  no t  amount  to  ob jec t i ve  c r i te r ia .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  want  to  take  you to  someth ing  
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d i f fe ren t  and tha t  i s  a t  page 229.   A t  parag raph 38:  

“One is  le f t  wonder ing . . . ”  

Sa id  the  cour t .  

“ . . .whethe r  the  ADC was not  be ing  dr iven by  

ex t raneous cons idera t ions in  th is  ins tance desp i te  

management ’s  sa t is fac t ion  w i th  G i j ima ’s  response 

tha t  the  tender  shou ld  be  awarded to  the  lower  

scor ing  b idder .   Th is  i s  no t  mere ly  f lee t ing  fancy,  

Transnet  annexed to  i t s  papers  a  t ransc r ip t  o f  the  

meet ing  o f  the  ADC he ld  in  February  2017 shor t l y  10 

be fore  the  dec i s ion  to  recommend the  award  o f  

tender  to  T-Systems.   The t ranscr ip t  re f lec ts  the  

Cha i r  o f  the  commi t tee ,  Mr  Shane,  mak ing  the  

fo l low ing comments ,  amongst  o the rs . ”  

I  am jus t  go ing  to  then read the  under l ined por t ions  o f  the  

quote :  

“ I  w i l l  say  tha t  aga in  s lowly .   They are  no t  a l ien  to  

su ing  the i r  cus tomers ,  okay?  I  am happ ier  w i th  the  

r i sk  o f  ge t t ing  sued by  G i j ima who d id  no t  ge t  the  

cont rac t  than us  ge t t ing  r id  o f  the  incumbent  we  20 

he lped to  c rea te . ”  

The next  emphas ised s ta tement  by  Mr  Shane:  

“ I  w i l l  te l l  you  what  my unders tand ing  a t  the  t ime o f  

pu t t ing  th is  th ing  ou t  to  tender  was,  tha t  we wanted 

to  keep T-Systems honest ,  tha t  was the  ac tua l  
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mot iva t ion . ”  

And over  the  page the  cour t  says:  

In  the  l igh t  o f  these remarks ,  the  recommendat ion  

by  the  ADC,  wh ich  was u l t imate l y  adopted by  the  

board  and imp lemented,  was not  on ly  c lea r l y  

i r ra t iona l  bu t  a lso  ta in ted  by  b ias  in  favour  o f  the  

incumbent  supp l ie r  o f  IT  se rv i ces ,  T-Systems.   To  

permi t  such a  ta in ted  dec is ion  to  s tand wou ld  be  

in im i tab le  to  the  const i tu t iona l  requ i rement  tha t  

tender  p rocesses shou ld  be  fa i r ,  equ i tab le ,  10 

t ransparent ,  compet i t i ve  and cos t  e f fec t i ve .   Fo r  

th is  reason too  I  am sat is f ied  tha t  Transnet  ac ted  

un lawfu l l y  in  dec id ing  to  award  the  tender  to  T-

Systems. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  want  to  jus t  then take  you to  the 

t ranscr ip t  tha t  the  cour t  re fe rs  to  and tha t  you f ind  a t  page 

137.  

MR GAMA:    O f  the  Mos id i  f i l e?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  i s  the  page number?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    137 the  t ranscr ip t  s ta r ts  and Mr  

Shane speaks a  lo t  in  th is  t ranscr ip t  and says a  number  o f  

th ings bu t  I  jus t  want  to  po in t  ou t  to  you a t  page 145,  Mr  
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Nugd i (? )  a lso  addresses the  commi t tee ,  you see a t  page  

145 f rom l ine  12 ,  the  who le  o f  146 ,  147.   A t  147 a t  the  top  

he  says:  

“The most  impor tan t  th ing  to  me,  the  most  impor tan t  

cha l lenge tha t  I  have,  the  most  impor tan t  i ssue I  

have is  a round  the  r i sk  o f  chang ing  f rom one  

supp l ie r  t o  another  and I  am not  fo r  one moment  

suggest ing  tha t  the  incumbent  au tomat ica l l y  went  –  

there  shou ld  be  an e lement  o f  p rocess wh ich  I  

agree w i th  a  hundred percent  and  the  process was  10 

fo l lowed but  I  do  no t  see app les  be ing  compared 

here  and to  me the  r i sk  i s  very  bad  here . ”  

Th is  s im i la r  sen t iment  expressed  by  Mr  Shane,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?   

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  I  now want  to  jus t  ment ion  to  you 

what  the  money f lows invest iga t ion  has revea led  and some 

ev idence has been led  in  th is  s t ream about  th is .   So what  

the  invest iga t ion  revea ls ,  Mr  Gama,  i s  tha t  f rom mid-2012  

to  m id-2015 T-Systems made regu lar  month l y  payments  o f  20 

more  than R80 000 to  Zest i lo r .   Zest i lo r  i s  company tha t  

was owned by  Sa l im Essa ’s  w i fe .   So more  than R3  mi l l ion  

was pa id  over  tha t  per iod .   Those month ly  depos i ts  were  

used to ,  amongst  o ther  th ings,  fund payments  to  Mr  Essa  

over  tha t  th ree  year  per iod .   He rece ived payments  o f  more  
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than ha l f  a  m i l l i on  rand.  

 The ev idence,  Mr  Cha i r ,  you w i l l  remember  tha t  has 

been led  in  th is  s t ream is  there  was then a  t ime when T-

Systems ceded to  Zest i lo r  the  equ ipment  sa le  and  ren ta l  

e lements  o f  the  MSA tha t  i t  had w i th  Transnet .  

 The money f lows  team have a lso  invest iga ted  th is  

par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  and they have come to  conc lus ion  

ana lys ing  the  Transnet ,  as  the  cour t  d id ,  tha t  Mr  Shane 

mot iva ted  s t rong ly  in  favour  o f  keep ing  the  cont rac t  w i th  T-

Systems.   The i r  i nvest iga t ion  has revea led  tha t  Mr  Shane 10 

is  a  Gupta  assoc ia te .   What  the  invest iga t ion  has a l so  

shown is  tha t  the re  i s  s t rong ev idence suggest ing  tha t  Mr  

Nugd i  had by  February  2017 been opera t ing  as  a  money 

launderer  fo r  the  Gupta  en terpr ise  and had used h i s  

company,  Lebosh i le (? )  Techno log ies  to  expat r ia te  more 

than R5 mi l l ion  i n  p roceeds o f  k i ckbacks pa id  to  the  Gupta  

en terpr i se  in  respect  o f  cor rup t ly  p rocured pub l i c  sec tor  

cont rac t .   Do you  have any comment  on  tha t ,  Mr  Gama? 

MR GAMA:    No,  I  am not  aware  o f  i t .   As  you say th is  i s  

what  has been es tab l i shed but  I  th ink  i t  i s  qu i te  shock ing  i f  20 

i t  i s  t rue  tha t  there  were  these t ypes o f  th ings tha t  were  

happen ing .    

Cha i r ,  I  th ink  one o f  the  th ings tha t  we had s tar ted  

to  do  a t  Transnet  be fore  I  le f t  were  to  look  a t  a  l i s t  o f  some 

o f  these vendors  and –  because there  were  lo ts  o f  
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a l legat ions in  te rms o f  d i f fe ren t  en t i t ies  and I  opened a t  

the  H i l lb row po l i ce  s ta t ion  on  the  21  November  2017 to  

look  a t  a l l  o f  the  a l legat ions tha t  had leve l l ed  espec ia l l y  

aga ins t  en t i t ies  tha t  were  do ing  bus iness w i th  Transnet .    

But  I  th ink  what  one had found was tha t  Transnet  

i t se l f  d id  no t  appear  to  have been  pay ing  Commiss ions to  

anybody but  tha t  i t  was ent i t ies  tha t  were  cont rac ted  to  

Transnet  tha t  were  pay ing  ou ts ide  peop le  and i t  seemed 

tha t  there  was a  modus operand i  tha t  seemed to  ind ica te  

tha t  perhaps the re  were  in te rna l  peop le ,  I  do  no t  know 10 

who,  who prov ided in fo rmat ion  to  these ent i t ies  in  te rms o f  

say ing  maybe you are  go ing  to  be  awarded th i s  tender .    

In  o rder  fo r  you  to  be  awarded  th is  tender ,  you 

know,  we th ink  have in f luence  and then these peop le  

maybe were  gu l l ib le .   I t  wou ld  jus t  seem tha t  the re  was 

some k ind  o f  in fo rmat ion  tha t  wou ld  leak to  th i rd  par t ies  

because a l l  o f  these ent i t ies ,  mos t  o f  them tha t  were  be ing  

pa id ,  tha t  were  recorded as  be ing  pa id ,  they d id  no t  do  any 

bus iness w i th  Transnet .    

So ou r  peop le  had made those p re l im inary  20 

invest iga t ions tha t  –  I  mean,  those pre l im ina ry  f ind ings,  

our  aud i to rs ,  in te rna l l y ,  tha t  there  was such a  th ing  bu t  we 

cou ld  no t  p in  down in  te rms o f  who and how and where  

some o f  th is  seemed to  be  happen ing  because we cou ld  

a lso  no t  f ind  tha t  in  te rms o f  the  procurement  p rocesses 
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themse lves tha t  there  was someth ing  amiss  in  te rms o f  

maybe in f la t ion  o f  p r ices .    

The p rocess seemed to  go  we l l  ins ide  the  tender  

p rocess bu t  there  s t i l l  emerged a l l  o f  these ent i t ies  tha t  

seemed to  have been pa id  by  cont rac to rs  o f  Transne t .   The  

cont rac tors  were  pa id  to  th i rd  par t ies .   Obv ious l y  a t  

Transnet  we cou ld  no t  po l i ce  tha t  because we d id  no t  know 

but  those were  some o f  the  pre l im inary  th ings tha t  we  

found.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  10 

MR GAMA:    Bu t  I  do  no t  know tha t  ac tua l  peop le  or  the  

ind iv idua ls  tha t  wou ld  have been invo lved.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  want  to  then tu rn  to  my las t  ma in  

top ic  and then there  are  jus t  a  few th ings tha t  I  need to  

sweep up a f te r  tha t ,  conc lud ing  quest ions tha t  I  want  to  

ask  you.   The las t  ma in  top i c  I  want  to  dea l  w i th  i s  Nkonk i .   

Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe th is  wou ld  be  a  conven ien t  t ime 

to  take  anothe r  ten  m inutes  ad journment?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cer ta in ly ,  Cha i rperson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  take  a  ten  m inutes  ad jou rnment  

and then we w i l l  resume.   We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t ’s  cont inue.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i rperson.   A l r igh t ,  Mr  

Gama p lease cou ld  you go,  I  th ink  you have been p rov ided  

w i th  Exh ib i t  BB3a  –  so  a f f idav i t  o f  Mr  Mohamed Mohamedi .   

Cou ld  I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 29 p lease.   Mr  Mohamedi  

says a t  paragraph 5 .11  under  the  head ing  Nkonk i :  

“ In  March o f  2018 the  Aud i to r  Genera l  o f  South  

A f r i ca  announced  the  te rm inat ion  o f  cont rac ts  w i th  

Nkonk i  as  a  resu l t  o f  the  negat ive  pub l i c i t y  and the  

assoc ia t ion  w i th  the  Guptas .   Transnet  fo l lowed su i t  

and te rm inated the  in te rna l  Aud i t  cont rac t s  w i th  10 

Nkonk i  as  we l l . ”  

The next  sub-paragraph he says:  

“ I  have rev iewed some o f  the  cont rac t s  tha t  Nkonk i  

had w i th  Transnet  and noted the  fo l low ing:  

Next  sub-paragraph:  

“ In   January  2017 Transnet  rece ived unso l i c i ted  

b ids  f rom Nkonk i  and Ol ive r  Wyman fo r  a  va r ie ty  o f  

p roposed serv i ces  inc lud ing  supp ly  cha in  

e f f i c ienc ies ,  coa l  and i ron ,  o re ,  l ime vo lume and  

ta r i f f  op t im isa t ion . ”  20 

Next  sub-paragraph:  

“A t  tha t  t ime Nkonk i  had an ex is t ing  cont rac t  to  

p rov ide  Transnet  in te rna l  aud i t  func t ion .    In  a  

memorandum dated February  2017  addressed to  the 

ADC Transnet  Execut ives  proposed tha t  Transnet  
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u t i l i se  the  ex i s t ing  in te rna l  aud i t  cont rac t  w i th  these  

unso l i c i ted  proposa ls .   I t  was  argued tha t  the  

ex i s t ing  cont rac t  a l lowed fo r  non-aud i t  anc i l la ry  

serv i ces .    In  February  2017 the  ADC approved the  

use o f  Nkonk i  as  consu l tan ts  and de legated the  GC 

and Mr  Gama a t  the  t ime to  s ign  a  le t te r  o f  in ten t  

fo r  an  amount  no t  exceed ing  ZAR500mi l l ion .   

Ex t rac t  o f  the  ADC minutes  is  a t tached. ”  

Next  sub-paragraph:  

“The in i t ia l  cont rac t  amends 1  August  2013 fo r  a  10 

per iod  o f  f i ve  years ,  to ta l  va lue  o f  500mi l l ion ,  the  

suggested ex tens ions meant  an  increase in  va lue  o f  

100% and a  fu r ther  20  month  ex tens ion  to  2  March  

2020. ”  

And the  las t  sub-paragraph:  

“Today Transnet  has remi t ted  R26 .1mi l l ion  fo r  these 

re la ted  se rv i ces  w i th  a  fu r ther  R60mi l l ion  

ou ts tand ing  as  Transnet  has d isputed th is  amount .    

Mr  Mohamedi  then op ines tha t  f i rs t l y  Transnet ’s  

acceptance o f  Nkonk i ’s  unso l i c i ted  b id  d id  no t  20 

comply  w i th  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  Pract ice  Note  as  

the  unso l i c i ted  p roposa l  d id  no t  i n te r  a l ia  con ta in  

any innovat ive  so lu t ion  and second ly  the  100% 

increase in  the  va lue  o f  Nkonk i ’s  cont rac t  i s  a  

cont ravent ion  o f  Treasury  Pract ice  Note  3  tha t  l im i ts  
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the  var ia t ion  o f  cont rac ts  to  a  max imum of  15% or  

15mi l l ion . ”  

Now I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  take  you then to  the  prac t ice  no te  

and t reasury  ins t ruc t ion ,  and cou ld  I  ask  you about  you r  

bund le ,  Exh ib i t  28  and ask  you to  go  to  page 250.82.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    250,  jus t  hang on Cha i rperson.   Yes,  

250.82.   A re  you there  Mr  Gama? 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  th is  i s  the  Treasury  Pract ice  Note  10 

11 o f  2008/9 ,  i f  you  go to  page 83 i t  says :  

“ Ins t i tu t ions  are  no t  ob l iged to  cons ider  an  

unso l i c i ted  proposa l  bu t  may cons ider  such a  

proposa l  on ly  i f  i t  meets  the  fo l low ing requ i rements ;  

peer  bus iness case,  innovat ive  des ign ,  innovat ive 

approach,  p roduct  o r  the  serv ice  presents  a  new 

and cost  e f fec t i ve  method o f  serv ice  de l i very. ”  

And then a t  page 84 i t  says  a t  3 .1 :  

“The account ing  o f f i cer  o r  account ing  au thor i t y  mus t  

re jec t  an  unso l i c i ted  proposa l  i f  the  proposa l  re la tes  20 

to  known ins t i tu t iona l  requ i rements  tha t  came wi th in  

a  reasonab le  and prac t ica l  l im i ts  be  acqu i red  by  

convent iona l  compet i t i ve  b idd ing  methods.    Re la tes  

to  p roducts  o r  serv i ces  wh ich  are  genera l l y  

ava i lab le  among o ther  i ssues. ”  
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And then a t  paragraph 4 .2  a t  page 85 the  unso l i c i ted  

proposa l  must  be  cons idered as  appropr ia te  in  te rms o f  the  

fo l low ing;  compl ian t  unso l i c i ted  p roposa l  b id ,  and you w i l l  

see  a t  the  end  4 .2 .1 .1 ,  i t  says  namely  the  product  o r  

serv i ce  is  un ique,  innovat ive  and p rov ided by  a  so le  

prov ider  who may enter  in to  d i rec t  negot ia t ions  w i th  the 

proponent  ou ts ide  o f  a  more  compet i t i ve  b idd ing  process.  

 Can I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  Exh ib i t  BB3b,  the  

annexures to  Mr  Mohamedi ’s  a f f idav i t .    I  beg your  pardon,  

in  fac t  i t  may be [c ] .   Sor ry  Cha i rperson the re  seems to  be  10 

a  –  can you g ive  me,  i s  tha t  [ c ]?    I ’ ve  go t  i t ,  sor ry.   I  do  

apo log ise .   I t  i s  Exh ib i t  BB3b,  and Cha i rperson cou ld  we  

tu rn  p lease to  page 571.    Now you w i l l  see  a t  571 th is  i s  a  

memorandum to  BADEC which  Mr  Mohamedi  spoke about ,  

i f  we cou ld  go  to  575 you  w i l l  see  there ’s  a  

recommendat ion  tha t  i s  s igned  by  you on the  7 t h  o f  

February  2017 and u l t imate ly  tha t  is  accepted by  BADEC i f  

you go to  page 579,  you w i l l  see  i t  i s  an  excerp t  o f  m inutes  

o f  the  BADEC meet ing  he ld  on  13 February  2017,  reco rds  

reso lved tha t  the  commi t tee  approve and appo in t  Nkonk i  20 

Inco rpo ra ted  fo r  consu l tancy serv i ces  up  to  a  max imum of  

500mi l l ion  as  fo l lows.  

 Now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    Which  page are  you a t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    579 a f te r  . . . [ ind is t inc t ] .  
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MR GAMA:    Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So i f  you go  back to  the  memorandum 

at  571 cer ta in l y  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  doesn ’ t  appear  tha t  th is  

recommending memo dea ls  w i th  the  requ i rements  o f  the 

Nat iona l  Treasury  prac t ice  no te  i n  re la t ion  to  unso l i c i ted  

b ids .  

MR GAMA:    You know Mr  Myburgh when Mr  Mohamedi  

came here  he  was very  despera te  to  ingra t ia te  h imse l f  w i th  

the  Cha i rman o f  the  Board  o f  Transnet ,  because  he was 

ac t ing  GCE and he wanted to  be  appo in ted  as  the  GCE,  10 

and he may have  in  h is  f rus t ra t ion  g iven you a  lo t  o f  th ings 

tha t  sounds to  me l i ke  a  man who was there  bu t  then s ta r ts  

say ing  no  there  was th is  and th is ,  I  have invest iga ted  th is ,  

bu t  never  sa id  anyth ing  when i t  was happen ing ,  wan t ing  to  

g ive  you the  impress ion  tha t  he  was a  bys tander,  an  

innocent  one.  

 I f  you  go to  the  Treasury  no te  I  don ’ t  know th is  

t reasury  no te  whether  i t  app l ies  to  Transnet ,  I  have never  

seen i t  and i t  says  2008/2009,  Transnet  i s  a  Schedu le  2  

en t i t y.   Th i s  app l i es  to  Schedu le  3A,  4B,  3C and 3D ent i t ies  20 

in  te rms o f  the  PFMA,  so  I  don ’ t  know whether  any  o f  th is  

th ing  app l ies  to  Transnet  o r  no t ,  because what  you have  

put  here  be fo re  me is  fo r  Schedu le  3  en t i t ies .  

 The second issue tha t  I  want  to  ind ica te  i t  i s  qu i te  

normal  fo r  en t i t ies  tha t  we do aud i t  work ,  we a lso  do  non-
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aud i t  work ,  p rov ided tha t  the  aud i t  commi t tee  agrees tha t  

they shou ld  do ,  and a l so  i t  l im i ts  the  amount  o f  work  tha t  

they shou ld  do ,  so  by  the  t ime you see th is  i t  m igh t  have 

been presented to  the  Acqu is i t ion  Commi t tee ,  i t  i s  a t  the 

recommendat ion  o f  the  Aud i t  Commi t tee  to  say le t  us  use 

th is  en t i t y.   Nkonk i  used to  be  a  very  good brand ,  a t  the 

beg inn ing  o f  t ime and I  am su re  i t s  founders  wou ld  a lso  

agree and the  d i rec to rs  and workers  who worked there  

wou ld  a lso  ag ree.    But  obv ious ly  a t  a  po in t  in  t ime we then  

learn t  tha t  i t  had gone rogue in  one way or  the  o the r,  there  10 

were  those a l lega t ions.    

 A t  the  t ime when  we learn t  tha t  i t  had gone rogue  

we te rminated  the  cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  be tween 

Transnet ,  I  te rm inated tha t  cont rac tua l  re la t ionsh ip  

be tween Transnet  and Nkonk i  when we lea rn t  tha t  

someth ing  cou ld  be  amiss ,  because we a lso  needed  pro tec t  

the  reputa t ion  o f  Transnet .   I  don ’ t  know whether  the  

Aud i to r  Genera l  te rm inated before  us  or  no t  bu t  I  suspect  

we te rm inated even before  the   Aud i to r  Genera l .  

 And a t  the  t ime accord ing  to  Mr  Mohamedi  an  20 

amount  o f  R26mi l l ion  had been spent  on  the  work  tha t  had 

been agreed fo r  them to  do .   There  was qu i te  a  s t r ingent  

manner  in  wh ich  anybody cou ld  be  pa id ,  I  hear  there ’s  a  lo t  

o f  d iscuss ion  about  innovat ion  or  innovat ive  bu t  as  I  sa id  

Transnet  i s  a  Schedu le  en t i t y  in  te rms o f  the  PFMA,  I  don ’ t  
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know i f  th is  app l ies  to  Transnet ,  I  have never  seen  i t ,  bu t  

because the  documents  tha t  we s ign  are  a lso  s igned by  

compl iance peop le ,  and they wou ld  have known before  i t  

came to  me they  wou ld  have known whethe r  i t  o r  no t  th is  

cou ld  be  done or  no t ,  so  I  don ’ t  know Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you remember  whether  i r respect ive  

o f  whethe r  th is  no te  f rom – an  ins t ruc t ion  no te  f rom 

Treasury  app l ies  or  no t ,  whether  Transnet  had a  po l i cy  on  

how to  dea l  w i th  unso l i c i ted  proposa ls .  

MR GAMA:   I  th ink  Transnet  d id  have a  po l i cy  to  dea l  w i th  10 

unso l i c i ted  proposa ls ,  and I  don ’ t  know how th is  p roposa l  

ac tua l l y  came about ,  bu t  there  was a  po l i cy  I  cou ldn ’ t  –  I  

wou ldn ’ t  be  ab le  to  say to  you tha t  th is  was an unso l i c i ted  

proposa l  o r  no t ,  I  wou ldn ’ t  be  ab le  to  say to  you whether  i t  

was not  f rom the  peop le  tha t  wen t  to  Nkonk i  to  say look 

s ince  you are  ins ide  and you are  t ry ing  to  do  cer ta in  th ings 

maybe you wou ld  be  bet te r  ab le  t o  do  th is  you know to  do  

th is ,  I  don ’ t  know the  genes is  o f  th is  par t i cu la r  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wou ld  you remember  what ,  whether  –  

wou ld  you remember  any impor tan t  fea tures  o f  tha t  po l i cy  20 

or  tha t  i s  someth ing  you cannot  remember  now?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No I  can ’ t  remember  now but  the  

custod ians wou ld  have been the  p rocurement  sor t  o f  th ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Al r igh t  and  then le t ’s  dea l  w i th  the  
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Nat iona l  Treasury  ins t ruc t ion .   I  w i l l  have to  invest iga te  the  

po in ts  you made about  whethe r  the  prac t ice  no te  app l ies  to  

the  schedu le  2  en t i t y.  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  th ink  you wou ld  have to  pu t  one tha t  

schedu le  2  so  tha t  we wou ld  know,  because we can spend  

a  lo t  o f  t ime d iscuss ing  someth ing  tha t  where  Transnet  i s  

exc luded.   Persona l ly  I  have never  seen th is  bu t  i t  says  

2008/2009 wh ich  is  12  years  ago.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Le t ’s  tu rn  to  the  Nat iona l  Treasury  10 

ins t ruc t ion  tha t  you f ind  a t  page 250.94.    Cou ld  I  ask  you 

p lease to  go  to  page 250.97.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  in  a  d i f fe ren t  bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  i s  in  Mr  Gama’s  bund le  B28,  I  am 

sor ry  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   A t  250?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  s ta r ts  a t  250.94,  I  am go ing  to  

take  Mr  Gama i f  I  m igh t  to  250.97.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  says  a t  paragraph  9 .1  the  20 

account ing  o f f i ce r /account ing  au thor i t y  must  ensure  tha t  

cont rac ts  a re  no t  var ied  by  more  than 20% or  20mi l l ion ,  

inc lud ing  VAT fo r  const ruc t ion  re la ted  goods,  works  and 

serv i ces  and/o r  serv i ces  and 15% or  15mi l l ion  i nc lud ing  

VAT a l l  o ther  goods and serv ices  o f  the  or ig ina l  cont rac t  
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name.   Any dev ia t ion  and excess o f  the  presc r ibed 

th resho ld  w i l l  on l y  be  a l lowed in  except iona l  cases,  sub jec t  

to  p r io r  wr i t ten  approva l  f rom the  re levant  t reasury.   D id  

you  have regard  to  th is?  

MR GAMA:    Aga in  Cha i r  I  don ’ t  know to  whom th is  was 

app l i cab le  to ,  bu t  I  have a  reco l l ec t ion  a t  a  po in t  in  t ime 

where  these dev ia t ions o r  var ia t ions  where  some o f  these  

notes  took p lace ,  tha t  there  were  representa t ions to  the  

Nat iona l  Treasury  in  te rms o f  say ing  is  i t  the  20% or  i s  i t  

the  20mi l l ion  or  the  15% or  the  15mi l l ion ,  because  fo r  an 10 

ent i t y  as  la rge  as  Transnet  i f  i t  i s  a t  15% i t  i s  

unders tandab le ,  i t  i s  acceptab le ,  you do get  invo l ved w i th  

those k inds o f  th ings,  bu t  in  te rms o f  const ruc t ion  re la ted  

goods Transnet  had i t s  own se t  o f  ru les  tha t  had been 

approved,  tha t  were  d i f fe ren t ,  so  any app l i ca t ion  to  

Transnet  o f  th is  I  don ’ t  know.    I  have jus t  fo rgo t ten  what  i t  

was ca l led ,  someth ing ,  someth ing  E ,  I  can ’ t  remember,  o r  

const ruc t ion  re la ted ,  bu t  an  amount  o f  15mi l l ion  or  

20mi l l ion  var ia t ion  fo r  cont rac ts ,  I  mean le t ’s  take  the  IT 

da ta  te rm tha t  we have jus t  been ta lk ing  about .   I t  was  20 

about  1 .8b i l l i on .    I f  you  app l ied  15% of  i t ,  i t  wou ld  take  

you to  about  240mi l l ion ,  so  –  bu t  i f  you  then sa id  no  i t  i s  

the  20mi l l ion  or  the  20% then you s tar ted  ge t t ing  in to  some 

d i f f i cu l t ies ,  so  some o f  these th ings are  a  b i t  d i f f i cu l t ,  and I  

don ’ t  know as we  s i t  here  about  app l i cab i l i t y  because as  I  
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am say ing  the  memo’s  tha t  I  am look ing  a t ,  the  compl iance 

peop le  have s igned them in ,  and they a lways had the  du ty  

to  then say can th is  be  done o r  no t  and we take the  cue  

f rom them as we l l  tha t  be fo re  you do the  bus iness  

t ransact ion  the  compl iance has looked a t  i t ,  so  I  don ’ t  

know Cha i r  in  te rms o f  app l i cab i l i t y,  bu t  I  do  know tha t  

there  was a  huge  pro tes t  a t  some po in t  a round the  20% or  

20mi l l ion  wh ich  one is  app l i cab le  because i f  your  cont rac ts  

were  R100mi l l ion  or  less  then i t  makes sense but  fo r  the  

b ig  cont rac t s  and then a  lo t  o f  the  th ings the  cont rac ts  10 

were  b igger  than tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    You know normal ly  when you put  as  S  &  

H and say a l l  amounts  you wou ld  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  wha t  wou ld  

fo l low a f te r  tha t  i s  wh ichever  i s  the  h igher  o r  b igger  o r  

lesser  depend ing  on what  you wan t  to  say,  so  I  don ’ t  know 

whethe r  they have le f t  tha t  ou t  o r  whethe r  when you read i t  

you are  supposed  to  –  i t  i s  imp l ied  to  sa  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    The h igher  o r  . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Whichever  i s  the  h igher,  because maybe 

you say wh ichever  i s  the  lower  i t  wou ldn ’ t  make  much 20 

sense I  am not  su re .     

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  rea l l y  don ’ t  know and as  I  say  

Cha i r  h inds igh t  i s  a  per fec t  sc ience,  where  somebody says  

okay le t ’s  look  a t  cer ta in  th ings my way h inds igh t ,  the  most  

impor tan t  th ing  is  to  be  ab le  to  dea l  w i th  the  th ings  a t  the  
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t ime when they a re  be ing  dea l t  w i th ,  and i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  

the  compl iance peop le  to  make sure  tha t  they have dea l t  

w i th  i t ,  because  we cou ld  s i t  he re  fo r  a  very  long t ime,  

dea l ing  w i th  someth ing  where  the re ’s  an  ac tua l  exc lus ion ,  I  

don ’ t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  o f  course  you wou ld  apprec ia te  tha t  

–  o r  a  comment ,  o r  the  Commiss ion ,  par t  o f  why we  have to  

do  tha t  even w i th  h inds igh t  i s  to  es tab l i sh  where  th ings d id  

go  wrong,  how they went  wrong and what  i t  i s  tha t  cou ld  

have been done to  p revent  them f rom happen ing  and what  10 

measures wou ld  be  put  in  p lace  to  make sure  tha t  in  the 

fu tu re  the  same th ings don ’ t  happen,  so  you have to  say  

okay th i s  i s  what  happened and how d id  i t  happen,  peop le  

were  supposed to  ensure  tha t  i t  –  cer ta in  requ i rements  

were  met ,  no t  do  the i r  job ,  and so  on ,  so  ja ,  okay.   Mr  

Myburgh?    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes thank  you Cha i rpe rson.    Mr  

Gama i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  tu rn  to  your  bund le  a t  page  

250.146,  tha t  i s  where  you respond to  Mr  Mohamedi ,  

parag raph 5 .11  wh ich  I  have read the  who le  th ing  to  you.  20 

MR GAMA:    250 po in t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    250.146,  and your  response spans  

two pages on.    Do you want  to  dea l  w i th  tha t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  h i s  réponse is  on  wha t  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    250.146.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Okay thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th is  i s  you r  response to  pa rag raph  

5 .11  o f  Mr  Mohamedi  tha t  I  read to  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:  H’m.  

MR GAMA:    Th is  i s  in  re la t ion  to  Nkonk i?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  I  ind ica te  tha t  tha t  memo emanated f rom 

the  GCFO and i t  was suppor ted  by  the  Ch ie f  Lega l  Counse l  

o f  Transnet ,  and tha t  was the  typed s ignatory  to  i t ,  and i t  

was submi t ted  to  the  acqu is i t ion  and d isposa ls  commi t tee ,  10 

i t  was a  pro jec t  wh ich  was par t  o f  the  cost  sav ings and 

e f f i c iency d r ive  fo r  the  op t im isa t ion  o f  supp ly  cha in  

management  w i th in  Transnet  and  we had hoped tha t  we 

cou ld  save up to  R5b i l l i on  pe r  annum.  

 The proposa l  had f i rs t  been taken to  the  Aud i t  

Commi t tee  as  I  have a l ready ind ica ted ,  to  permi t  Nkonk i  to  

per fo rm ce r ta in  non-aud i t  re la ted  serv i ces .    I  have dea l t  

w i th  some o f  those issues,  par t  o f  the  issues w i th  th is  

renegot ia t ion  o f  the  Kumba I ron  Ore  cont rac t ,  the  Ang lo  

Amer i can cont rac t  in  te rms o f  wh ich  th is  everg reen  20 

cont rac t  w i th  Kumba they pa id  market  re la ted rates for  

por t ions of  the  i ron ore haulage which rates were 

s ign i f i cant ly  be low the market  pr ice that  Kumba’s  

compet i to rs such as Assmang were paying fo r  the same 

serv ice.  
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 We est imated that  an addi t ional  R1 b i l l ion per  annum 

could be  paid  by Kumba to Transnet  and in  fact  s ince  2005 

per  annum those amounts would have been recoverable and 

Kumba had fa i led  to  regular ise the – th is  posi t ion ostensib ly  

re ly ing on the cont ract  wi th  Transnet  and the terminat ion  

date saying that  they only want  to  deal  wi th  i t  in  2028 when 

the exis t ing cont ract  expi res.  

 So th is  was as a  resul t  o f  that  cont ract  which had 

been entered in  a hurry and in  haste in  2005 which  we 

bel ieved was exclus ionary and ant i -compet i t ive to  t ransport  10 

i ron ore to  Saldanha.   

 And real l y  what  Transnet  was t ry ing to  do at  that  

t ime was to  remove and embed a der ivat i ve on the or ig ina l  

pr ic ing mechanism which was l inked to  the US Dol lar  and 

therefore cer ta in  – i t  gave r i se to  cer ta in  embedded 

der ivat ives.  

 So the – the fund ing for  th is  work i t  was emphasised 

that  once the cost  savings had been ra ised then the  people  

would be paid f rom there so that  they would 00:01:49 and 

that  there would be a fo rmula that  would be ut i l i sed to  pay 20 

for  i t .  

 So i t  was a mat ter  that  fa i led to  be considered by  

the two commit tees of  the board.   So one being the Audi t  

Commit tee and the other  one being the Acquis i t ions and 

Disposal  Commit tee.  
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 And so i t  remains my understanding Chai r  that  the  

costs would have been funded f rom saving and that  no  

payments would have been made i f  no savings or  i f  there 

was no revenue enhancement  that  had been made.  

 So i f  they fa i led  to  negot ia te a h igher  pr ices or  

tar i f fs  in  terms of  coal  and i ron ore then they would not  be 

paid.  

 There was a lso a regime a very st r i c t  reg ime and 

formula which had been developed I  th ink one of  the  fe l lows 

Pat r i ck Dada had been asked to work on fo rmula in  terms of  10 

how we would pay th is  so that  we do not  just  pay people 

and le t  the d i f fe rent  leaders in  the  business were to  assess 

and evaluate the extent  o f  sav ing generated and the  

compensat ion due as a resul t  o f  th is  00:03:07.  

 So the asser t ion by  Mohamedi  that  a l though the 500 

mi l l ion budget  but  on ly 26 mi l l ion was paid to  me is  wi thout  

doubt  as a resu l t  o f  the st r ingent  measures tha t  were  

in t roduced govern ing such expendi ture.  

 But  as I  had sa id to  you ear l ier  Chai r  i t  la ter  

t ranspi red – I  do  not  know whether  i t  was 2017 or  ear ly  in  20 

2018 that  Nkonki ’s  ownership had changed when we had 

paid that  26 mi l l ion by that  t ime.   And some of  those th ings 

had not  been declared and i t  had gone rogue and we 

terminated the re la t ionship between Transnet  and Nkonki .  

 So that  i s  rea l ly  the effect  o f  i t  as Mr Myburgh has 
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requested fo r  me to comment .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now Mr Gama th is  – th is  par t i cu lar  

t ransact ion has a lso been invest igated by money f lows.   

Now I  wanted just  to  put  to  you whether  you were aware  

that  in  2016 the year  before th is  Tr i l l ian acqu i red the  

audi t ing f i rm Nkonki .   Tr i l l ian.   

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  as you know Mr Essa through 

Tr i l l ian Hold ings was a 60% shareholder  in  that  bus iness.  

MR GAMA:   Of  Nkonki .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Of  Tr i l l ian.  

MR GAMA:   No,  no you saying Tr i l l i an had acqui red  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Tr i l l i an acqui red Nkonki  in  2016.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You know that  Mr Essa was a  

shareholder  at  Tr i l l ian.  

MR GAMA:   Yes no we have deal t  wi th  that  i ssue yesterday.   

No what  I  am saying Tr i l l ian acqui r ing Nkonki  because 

remember  Nkonki  is  a  f i rm of  accountants and audi tors.   So 

for  me i t  would be – i t  would have been absurd that  such a 20 

th ing had happened but  i t  was widely repor ted  in  the 

newspapers af te rwards but  I  d id  not  know when i t  

happened.   But  a t  the t ime when we terminated those were 

par t  o f  the considerat ions that  enabled us to  te rminate the 

re la t ionship.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   In  your  answer to  Mr Mohamedi 's  

paragraph 5.11 you do not  take issue wi th  h is  s tatement 

that  Nkonki  b id  was unsol i c i ted.  

MR GAMA:   Sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   When you answer paragraph 5.11 of  

Mr Mohamedi  you do not  take issue wi th  h is  s tatement  that  

Transnet  received an unsol ic i ted b id f rom Nkonki .  

MR GAMA:   I  do not  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R ight .  

MR GAMA:   Whether  i t  was unsol i c i ted I  have sa id  to  you 10 

before that  i t  may even have been Transnet ’s  people that  

thought  they were  appoint  –  approaching an account ing f i rm 

that  could assis t  them.   I  d id  not  know anyth ing about  the  

so l i c i ta t ion or  o therwise that  i s  why I  was not  go ing to  

comment  on someth ing I  do not  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  I  have got  a  few th ings here  

and there to  deal  wi th .   Could I  ask you again  in  your  

bundle to  go to  page 250.438.   We have done some fur ther  

invest igat ions in to th is  JZ Foundat ion donat ion.   There you 

wi l l  f ind an aff idavi t  f rom Nomvelo Makhunga she was the  20 

person who put  up a response before  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  for  the t ranscr ibers Makhunga wi l l  be 

M-a-k-h-u-n-g-a and Nomvelo N-o-m-v-e- l -o .   You know 

somet imes when you read the t ranscr ip t  you f ind that  you 

cannot  even make head or  ta i l  o f  what  they have wr i t ten  
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because they d id not  know the spel l ing.   Ja okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Thank you Chai r.   So what  she does in  

th is  aff idavi t  i s  she refers over  the page at  439 at  paragraph 

5 to  her  response which we went  through previously and 

then at  paragraph 6 she says that  Mr Zepho Nd lovu a 

genera l  manager represented Transnet  at  the event  and she 

sets out  the other  at tendees.   Do you know Mr Zepho 

Ndlovu? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  was h is  posi t ion? 10 

MR GAMA:   I  th ink he was one of  the three people  that  we 

had said last  t ime that  he could have been involved.   He 

was a genera l  manager at  the Transnet  por t  te rminal .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Genera l  manager.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A t  Transnet  por t  terminal .  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then what  we have a lso managed 

to f ind is  the delegat ion of  author i ty  that  you see at  page 

250.444,  do you see that?  20 

MR GAMA:   Yes but  i t  i s  i r re levant  for  our  purposes is  i t  

not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No i t  is  not .    

MR GAMA:   Why? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because there is  no delegat ion of  
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author i ty  cover ing  20 June.  

MR GAMA:   Sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th is is  the  delegat ion of  author i t y  

there i s  not  a  de legat ion of  author i ty  cover ing the 20 t h  o f  

June.  

MR GAMA:   There would have been a delegated author i t y  

between the 15 t h  o f  June to the 21s t  o f  June.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  would… 

MR GAMA:   Th is  is  a  d i f ferent  mat ter.   I t  fa l ls  outs ide the 

dates that  we are  deal ing wi th  and therefore i t  i s  i r re levant  10 

for  our  d iscussion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   Wel l  I  just  want  to  pu t  to  you 

Mr Gama that  we have not  been ab le to  f ind  a  delegat ion of  

author i ty.   I  have speci f i ca l l y  asked the invest igators they 

speci f ica l l y  asked Transnet  th is  is  the delegat ion of  

author i ty  that  we have been provided wi th .  

MR GAMA:   Yes but  i t  is  fo r  the wrong per iod Mr Myburgh 

that  is  a l l  I  am saying.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay wel l  le t  us then deal  wi th  th is .   

There was a delegat ion of  author i t y  f rom 27 June to  12 Ju ly,  20 

is  that  correct  as per  page 444? 

MR GAMA:   I  do not  know what  is  the re levance of  th is?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Gama was there a – does page 

444 ref lect  a  delegat ion of  author i ty  dur ing the per iod 27  

June to 12 Ju ly?  
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MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And that  was s igned by you on the  

14 t h  o f  June.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So what  were you doing dur ing the 

per iod 27 June to  12 Ju ly?  

MR GAMA:   You have not  g iven me an opportuni ty  to  go and 

check that .   Did you ask me to check that?  I  have not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Or  i s  th is  when you were in  Russia?  

MR GAMA:   Sorry – no I  was in  Russia between the 15 t h  o f  10 

June and the 21s t  o f  June.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then af ter  that?  

MR GAMA:   In  St  Petersburg and then I  came back to  the 

count ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .   And then I  just  wanted to  

show you we wi l l  have to  invest igate that  fur ther  –  here is  

the program which has been found at  445 and 446.   And you 

see at  446 there you are ref lected as a speaker.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So is  i t  your  case then that  Mr Zepho 20 

Ndlovu was appointed – you gave h im the de legated 

author i ty  o f  the act ing Group Chie f  Execut ive on – for  the 

pai r  20 June – is  that  case.  

MR GAMA:   No i t  is  not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So who was – who was the  act ing 
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Group Chief  Execut ive on the 20 t h  June? 

MR GAMA:   I  asked Mr Kar l  Socikwa who was the  CEO of  

( inaudib le ) .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your  pardon.  

MR GAMA:   I  asked Mr Kar l  Socikwa who was the  CEO of  

the Transnet  por t  terminal .  

CHAIRPERSON:    To act  in your posi t ion.  

MR GAMA:   To act  in my posi t ion and to represent  me at  

th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   At  the – at  th is funct ion.  10 

MR GAMA:   Yes.   He was unable to do so he requested Mr 

Ndlovu he gave h im the speech that  would have been made 

there and Mr Ndlovu made the speech at  th is place.   And 

that  speech was made on the 20t h of  June 2015.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then the last  two documents 

250.447 – 448 this we thank – we received f rom you i f  I  can 

start  at  448.   You see on the 15t h of  February 2018 you wrote 

presumably to the Oberio Hotel  and you said  

“ I  stayed at  your hotel  in Dubai  f rom the 

evening of  22 January to 24 January Bi l l  No 20 

so and so has been replaced – has been 

misplaced and I  request  a copy of  the 

receipt .   I  stayed in room 1601.”  

And then i f  you go to 447 at  the bot tom of  the page.  They 

responded and presumably they provided you then wi th the 
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document.   Is that  correct .  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And that  is the document at  page 

250.341.  

MR GAMA:   250.450.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   250.341.  

MR GAMA:   Okay I  thought they have just  at tached the 

document at  the back of  th is th ing here.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your pardon I  d id not  see that .  

MR GAMA:   Is i t  not  easier to … 10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am with you.   Alr ight  i t  is the – wel l  i t  

is the same document that  we have at  250.341.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Of  course i t  does not  ref lect  who paid 

this.  

MR GAMA:    Sorry let  us – this 250.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   250.341.   Mr Gama.  

MR GAMA:   250.341.   I  th ink i t  is the same document.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes i t  is.  

MR GAMA:   At  250.450.  Mr Myburgh yesterday you – you 20 

said you wanted to ascertain that  i t  came i t  f rom the hotel .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   No I  . .  

MR GAMA:   I t  says that  the balance in th is th ing is ni l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   And you – you said that  is not  what you are – 
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you are contest ing – you are contest ing the fact  that  you are 

agreeing that  i t  came f rom the hotel  so I  have given you the 

emai ls.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes absolutely.   No I  appreciate that .   

The point  is i t  does not  ref lect  who paid the bi l l .   I t  is a 

simple point .  

ADV OLDWAGE:   Chai r  th is is – th is is  r id iculous.   I t  real ly 

is r id iculous in the ext reme and I  must  object  to what is  

being put  here.  

 F irst ly let  us consider where th is document came 10 

f rom.  There is no signature appended to th is document  by 

vi r tue of  when i t  was created.   Surely Mr Myburgh must  

understand that  that  is the answer to th is r id iculous 

proposi t ion that  he is put t ing.  

 Secondly these accounts do not  re f lect  who actual ly  

made the payment.   So you cannot  put  that  proposi t ion wi th 

the greatest  of  respect .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  that  is the very proposi t ion I  am 

put t ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   My Myburgh there is  … 20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  is  precisely the proposi t ion that  I  

am put t ing.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  i t  does not  te l l  you who has paid 

and i t  is not  r id icu lous.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Because there at  least  two documents 

that  show that  at  least  the month and two months af ter Mr 

Gama stayed a schedule was being sent  to Sahara saying 

the amount is  st i l l  outstanding.   So i t  is  oh more than 

possible that  Sahara then set t led i t  and you get  a ni l  

balance.   I t  is a simple proposi t ion.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I t  does not  te l l  you who paid.  

MR GAMA:   Ja.  10 

ADV OLDWAGE:   Mr Chai r  th is is – Mr Myburgh is not 

get t ing my object ion.   He is missing the point  wi th respect .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay what is your  object ion? 

ADV OLDWAGE:   I  am saying simply th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV OLDWAGE:   He has accepted that  th is emanated f rom 

the hotel .   That  was… 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Absolutely.  

ADV OLDWAGE:   That  was his submission last  night .   In the 

ordinary course a document l ike this would not  indicate that .   20 

That  is the f i rst  issue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Would not  indicate what? 

ADV OLDWAGE:   Who – in  fact  i f  you have regard to when 

this document was created.   On Mr Myburgh’s own 

submission i t  would not  ref lect  who had made this  payment 
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but  no invoice issued by a hotel  re f lects who actual ly made 

the payment because there is no provision for i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  i t  is the posi t ion not  that  we saw 

another one that  showed – or was i t  an emai l  that  showed 

that  was i t  Sahara or somebody who had paid? 

ADV OLDWAGE:   No Mr Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   What – what – there was something that  

referred to ei ther  Sahara or somebody connected wi th the 

Gupta ’s that  we deal t  wi th last  t ime. 

ADV OLDWAGE:   Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   E i ther an emai l  or the invoice I  cannot 

remember which one.  

ADV OLDWAGE:   No there was a schedule that  was 

forwarded to the as I  understood i t  the CEO of  Sahara 

Computers and that  was cal l ing for  payment of  three hotel  

b i l ls by three ind ividuals.   So that  is something di fferent .   

But  there is something more concerning about th is .   Th is 

commission has wide ranging powers.   I  f ind i t  st range that  i t  

is not  put  to  Mr Gama that  the hote l  is  in  fact  conf i rmed that  

he has not  paid this bi l l  because i t  is c lear what Mr Myburgh 20 

is dr iv ing at  here.   That  Mr Gama is not  being t ruthful  about 

payment of  th is account.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  he has not  said so.   He has not  said 

so.  

ADV OLDWAGE:   He is dr iv ing at  Mr Chai r  wi th respect .  



12 MAY 2021 – DAY 393 
 

Page 304 of 317 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  let  us see i f  and when he gets there.   

But  later on you – you may re-examine to  clar i fy whatever 

issues might  not  have been clar i f ied.   Okay.   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A lr ight  thank you.   That  br ings us to  

the end of  those documents.   I  want  to just  take you to… 

MR GAMA:    Sorry can I  just  say to you that  that  document 

i t  has a date on i t .   The date is  on the date that  I  checked 

out .   I t  says on the 24t h of  January 2016 paid.   There is the 

amount and i t  says the balance in AED ni l .   That  is what that  

document says.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr Gama I  want to take you to one or 

two other issues.   Could I  ask you please to turn to  Bundle 

BB4(f )  one of  the invest igators p icked i t  out .   Qui te a di ff icul t  

– have you got  i t?   BB4(f) .   Do you have i t  Mr Gama? 

MR GAMA:   Ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Could I  ask you please to turn page 

87.   I t  re lates to the role that  you played in re lat ion to the 

1064 locomot ives and part icular ly in relat ion to the tender 

evaluat ion process.   This is  a  – a memorandum to the board 

of  di rectors f rom Mr Molefe dated the 17t h of  January subject  20 

Request  for approval  to negot iate and award business to the 

short l isted tenderers for the supply of  the 599 Coco New 

Vol tage locomot ives for general  f re ight  business.   The 

purpose of  the memo is to  provide an update to the board of  

di rectors on the tender evaluat ion process.   Note and 
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approve the tender evaluat ion process f rom step 1 up to step 

6 to the Transnet  board of  d i rectors.   Approve the 

recommendat ion of  the short l ist  tenderers as a resul t  of  the 

tender and evaluat ion process for negot iat ions and award of  

business and delegate al l  powers etcetera.   I  just  want to  

conf i rm that  you were a s ignatory to th is document.   You 

were part  of  the recommending team that  you see at  page 

95.   Would you conf i rm that? 

MR GAMA:   Ja I  see this document  for the f i rst  t ime now but  

yes that  is my signature.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja wel l  i t  ar ises f rom evidence that  you 

have given about your role.   That  in  – that  relates to the 599 

locomot ives.   You wi l l  see at  page 100 a simi lar 

memorandum in relat ion to  the 465 diesel  locomot ives.   Your 

signature appears at  page 108.   You conf i rm that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then I  want to  end wi th someth ing that 

you asked me. You said that  i f  I  was of  the view that  you 

knew of  th is corrupt ion and money laundering then I  should 

put  i t  you.   Remember saying that? 20 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So I  th ink i t  is important  Mr Gama that  

I  perhaps expla in this.   That  di fferent  to normal court  

proceedings evidence leaders do not  have a cl ient  who has a 

part icular version.  Our c l ient  is the general  publ ic.   So we do 
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not  have a part icular version ul t imately i t  wi l l  be for the 

Chairperson to assess a l l  of  the evidence and determine 

whether you may or may not  have known.  Now I  just  want to 

discuss a few things in that  regard wi th you.  

 As I  understand is i t  is your ev idence that  you were 

completely unaware of  th is  i f  money f lows certa in ly is to 

bel ieved what is corrupt ion and money laundering.   Is my 

understanding of  your evidence correct? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Oppose something ul t imately that  the 10 

Chairperson would have to consider  is how could you have 

been unaware of  th is when i t  was done on such a grand 

scale?  I t  spanned many years as we have seen.   I t  went  

through var ious di fferent  phases.   I t  involved numerous 

contracts.   How could you have been unaware?  Did you not  

have an inkl ing that  something was untoward? 

MR GAMA:   No I  d id not .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Not  an inkl ing? 

MR GAMA:   I  d id not .   Not  at  a l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So… 20 

MR GAMA:   As we si t  here we si t  here wi th the benef i t  of  

h indsight  where people say how could so many have not  

known because one was not  involved in i t .   One was just  

working doing the ir  work not  knowing that  there is anything 

in the background. 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  Mr Gama you have seen l i teral ly at  

every turn – in fact  every cont ract  that  we have discussed 

over the space of  the last  few days is ta inted wi th corrupt ion 

and money laundering.    

MR GAMA:   Ja that  is what the money f low teams as you say 

have found out .   I  have said to you ear l ier that  my own sense 

wi th a lot  of  these was that  the processes themselves were 

fol lowed properly  inside the NDT but  that  our  cont ractor  had 

commission agreements wi th th i rd part ies and someth ing that  

we ourselves probably could not  have been able to pol ice or  10 

we did not  understand and we did not  know anything about 

i t .  That  is what I  have said.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The other th ing I  just  want to ask your 

comment on I  suppose another th ing that  would have to be 

considered carefu l ly by the commission is Mr Essa on the 

money f lows analysis and invest igat ion we know has been 

dubbed as the Gupta Money launder ing Lieutenant and you 

have seen that  at  least  on the face of  i t  he is  behind almost  

al l  of  these cont racts that  we have been discussing and 

issues we have been discussing.   Suppose a potent ia l  20 

chal lenge is that  Mr Essa was wel l -known to you.   He was 

also wel l -known to other senior members of  Transnet.   I t  is 

not  that  th is is someone who i t  is not  l ike an intel lect  scam 

that  you deal ing wi th an unident i f ied person.   This is Mr Essa 

you have seen him in meet ings wi th Regiments.   You have 
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seen him in Mr Singh’s off ice.   You have been taken by him 

to Gupta ’s.   You have met wi th him in Dubai  and so i t  goes 

on and on.  

MR GAMA:   No i t  does not  go and on and on.   I t  is 

somebody that  I  have met  three or four  t imes which I  have 

told th is commission.   I  d id not  know any other th ing that  he 

does other than what he said he does.   I  have not  had any 

re lat ionship of  any sort  or nature wi th him.  I  do not  know 

what i t  is and I  am not  fami l iar wi th al l  of  these money f lows 

and the money laundering and al l  o f  that  aspects of  him.  He 10 

has not  shared,  i t  was not  what  we d i scussed.   And you 

wou ld  a l so  see tha t  en t i t ies  tha t  he  was invo lved in ,  when  

cer ta in  th ings happened tha t  I  be l ieve  imputed the  in tegr i t y  

o f  Transnet ,  they  te rm inated those  cont rac t s .   Not  once.   I  

have to ld  you about  te rm inat ing  the  Reg iments ’ cont rac t  in  

2016 and the  Tr i l l i an ’s  cont rac t  in  2016.    

 And when Nkonk i  i ssue arose,  I  a lso  te rm inated 

tha t  cont rac t .   So I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  those are  the  ac t ions  

o f  someth ing  who  was in  any way,  fo rm in  cahoots  w i th  the  

so-ca l led  Mr  Essa.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And another  th ing ,  I  suppose,  tha t  

wou ld  have to  be  cons idered is  tha t  in  o rder  to  pu l l  o f f  

g rand sca le  cor rup t ion  and money launder ing ,  l i te ra l l y,  o f  

mega-propor t ions ,  one wou ld  need  some sor t  o f  ins igh t  and 

ins is tence,  p resumably.   One wou ld  need some peop le  
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w i th in  Transnet  to  be  on  your  s ide .    

MR GAMA :    And tha t  was not  me.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then presumable  i f  there  was  

in te rna l  ass i s tance,  there  wou ld  need to  be  some sor t  o f  

qu id  p ro  quo.   What  i s  you r  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  i t  was not  me.   I  was not  invo lved in  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  suppose tha t  then br ings us  to  the  

ev idence o f  you r  d r iver  and . . . [ in tervenes]   

MR GAMA :    Yes,  what  about  the  ev idence o f  my d r iver?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  we have been th rough tha t .  10 

MR GAMA :    Yes ,  I  have ind i ca ted  to  you about  the  dr ive r,  

tha t  somet imes he uses rea l  events  tha t  took p lace and 

then he puts  f lavour  in to  i t  and then he a l leges tha t  cer ta in  

th ings tha t  d id  no t  happen,  he  says tha t  i s  what  happened.   

I  have dea l t  w i th  those issues.   I  have shown you where  he  

supposes I  cou ld  have been a t  two p laces a t  the  same 

t ime.   So. . .   And I  have a l so  shown the  Cha i r  tha t  there  are  

o ther  mot ives  in  as  fa r  as  the  dr iver  i s  concerned.   I  have  

ind ica ted  those issues and I  have shared i t  very  f ree ly  w i th  

the  Cha i rperson.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And,  I  mean,  as  you know your  

p redecessor,  Mr  Mole fe ,  has a l so  been here  imp l ica ted  to  a  

greater  o r  lesser  degree h is  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Of f i cer,  

Mr  S ingh,  has been imp l ica ted .   Mr  Peter  too  has been  

imp l ica ted .   We wi l l  hear  f rom h im next  week .   I t  i s  
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ev idence o f  d r ive rs  in  re la t ion  to  them as we l l .  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  I  can on ly  ta l k  about  myse l f .   I  cannot  ta lk  

about  o ther  peop le .   I t  i s  me tha t  I  ta lk  about .   I t  i s  me tha t  

I  know.   I  cannot  ta lk  fo r  o ther  peop le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then perhaps,  le t  me jus t  f ina l l y  

pu t  to  you.   We have been ta lk ing  now about  you r  peers ,  

your  co l leagues,  some o f  you r  subord ina tes .   But  go ing  up  

a  leve l ,  you may have heard  the  ev idence o f  Ms Gigaba in  

re la t ion  –  the  re la t ionsh ip  be tween Mr  G igaba and the  

Guptas .    10 

 You may have heard  tha t ,  and o f  course  we a re  

s t i l l  to  hear  f rom Mr  G igaba,  and her  ev idence i s  s t i l l  to  be  

tes ted  but  i f  I  was to  summar ise .   Her  ev idence i s  to  the  

e f fec t  tha t  Mr  G igaba we l l  and  t ru ly  captured  by  the  

Guptas .    

 That  he  was to ld  tha t  i f  you  do not  do  as  we say,  

and th is  i s  when he was the  M in is te r  o f  the  DPE,  h is  

por t fo l io  inc luded  Transnet ,  then you w i l l  be  send back to  

Home Affa i rs .   There  is  ev idence aga ins t  h im by her  o f  h im 

a lso  rece iv ing  cash,  even a t  tha t  leve l ,  Mr  Gama.  20 

MR GAMA :    You wou ld  have to  pu t  those th ings to  

Mr  G igaba h imse l f  and f ind  ou t  the  t ru th fu lness o r  

o therw ise  o f  those issues w i th  h im .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  comple tes  our  quest ion ing .   

There  is  jus t  one las t  th ing  I  need to  do .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Gama,  cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  

go  back to  your  Exh ib i t  28?  Prev ious ly,  I  have taken you 

th rough your  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  and you  sa id  you had noth ing  to  

add to  tha t .   Your  second a f f idav i t ,  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page  

116.   And then there  is  an  in t roduct ion  and then the  f i rs t  

th ing  tha t  you dea l  w i th  i s  the  Barbara  Hogan s ta tement  a t  

page 123.   I  th ink  we have gone th rough tha t  o r  you have  

dea l t  w i th  tha t  in  the  contex t  o f  the  f i rs t  par t  o f  my  

examinat ion  o f  you re la t ing  to  your  re ins ta tement .   Do you 10 

agree w i th  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And jus t  l e t  me make i t  c lear  tha t  

these a f f idav i t s  must  be  s tand as  read and they w i l l ,  

obv ious ly,  be  cons ide red by  the  Commiss ion  bu t  I  jus t  want  

to  make sure  tha t  there  is  –  there  may not  be  anyth ing  tha t  

you need to  o r  want  to  add.   Then what  you do a t  para  – 

sor ry,  a t  page 133 is  you dea l  w i th  Mr  Mole fe .    

 Cer ta in ly  in  your  open ing  s ta tement  you dea l t  

w i th  much o f  th is  s tu f f  and a  lo t  o f  what  he  had to  say was 20 

o f  qu i te  a  genera l  na ture .   But  in  the  contex t  o f  your  

response to  h im,  fo r  example ,  a t  page 144.   We have dea l t  

w i th  what  you had to  say about  the  hundred locomot ives .   

Another  example  a t  page 146 a t  paragraphs o r  a t  you r  

parag raph 33.    
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 We have dea l t  w i th  re loca t ion  wh ich  spans a  

number  o f  pages.   And then a t  154 you respond to  T-

Systems,  what  he  has to  say about  tha t .   That  we have 

dea l t  w i th .   You dea l  a t  pa ragraph 35 w i th  th ree  separa te  

c iv i l  c la ims.   I  do  no t  th ink  th is  i s  someth ing  tha t  you have  

dea l t  w i th .   You want  to  say someth ing  about  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Or  can we take i t  as  read?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  i t  i s  someth ing  I  shared . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  10 

MR GAMA :    . . .w i th  the  Commiss ion ,  yes .   You can take  i t  

as  read.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then a t  page 159,  you dea l  w i th  

Mos id i ’s  s ta tement  and we have gone th rough tha t  in  some 

deta i l  p rev ious ly.   I f  you  go to  page 165,  you dea l  w i th  

Gonsa lves ’ s ta tement .   That  we have gone th rough.   And 

then a t  166,  you dea l  w i th  Wi tness 2 .   We have dea l t  w i th  

tha t .   So is  there  anyth ing  in  th is  a f f idav i t  tha t  you fee l  you  

wou ld  l i ke  to  address?  

ADV OLDWAGE :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  in  fa i rness to  Mr  Gama.   20 

He must  be  g iven an oppor tun i ty  to  cons ide r.   He shou ld 

no t  be  under  p ressure  now to  make tha t  de te rminat ion .   

There  is  the  issue o f  re -examinat ion  wh ich  I  w i l l  address  

you on in  a  moment  when I  have tha t  oppor tun i ty  bu t  he  

w i l l  cons ider  h is  pos i t ion  and as  adv i sed to  your  response  
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by  way o f  e i ther  an  a f f idav i t  o r  the  re -examinat ion . . .  

[Speaker ’s  vo ice  drops –  unc lea r ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  he  is  no t  be ing  pu t  under  

p ressure .   A l l  Mr  Myburgh i s  say ing  is .   When he sa id  he  

had reached the  end o f  h is  quest ions,  he  cou ld  have sa id  

tha t  i s  i t  bu t  he  jus t  thought  jus t  in  case the re  is  someth ing  

tha t  he  m issed and Mr  Gama might  w ish  to  say someth ing .   

And obv ious l y,  i f  Mr  Gama says:   A t  the  moment  I  cannot  

th ink  o f  anyth ing  we have le f t  ou t  in  te rms o f  re -

examinat ion  or  a r rangements  fo r  a f f idav i t s .   That  can  10 

a lways be dea l t  w i th .   So Mr  Gama,  i f  there  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I t  w i l l  be  d i f f i cu l t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  

MR GAMA :    I  am say ing  i t  w i l l  be  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me,  jus t  

go ing  th rough th is  in  l igh tn ing  speed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   No,  no  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    . . .any th ing  has been omi t ted  or  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  no  tha t  i s  why Mr  Myburgh was jus t  

t ry ing  to  make sure  tha t  in  case he has m issed out  20 

someth ing  i f  you  remember  someth ing ,  you can dea l  w i th  i t .   

Bu t  there  is  the  oppor tun i ty  to  c la r i f y  someth ing  when your  

counse l  re -examines you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .o r  in  te rms o f  a r rangements  tha t  w i l l  
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be  made to  f i le  an  a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So  in  re la t ion  to  your  th i rd  

a f f idav i t ,  tha t  dea ls  w i th  Mohamedi  and Ca l la rd  and we  

have t rave rsed much o f  tha t  a l ready.   I f  your  counse l  has  

someth ing  he  wants  to  pu t  to  you  in  add i t ion  to  ev idence 

tha t  you have g iven,  o f  cou rse ,  he  can do tha t .   And then 

your  fou r th  a f f idav i t ,  wh ich  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 250.262,  

tha t  dea ls  w i th  W i tness 2  and someth ing  tha t  we have gone 

th rough in  i t s  en t i re ty.  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson .   That  

conc ludes our  examinat ion  o f  Mr  Gama.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay thank you .   Counse l  fo r  Mr  Gama,  

i s  there  an  ar rangement  tha t  has been reached sub jec t  to  

my approva l  o r  what  i s  the  pos i t ion  in  te rms o f  c la r i f y ing  

anyth ing ,  re -examinat ion?  

ADV OLDWAGE :    Mr  Cha i r,  there  cer ta in ly  w i l l  be  a  need 

fo r  Mr  Gama to  p lace  add i t iona l  ev idence befo re  the  

Commiss ion .   There  is  no  fo rmal  ag reement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  20 

ADV OLD WAGE :    Bu t  we w ish  to  take  advantage o f  your  

o f fe r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV OLDWAGE :    That  we reduce  to  wr i t ing  in  a  f o rm an 

a f f idav i t  tha t  wh ich  in  the  ord inary  course  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV OLDWAGE :    . . . const i tu tes  re -examinat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV OLDWAGE :    I  have taken those ins t ruc t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV OLDWAGE :    We wi l l  be  do ing  so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV OLD WAGE :    So  we are  s imp ly  mak ing  use  o f  tha t  

inv i ta t ion  by  you fo r  us  to  submi t  such an a f f idav i t  in  v iew 

o f  re -examinat ion .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV OLDWAGE :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay no tha t  i s  f ine .   Mr  Myburgh,  you  

have . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  and I  suppose you se t t ing  ou t  a  

t ime l ine  wou ld  be  impor tan t  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  tha t  w i l l  pu t  in  ac t ion ,  ja .   Do you  

want  to  g ive  an  i dea o f  what  you have in  m ind in  te rms o f  

t imef rame,  because i t  i s  be t te r  i f  we have a  t imef rame.  

ADV OLDWAGE :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Seven days?  

ADV OLDWAGE :    Mr  Cha i r,  wou ld  –  bear ing  in  m ind tha t  

we wou ld  l i ke  to  consu l t  the  t ranscr ip ts  o f  the  proceed ings 

and the  ev idence o f  o ther  w i tnesses tha t  have been 

re fer red  to  dur ing  my c l ien t ’s  quest ion ing ,  m ight  I  suggest  
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the  4 t h  o f  June?  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  about  how long?  How long f rom 

now?  Today is  what?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  th ree  weeks.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  th ree  weeks.   I  th ink  tha t  i s  too  

long but  I  wou ld  be  prepared to  g ive  you more  than  seven  

days,  as  I  was ind ica t ing .   I  am prepared to  g ive  you up to  

on  or  be fore  25  May.   I s  tha t  f ine?  

ADV OLDWAGE :    To  comply  w i th  tha t?   Regre t tab le ,  I  am 

away and I  am in  o ther  mat te rs  and I  am a l so  away f rom 10 

Johannesburg .   So the  25 t h ,  wh ich  is  –  i t  g ives  us  s i x  

work ing  days,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV OLDWAGE :    I f  I  m igh t  then ask?  

CHAIRPERSON :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV OLDWAGE :    Bu t  I  am not  tes t ing  your  pa t ience.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV OLDWAGE :    Bu t  I  a lso  have a  busy schedu le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  o f  cou rse  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV OLDWAGE :    Or  tha t  we do i t  by  the  28 t h .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    28 t h?  

ADV OLDWAGE :    I t  g ives  us  to  ex t ra  days.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay no tha t  i s  a l r igh t  then.   The 

dead l ine  is  28  then.  

ADV OLDWAGE :    Thank you,  Mr  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Thank you Mr  Gama for  

your  coopera t ion .   Thank you fo r  –  to  your  lega l  team.   

Thank you Mr  Myburgh and your  team.   Thank you to  the 

invest iga to rs .   Thank you to  the  techn ic ians and the  s ta f f .   

Thank you to  eve rybody fo r  a l l  your  coopera t ion  to  enab le  

us  to  work  un t i l  th is  t ime.   We wi l l  ad journ  now.    

 For  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c .   Tomorrow I  w i l l  be  

hear ing  the  ev idence o f  Mosebenz i  Zwane in  re la t ion  to  

Eskom,  fo rmer  Min is te r  o f  Minera l  Resources.    

 We ad journ .  10 

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 13 MAY 2021  


